Response to Comments

Nucor Corporation, Nucor Steel Arkansas AFIN# 47-00233, Permit 1139-AOP-R16

On or about October 5, 2012, the Director of the Arkansas Department of Environmental Quality gave notice of the draft permitting decision for the above referenced facility. During the comment period Allan Chang submitted written comments for US EPA, on the draft permitting decision. The Department's response to these issues and comments follows.

EPA Comments

EPA submitted five comments on the draft permit

Comment 1: Appendix B. Arkansas Air Permit Application Forms is incomplete. There are more affected emission sources other than Annealing Furnaces which are listed in the Application, did not provide information regarding those sources. Please explain why Nucor includes the blank form Page 8-16 in the Application.

Response: There were a number of sources changed in the previous PSD permit modification. This modification only made changes to the annealing furnace. As the changes to the annealing furnace were related to the changes in the previous PSD modification, only enough information about those other sources to determine PSD applicability was needed. Nucor provided that information. The Department does not know why Nucor submitted blank forms pages 8-16. Those pages are for information unrelated to the changes to the annealing furnace. Therefore, the Department did not request those forms to be filled out.

Comment 2: Page 35, Specific Condition #10, it states,

"Should the permittee install a single stack to its melt shop baghouse the permittee shall install and operate a bag leak detection system in accordance with $\S60.273a(c)$, (e), (f), and (g). The permittee shall maintain records for each bag leak detection system as outlined in $\S60.276a(h)$."

There is no such citation in the stated Regulation as above mentioned "§60.273a(c)," The above cited 60.273a(c), (e), (f), and (g) could mean "60.273(a), (c), (e), (f), and (g); also "§60.276a(h)" could be "§60.276(a) - (h)". Please make appropriate changes and be more specific.

Response: The regulation citations in the permit are correct. The citations §60.276a and §60.276 (a) refer to two completely different regulations. The facility is subject to NSPS Subpart AAa for arc furnaces constructed after 1983. All citations for this regulation have an "a" after the numerical portion. §60.276 (a) refers to NSPS Subpart AA for arc furnaces constructed before 1983 and is incorrect. No changes to the permit were made.

Comment 3: Page 35, Specific Condition #13, it states,

"The permittee shall either (a) install, calibrate, and maintain a monitoring device that allows the pressure in the free space inside each EAF to be monitored, pursuant to 40 CFR §60.274a(f), or (b) perform daily observations of shop opacity, pursuant to 40 CFR §60.273a(d). "

The reviewer can't find the above cited text. "§60.274a(f)" may be §60.274 "(a) - (f)" or "(a) and (f)"; "§60.273a(d)" may be "§60.273"(a) - (d)" or "(a) and (d)". Please verify the citation and make appropriate corrections.

Response: See response to Comment 2.

Comment 4: Page 35, Specific Condition #15, it states,

"The permittee shall notify the Department which method it elects to use within 30 days after the effective date of this permit. If the permittee elects a method which uses a volumetric flow measuring device, the permittee shall comply with the pertinent provisions of 40 CFR §60.274a(b). If the permittee elects a method based on periodic monitoring of fan motor amperes, damper positions, or both, the permittee shall comply with 40 CFR §60.274a(c), and shall conduct a compliance test to re-establish these parameters as specified in 40 CFR §60.274a(c) within 180 days after the effective date of this permit. [40 CFR, Part 60, Subpart AAa, and §19.304 of Regulation 19]

See Comment#2 and #3, and be specific on those cited Federal regulations.

Response: See response to Comment 2.

Comment 5: Page 38, Specific Condition #26, it states,

"...Semiannual stack testing for a pollutant is not required if the permittee elects to operate a CEMS for that pollutant at SN-01."

This requirement has been appeared in Nucor's Operation Permit forever, why could ADEQ revise and update it according Nucor's current operational practice.

Response: This condition refers to sources not changed as part of this modification. Additionally, the Department would only require Nucor to perform semiannual stack testing. Nucor voluntarily installs CEMs for some pollutants. Nucor may change between the two upon notifying the Department. Having the permit state whether CEMs are installed for which pollutants could make the permit incorrect if Nucor elects to change. No changes were made to the permit.



NOV 3 0 10 1

Wayne Turney, Environmental Manager Nucor Corporation (Nucor Steel, Arkansas) P.O. Box 30 Armorel, AR 72310

Dear Mr. Turney:

The enclosed Permit No. 1139-AOP-R16 is your authority to construct, operate, and maintain the equipment and/or control apparatus as set forth in your application initially received on 7/2/2012.

After considering the facts and requirements of A.C.A. §8-4-101 et seq., and implementing regulations, I have determined that Permit No. 1139-AOP-R16 for the construction, operation and maintenance of an air pollution control system for Nucor Corporation (Nucor Steel, Arkansas) to be issued and effective on the date specified in the permit, unless a Commission review has been properly requested under Arkansas Department of Pollution Control & Ecology Commission's Administrative Procedures, Regulation 8, within thirty (30) days after service of this decision.

The applicant or permittee and any other person submitting public comments on the record may request an adjudicatory hearing and Commission review of the final permitting decisions as provided under Chapter Six of Regulation No. 8, Administrative Procedures, Arkansas Pollution Control and Ecology Commission. Such a request shall be in the form and manner required by Regulation 8.603, including filing a written Request for Hearing with the APC&E Commission Secretary at 101 E. Capitol Ave., Suite 205, Little Rock, Arkansas 72201. If you have any questions about filing the request, please call the Commission at 501-682-7890.

Sincerely,

Mike Bates Chief, Air Division

ADEQ OPERATING AIR PERMIT

Pursuant to the Regulations of the Arkansas Operating Air Permit Program, Regulation 26:

Permit No.: 1139-AOP-R16

IS ISSUED TO:

Nucor Corporation (Nucor Steel, Arkansas)
7301 East County Road 142
Blytheville, AR 72315
Mississippi County
AFIN: 47-00233

THIS PERMIT AUTHORIZES THE ABOVE REFERENCED PERMITTEE TO INSTALL, OPERATE, AND MAINTAIN THE EQUIPMENT AND EMISSION UNITS DESCRIBED IN THE PERMIT APPLICATION AND ON THE FOLLOWING PAGES. THIS PERMIT IS VALID BETWEEN:

June 10, 2011 AND June 9, 2016

THE PERMITTEE IS SUBJECT TO ALL LIMITS AND CONDITIONS CONTAINED HEREIN.

Signed:

Mike Bates
Chief, Air Division

Date

Nucor	Corr	oration	(Nucor	Steel.	Arkansas)	١
1 1 4 6 6 7		JOIGHOIL	(1,4001	\sim	I IIII MII DAD	,

Permit #: 1139-AOP-R16

AFIN: 47-00233

Table of Contents

SECTION I: FACILITY INFORMATION	4
SECTION II: INTRODUCTION	5
Summary of Permit Activity	5
Regulations	8
Emission Summary	8
SECTION III: PERMIT HISTORY	18
SECTION IV: SPECIFIC CONDITIONS	32
EAF Melt Shop Compliance Unit	32
Mill Building Compliance Unit	42
Slag Processing Compliance Unit	46
Cold Rolling Mill Compliance Unit	49
Auxiliary Operations Compliance Unit	55
Steel Coil Cutting Operations	60
Internal Combustion Engines	61
Gasoline Storage Tanks	68
Roadway Sources	
Vacuum Degasser Compliance Unit	
SECTION V: COMPLIANCE PLAN AND SCHEDULE	
SECTION VI: PLANTWIDE CONDITIONS	
SECTION VII: INSIGNIFICANT ACTIVITIES	
SECTION VIII: GENERAL PROVISIONS	79
Appendix A	
Appendix B	
Appendix C	
Appendix D	
Appendix E	
Appendix F	
Appendix G	
Appendix H	

Permit #: 1139-AOP-R16

AFIN: 47-00233

List of Acronyms and Abbreviations

A.C.A. Arkansas Code Annotated

AFIN ADEQ Facility Identification Number

CFR Code of Federal Regulations

CO Carbon Monoxide

HAP Hazardous Air Pollutant

lb/hr Pound Per Hour

MVAC Motor Vehicle Air Conditioner

No. Number

NO_x Nitrogen Oxide

PM Particulate Matter

PM₁₀ Particulate Matter Smaller Than Ten Microns

SNAP Significant New Alternatives Program (SNAP)

SO₂ Sulfur Dioxide

SSM Startup, Shutdown, and Malfunction Plan

Tpy Tons Per Year

UTM Universal Transverse Mercator

VOC Volatile Organic Compound

Permit #: 1139-AOP-R16

AFIN: 47-00233

SECTION I: FACILITY INFORMATION

PERMITTEE:

Nucor Corporation (Nucor Steel, Arkansas)

AFIN:

47-00233

PERMIT NUMBER:

1139-AOP-R16

FACILITY ADDRESS:

7301 East County Road 142

Blytheville, AR 72315

MAILING ADDRESS:

P.O. Box 30

Armorel, AR 72310

COUNTY:

Mississippi County

CONTACT NAME:

Wayne Turney

CONTACT POSITION:

Environmental Manager

TELEPHONE NUMBER:

870-762-2100

REVIEWING ENGINEER: Shawn Hutchings

UTM North South (Y):

Zone 16: 3981209.43 m

UTM East West (X):

Zone 16: 254323.90 m

Permit #: 1139-AOP-R16

AFIN: 47-00233

SECTION II: INTRODUCTION

Summary of Permit Activity

Nucor Steel (Nucor), a Division of Nucor Corporation, owns and operates a scrap steel mill in Hickman, Mississippi County, Arkansas (approximately 10 miles east of Blytheville). Nucor produces flat-rolled steel primarily from steel scrap and scrap substitutes using the electric arc furnace (EAF) process.

This permit modification includes modifications to the software controlling the annealing furnace to allow it to run hotter and longer. These modifications are associated with the PSD modification adding the vacuum degasser system in 1139-AOP-R14. As the previous modification was PSD major for SO₂ and CO, the changes to the annealing furnace require BACT limits for those pollutants. Permitted emission limits did not change.

Prevention of Significant Deterioration

The changes made to the facility in this permit are considered a major modification under PSD regulations. The increases from the modification to the annealing furnace combined with the emissions from the earlier permitted portions of the project emissions for both SO₂ and CO were above the significant emission rate. This required PSD review for those pollutants. All other pollutants were below the significant emission rates including greenhouse gases.

Best Available Control Technology

The PSD regulations mandate that a case-by-case Best Available Control Technology (BACT) analysis be performed on all new or modified affected sources at which a net emissions increase will occur. The following table is a summary of the BACT determinations made in this permit. BACT determinations for the facility made in previous permits can be found in the Permit History section of this permit.

BACT Analysis Summary						
Source	Description	Pollutant	Control Technology	BACT Limit		
SN-61	Annealing	SO ₂	Natural Gas Combustion Only	0.0006 lb/MMBTU		
511-01	Furnace	СО	Good Combustion Practice	0.084 lb/MMBTU		

The CO and SO₂ BACT for the annealing furnace was determined to be good combustion practice and natural gas combustion only respectively.

Permit #: 1139-AOP-R16

AFIN: 47-00233

Ambient Air Impact Analysis

An applicant for a Prevention of Significant Deterioration (PSD) permit is required to conduct an air quality analysis of the ambient impacts associated with the construction and operation of the proposed new source or modification. The primary purpose of the air quality analysis is to demonstrate that new emissions emitted from a major stationary source, in conjunction with other applicable emissions from existing sources (including secondary emissions from growth associated with the new project), will not cause or contribute to a violation of any applicable National Ambient Air Quality Standard (NAAQS) or PSD increment.

The US EPA requires that PSD modeling be performed in two stages: the significance analysis and the full impact analysis. The significance analysis considers the net emissions change associated with PSD affected emissions units to determine if the increased emissions will have a significant impact upon the surrounding area. If the results of the significance analysis are below the corresponding Modeling Significance Levels the full impact analysis is not required. The following table shows the results of the significance analysis.

Pollutant	Averaging Period	Modeled concentration (μg/m³)	Significance Level (µg/m³)
00	8-hour	28.4	500
СО	1-hour	73.1	2000
	Annual	0.16	1
SO ₂	24-hour	1.4	5
	3-hour	3.4	25
	1-hour	4.0	7.8

The screening analysis showed that full impact analysis modeling need not be performed.

Additional Impact Review

An applicant for a Prevention of Significant Deterioration (PSD) permit must prepare additional impact analyses for each pollutant subject to the regulation under the Clean Air Act Amendments. Three areas constitute the Additional Impact Review: a growth analysis, a soils and vegetation analysis, and a visibility analysis.

Permit #: 1139-AOP-R16

AFIN: 47-00233

Growth Analysis

The Growth Analysis estimates the impact of atmospheric emissions generated by the projected growth from industrial, commercial, and residential growth associated with the project. The only increase in emissions from associated growth results from the increase in workers traveling to and from work. Emissions from this are assumed to be insignificant and would have a minor impact (if any) to the area.

Soils and Vegetation Analysis

A PSD applicant must also conduct a soil and vegetation air pollution impact analysis based on an inventory of the soils and vegetation types found in the impact area. For most types of soils and vegetation ambient concentrations of criteria pollutants below the secondary NAAQS will not result in harmful effects.

The modeling results discussed in the Ambient Air Impact Analysis above show that all pollutant's ground level concentrations are below the secondary NAAQS levels set forth by the US EPA. Therefore, the facility's emissions are not expected to result in harmful effects to the soils and vegetation in the area.

Visibility Analysis

The Mingo National Wilderness Area Class I area is approximately 116 km north northwest of the Nucor mill. In the original vacuum degasser PSD permit application, Nucor proposed to not perform detailed dispersion modeling for Class I impacts because the tpy total of SO₂, NO_x, and PM₁₀ divided by the distance in kilometers was less than 10.

The US Fish and Wildlife Service sent an e-mail in response to the permit application forwarded to them. Their response is as follows:

"Based on the emission rates and distance from the Class I area(s) listed below (as provided in your documentation), the Fish and Wildlife Service anticipates that modeling would not show any significant additional impacts to air quality related values (AQRV) at the Class I area(s) administered by the FWS. Therefore, we are not requesting that a Class I AQRV analysis be included in the PSD permit application. Our screening of this analysis does not indicate agreement with any AQRV analysis protocols or conclusions applicants may make independent of Federal Land Manager review."

No FLM response was received on the permit application for the changes to the annealing furnace.

Permit #: 1139-AOP-R16

AFIN: 47-00233

Regulations

The following table contains the regulations applicable to this permit.

Regulations
Arkansas Air Pollution Control Code, Regulation 18, effective June 18, 2010
Regulations of the Arkansas Plan of Implementation for Air Pollution Control, Regulation 19, effective November 18, 2012
Regulations of the Arkansas Operating Air Permit Program, Regulation 26, effective November 18, 2012
40 CFR 52.21, Prevention of Significant Deterioration
40 CFR Part 60, Subpart A General Provision
40 CFR Part 60, Subpart Dc - Standards of Performance for Small Industrial-
Commercial-Institutional Steam Generating Units
40 CFR Part 60, Subpart AAa - Standards of Performance for Electric Arc Furnaces
and Argon-Oxygen Decarburization Vessels Constructed After August 7, 1983
40 CFR Part 60 Subpart IIII, Standards of Performance for Stationary Compression
Ignition Internal Combustion Engines
40 CFR Part 63 Subpart ZZZZ, National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air
Pollutants for Stationary Reciprocating Internal Combustions Engines
40 CFR Part 63 Subpart YYYYY, National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air
Pollutants for Area Sources: Electric Arc Furnace Steel Making Facilities.
40 CFR Part 63 Subpart CCCCCC, National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air
Pollutants for Source Category: Gasoline Dispensing Facilities.

The facility is a PSD and Title V major source for greenhouse gasses.

Emission Summary

The following table is a summary of emissions from the facility. This table, in itself, is not an enforceable condition of the permit.

		EMISSION SUMMARY		
Source	Description	Pollutant	Emission	n Rates
Number	er Besomption	1 Onutant	lb/hr	tpy
		PM	162.2	621.9
		PM_{10}	160.2	616.1
		SO_2	243.5	790.2
Total Al	lowable Emissions	VOC	145.3	263.8
		CO	1360.4	5444.4
		NO_x	858.2	1645.8
		Lead	0.82	3.59
		Arsenic	0.01	0.05
		Cadmium	0.02	0.09
		Chromium	0.08	0.35
		Manganese	1.08	4.73
	77.A.D. 4	Nickel	0.02	0.09
	HAPs*	Benzene	0.55	0.06
		Toluene	0.79	0.06
		Hexane	1.43	0.09
		2, 2, 4 – Trimethylpentane	0.29	0.06
		HCl	0.2	0.8
		PM (filterable + condensable)	106.9	468.2
		PM ₁₀ (filterable + condensable)	106.9	468.2
		PM (filterable)	37.0	162.1
		PM ₁₀ (filterable)	37.0	162.1
		SO_2	176.8	774.5
		VOC	53.8	235.5
	Melt Shop	CO	1181.5	5174.6
01	Baghouse	NO _x	304.0	1331.8
	Bugnouse	Lead	0.82	3.59
		Arsenic	0.01	0.05
		Cadmium	0.02	0.09
		Chromium	0.08	0.35
		Manganese	1.08	4.73
		Nickel	0.02	0.09
		PM	0.7	3.0
		PM ₁₀	0.7	3.0
	#1 Tunnel	SO_2	0.1	0.3
02	Furnace, Section	VOC	0.3	1.1
	A	CO	6.3	27.6
		NO _x	16.2	71.0
	#1 Tunnel	PM	0.5	2.0
03	Furnace, Section	PM ₁₀	0.5	2.0
	B	SO_2	0.1	0.2

		EMISSION SUMMARY		
Source	Description	Pollutant	Emissio	n Rates
Number	Description		lb/hr	tpy
		VOC	0.2	0.8
		CO	4.2	18.4
		NO_x	10.8	47.3
		PM	0.7	3.0
		PM_{10}	0.7	3.0
04	#2 Tunnel	SO_2	0.1	0.3
04	Furnace	VOC	0.3	1.1
		CO	6.3	27.6
		NO _x	16.2	71.0
		PM	0.1	0.4
		PM_{10}	0.1	0.4
05	Roof Monitor #5	SO_2	0.1	0.1
03	(Shuttle Furnaces)	VOC	0.1	0.2
		CO	0.8	3.5
		NO _x	1.9	8.4
		PM	0.1	0.2
		PM_{10}	0.1	0.2
11	Tundish Dryer	SO_2	0.1	0.1
11		VOC	0.1	0.2
		CO	0.5	2.3
		NO _x	0.6	2.7
18	Slag Pit Loadout	PM	1.4	5.8
10	Siag I it Loudout	PM ₁₀	0.8	2.9
23	Slag Handling	PM	2.8	4.4
		PM ₁₀	1.5	2.2
27	Pelletized Lime	PM	0.1	0.5
	Handling	PM ₁₀	0.1	0.5
29	Coke Handling	PM	0.1	0.5
	L	PM ₁₀	0.1	0.5
37	Lime Dust	PM	0.2	0.9
	Collector (North)	PM ₁₀	0.2	0.9
38	Lime Dust	PM	0.2	0.9
	Collector (South)	PM ₁₀	0.2	0.9
42	Storage Dome	PM	0.1	0.5
		PM_{10}	0.1	0.5
43-46	Charge Carbon	PM	0.1	0.5
15 10	(Coke) Silos	PM ₁₀	0.1	0.5
47	Cooling Tower	PM	0.5	1.5
т /	Cooming Tower	PM_{10}	0.5	1.5

		EMISSION SUMMARY			
Source	Description	Pollutant	Emission Rates		
Number		Tonutant	lb/hr	tpy	
48	Cooling Tower	PM PM ₁₀	0.1 0.1	0.2 0.2	
49	Cooling Tower	PM PM ₁₀	0.2	0.6 0.6	
50	Cooling Tower	PM	0.4	1.2	
	3 - 1	PM ₁₀	0.4	0.5	
51	Pickle Line	PM ₁₀ HCl	0.2 0.2	0.5 0.8	
	Pickle Line	PM PM ₁₀	0.3 0.3	1.3 1.3	
52	Boilers (3 boilers at 12.6 MMBtu/hr ea.)	SO ₂ VOC CO	0.1 0.2 3.2	0.1 0.9 13.9	
53	Cold Reversing Mill/Temper Mill	NO _x PM PM ₁₀	2.9 1.7 1.7	7.5 7.5	
54	Galvanizing Line (78.3 MMBtu/hr)	PM PM ₁₀ SO ₂ VOC CO NO _x	0.6 0.6 0.1 0.5 6.6 2.8	2.6 2.6 0.2 1.9 28.8 12.0	
55	Scale Breaker	PM PM ₁₀	0.3 0.3	1.2 1.2	
56	Entry Scale	PM PM ₁₀	0.2 0.2	0.6 0.6	
57	Chromate Spray	PM PM ₁₀	0.1 0.1	0.2 0.2	
58	Alkali Wash Burners (Two at 3.5 MMBtu/hr) (One at 2 MMBtu/hr)	$\begin{array}{c} \text{PM} \\ \text{PM}_{10} \\ \text{SO}_2 \\ \text{VOC} \\ \text{CO} \\ \text{NO}_x \end{array}$	0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 1.2 0.9	0.5 0.5 0.1 0.4 5.3 3.9	
59	Galvanizing Line Dryer (2.5 MMBtu/hr)	PM PM ₁₀ SO ₂ VOC	0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1	0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1	

Permit #: 1139-AOP-R16

	EMISSION SUMMARY					
Source	Description	Pollutant	Emissio	n Rates		
Number	Description	1 Offulant	lb/hr	tpy		
		СО	0.2	0.9		
		NO _x	0.2	0.7		
		PM	0.1	0.1		
	Chromate Spray	PM_{10}	0.1	0.1		
60	Dryer	SO_2	0.1	0.1		
00	(1.5 MMBtu/hr)	VOC	0.1	0.1		
		CO	0.2	0.6		
		NO _x	0.1	0.5		
		PM	0.3	1.3		
	Annealing	PM_{10}	0.3	1.3		
61	Furnaces	SO_2	0.1	0.1		
01	(8 @ 4.8	VOC	0.3	1.0		
	MMBtu/hr each)	CO	3.3	14.1		
		NO _x	3.9	16.8		
62	Hydrated Lime	PM	0.1	0.1		
	Silo	PM ₁₀	0.1	0.1		
63	Alkali Wash	PM	0.2	0.7		
	Exhaust	PM ₁₀	0.2	0.7		
64	Wastewater Lime	PM	0.1	0.5		
	Storage Silo	PM ₁₀	0.1	0.5		
		PM	0.5	2.0		
		PM_{10}	0.5	2.0		
65	Steel Coil Cutting	SO_2	0.1	0.1		
		VOC	0.1	0.1		
		CO	0.2	0.9		
	D 11 X 11	NO _x	0.3	1.1		
67	Railcar Loading	PM	0.3	1.3		
	Station	PM ₁₀	0.3	1.3		
68	Truck Conveyor	PM	0.1	0.3		
	Baghouse	PM ₁₀	0.1	0.3		
69	Truck Conveyor	PM DM	0.1 0.1	0.3 0.3		
	Baghouse	PM ₁₀				
70	Cooling Tower	${ m PM} \over { m PM}_{10}$	0.1 0.1	0.3		
71	Rice Hull Storage	PM	0.1	0.5		
71	Silo	PM_{10}	0.1	0.5		
70	Railcar Truck	PM	1.8	7.9		
72	Unloading	PM_{10}	1.8	7.9		
	Baghouse					

		EMISSION SUMMARY			
Source	Description	Pollutant	Emission Rates		
Number	Description	1 offutant	lb/hr	tpy	
		PM	0.1	0.1	
		PM_{10}	0.1	0.1	
74	Pickle Line Dryer	SO_2	0.1	0.1	
7 -	Tickle Ellic Diyer	VOC	0.1	0.1	
		CO	0.2	0.8	
		NO _x	0.2	0.6	
75	Roof Flux Feed	PM	0.1	0.3	
13	Bin Vent BC4	PM_{10}	0.1	0.3	
76	Roof Flux Feed	PM	0.1	0.3	
/0	Bin Vent BC5	PM_{10}	0.1	0.3	
77	Roof Flux Feed	PM	0.1	0.3	
77	Bin Vent BC6	PM_{10}	0.1	0.3	
70	Day Bin	PM	0.2	0.9	
78	Baghouse	PM_{10}	0.2	0.9	
70.4	Day Bin	PM	0.2	1.0	
78A	Baghouse	PM_{10}	0.2	1.0	
		PM	0.5	2.0	
	Vacuum Degasser	PM_{10}	0.5	2.0	
CDI OA		SO_2	1.5	6.6	
SN-94		VOC	1.5	6.6	
		CO	22.5	98.6	
		NO_x	1.5	6.6	
		PM	0.4	1.7	
		PM_{10}	0.4	1.7	
CNIOS	Vacuum Degasser	SO_2	0.1	0.2	
SN-95	Boiler	VOC	0.2	0.6	
		CO	3.1	13.5	
		NO _x	1.8	7.7	
		PM	0.7	0.2	
	Emergency	PM_{10}	0.7	0.2	
SN-96	Generator –	SO_2	0.6	0.2	
911-20	Electrical	VOC	0.7	0.2	
	Substation	CO	1.9	0.5	
		NO _x	8.9	2.2	
- " <u>-</u>		PM	2.0	0.2	
	Emergency	PM_{10}	2.0	0.2	
SN-97	Generator –	SO_2	9.3	1.0	
	Water System 1	VOC	2.0	0.2	
		CO	15.7	1.6	

	EMISSION SUMMARY					
Source	Description	Pollutant	Emissic	on Rates		
Number	Description	Tonutant	lb/hr	tpy		
		NO_x	68.4	6.9		
		PM	2.0	0.2		
	Emergency	PM_{10}	2.0	0.2		
SN-98	Generator –	SO_2	9.3	1.0		
DIVO	Water System 1	VOC	2.0	0.2		
	water System 1	CO	15.7	1.6		
		NO _x	68.4	6.9		
SN-99	Alloy Carousel	PM	0.1	0.3		
511-77	Alloy Carouser	PM ₁₀	0.1	0.3		
		PM	0.9	0.1		
	Emergency	PM_{10}	0.9	0.1		
SN-100	Generator – Cold	SO_2	0.9	0.1		
511-100	Mill Treatment	VOC	1.0	0.1		
	Willi Heatilient	CO	2.7	0.3		
		NO_x	12.4	1.3		
		PM	1.8	0.2		
	Emergency	PM_{10}	1.8	0.2		
SN-101	Generator - Water	SO_2	8.0	0.8		
214-101	System 1 North	VOC	1.8	0.2		
	#3	CO	13.5	1.4		
		NO _x	58.8	5.9		
	-	PM	2.4	0.3		
	Emergency	PM_{10}	2.4	0.3		
SN-102	Generator - Water	SO_2	10.9	1.1		
011 102	System 1 South	VOC	2.4	0.3		
	#4	CO	18.4	1.9		
		NO _x	80.5	8.0		
		PM	2.0	0.2		
	Emergency	PM_{10}	2.0	0.2		
SN-103	Generator –	SO_2	8.0	0.8		
== 105	Megawater #1	VOC	1.8	0.2		
	Water System 1	CO	13.5	1.4		
		NO _x	58.8	5.9		
		PM	2.4	0.3		
,	Emergency	PM_{10}	2.4	0.3		
SN-104	Generator –	SO_2	10.9	1.1		
~~, 101	Megawater #2	VOC	2.4	0.3		
	1.12501,4101 112	CO	18.4	1.9		
		NO _x	80.5	8.0		

		EMISSION SUMMARY			
Source	Description	Pollutant	Emission Rates		
Number	ber Description	Tonutant	lb/hr	tpy	
		PM	0.8	0.1	
	Emergency	PM_{10}	0.8	0.1	
SN-106	Generator Cold	SO_2	3.5	0.1	
514-100	Mill	VOC	0.8	0.1	
	141111	CO	5.9	0.6	
		NO _x	25.8	2.6	
		PM	0.5	0.1	
	Emergency	PM_{10}	0.5	0.1	
SN-107	Generator - Cold	SO_2	0.5	0.1	
511-107	Mill East	VOC	0.5	0.1	
	Willi Last	CO	1.4	0.2	
		NO_x	6.3	0.7	
		PM	0.5	0.1	
	Emaganav	PM_{10}	0.5	0.1	
CNT 100	Emergency	SO_2	0.5	0.1	
SN-108	Generator - Cold	VOC	0.5	0.1	
	Mill West	CO	1.4	0.2	
		NO_x	6.3	0.7	
		PM	0.1	0.1	
	r	PM_{10}	0.1	0.1	
SN-109	Emergency Generator –	SO_2	0.1	0.1	
SN-109	1	VOC	0.1	0.1	
	Galvanizing Line	CO	2.9	0.3	
		NO_x	1.7	0.2	
		PM	0.1	0.1	
	Emarganay	PM_{10}	0.1	0.1	
SN-110	Emergency Generator – IT	SO_2	0.1	0.1	
214-110	Administration	VOC	0.1	0.1	
	Administration	CO	4.8	0.5	
		NO_x	2.9	0.3	
		PM	0.1	0.1	
	Emerconov	PM_{10}	0.1	0.1	
SN-111	Emergency Generator – Radio	SO_2	0.1	0.1	
214-111	Tower	VOC	0.1	0.1	
	Tower	CO	0.6	0.1	
		NO _x	0.4	0.1	
	Emergency	PM	0.1	0.1	
SN-112	Generator –Radio	PM_{10}	0.1	0.1	
	Tower Backup	SO_2	0.1	0.1	

		EMISSION SUMMARY		
Source	Description	Pollutant	Emissio	n Rates
Number	Description	1 Official	lb/hr	tpy
		VOC	0.1	0.1
		CO	0.3	0.1
		NO _x	0.2	0.1
		PM	0.1	0.1
	Emergency	PM_{10}	0.1	0.1
SN-113	Generator - Cold	SO_2	0.1	0.1
514 115	Mill Pump East	VOC	0.1	0.1
	with rump East	CO	0.3	0.1
		NO _x	1.2	0.2
į		PM	0.9	0.1
	Emergency	PM_{10}	0.9	0.1
SN-114	Generator - Cold	SO_2	0.9	0.1
	Mill Pump Water	VOC	1.0	0.1
	Treatment	CO	2.7	0.3
		NO _x	12.4	1.3
		VOC	5.2	0.4
_	Gasoline Tank –	Benzene	0.07	0.01
SN-115	Contractor	Toluene	0.10	0.01
	Village	Hexane	0.18	0.02
-		2, 2, 4 – Trimethylpentane	0.04	0.01
		VOC	6.1	0.3
0.7.4.4	Gasoline Tank –	Benzene	0.08	0.01
SN-116	Cold Mill Fuel	Toluene	0.11	0.01
	Island	Hexane	0.20	0.01
		2, 2, 4 – Trimethylpentane	0.04	0.01
	O 1' T 1	VOC	6.2	0.3
SN-117	Gasoline Tank –	Benzene	0.08	0.01
SIN-117	Contractor	Toluene	0.11	0.01
	Village	Hexane	0.20	0.01
		2, 2, 4 – Trimethylpentane VOC	0.04	0.01
	Gasoline Tank –	Benzene	6.9	0.3
SN-118	Contractor	Toluene	0.09 0.13	0.01
2110	Village	Hexane	0.13	0.01
	v mage	2, 2, 4 – Trimethylpentane	0.24	0.01 0.01
		VOC	7.0	
	Gasoline Tank –	Benzene	0.09	0.4
SN-119	Harsco Slag	Toluene	0.09	0.01
	Processor	Hexane		0.01
		пехапе	0.24	0.02

Permit #: 1139-AOP-R16

	EMISSION SUMMARY					
Source	Description	Pollutant	Emissio	Emission Rates		
Number	Description	ronulant	lb/hr	tpy		
		2, 2, 4 – Trimethylpentane	0.05	0.01		
		VOC	11.0	0.5		
	Gasoline Tank –	Benzene	0.14	0.01		
SN-120	Main Fuel Island	Toluene	0.20	0.01		
	Walli Fuel Island	Hexane	0.37	0.02		
		2, 2, 4 – Trimethylpentane	0.07	0.01		
SN-121	Unpaved	PM_{10}	16.5	72.3		
SIN-121	Roadways	PM	16.5	72.3		
ON 100	Da	PM_{10}	3.1	13.3		
SN-122	Paved Roadways	PM	3.1	13.3		
SN-123	Rust Preventative Coating	VOC	27.5	8.3		
	Truck Dump/6					
SN-124	Bin Alloy System	PM	0.4	1.7		
SIN-124	and VTD Wire	PM_{10}	0.4	1.7		
	Feed System					
ONI 125	Contact Cooling	PM	0.2	0.9		
SN-125	Tower	PM_{10}	0.1	0.2		
CNI 107	Non-Contact	PM	0.1	0.1		
SN-126	Cooling Tower	PM_{10}	0.1	0.1		

^{*}HAPs included in the VOC or PM totals. Other HAPs are not included in any other totals unless specifically stated.

Permit #: 1139-AOP-R16

AFIN: 47-00233

SECTION III: PERMIT HISTORY

Permit 1139-A

Air permit 1139-A was issued to this facility on May 14, 1991.

Permit 1139-AR-1

The permit was modified on August 12, 1992, to include changes due to revised design specifications, improved data, and to allow for potential mill expansion (air permit 1139-AR-1). This permit was issued under the *Prevention of Significant Deterioration* (PSD) regulations as found in 40 CFR 52.21.

Permit 1323-A

On July 22, 1992, Heckett Plant 49 was issued air permit 1323-A to operate the slag processing/metal reclaim operations under contract with Nucor. Heckett Plant was permitted to emit 10.84 tpy of PM/PM₁₀. Air permit #1323-A was rescinded upon issuance of air permit #1139-AR-3 on February 22, 1995.

Permit 1335-A

On September 8, 1992, Inorganic Recycling of Arkansas, Inc. (IRA) was permitted under air permit # 1335-A to operate the EAF dust processing facility. IRA was permitted to emit 180.69 tpy of PM₁₀, 162.94 tpy of SO₂, 87.6 tpy of CO, 7.01 tpy of PbO, 6.48 tpy of NO_x, 4.48 tpy of PM, and 0.088 tpy of HgO. Air permit #1335-A was rescinded upon issuance of air permit #1139-AR-3 on February 22, 1995. The IRA sources were assigned source numbers SN-30 and SN-36 and included in Nucor's permit. These sources were removed from Nucor's permit because this process was operated by IRA, which was a separate corporate entity that was not subject to Nucor's control.

Permit 1139-AR-2

On January 25, 1994, Nucor was issued air permit 1139-AR-2 to allow installation of thirteen oxy fuel burners with rated heat input capacity of 18 million British thermal units per hour (MM Btu/hr) each and one unit rated at 18 MM Btu/hr which was previously authorized by the Director (for a total of 252 MM Btu/hr rated heat input capacity from the oxy fuel burners). These burners were intended to provide a remedy for cold spots that were identified in the electric arc furnaces (EAFs). The oxy fuel burners were included in the original permit, but were not installed. The modification allowing installation of the oxy fuel burners was not considered a major modification to an existing major source because the increase in NO_x emissions were estimated to be less than the significance level of 40 tons per year (tpy) for *Prevention of Significant Deterioration* (PSD) as found in 40 CFR 52.21. Nucor has conducted stack testing for CO and NO_x from the oxy fuel burners to compare emissions with and without the oxy fuel burners during operation of the EAFs. The test results revealed that CO emissions decrease

Permit #: 1139-AOP-R16

AFIN: 47-00233

when the oxy fuel burners are in operation. NO_x emissions increased by 26.23 tpy which is less than the PSD significance level.

Permit 1139-AR-3

Air permit 1139-AR-3 issued on February 22, 1995 allowed Nucor to increase their steel production levels from 300 to 475 tons per hour. This permit was issued under the PSD. That modification also permitted the use of iron carbide as a scrap supplement, the replacement of the oxy fuel burners with low NO_x burners, and the installation of two small baghouses to capture particulate emissions from the lime charging system. The EAF baghouse dust processing and slag processing operations, previously operated under separate permits, were consolidated into the Nucor permit with this revision. Air permits 1323-A and 1335-A were rescinded. Emission limits for criteria pollutants were rounded to one decimal place in 1139-AR-3 according to Department policy.

Air permit 1139-AR-3 also allowed MG Industries, a subcontractor to Nucor, to install and operate an air separation facility on the Nucor site. Ambient atmospheric air is compressed in a three or four stage centrifugal compressor with intercooling between each stage to remove contaminants. After the final compression stage, the air is cooled to ambient temperature to remove the heat of compression, and then cooled to approximately 40°F to condense most of the water contained in the air. The air will enter an air separation cold box where it is cooled to -270 °F. Part of the oxygen is condensed out by liquid reflux passing down the column and the remaining oxygen is boiled out of the liquid reflux by the air. Pure nitrogen is condensed from the top of the high pressure column by boiling pure liquid oxygen in a low pressure column. Oxygen product is withdrawn in either a gaseous state or a liquid state for transfer to storage. No emissions are associated with this process.

Permit 1139-AR-4

In September, 1996, air permit 1139-AR-4 was issued to Nucor. A third ladle metallurgy furnace (LMF) (SN-39) was installed to be used as a holding station. This station allowed Nucor the flexibility to continue to make steel in the Electric Arc Furnace (EAF) in the event that the caster is inoperable. The new LMF did not increase the maximum steel production of the EAFs. Emissions from the LMF are ducted to a separate baghouse.

An oxygen lancing station (SN-40) was authorized to be located in a building near the slag processing area. Slag skulls which are too large to break using the "breaking ball" were to be cut using an oxygen lance. This process generates iron oxide dust, thus, this operation will be performed within a building and emissions will be ducted to a baghouse (SN-40). This source was dismantled and removed shortly after it was constructed.

Some of the Continuous Emissions Monitoring Systems (CEMS) required by previous permits, were replaced with semiannual testing requirements contingent upon continued compliance with the permit terms and conditions surrounding the issue. Removal of the CEMs for VOC, NO_x, and SO₂ was authorized by ADPC&E permit 1139-AR-4.

Permit #: 1139-AOP-R16

AFIN: 47-00233

Permit 1139-AOP-R0

Permit 1139-AOP-R0 was issued on 9/7/99 and was the first permit issued to Nucor under the Arkansas Air Operating Permit Program. An administrative amendment was done on 12/10/99. The facility is subject to Title V requirements. The facility is a PSD major source. This permit included the following modifications:

- 1. The permit authorized the expansion of the EAF Baghouse. On June 20, 1997, Nucor Steel submitted a permit modification application for the expansion of the EAF Baghouse (SN-01). The facility proposed to add 18 baghouse compartments, install three (3) additional fans, and increase the maximum design air flow from 1.75 million acfm to 2.5 million acfm. Increased particulate matter (PM) emissions from the baghouse expansion were projected to be 49.1 TPY. Nucor Steel also submitted an application for exclusion from new source review for the proposed baghouse expansion. The baghouse expansion was approved to be excluded from new source review because it qualified as a pollution prevention project based on EPA memo dated July 1, 1994 concerning pollution control projects and new source review applicability. In February 2005, a U.S. Circuit Court ruling stated EPA did not have the authority to create pollution control project exemptions for PSD and vacated those portions of the 1992 and 2002 rules. The source which was modified as a pollution control project has under gone PSD review numerous times since this permit. The source currently meets a BACT level of control and its emissions have been analyzed to insure they meet the PM₁₀ NAAQS and PSD increment standards. Further review of this source due to vacation of the rule is not necessary.
- 2. The permit authorized the construction and operation of the Cold Rolling Mill. On August 18, 1997, Nucor Steel submitted an addendum to the Title V application for construction of a cold rolling mill. The cold mill consists of a pickle line, three (3) pickle line boilers, cold reversing mill/temper mill, galvanizing line, eight (8) annealing furnaces, three (3) alkali wash burners, hydrated lime silo, entry scale, scale breaker, alkali wash mist eliminator, galvanizing line dryer, chromate spray, and chromate dryer. The summary of pollutant emission rates associated with the cold roll mill project are shown in the following table.
- 3. The permit incorporated the increase of the slag processing rate authorized previously by the Department. At that time, the facility also had requested to increase nitrogen oxide and sulfur dioxide emission limits from the vitrification unit (SN-36) and to install two charge carbon silos and an iron carbide storage dome, which changes were also approved. The EAF Dust Reclamation (SN-30 and SN-36) is no longer included in Nucor's permit. This process was owned and operated by a separate company which contracted by Nucor to process the baghouse dust.

Subsequently, Nucor Steel submitted an amendment to its Title V air permit application to further increase the monthly slag processing rate from 30,000 to 62,000 tons/month and to increase the annual slag production rate from 300,000 to 700,000 tons. The only physical change of this amendment was the installation of two charge carbon silos and an

Permit #: 1139-AOP-R16

AFIN: 47-00233

iron carbide storage dome. The installation of the charge carbon silos and iron carbide dome was unrelated to the requested increase in slag processing throughput. The increase in slag throughput was the result of emission factor changes, which allowed Nucor to increase the throughput without significantly affecting emissions. The crushed stone processing section of AP-42 was updated in January of 1995 in Section 11.19.2. The PM emission factor used in the previous permits for slag processing was 0.16 lb/ton. The new factor is 0.0315 lb/ton. SN-18 and SN-23 are the affected sources.

4. The permit specified a number of existing but previously uninventoried sources. The total change in permitted emissions resulting from the previously uninventoried sources was 15.4 tpy of total particulate.

Several emission factors used to calculate emission were changed throughout the permit. The total change in permitted emissions resulting from the updated emission factors was 9.5 tpy of total particulate.

The EAF Dust Reclamation (SN-30 and SN-36) was no longer included in Nucor's permit.

Permit 1139-AOP-R0 did not go through PSD review for the following reasons: Permitted emission increases from the last permit occurred due to use of updated emission factors, the addition of existing but previously uninventoried sources, and a slag processing throughput increase. The only physical changes were the addition of a new cold rolling mill process, a baghouse expansion, and the installation of two charge carbon silos and an iron carbide storage dome. The baghouse expansion was approved to be excluded from new source review because it qualified as a pollution prevention project based on an EPA memo dated July 1, 1994 concerning pollution control projects and new source review applicability. The new cold rolling mill addition resulted in a potential to emit increase less than the applicable PSD significant levels, therefore this project does not trigger new source review. The new storage domes' potential to emit was less than the PSD significant levels, therefore, did not trigger PSD review.

All of the above mentioned projects are unrelated to each other. The slag processing increase is a result of lower published emission factors. The baghouse expansion is being done to reduce the fugitive emissions from the melt shop. The construction of the cold roll mill is a totally new process which does not affect the existing steel-making process.

Permit 1139-AOP-R1

Permit 1139-AOP-R1 covered the installation of new equipment for loading railcars at the EAF baghouse dust silo, and tying the silo directly to the EAF baghouse and eliminating the bin vent. The new equipment will collect displaced air from railcars as the railcars are loaded with dust, and route the displaced air to the EAF baghouse. This will minimize the amount of dust that will accumulate in the load out area. Tying the silo directly to the EAF baghouse will eliminate the silo emission point (SN-17). The facility also added direct evacuation on the bucket elevator that feeds the silo. Previously, the elevator displaced air exhausted through the silo bin vent. These modifications result in a 0.9 ton per year decrease in potential particulate emissions. This method of handling and transferring baghouse dust to and from the baghouse dust silo for

Permit #: 1139-AOP-R16

AFIN: 47-00233

removal off-site is at least as effective in controlling air emissions as the method described in permit 1139-A.

Permit 1139-AOP-R2

Permit 1139-AOP-R2 was issued on September 11, 2000. The permit covered the installation of a wastewater lime storage silo which will be designated SN-64. The storage silo has a displacement air bin vent filter with an outlet emission rate of 0.01 gr/dscf. At 950 scfm, the maximum potential emission rate is 0.1 lb/hr and 0.5 tpy. This new source is included in the Auxiliary Operations Compliance Unit section of this permit. The bottom of the silo has a rotary air lock with a rubber hose attached to feed lime into a cement truck.

Permit 1139-AOP-R3

Permit 1139-AOP-R3 was issued on January 3, 2001. The permit covered the following modifications: Increase in the annual emissions from 25 to 37 for LMF#3 (SN-39), this increase accounts for periods of time when the LMF #1 or LMF #2 is down; the injection carbon silo vents (SN-43 and 44) were routed to the lime/carbon silo baghouses (SN-38 and 39); a 3.5 MMBTU/hr burner was added to the alkali wash (SN-58) section of the galvanizing line; six insignificant activities were added including 2 diesel storage tanks, 2 emergency generators, and 2 emergency pumps; and the roof monitor designations for SN-06, 19, 20, and 21 were revised.

Permit 1139-AOP-R4

Permit 1139-AOP-R4 was issued on October 23, 2001. This modification covers the addition of a new steel coil cutting building, SN-65, and a briquetting operation, SN-66. The predominate emission increase from the addition of these sources is 2.4 tpy of particulate matter. This permit is also to modify the galvanizing line (SN-54) to become a dual purpose line by adding the capability to continuously anneal cold rolled product without zinc coating. Nucor is not changing the emission limits for the source, SN-54. With this modification Nucor is also adding a 1.5 MMBTU/hr natural gas fired dryer to the new chromate section of the galvanizing line. This dryer is replacing the dryer SN-60 at the chromate section. The old dryer for SN-60 is now being used at the phosphate section of the galvanizing line. The two dryers cannot operate at the same time and are interlocked from an operation standpoint. Therefore the two dryers are both combined under SN-60 and the emission rates for these sources are unchanged. Nucor is also adding a second baghouse module to both of the lime dust collectors (SN-37 and SN-38). This will allow one module to be down for cleaning while the other module is in operation for both these sources. This will not affect emission from these sources.

Permit 1139-AOP-R5

Nucor made a number of changes with this permit modification. Nucor first submitted a minor modification to their permit; this minor modification included enclosing the railcar loadout of EAF dust and venting the enclosure through a baghouse, SN-67. Nucor also added an enclosed conveyor that will convey raw materials which will also be controlled by a baghouse, SN-68.

Permit #: 1139-AOP-R16

AFIN: 47-00233

Nucor also requested changing compliance conditions for two baghouses, SN-37 and 38, from pressure drop readings to opacity readings.

Nucor also submitted a modification which included ducting LMF No. 3 (SN-39) to the EAF baghouse (SN-01); updated the cooling tower emissions and inventory; added a second truck conveyor for lime and carbon unloading (SN-69); modified the EAF (SN-01) operations as specified in the permit application and supporting documents; modified the carbon exhaust silos (SN-43 and 44) so that their exhausts are returned to their silo bin vents exhaust; added a small (1 MMBTU) skid mounted boiler; removed the iron carbide silo SN-41; added sand to the oxygen torch cutting of coils (SN-65); and modified the slag processing plant to add a screening plant and a mill scale plant (SN-23). These changes will require a number of sources to undergo Prevention of Significant Deterioration (PSD) review.

Prevention of Significant Deterioration

	BA	ACT Analysi	is Summary	
Source	Description	Pollutant	Control Technology	BACT Limit
SN-01	EAF's, LMF's,	NO _x	Natural gas fired oxy-	0.51 lb/ton of
1	casters and canopies	1	fuel burners	steel
}		CO	Direct Shell	2.0 lb/ton of steel
ļ		j	Evacuation	
		VOC	Scrap management	0.088 lb/ton of
		1	system	steel
		PM_{10}	Baghouse	0.0018 gr/dscf
L		SO ₂		0.2 lb/ton of steel
SN-70	Cooling Towers	PM ₁₀	No control	3.6 tpy
SN-65	Coil Cutting	PM_{10}	Baghouse	0.0025 gr/dscf
SN-67	Railcar Loading	PM ₁₀	Baghouse	0.01 gr/dscf
	Station	Ĺ		
SN-68	Truck Conveyors	PM ₁₀	Baghouse	0.01 gr/dscf
SN-69				
SN-37	Lime Silos	PM ₁₀	Baghouse	0.0005 gr/dscf
SN-38				
SN-43	Carbon Silos	PM ₁₀	Baghouse	0.01 gr/dscf
SN-44				
SN-23				
	Slag Processing	PM_{10}	Keep material	4.1 tpy
	Equipment	<u></u>	sufficiently damp	

Permit 1139-AOP-R6

This permit was issued on April 3, 2006. This permit incorporates a number of changes to the facility. In addition to being the Title V renewal for the facility, Nucor is adding a roof feed metallics system to each EAF, which will decrease tap to tap time and increase slag and millscale

Permit #: 1139-AOP-R16

AFIN: 47-00233

throughputs. Also the operating restrictions on the pickle line boilers, SN-52, the Cold Reversing Mill/Temper Mill, SN-53, and the Annealing Furnaces, SN-61 were removed. Nucor is also adding a Zinc Dross furnace, SN-73; a Pickle Line Dryer, SN-74; and a Ladle Dryer, SN-20. These changes will require PSD review for all the criteria pollutants.

Summary of PSD issues Permit 1139-AOP-R6

The changes made to the facility in this permit are considered a major modification under PSD regulations. Because of these changes PSD review is required for the following pollutants NO₂, CO, SO₂, PM₁₀, VOC and Lead.

Best Available Control Technology

	В	ACT Analys	sis Summary	
Source	Description	Pollutant	Control Technology	BACT Limit
SN-01	EAF, LMF, caster and canopies	NO _x	Natural gas fired oxy-fuel burners	0.51 lb/ton of steel
		CO	Direct Shell	2.0 lb/ton of steel
		VOC	Evacuation	0.088 lb/ton of steel
		1	Scrap management	0.0018 gr/dscf
		PM_{10}	system	0.2 lb/ton of steel
		SO_2	Baghouse	
SN-52	Pickle Line Boilers	NO _x	Low NOx Burners	0.075 lb/MMBTU
		CO	Good Combustion	0.084 lb/MMBTU
		ļ	Practice	
		VOC	Good Combustion Practice	0.00055 lb/MMBTU
		PM ₁₀	Natural Gas Usage only/ Good combustion practice	0.0076 lb/MMBTU
		SO ₂	Natural Gas Usage only/ Good combustion practice	0.0006 lb/MMBTU
SN-53	Cold Reversing Mill/Temper Mill	PM ₁₀	Mist Eliminator	0.0025 gr/dscf
SN-51	Pickle Line	PM ₁₀	Mist Eliminator	0.0015 gr/dscf

SN-61	Annealing Furnaces	NO _x	Low NOx Burners	0.01 gr/dscf
511-01	Trinicaling Turnaces	CO	Good Combustion	0.01 gi/dsc1 0.084 lb/MMBTU
			Practice	0.004 10/10110110
			Good Combustion	0.00055 lb/MMBTU
		VOC	Practice	0.00033 10/101101151 0
}		VOC	Natural Gas Usage	0.0076 lb/MMBTU
1		PM_{10}	only/Good	0.007010/10/10/10 10
-		1 11110	1	
(combustion practice	0.0006 lb/MMBTU
		SO_2	Natural Gas Usage	0.0000 10/10101610
		SO_2	only/Good	
SN-54	Colympiana Lina	NO	combustion practice	0.025 11./2.020771
511-54	Galvanizing Line	NO_x	SNCR (direct-fired	0.035 lb/MMBTU
			section)	
			SCR (radiant tube	
			section)	0.004.11 /0.00
•		CO	Good Combustion	0.084 lb/MMBTU
		NOG.	Practice	0.00000011./0.0000011
		VOC	Good Combustion	0.00055 lb/MMBTU
!		D) (Practice	0.005611.0.0057
[PM_{10}	Natural Gas Usage	0.0076 lb/MMBTU
			only/ Good	
1			combustion practice	
1		SO_2	Natural Gas Usage	0.0006 lb/MMBTU
Í		ł	only/ Good	
		<u> </u>	combustion practice	
SN-56	Scale Removal	PM_{10}	Fabric Filter	0.003 gr/dscf
SN-55	Scale Breaker			
SN-54	Chromate Spray			
SN-57	Hydrated Lime Silo			
SN-62				
SN-63	Alkali Wash Section	PM ₁₀	Mist Eliminator	0.003 gr/dscf
SN-58, 59,	Natural Gas Fired	NO_x	Low NOx Burners	0.062 lb/MMBTU
60, 73, and	Burners and Dryers	CO	Good Combustion	0.084 lb/MMBTU
74			Practice	
ļ		VOC	Good Combustion	0.00055 lb/MMBTU
			Practice	
		PM_{10}	Natural Gas Usage	0.0076 lb/MMBTU
}			only/ Good	
	'		combustion practice	
		SO_2	Natural Gas Usage	0.0006 lb/MMBTU
			only/ Good	
	-		combustion practice	

Permit #: 1139-AOP-R16

AFIN: 47-00233

SN-20	Ladle Dryer	NO _x	Low NOx Burners	0.01 lb/MMBTU
		CO	Good Combustion	0.084 lb/MMBTU
		j	Practice	
		VOC	Good Combustion	0.00055 lb/MMBTU
j			Practice	
		PM_{10}	Natural Gas Usage	0.0076 lb/MMBTU
		{	only/ Good	
			combustion practice	
		SO_2	Natural Gas Usage	0.0006 lb/MMBTU
			only/ Good	
			combustion practice	
SN-18	Slag Processing	PM_{10}	Water Sprays	

1139-AOP-R7

Permit 1139-AOP-R7 was issued on July 17, 2006. This permit included a minor mod application which adds 3 bin vent filters to the Roof Flux Feed system. The original permit for the roof feed flux system had the dust from the three conveyor transfer points carried back to a baghouse but it was determined prior to installation that the distance was too great to provide sufficient airflow to the baghouse to control these sources. Therefore the bin vents were added. These bin vents were added as sources SN-75, 76, and 77. The lime storage silo baghouses SN-37 and SN-38 will be removed upon installation of Roof Flux Feed system. Each of these baghouses has two modules which allow the one module to be cleaned while the other is in operation. Nucor planned to move one of the modules from these baghouses to control the particulate emissions from the day bins inside the melt shop. Once the roof flux feed system is installed and the baghouses SN-37 and 38 are no longer needed the other module will be put in service with the module controlling dust from the day bins. The day bin baghouse was designated as SN-78.

1139-AOP-R8

This permit was issued October 24, 2006. It included a minor mod application which adds a third cell to the existing cooling tower system #3, SN-48. Estimated emissions from the new cell are 0.07 tpy of particulate emissions. Permitted emissions for the source did not change.

1139-AOP-R9

This permit was issued on December 12, 2007. This modification added a new Cold Rolling Mill and ancillary sources to the facility. These were added as sources SN-79 through SN-95. This permit also added update of the Melt Shop Emissions (SN-01) to include filterable and condensable PM emissions as required in their previous permit. The melt shop baghouses were modified from roof monovent exhaust to a 140 ft. stack on each baghouse.

Permit #: 1139-AOP-R16

AFIN: 47-00233

A number of minor modifications were also incorporated into this permit. The bin vent filter on the Lime Storage Silo, SN-38, was replaced with a baghouse. Also 3 emergency generators, SN-96, 97, and 98 were added to the permit. Emissions from the modifications increased 326.7 tons of PM, 168.8 tons of CO, 71.3 tons of NO_x, 27 tons of SO₂, and 11.8 tons of VOC. The majority of the increase in PM was from the addition of condensable emissions to the permit which were previously unpermitted.

Prevention of Significant Deterioration

The changes made to the facility in this permit are considered a major modification under PSD regulations. Because of these changes PSD review is required for the following pollutants NO₂, CO, and PM₁₀.

Best Available Control Technology

The PSD regulations mandate that a case-by-case Best Available Control Technology (BACT) analysis be performed on all new or modified affected sources at which a net emissions increase will occur.

	BACT Analysis Summary					
Source	Description	Pollutant	Control Technology	BACT Limit		
SN-80	Pickle Line Boiler	NOx	Low NOx burners	0.075 lb/MMBTU		
		СО	Good Combustion Practice	0.084 lb/MMBTU		
		PM/PM ₁₀	Good Combustion Practice	0.0076 lb/MMBTU		
SN-82	Galvanizing Line	NOx	SNCR – Direct fired Section. SCR – Radiant Tube Section	0.035 lb/MMBTU		
		СО	Good Combustion Practice	0.084 lb/MMBTU		
		PM/PM ₁₀	Good Combustion Practice	0.0076 lb/MMBTU		
SN-81	Cold Reversing Mill/Temper Mill	PM/PM ₁₀	Mist Eliminators	0.0025 grain/dscf		
SN-79	Pickle Line	PM/PM ₁₀	Scrubber/mist Eliminators	0.0015 gr/dscf		

Permit #: 1139-AOP-R16

AFIN: 47-00233

SN-89	Annealing	NOx	Low NOx burners	0.1 lb/MMBTU
	Furnaces	СО	Good Combustion Practice	0.084 lb/MMBTU
		PM/PM ₁₀	Good Combustion Practice	0.0076 lb/MMBTU
SN-83, 84, 85, 90, 91	Scale Breaker, Entry Scale Removal, Chromate Spray, Hydrated Lime Silo, and Alkali Wash Section	PM/PM ₁₀	Baghouses	0.003 gr/dscf
SN-86, 87,	Small Natural Gas	NOx	Low NOx burners	0.062 lb/MMBTU
88, 92, 93	Sources	СО	Good Combustion Practice	0.084 lb/MMBTU
		PM/PM ₁₀	Good Combustion Practice	0.0076 lb/MMBTU
SN-94	Vacuum Tank	NOx	Low NOx burners	0.005 lb/ton of steel
	Degasser	CO	CO Flare	0.075 lb/ton of steel
			Good Combustion	
		PM/PM ₁₀	Practice	0.008 gr/dscf
SN-95	VTD Boiler	NOx	Ultra Low NOx	0.035 lb/MMBTU
		CO	burners	0.061 lb/MMBTU
		PM/PM ₁₀	Good Combustion Practice Good Combustion	0.0076 lb/MMBTU
			Practice Practice	

1139-AOP-R10

This permit was issued on April 15, 2009. This modification added a baghouse on the roof flux conveyor belts, SN-78A, and removed the roof monovents, SN-19, 20, and 21, on the melt shop building. The closed roof will capture emissions through the canopy system and duct them to the melt shop baghouses, SN-01. Nucor also added 4 burners at the caster deck emissions from these burners will be routed to the melt shop baghouses, SN-01.

Nucor also requested to install a baghouse on the carbon injection system, SN-43, 44, 45, and 46, in place of the present bag filter. Since the previously permitted limit was a BACT limit and the new baghouse would result in slightly higher emissions due to the increased airflow, in order to make this change the BACT limit must be re-evaluated. Nucor did not submit a BACT analysis which would justify the increase in emissions and the change was not made.

Permit #: 1139-AOP-R16

AFIN: 47-00233

1139-AOP-R11

This permit was issued on January 24, 2011. Nucor in this modification made a number of modifications. A number of changes were made to the roof flux feed system. Two pneumatic valves were added to operate one shuttle conveyor at a time. More pneumatic valves were added to avoid evacuating equipment that does not operate continuously. The baghouse controlling SN-78A was replaced with a cyclone which is ducted to the three melt shop baghouses. The dust collected by the cyclone is routed back to conveyors and to the electric arc furnaces.

A baghouse was added to control emission from the alloy carousel in the melt shop. A 400-HP Emergency Generator, SN-100, was added to the Cold Mill. The burners on the pickle line boiler have been replaced with the heat input rate changing from 12.6 MMBTU/hr to 12.5 MMBTU/hr. One of the burners in the galvanizing line, SN-58 was incorrectly listed at 3.5 MMBTU/hr instead of 5.3 MMBTU/hr. Sources SN-09, SN-14, and SN-16 were never installed and are being removed from the permit. A number of sources in the permit list heat input rates different from the actual rates of the installed equipment. Sources SN-08, SN-07, SN-10, SN-11, SN-12, SN-13, SN-14, and SN-15 were corrected. Two tundish mandrels were installed and previously unpermitted. These are now listed as sources SN-09 and SN-14.

Permit 1139-AOP-R12

Permit 1139-AOP-R12 was issued on June 10, 2011. This permit was the Title V renewal for the facility. In this permit, roadway emissions and a number of combustion engines, emergency generators, and gasoline tanks which were previously insignificant were added as sources. Also sources SN-73 and SN-79 through SN-95 were being removed from the permit as they were never constructed.

Permit 1139-AOP-R13

In this modification Nucor replaced a burner on the EAF with a burner of identical size that can also inject direct reduced iron (DRI) fines, replaced the dense phase pneumatic conveyor that transfers the carbon from the storage silos to the Asbury hoppers with a pocket belt conveyor, installed automatic side trimmers on the pickle line, and added the ability to apply a rust preventative to the tempered coils.

Permit 1139-AOP-R14

This permit was issued on February 17, 2012. This permit modification added a vacuum degasser, SN-94, a vacuum degasser boiler, SN-95, a contact cooling tower, SN-125, and a truck dump/6 bin alloy handling system, SN-124 to the permit. Also as part of this modification Nucor is replaced the existing 150 ton ladles with 165 ton ladles to allow more free board space to accommodate the vacuum degasser and increased the transformer size for the ladle metallurgy furnaces from 20 MVA to 30 MVA. These changes trigger PSD review for SO₂ and CO.

Prevention of Significant Deterioration Issues with Permit 1139-AOP-R14

Permit #: 1139-AOP-R16

AFIN: 47-00233

The changes made to the facility in this permit are considered a major modification under PSD regulations. The increases from the four new sources triggered PSD review for CO. When the past actual to the future projected actual the modified ladle metallurgy furnaces are considered, both SO₂ and CO were above the significant emission rate. This required PSD review for those pollutants. All other pollutants were below the significant emission rates including greenhouse gases.

Best Available Control Technology

The PSD regulations mandate that a case-by-case Best Available Control Technology (BACT) analysis be performed on all new or modified affected sources at which a net emissions increase will occur. The following table is a summary of the BACT determinations made in this permit. BACT determinations for the facility made in previous permits can be found in the Permit History section of this permit.

	BACT Analysis Summary				
Source	Description	Pollutant	Control Technology	BACT Limit	
SN-01	Ladla Matallymay	SO ₂	No Control	0.102 lb/ton steel from the LMF alone 0.33 lb/ton steel for all SN-01	
511-01	Ladle Metallurgy	СО	No Control	0.02 lb/ ton steel produced from LMF alone 2.0 lbs/ton steel or all SN-01	
SN-94	Vacuum Tank Degasser	SO ₂	Natural Gas Combustion Only	0.005 lb/ton steel processed	
		СО	CO Flare	0.075 lb/ton steel processed	
SN-95	VTD Boiler	SO ₂	Natural Gas Combustion Only	0.0006 lb/MMBTU	
511-75	v 1D Bollet	СО	Good Combustion Practice	0.061 lb/MMBTU	

The CO and SO₂ BACT for the LMF was determined to be no control. The variable nature of the emissions from the LMF and low emissions concentrations make control infeasible. Analysis of similar sources found none with controls. The LMFs at Nucor are routed, together with all emissions from the melt shop including the EAF, to a single baghouse.

Permit #: 1139-AOP-R16

AFIN: 47-00233

The CO BACT control for the Vacuum Tank Degasser was determined to be a flare. Analysis of all similar sources showed they all used flares to control CO emissions. The SO₂ BACT control was determined to be natural gas combustion only in the burners.

The BACT control for CO for the VTD Boiler was determined to be good combustion practice. This control options is consistent with BACT determinations for other boilers of similar size. Due to the low SO₂ emissions there was no control feasible for BACT control for SO₂.

Permit 1139-AOP-R15

Permit 1139-AOP-R15 was issued on July 11, 2012. This permit modification added a non-contact cooling tower, SN-126 to the permit as part of the vacuum degasser system added in to the permit in the 1139-AOP-R14. Emission increases are 0.1 tpy of PM and PM₁₀. Emissions from the new cooling tower combined with the emissions from the degasser system did not trigger any additional PSD requirements.

Permit #: 1139-AOP-R16

AFIN: 47-00233

SECTION IV: SPECIFIC CONDITIONS

EAF Melt Shop Compliance Unit

SN-01: Electric Arc Furnaces

Source Description

The facility receives scrap iron and steel by barge, rail, and truck. The scrap is either unloaded and stockpiled on site or loaded directly into furnace charging buckets. The charging buckets (which are on rails) are loaded outside the melt shop. Once loaded, they travel into the building and stop beneath the lime silo where pebbled lime is added. The scrap, pebbled lime and carbon are then charged into one of the two electric arc furnaces (EAF), which have a combined capacity or target production rate of 585 tons of steel per hour. During each heat, additional materials are charged into the EAFs through the Roof Flux Feed System. There are no limitations which would preclude tapping both furnaces at the same time or charging one furnace while tapping the other. There are ten (10) EAF natural gas-fired low NO_x burners with maximum heat input capacities of 15 MMbtu/hr each. The EAF burners exhaust to the EAF baghouse.

After charging, graphite electrodes are positioned just above the steel in the furnaces. When electricity is applied, an arc jumps from the end of the electrodes to the steel. The heat generated from this arc, along with the heat from the carbon and auxiliary burners, melts the scrap into molten steel. As the steel melts, additional carbon is injected, limestone slag floats to the top of the furnace, and the steel sinks to the bottom. When the melt cycle is complete, the slag is poured off of the top of the furnace. The molten steel is then transferred to ladle metallurgy stations.

Hot gases are captured in "fourth hole" ducts (direct shell evacuation systems, or DSE) and via canopy hoods located in the overhead roof exhaust system. The combination of canopy hoods and a "dust wall" surrounds furnaces and evacuates furnace emissions during charging, tapping, and slagging operations through canopy hoods. The exhaust is ducted to a multi-compartment, positive-pressure, reverse air type baghouse (SN-01). The baghouse also controls exhaust from the No. 1, No. 2, and No. 3 ladle metallurgy stations (LMFs) and No. 1 and No. 2 continuous casters and other Melt Shop sources including, #1 and #2 Tundish Preheaters (SN-10 and 15), Tundish Nozzle Preheaters, #1 and #2 Ladle Preheat Stations (SN-08 and 13), #1 and #2 Ladle Dryout Stations (SN-07 and 12), and the #3 Ladle Dryout Station.

Specific Conditions

1. The permittee shall not exceed the emission rates set forth in the following table. The permittee shall demonstrate compliance with this condition by Specific Conditions 6 and 13-31. [Regulation 19, §19.901 and 40 CFR Part 52, Subpart E]

SN	Pollutant	lb/hr	tpy
SN-01	PM (filterable)	37.0	162.1

Permit #: 1139-AOP-R16

AFIN: 47-00233

SN	Pollutant	lb/hr	tpy
	PM ₁₀ (filterable)	37.0	162.1
	SO_2	176.8	774.5
	VOC	53.8	235.5
	CO	1181.5	5174.6
	NO_x	304.0	1331.8
	Lead	0.82	3.59

2. The permittee shall not exceed the emission rates set forth in the following table. The permittee shall demonstrate compliance with this condition by compliance with Specific Conditions 6 and 13-31. [Regulation 19, §19.501 et seq., and 40 CFR Part 52, Subpart E]

SN	Pollutant	lb/hr	tpy
SN-01	PM (filterable + condensable)	106.9	468.2
514-01	PM ₁₀ (filterable + condensable)	106.9	468.2

3. The permittee shall not exceed the emission rates set forth in the following table. Compliance with these emission limits shall be demonstrated by compliance with Specific Conditions 6 and 13-31. [Regulation 19, §19.901 and 40 CFR Part 52, Subpart E]

Pollutant	EAF BACT Limit	LMF BACT Limit	
NO_x	0.51 lb/ton of steel	No BACT limit.	
CO	2.0 lb/ton of steel	0.02 lb/ton of steel	
VOC	0.088 lb/ton of steel	0.005 lb/ton of steel	
PM ₁₀ (filterable)	0.0018 gr/dscf	0.0018 gr/dscf	
SO_2	0.2 lb/ton of steel	0.102 lb/ton of steel	

4. The permittee shall not exceed the emission rates set forth in the following table. Compliance with these emission limits shall be demonstrated by compliance with Conditions 6 and 13-25. [Regulation 18, §18.801 and A.C.A. §8-4-203 as referenced by A.C.A. §8-4-304 and §8-4-311]

Source	Pollutant	lb/hr	tpy
SN-01	Arsenic	0.01	0.05
	Cadmium	0.02	0.09
	Chromium	0.08	0.35
	Manganese	1.08	4.73
	Nickel	0.02	0.09

Permit #: 1139-AOP-R16

AFIN: 47-00233

5. The EAF Baghouse (SN-01), Railcar Loading (SN-67), and EAF Melt Shop are subject to 40 CFR, Part 60, Subpart A, General Provisions and 40 CFR, Part 60, Subpart AAa, Standards of Performance for Steel Plants: Electric Arc Furnaces and Argon-Oxygen Decarburization Vessels Constructed After August 7, 1983 due to construction of the facility in 1991. A copy of Subpart AAa is provided in the Appendices of this permit. [40 CFR Part 60, Subpart A and Subpart AAa]

- The permittee shall perform stack testing of SN-01 for PM emissions. Testing shall be 6. performed annually in accordance with Specific Condition 5, Plantwide Condition 4, and EPA Reference Method 5D as found in 40 CFR, Part 60, Appendix A. The sampling time and sampling volume for each run shall be at least 4 hours and 4.50 dscm (160 dscf). The permittee shall report all emissions measured using Method 5D as filterable PM or PM₁₀ or may conduct separate filterable PM₁₀ testing using EPA Reference Method 201 or 201A. The permittee shall also conduct test for condensable particulate emissions concurrently using EPA reference Method 202. The permittee shall report all emissions measured as PM₁₀ or may conduct separate PM₁₀ testing using EPA Reference Method 201 or 201A as found in 40 CFR, Part 60, Appendix A. To show compliance with the various filterable, and filterable + condensable PM and PM₁₀ limits for this source, the permittee shall report testing results from the appropriate methods. The report shall include information specified in §60.276a(f) of 40 CFR, Part 60, Subpart AAa. [§19.304 and §19.704 of Regulation 19, §60.275a(e)(1) of 40 CFR, Part 60, Subpart AAa, and 40 CFR Part 52, Subpart E]
- 7. Unless the presence of inclement weather makes concurrent testing infeasible, the permittee shall conduct the performance tests required by Specific Conditions 6, 10, and 16, concurrently. [§19.304 of Regulation 19 and 60.275a(e)(4) and 60.275a(j) of 40 CFR, Part 60, Subpart AAa]
- 8. The permittee shall submit to the Department a written report of the results of the performance test required by Specific Condition 6. The report shall include information specified in §60.276a(f) of 40 CFR, Part 60, Subpart AAa, and the information required under Plantwide Condition 4. [§19.304 and §19.705 of Regulation 19, §60. 276a(f) of 40 CFR, Part 60, Subpart AAa, and 40 CFR Part 52, Subpart E]
- 9. The permittee shall not discharge into the atmosphere any gases from the EAF Baghouse (SN-01) exhibiting 3 percent opacity or greater. [§19.304 of Regulation 19 and §60.272a(a)(2) of 40 CFR, Part 60, Subpart AAa]
- 10. The permittee shall perform observations of the opacity of the visible emissions from EAF Baghouse (SN-01) by a certified visible emission observer as follows: Visible emission observations are conducted at least once per day when the furnace is operating in the melting and refining period. These observations shall be taken in accordance with Method 9, and, for at least three 6-minute periods, the opacity shall

Permit #: 1139-AOP-R16

AFIN: 47-00233

be recorded for any point(s) where visible emissions are observed. Where it is possible to determine that a number of visible emission sites relate to only one incident of the visible emissions, only one set of three 6-minute observations will be required. In this case, Method 9 observations must be made for the site of highest opacity that directly relates to the cause (or location) of visible emissions observed during a single incident. Records shall be maintained of any 6-minute average that is in excess of 3% opacity. Reports of exceedances shall be submitted in accordance with Specific Condition 11. Should the permittee install a single stack to its melt shop baghouse the permittee shall install and operate a bag leak detection system in accordance with §60.273a(c), (e), (f), and (g). The permittee shall maintain records for each bag leak detection system as outlined in §60.276a(h). [§19.304 of Regulation 19 and 40 CFR, Part 60, Subpart AAa]

- 11. The permittee shall submit a written report of exceedances of the EAF baghouse opacity and the EAF Melt Shop opacity to the Department semi-annually in accordance with General Provision 7. For the purposes of these reports, exceedances are defined as all 6-minute periods during which the average opacity is 3 percent or greater at the EAF baghouse, and all 6-minute periods during which the average opacity is 6 percent or greater at the EAF Melt Shop due solely to the operations of the EAF. Opacity observations shall be recorded on a visible emissions observation form. The information presented in Figures 9-1 and 9-2 to EPA Method 9 shall be recorded. [40 CFR, Part 60, Subpart AAa, and §19.304 of Regulation 19]
- 12. The permittee shall not discharge into the atmosphere any gases which exit from EAF Melt Shop which exceed 6 percent opacity or greater due solely to the operations of the EAF. Exceedances shall be defined as all 6-minute periods during which the average opacity is 6 percent or greater. This opacity limit shall apply at all times that the EAF is in operation and due solely to the operations of the electric arc furnace. [40 CFR, Part 60, Subpart AAa, and §19.304 of Regulation 19]
- 13. The permittee shall either (a) install, calibrate, and maintain a monitoring device that allows the pressure in the free space inside each EAF to be monitored, pursuant to 40 CFR §60.274a(f), or (b) perform daily observations of shop opacity, pursuant to 40 CFR §60.273a(d). The permittee shall notify the Department which method it elects within 30 days after the effective date of this permit. If the permittee elects to conduct opacity observations, the permittee shall conduct daily opacity readings on the EAF Melt Shop as follows: Shop opacity observations shall be conducted at least once per day when the furnace(s) is operating in the meltdown and refining period. Shop opacity shall be determined as the arithmetic average of 24 or more consecutive 15-second opacity observations of emissions from the shop taken in accordance with Method 9. Shop opacity shall be recorded for any point(s) where visible emissions are observed in proximity to an affected EAF. Where it is possible to determine that a number of visible emission sites relate to only one incident of visible emissions, only one observation of shop opacity will be required. In this case, the shop opacity observations must be made for the site of highest opacity that directly relates to the

Permit #: 1139-AOP-R16

AFIN: 47-00233

cause (or location) of visible emissions observed during a single incident. Records of these opacity observations shall be kept on site and made available for inspection upon request. Reports of exceedances shall be submitted in accordance with Specific Condition 11. [40 CFR, Part 60, Subpart AAa, and §19.304 of Regulation 19]

14. The permittee shall either:

- a. Check and record the control system fan motor amperes and damper positions on a once per shift basis:
- b. Install, calibrate, and maintain a monitoring device that continuously records the volumetric flow rate through each separately ducted hood; or
- c. Install, calibrate, and maintain a monitoring device that continuously records the volumetric flow rate at the control device inlet and check and record damper positions on a once per shift basis.
- 15. The permittee shall notify the Department which method it elects to use within 30 days after the effective date of this permit. If the permittee elects a method which uses a volumetric flow measuring device, the permittee shall comply with the pertinent provisions of 40 CFR §60.274a(b). If the permittee elects a method based on periodic monitoring of fan motor amperes, damper positions, or both, the permittee shall comply with 40 CFR §60.274a(c), and shall conduct a compliance test to re-establish these parameters as specified in 40 CFR §60.274a(c) within 180 days after the effective date of this permit. [40 CFR, Part 60, Subpart AAa, and §19.304 of Regulation 19]
- 16. The permittee shall determine baseline values of the fan motor amperes and damper positions, or volumetric flow rate during annual performance testing in accordance with Specific Condition 7, as may be required to demonstrate compliance according to the method chosen by the permittee pursuant to Specific Condition 14. The values of these parameters as determined during the most recent demonstration of compliance shall be maintained at the appropriate level for each applicable period. Appropriate level shall be defined as flow rates equal to or greater than those flow rates established as the baseline during the last annual performance testing on the EAF baghouse. The term appropriate period shall be defined as the time period between each annual performance testing on the EAF baghouse. Flow rates less than the baseline flow rate may be considered unacceptable operation by the Department, if operation at such flow rates results in opacity readings from the EAF melt shop greater than 6%. [40 CFR, Part 60, Subpart AAa, and §19.304 of Regulation 19]
- 17. The permittee shall perform monthly operational status inspections of the equipment that is important to the performance of the total capture system (i.e., pressure sensors, dampers, and damper switches). This inspection shall include observations of the physical appearance of the equipment (e.g., presence of holes in ductwork or hoods, flow constrictions caused by dents or accumulated dust in ductwork, and fan erosion).

Permit #: 1139-AOP-R16

AFIN: 47-00233

Any deficiencies shall be noted and proper maintenance performed. [40 CFR, Part 60, Subpart AAa, and §19.304 of Regulation 19]

- 18. The permittee shall visually inspect the upper chamber of the baghouse (SN-01) for visible emissions from individual bags on a monthly basis. Worn, frayed, or defective bags shall be replaced within two weeks following the inspection in which the defect is found. The permittee shall maintain a log of the inspection and maintenance activities. The log shall be signed and dated by the person responsible for making the inspection and/or repair. This log shall be kept on site and can be used by the Department for enforcement purposes. [§19.303 of Regulation 19 and A.C.A. §8-4-203 as referenced by §8-4-304 and §8-4-311]
- 19. The permittee shall maintain records of the following information: (1) all data obtained under Specific Condition 16; and (2) all monthly operational status inspections performed under Specific Condition 18. [40 CFR, Part 60, Subpart AAa, and §19.304 of Regulation 19]
- 20. If the permittee elects to install a device to measure the pressure in the free space inside the EAFs pursuant to Specific Condition 13, the pressure shall be recorded as 15-minute integrated averages. The monitoring device may be installed in any appropriate location in the EAF duct prior to the introduction of ambient air such that reproducible results will be obtained. The pressure monitoring device shall have an accuracy of ±5 mm of water gauge over its normal operating range and shall be calibrated according the manufacturer's instructions. [40 CFR, Part 60, Subpart AAa, and §19.304 of Regulation 19]
- 21. If the permittee elects to install a device to measure the pressure in the free space inside the EAFs pursuant to Specific Condition 13, during each performance testing conducted in accordance with Specific Condition 6, the permittee shall determine baseline values of the pressure in the free space inside the furnace during the meltdown and refining period(s). The pressure determined during the most recent demonstration of particulate emission compliance shall be maintained at all times when the EAF is operating in a meltdown and refining period. Operation at higher pressures may be considered by the Department to be unacceptable operation and maintenance of the affected facility. [40 CFR, Part 60, Subpart AAa, and §19.304 of Regulation 19]
- 22. If the permittee elects to install a device to measure the pressure in the free space inside the EAFs pursuant to Specific Condition 13, the permittee shall maintain records which demonstrate compliance with Specific Condition 21 and may be used by the Department for enforcement purposes. The records shall be updated on a daily basis, shall be kept on site, and shall be provided to Department personnel upon request. [40 CFR, Part 60, Subpart AAa, and §19.304 of Regulation 19]

Permit #: 1139-AOP-R16

- 23. During any performance test conducted in accordance with Specific Condition 6, the owner or operator shall monitor the following information for all heats covered by the test:
- (1) Charge weights and materials, and tap weights and materials;
- Heat times, including start and stop times, and a log of process operation, including periods of no operation during testing and, if the permittee has elected to measure the pressure inside the EAFs pursuant to Specific Condition 14, the pressure inside an EAF when direct-shell evacuation control systems are used;
- (3) Control device operation log; and
- (4) Continuous monitor or Reference Method 9 data. [40 CFR, Part 60, Subpart AAa, and §19.304 of Regulation 19]
- 24. The permittee shall retain all records of the measurements required by Specific Conditions 14 through 23 for at least 2 years following the date of the measurement. [40 CFR, Part 60, Subpart AAa, and §19.304 of Regulation 19]
- 25. Operation of the EAFs at a furnace static pressure that exceeds the value established under Specific Condition 21 or at flow rates lower than those established under Specific Condition 14, may be considered by the Department to be unacceptable operation and maintenance of the affected facility, if operation at such rates results in opacity readings at the Melt Shop Building greater than 6%. Operation at such values shall be reported to the Department semiannually. [40 CFR, Part 60, Subpart AAa, and §19.304 of Regulation 19]
- 26. The permittee shall perform stack testing of SN-01 for NO_x, SO₂, CO, and VOC emissions. Testing shall be performed in accordance with Plantwide Conditions 3 and 4 and shall be repeated every six months thereafter. The permittee shall measure NO_x, SO₂, and CO emissions in accordance with EPA Reference Methods 7E, 6C, and 10, respectively. The permittee shall measure the total VOC emissions using EPA Reference Method 25A, from which it will subtract out methane (CH4) and ethane (C2H6) emissions from the EAF baghouse using EPA Reference Method 18 to arrive at applicable VOC levels for purposes of this permit. Semiannual stack testing for a pollutant is not required if the permittee elects to operate a CEMS for that pollutant at SN-01. [§19.702 of Regulation 19 and 40 CFR Part 52, Subpart E]
- 27. For each stack test performed in accordance with Specific Condition 26 that demonstrates compliance with the lb/hr emission rates in Specific Condition 1, the permittee shall calculate an emission factor for NO_x, CO, SO₂, and VOC, that reflects the pounds of each pollutant emitted per ton of steel tapped during the stack test. The emission factor shall be calculated by dividing the emission rate by the production rate, and shall be expressed as lb/ton. The emission rate for each pollutant shall be

Permit #: 1139-AOP-R16

AFIN: 47-00233

the average of the emission rates established for each test run conducted during the stack test, expressed in pounds per hour. The production rate shall be determined by dividing the total tons of steel tapped from the EAFs during all test runs conducted during the stack test by the total amount of time of the test runs, and shall be expressed as tons per hour. The emission factor for each pollutant shall be reported to the Department together with the stack test results. [§19.702 of Regulation 19 and 40 CFR Part 52, Subpart E]

- 28. The permittee shall report to the Department each month the total number of tons of steel tapped from the EAFs during each of the previous twelve months. For each month, the emission factor from the nearest preceding stack test shall be multiplied by the total tons of steel tapped during that month, to establish the amount of each pollutant emitted during that month. The emissions so calculated for each of the last twelve months shall be added together and expressed as tons of pollutant per year. The sum of the last twelve months shall not exceed the ton per year limits for SN-01 in Specific Condition 1. If more than one stack test is conducted during a month, the calculation for that month shall be modified so that the total number of tons of steel tapped during the period between two consecutive stack tests shall be multiplied by the emission factor established by the stack test at the beginning of any such period. [§19.702 of Regulation 19 and 40 CFR Part 52, Subpart E]
- 29. The permittee shall perform stack testing of SN-01 for lead (Pb) emissions. Testing shall be performed in accordance with Plantwide Conditions 3 and 4 and shall be repeated annually thereafter. The permittee shall measure lead emissions in accordance with EPA Reference Method 12 or other alternate method, provided the Department approves the alternate method prior to use. [§19.702 of Regulation 19 and 40 CFR Part 52, Subpart E]
- In lieu of, or in addition to calculating an emission factor for NO_x, SO₂, CO, and 30. VOC and reporting EAF production each month as provided in Specific Conditions 27 and 28, the permittee may install and operate a monitoring device that continuously monitors and records NO_x, SO₂, CO, and VOC concentration of gases in the duct leading to the EAF baghouse. The NO_x and SO₂ monitors shall be operated in accordance with performance specification #2 which is found in 40 CFR Part 60, Appendix B, and the CEMS conditions in Attachment A of this permit. The CO monitor shall be operated in accordance with performance specification #4, which is found in 40 CFR Part 60, Appendix B, and the CEMS conditions in Attachment A of this permit. For purposes of measuring VOCs, the permittee may use an adjustment factor which will assume that the VOCs are 30% less than THC or, may take actual measurements of methane concentrations to subtract from the THC measurement to arrive at the VOC concentration. The VOC monitor shall be operated in accordance with the CEMS conditions in Attachment A of this permit. The permittee shall provide reporting from the CEMS in parts per million (ppm) and also in pounds per hour (lb/hr). The permittee shall indicate the methodology used to determine the lb/hr

Permit #: 1139-AOP-R16

AFIN: 47-00233

figure in the required reporting. Both ppm and lb/hr data shall be used for compliance purposes. The lb/hr value shall be determined using 3-hour block averages for compliance purposes. [§19.703 of Regulation 19, 40 CFR Part 52, Subpart E, and A.C.A. §8-4-203 as referenced by §8-4-304 and §8-4-311]

- 31. If the permittee elects to install CEMS, it shall give the Department 15 days advanced written notice. Thereafter, the permittee shall demonstrate compliance either by providing monthly production reports pursuant to Specific Conditions 27 and 28, or quarterly CEMS excess emission reports. If the permittee elects to discontinue use of CEMS, it shall give the Department 15 days advance written notice and shall resume or continue compliance with Specific Condition 27 and 28. [§19.703 of Regulation 19, 40 CFR Part 52, Subpart E, and A.C.A. §8-4-203 as referenced by §8-4-304 and §8-4-311]
- 32. The permittee shall for metallic scrap utilized in the EAF meet the prepare and implement a pollution prevention plan as required in §63.10685(a)(1) or the scrap restrictions of §63.10685(a)(2). [Regulation 19, §19.304 and 40 CFR Part 63, Subpart YYYYY]
- 33. The permittee shall for scrap containing motor vehicle scrap participate in and purchase motor vehicle scrap from providers who participate in a program for the removal of mercury switches as required in §63.10685(b)(2) that is approved by the Administrator of 40 CFR Part 63, Subpart YYYYY, prepare and submit for approval a site specific plan for removal of mercury switches as required in 63.10685(b)(1), or certify the scrap does not contain motor vehicle scrap. For scrap that does not contain motor vehicle scrap the permittee must maintain records of documentation that the scrap does not contain motor vehicle scrap. [Regulation 19, §19.304 and 40 CFR Part 63, Subpart YYYYY]
- 34. The permittee shall maintain the records required in §63.10 and records which demonstrate compliance with the requirements of the pollution prevention plan and scrap restrictions of Specific Condition 32, with the mercury requirements in Specific Condition 33, and the requirements of required in §63.10685(c). Additionally the permittee must maintain records identifying each scrap provider and documenting the scrap provider's participation in an approved mercury switch program. If the motor vehicle scrap is purchased from a broker, the permittee must maintain records identifying each broker and documentation that all scrap provided by the broker was provided by other scrap providers who participate in an approved mercury switch removal program. [Regulation 19, §19.304 and 40 CFR Part 63, Subpart YYYYY]
- The permittee must submit semiannual compliance reports to the Administrator of 40 CFR Part 63, Subpart YYYYYY for the control of contaminates from scrap according to the requirements of §63.10(a)(3). The report must clearly identify any deviation from the requirements of §63.10685(a) and (b) outlined in Specific Conditions 32 and 33. [Regulation 19, §19.304 and 40 CFR Part 63, Subpart YYYYY]

Permit #: 1139-AOP-R16

- 36. The permittee must install, operate, and maintain a capture system that collects the emissions from each EAF and conveys the collected emissions to a pollutant control device for the removal of particulate matter. [Regulation 19, §19.304 and 40 CFR Part 63, Subpart YYYYY]
- 37. The permittee must not discharge from SN-01 any gasses from an EAF which exhibit a 6% opacity or greater or contain in excess of 0.0052 gr/dscf. [Regulation 19, §19.304 and 40 CFR Part 63, Subpart YYYYY]
- 38. The permittee must monitor the baghouses, SN-01 according to the compliance assurance monitoring requirements outlined in Specific Conditions 13 through 22. [Regulation 19, §19.304 and 40 CFR Part 63, Subpart YYYYY]

Permit #: 1139-AOP-R16

AFIN: 47-00233

Mill Building Compliance Unit

SN-02: #1 Tunnel Furnace, Section A
SN-03: #1 Tunnel Furnace, Section B
SN-04: #2 Tunnel Furnace
SN-05: Roof Monitor #5 (Shuttle Furnaces)
SN-11 Tundish Dryer
SN-22: Roof Monitor #6 (Rolling Mill Building)

Source Description

This compliance unit consists of the mill building exclusive of the EAF melt shop. Process units and exhaust points of this compliance unit include #1 Tunnel furnace, section A (SN-02), #1 Tunnel furnace, section B (SN-03), #2 Tunnel furnace (SN-04), Tunnel furnace shuttle #1 Ladle dryout station (SN-07), #1 Ladle preheat station (SN-08), #1 Tundish preheaters (SN-10), #1 Tundish dryer (SN-11), #2 Ladle dryout station (SN-12), #2 Ladle preheat station (SN-13), #2 Tundish preheaters (SN-15), Caster #1 (SN-19), Caster #2 (SN-20), Rolling Mill Building Roof Monitor (SN-22), Tundish nozzle preheaters, and #3 ladle Dryout Station.

When the steel has reached the proper composition, a ladle is moved by crane from the LMS to one of two continuous casters. The molten steel is poured from a ladle into a tundish, which funnels the molten steel into a mold. The steel solidifies as it passes through the water-cooled mold, providing immediate cooling of the outer skin. At this point, the center of the steel slab is still molten. The casters produce continuous slabs approximately two inches thick. The width of the slab varies between 36 and 64 inches. The slab is cut so that it is approximately 150 feet long. Emissions from the continuous casters are captured by canopy hoods positioned directly above each caster and routed to the EAF baghouse (SN-01).

The cut slabs then go to the rolling mill. The rolling process is initiated by heating the slab to a uniform temperature. This is accomplished using two tunnel furnaces and a shuttle system. The #1 Tunnel furnace has a maximum heat input capacity of 150 MMbtu/hr [90 MMbtu/hr for section A (SN-02) and 60 MMbtu/hr for section B (SN-03)] which is supplied by natural gas combustion. The #2 tunnel furnace has a maximum heat input capacity of 90 MMbtu/hr (SN-04) which is also supplied by natural gas combustion. The mill also utilizes a two shuttle systems to transfer slabs between the furnaces. The shuttles incorporate a 10.5 MMbtu/hr natural gas-fired burner each (SN-05). All furnaces incorporate low-NO_x burners. Once the slabs have been rolled to the proper dimensions, they are cooled by a water spray and then wound into coils. The coiled steel is stored on site prior to sale. The rolling mill operations are associated with the generation of small amounts of PM emissions. Further, many of these operations are conducted using water sprays. The rolling building vents to the atmosphere through a roof monitor (SN-22).

The mill uses five natural gas-fired ladle preheaters equipped with low-NO_x burners, each with a maximum heat input capacity of 12 MMbtu/hr, to raise the temperature of the ladles prior to the transfer of molten steel from the EAFs. Emissions from these sources are routed to the Melt Shop Baghouse, SN-01.

Permit #: 1139-AOP-R16

AFIN: 47-00233

The mill has approximately 8 ladles in service at any time. Each ladle is generally used for approximately 55 to 60 heats. After that, the refractory brick lining in the ladles needs to be replaced. The removal of the refractory lining is accomplished using jackhammers and is associated with the PM emissions within the mill building. As such, these operations are considered as insignificant emission source.

After removal of the old refractory lining, new refractory is applied and cured. The curing is accomplished at two stations which incorporate natural gas-fired low-NO_x burners with maximum heat input capacities of 12 MMbtu/hr each. Ladle Dryout Station #1 (SN-07) and ladle Dryout Station #2 (SN-12) and Ladle Dryout Station #3 each represent one ladle dryout station. Emissions from these sources are routed to the Melt Shop Baghouse, SN-01.

The mill utilizes four natural gas-fired low-NO_x tundish preheaters, each with a maximum heat input capacity of 6 MMbtu/hr. These units are used to raise the temperature of the tundishes prior to transfer of molten steel from the ladles. SN-10 and SN-15 each represent two tundish preheaters. Emissions from these sources are routed to the Melt Shop Baghouse, SN-01.

The mill utilizes approximately 12 tundishes in service at any time. Each tundish is generally used for approximately 2 to 3 months. After that, the refractory brick lining of the tundishes needs to be replaced. The removal of the refractory lining is accomplished either by using jackhammers and is associated with the PM emissions within the mill building, or by mechanical means in the area between the melt shop and the interior slag processing area. As such, these operations are considered as de minimis emission source.

After removal of the old refractory lining, new refractory is applied and cured. The refractory is cured with a natural gas-fired burner with maximum heat input capacity of 6 MMbtu/hr, SN-11. Emissions from this source were previously considered to be routed to the Melt Shop Baghouse, SN-01, however; the source has been outside the melt shop with its own stack this is corrected in Permit 1139-AOP-R11.

The mill incorporates four natural gas-fired low-NO_x tundish nozzle preheaters, each with a maximum heat input capacity of 2.5 MMbtu/hr. Emissions from these sources are routed to the Melt Shop Baghouse, SN-01.

The Tundish Mandrels, SN-09 and SN-14 are three 3 MMBTU/hr natural gas fired burners. The Tundish Mandrels are used to harden the working layer of refractory tin the tundishes after they have been rebricked. The mandrels both vibrate and heat the mortar material causing it to disperse evenly in the tundish then solidify.

There are a number of smaller natural gas-fired units, such as space heaters and torches, at the facility. The permittee estimates heat input capacity of these units as 10% of that of major natural gas fired sources or, approximately, 86 MMbtu/hr. Each of these units is considered an insignificant source.

Permit #: 1139-AOP-R16

AFIN: 47-00233

The following table presents a summary of the roof monitor exhaust configuration.

Roof Monitor	Source	Sources Exhausted Through a Roof Monitor	
5	SN-05	Shuttle Furnaces	
6	SN-22	Mill Building	

Specific Conditions

39. The permittee shall not exceed the emission rates set forth in the following table. Compliance with these rates shall be demonstrated by Specific Condition 40. [Regulation 19, §19.901 and 40 CFR Part 52, Subpart E]

Source	Pollutant	lb/hr	tpy
	PM	0.7	3.0
	PM_{10}	0.7	3.0
GNI 02	SO_2	0.1	0.3
SN-02	VOC	0.3	1.1
	CO	6.3	27.6
	NO_x	16.2	71.0
	PM	0.5	2.0
	PM_{10}	0.5	2.0
SN-03	SO_2	0.1	0.2
514-03	VOC	0.2	0.8
	CO	4.2	18.4
	NO_x	10.8	47.3
	PM	0.7	3.0
	PM_{10}	0.7	3.0
SN-04	SO_2	0.1	0.3
511-04	VOC	0.3	1.1
	CO	6.3	27.6
	NO _x	16.2	71.0
	PM	0.1	0.4
	PM_{10}	0.1	0.4
SN-05	SO_2	0.1	0.1
511-03	VOC	0.1	0.2
	CO	0.8	3.5
	NO_x	1.9	8.4
	PM	0.1	0.2
	PM_{10}	0.1	0.2
SN-11	SO_2	0.1	0.1
211-11	VOC	0.1	0.2
	CO	0.5	2.3
	NO _x	0.6	2.7

Permit #: 1139-AOP-R16

AFIN: 47-00233

40. The permittee shall perform annual stack testing of SN-02, SN-03, and SN-04 for carbon monoxide (CO) and nitrogen oxides (NO_x) emissions. This testing shall be conducted at least annually on the testing schedule established in previous permits, in accordance with Plantwide Condition 4, and EPA Reference Methods 10 and 7E, respectively, as found in 40 CFR Part 60, Appendix A. [§19.702 of Regulation 19 and 40 CFR Part 52, Subpart E]

41. Visible emissions may not exceed the limits specified in the following table of this permit as measured by EPA Reference Method 9. Compliance for the sources with 5% opacity limits will be demonstrated through compliance by combustion of only pipeline quality natural gas.

SN	Limit	Regulatory Citation
02, 03, 04, 05, and 11	5%	§18.501 of Regulation 18 and A.C.A. §8-4-203 as referenced by §8-4-304 and §8-4-311

Permit #: 1139-AOP-R16

AFIN: 47-00233

Slag Processing Compliance Unit

SN-18: Slag Pit Loadout SN-23: Slag Processing Plant

Source Description

Slag processing compliance unit includes collection of slag from the melt shop and the screening, processing and shipping of slag, which is performed by an on-site independent contractor.

Slag is produced in the EAFs during the steel making process. The slag is discharged from the furnace and ladle and either cools naturally on the slag pit floor within the melt shop building or is directly poured into slag pots. Hot slag which is placed on the slag pit floor in the melt shop is dug out from the slag pit, placed into a front-end loader, and then loaded into a slag pot for transportation to the slag processing area.

At the slag processing area, the slag is first dumped and allowed to cool naturally. Then, water is applied. When sufficiently cooled and moistened, the slag is loaded out of the slag pit/cooling area with a front-end loader (historically, the process is denoted as SN-18) and is placed onto a slag pile. Slag that is too large to be processed, as well as other oversized material such as "skulls" and refractory, is first broken into small pieces by a breaking ball. Metallics are separated and returned to the EAFs. The remaining material is placed onto a slag pile. Water is applied to the slag pile to minimize emissions from wind erosion. Slag from the pile is then loaded into the processing feeder. Non-metallic materials are separated from metallic fractions and are screened to marketable sizes. Magnetic materials (scrap) continue to the magnetic screening section for separation into three size grades. Finally, magnetic materials are returned to be reprocessed in the EAFs or sold. All described above operations, excluding slag pit loadout, are denoted as SN-23. SN-23 also includes emissions associated with wind erosion of slag pits and slag piles and various processing activities such as feeders, conveyors, screens, etc. Because the slag is kept sufficiently damp, it is assumed that 90% particulate controlled efficiency is achieved during all slag processing operations.

Specific Conditions

42. The permittee shall not exceed the emission rates set forth in the following table. Compliance with this emission limit shall be demonstrated by compliance with Specific Condition 43. [Regulation 19, §19.901, and 40 CFR Part 52, Subpart E]

Permit #: 1139-AOP-R16

AFIN: 47-00233

Source	Pollutant	lb/hr	tpy
SN-18	PM	1.4	5.8
	PM ₁₀	0.8	2.9
SN-23	PM	2.8	4.4
	PM ₁₀	1.5	2.2

- 43. The permittee shall not exceed 862,120 tons for any consecutive twelve (12) month period of slag throughput at the slag processing area. The permittee shall not exceed 225,000 tons of production in the screening plant in any consecutive 12 month period, and the permittee shall not exceed 30,000 tons of production in the mill scale plant in any consecutive 12 month period. Slag processing throughput shall be determined based on final products production, including the metallic portion of the slag which is returned to the EAFs for reprocessing. [§19.705 of Regulation 19, A.C.A. §8-4-203 as referenced by §8-4-304 and §8-4-311 & 40 CFR 70.6]
- 44. The permittee shall maintain records which demonstrate compliance with the limit set in Specific Condition 43 and may be used by the Department for enforcement purposes. The records shall be updated on a monthly basis, shall be kept on site, and shall be provided to Department personnel upon request. An annual total and each individual month's data shall be submitted in accordance with General Provision 7. [§19.705 of Regulation 19 and 40 CFR Part 52, Subpart E]
- 45. Visible emissions may not exceed the limits specified in the following table of this permit as measured by EPA Reference Method 9.

Source	Limit	Regulatory Citation
Each Slag Processing transfer point	20%	§19.503 of Regulation 19 and 40 CFR, Part 52, Subpart E
Each conveyor at the Slag Processing Area	20%	§19.503 of Regulation 19 and 40 CFR, Part 52, Subpart E
Each loading and unloading operation in the Slag Processing Area	20%	§19.503 of Regulation 19 and 40 CFR, Part 52, Subpart E

46. The permittee shall conduct weekly observations of the opacity from each slag processing transfer point and conveyor at the slag processing area. If visible emissions are detected, the permittee shall conduct a 6-minute opacity reading in

Permit #: 1139-AOP-R16

AFIN: 47-00233

accordance with Method 9 at the point where visible emissions were detected. The results of these observations shall be recorded in a log which shall be kept on site and made available for inspection upon request. [§19.705 of Regulation 19 and 40 CFR Part 52, Subpart E]

- 47. The permittee shall continuously water all storage piles at the slag processing area as needed to control dust emissions. All crushers and screens shall be equipped with water sprays, which shall be operated as needed to control dust emissions. [§19.303 of Regulation 19 and A.C.A. §8-4-203 as referenced by §8-4-304 and §8-4-311]
- 48. The permittee shall conduct a weekly 6-minute opacity reading on each loading/unloading operation at the slag processing area in accordance with EPA Reference Method 9. The results of these readings shall be recorded in a log which shall be kept on site and made available for inspection upon request. [19.705 of Regulation 19 and 40 CFR Part 52, Subpart E]

Permit #: 1139-AOP-R16

AFIN: 47-00233

Cold Rolling Mill Compliance Unit

SN-51: Pickle Line
SN-52: Pickle Line Boilers
SN-53: Cold Reversing Mill/Temper Mill
SN-54: Galvanizing Line
SN-55: Scale Breaker
SN-56: Entry Scale
SN-57: Chromate Spray
SN-58: Alkali Wash Burners
SN-59: Galvanizing Line Dryer
SN-60: Chromate Spray Dryer
SN-61: Annealing Furnaces
SN-62: Hydrated Lime Silo
SN-63: Alkali Wash Exhaust
SN-74 Pickle Line Dryer

Source Description

The cold mill will consist of a pickle line (SN-51), three (3) boilers (SN-52), cold reversing mill/temper mill (SN-53), galvanizing line (SN-54), scale breaker (SN-55), entry scale baghouse (SN-56), Chromate spray (SN-57), alkali wash burners (SN-58), galvanizing line dryer (SN-59), chromate dryer (SN-60), 16 annealing bases with 8 furnaces (SN-61), hydrated lime silo (SN-62), an alkali wash mist eliminator (SN-63), and a pickle line dryer (SN-74).

A fraction of Nucor's hot rolled steel will be further processed in the cold rolling mill. The rolled steel will be pickled in a hydrochloric acid bath to remove scale oxides. The pickle line will consist of a series of acid tanks at a temperature of approximately 180°F. After immersion in the acid, the steel will be rinsed with water. Exhaust from the pickle line will be ducted to a fume scrubber and mist eliminator and finally discharged to the atmosphere via a stack. There are fifteen (15) storage tanks associated with the pickle line. These tanks will be used to store water solutions of hydrochloric acid and spent pickle liquor. All fumes from the storage tanks are ducted to the fume scrubber of the pickle line (SN-51). Spent liquor is loaded into rail cars or truck and transported off-site. The pickle line will be supported by three (3) natural gas-fired boilers (SN-52) with maximum heat input capacity of 12.5 MMbtu/hr each. Exhaust from these boilers will be emitted to the atmosphere via stacks. The National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants (NESHAP) for Steel Pickling – HCl Process went into effect on June 22, 1999. Nucor is not subject to this requirement because Nucor is not a major source for hazardous air pollutants. The pickle line boilers are subject to the New Source Performance Standards (NSPS) Subpart Dc.

The cold mill will utilize a cold reversing mill/temper mill (SN-53) to reduce the steel slab thickness. Specifically, coils of steel will be unwound and passed between a set of work rolls which will be pressed together by hydraulically-forced backup rolls. The strip of steel will be passed between the work rolls in alternating directions to effectively reduce the thickness of the

Permit #: 1139-AOP-R16

AFIN: 47-00233

strip. A mist eliminator will be used to minimize emissions. Exhaust from the mist eliminator will be emitted to the atmosphere via a stack.

The cold mill will also incorporate a galvanizing line (SN-54) to produce galvanized strips. The line will include natural gas-fired preheat and radiant sections with maximum heat input capacities of 60 and 18.3 MMbtu/hr, respectively. NO_X emissions from the direct fired section will be controlled using selective noncatalytic reduction (SNCR), and NO_X emissions from the radiant tube furnace will be controlled using selective catalytic reduction (SCR). Nucor has modified the galvanizing line to double as a continuous annealing line. The continuous annealing process involves raising the steel strip temperature to relieve the built up stress in the strip during the thickness reduction at the cold reversing mill, SN-53.

Just prior to entering the pickle line, the coil is flexed to loosen iron oxide (scale) particles. These particles are ducted to a small baghouse (10,595 cfm) with an outlet grain loading of 0.003 grains/scf. This process is known as the scale breaker (SN-55).

The entry scale baghouse (SN-56) is a system to withdraw any loose iron oxide from the coil prior to entering the pickle line. This system is ducted to a small baghouse (5,000 cfm) with an outlet grain loading of 0.003 grain/scf.

The chromate spray (SN-57) is a process in which a thin film of chromate is intermittently applied to the galvanized steel coil, as required by the customer. Fumes are exhausted by a fan having a flow rate of 1300 cfm and an estimated grain loading of 0.003 grain/scf.

The alkali wash of the galvanizing line has three burners (SN-58) to heat the liquid and one burner in the rinse section. The three natural gas fired burners in the wash section are rated at 3.5, 5.3, and 2 MMBtu/hr the rinse burner is 3.5 MMBtu/hr. In Permit 1139-AOP-R11, one of the three burners was changed from 3.5 to 5.3 MMBTU/hr.

The alkali wash section of the galvanizing line has a small dryer (SN-59) rated at 2.5 MMBtu/hr. Emissions were calculated using AP-42 factors, except for NO_X, which was based on the vendor estimate of 0.062 lb/MMBtu.

The galvanizing line has a small dryer (SN-60) near the chromate spray section and one near the phosphate section. The dryers are natural gas fired and have a maximum heat input of 1.5 MMBtu/hr. Emissions were calculated using AP-42 factors, except for NO_X, which was based on the vendor estimate of 0.062 lb/MMBtu. The two dryers are interlinked and cannot be operated at the same time, and their emissions are combined under one source.

There are 16 annealing furnace bases, with a maximum of 8 single stack bell-type annealing furnaces (SN-61) operating simultaneously. About 4 steel coils are stacked vertically. The entire cycle is about 36 hours with 50% heating and 50% cooling. Each furnace is rated at 4.8 MMBtu/hr. The furnaces exhaust into the cold mill building and subsequently, through the roof monitor.

Permit #: 1139-AOP-R16

AFIN: 47-00233

The hydrated lime silo (SN-62) has a small baghouse to prevent the material from escaping during filling operations. The baghouse has an estimated grain loading of 0.003 grain/scf. The alkali wash exhaust (SN-63) gas has a mist eliminator with an outlet grain loading of 0.003 grain/scf and volume flow rate of 6,000 cfm.

Specific Conditions

49. The permittee shall not exceed the emission rates set forth in the following table. Compliance with these emission limits shall be demonstrated by compliance with Specific Conditions 57 through 60. [§19.901 of Regulation 19 and 40 CFR Part 52, Subpart E]

Source	Pollutant	lb/hr	tpy
SN-51	PM	0.2	0.5
	PM ₁₀	0.2	0.5
SN-52	PM	0.3	1.3
	PM_{10}	0.3	1.3
	SO_2	0.1	0.1
	VOC	0.2	0.9
	CO	3.2	13.9
	NO_x	2.9	12.4
SN-53	PM	1.7	7.5
314-33	PM_{10}	1.7	7.5
SN-54	PM	0.6	2.6
	PM_{10}	0.6	2.6
	SO_2	0.1	0.2
	VOC	0.5	1.9
ł	CO	6.6	28.8
	NO_x	2.8	12.0
SN-55	PM	0.3	1.2
	PM_{10}	0.3	1.2
SN-56	PM	0.2	0.6
	PM ₁₀	0.2	0.6
SN-57	PM	0.1	0.2
	PM_{10}	0.1	0.2
SN-58	PM	0.2	0.5
	PM_{10}	0.2	0.5
	SO_2	0.1	0.1
	VOC	0.1	0.4
	CO	1.2	5.3
	NO _X	0.9	3.9
SN-59	PM	0.1	0.1
	PM ₁₀	0.1	0.1
	SO_2	0.1	0.1

Permit #: 1139-AOP-R16

AFIN: 47-00233

Source	Pollutant	lb/hr	tpy
	VOC	0.1	0.1
	CO	0.2	0.9
İ	NO_X	0.2	0.7
SN-60	PM	0.1	0.1
	PM_{10}	0.1	0.1
	SO_2	0.1	0.1
	VOC	0.1	0.1
	CO	0.2	0.6
	NO_X	0.1	0.5
SN-61	PM	0.3	1.3
	PM_{10}	0.3	1.3
	SO_2	0.1	0.1
	VOC	0.3	1.0
	CO	3.3	14.1
	NO_X	3.9	16.8
SN-62	PM	0.1	0.1
	PM ₁₀	0.1	0.1
SN-63	PM	0.2	0.7
	PM_{10}	0.2	0.7
SN-74	PM	0.1	0.1
	PM_{10}	0.1	0.1
	SO_2	0.1	0.1
	VOC	0.1	0.1
	CO	0.2	0.8
	NO _X	0.2	0.6

The permittee shall not exceed the emission rates set forth in the following table. Compliance with these emission limits shall be demonstrated by combustion of natural gas only and compliance with Plantwide Condition 5. [§19.901 of Regulation 19 and 40 CFR Part 52, Subpart E]

Source	Description	Pollutant	Control Technology	BACT Limit
SN-61 Annealing	SO_2	Natural Gas Combustion Only	0.0006 lb/MMBTU	
511-01	Furnace	СО	Good Combustion Practice	0.084 lb/MMBTU

51. The permittee shall not exceed the emission rates set forth in the following table. Compliance with this emission limit shall be demonstrated by compliance with Specific

Permit #: 1139-AOP-R16

AFIN: 47-00233

Conditions 52 and 54. [§18.801 of Regulation 18 and A.C.A. §8-4-203 as referenced by §8-4-304 and §8-4-311]

Source	НАР	lb/hr	tpy
SN-51	HCl	0.2	0.8

- 52. The permittee shall perform annual stack testing of SN-51 for HCl emissions. Testing shall be performed according to the testing schedule established in previous permits, in accordance with Plantwide Conditions 3 and 4 and EPA Reference Method 26 as found in 40 CFR Part 60, Appendix A. [§18.1002 of Regulation 18 and A.C.A. §8-4-203 as referenced by §8-4-304 and §8-4-311]
- 53. Visible emissions may not exceed the limits specified in the following table of this permit as measured by EPA Reference Method 9. Compliance for the sources with 5% opacity limits will be demonstrated by combusting only pipeline quality natural gas.

Source	Limit	Regulatory Citation
51 and 53	10%	§19.901 of Regulation 19 and 40 CFR, Part 52, Subpart E
52, 54, 58, 59, 60, 61, and 74	5%	§19.901 of Regulation 19 and 40 CFR, Part 52, Subpart E

- 54. The permittee shall keep a minimum water flow rate of 5 gal/min in the pickle line scrubber (SN-51). [§18.1104 of Regulation 18 and A.C.A. §8-4-203 as referenced by §8-4-304 and §8-4-311]
- 55. The permittee shall maintain records which demonstrate compliance with the limit set in Specific Condition 54, and may be used by the Department for enforcement purposes. The records shall be updated on a daily basis, shall be kept on site, and shall be provided to Department personnel upon request. [§18.1104 of Regulation 18 and A.C.A. §8-4-203 as referenced by §8-4-304 and §8-4-311]
- 56. The permittee shall conduct weekly observations of the opacity from SN-53. If visible emissions are detected, then the permittee shall immediately conduct a 6-minute opacity reading in accordance with EPA Reference Method 9. The result of these observations or readings shall be recorded in a log which shall be kept on site and made available for inspection upon request. [§19.705 of Regulation 19 and 40 CFR 52, Subpart E]
- 57. The permittee shall perform annual stack testing of SN-53 for PM emissions. Testing shall be performed according to the testing schedule established in previous permits, in

Permit #: 1139-AOP-R16

AFIN: 47-00233

accordance with Plantwide Conditions 3 and 4, and EPA Reference Method 5 as found in 40 CFR Part 60, Appendix A. All particulate emissions shall be reported as PM₁₀, otherwise the permittee may choose to perform stack testing in accordance with EPA Reference Method 201 or 201A. [§19.702 of Regulation 19 and 40 CFR 52, Subpart E]

- 58. The permittee shall perform annual stack testing of SN-54 for NO_x emissions. Testing shall be when the source is operating as a continuous annealing line and performed in according to the testing schedule established in previous permits, accordance with Plantwide Conditions 3 and 4, and EPA Reference Method 7E as found in 40 CFR Part 60, Appendix A. If the source is not being operated as a continuous annealing line at the time an annual stack test is due, the source need not be tested at that time but tested within 60 days of source beginning operation as a continuous annealing line and again annually after the date of that test. [§19.702 of Regulation 19 and 40 CFR 52, Subpart E]
- 59. If it has been more than 12 months since SN-54 was last tested in accordance with Specific Condition 58, the permittee shall maintain records of the operating status of SN-54. These records shall include all times when the source enters and leaves service as a continuous annealing line. If the permittee is required to keep records under this condition and performs the performance test as required under Specific Condition 58, the permittee no longer need maintain up to date records unless another 12 months passes. Previous records must be maintained for 3 years. These records shall be kept in accordance with General Provision 7. [§18.1104 of Regulation 18 and A.C.A. §8-4-203 as referenced by §8-4-304 and §8-4-311]
- 60. The permittee shall record and maintain records of the amounts of natural gas combusted in the pickle line boilers during each month. These records shall be kept on site and available for inspection upon request. [§19.304 and 40 CFR Part 60 Subpart Dc]

Permit #: 1139-AOP-R16

AFIN: 47-00233

Auxiliary Operations Compliance Unit

SN-27: Pelletized Lime Handling SN-29: Coke Handling SN-37: Lime Dust Collector (North) SN-38: Lime Dust Collector (South) SN-42: Storage Dome SN-43 through SN-46: Charge Carbon (Coke) Silos SN-47 through SN-50 and SN-70: Cooling Towers SN-64: Wastewater Lime Storage Silo SN-67: Railcar Loading SN-68 and 69: Truck Conveyor Baghouse SN-71 Rice Hull Storage Silo SN-72 Railcar and Truck Flux Unloading SN-75 through 77 Roof Flux Feed System Bin Vents, BC4, BC5, and BC6 SN-78 and SN-78A Day Bin Baghouse and Day Bin Cyclone SN-99 Alloy Carousel Baghouse SN-123 Rust Preventative Coating

Source Description

The facility receives pelletized lime and carbon. These materials are stored in bulk form. The facility utilizes six (6) silos for the storage of lime and four (4) silos for the storage of carbon. Four (4) lime silos and one (1) charge carbon silo are connected to a dust collector designated as SN-38. Two (2) lime silos and one (1) charge carbon silo are connected to a dust collector designated as SN-37. The Storage Dome, SN-42, serves as a general purpose warehouse and the baghouse is currently inactive. The two remaining injection carbon silos should be designated as SN-43 and SN-44. Each of the injection carbon silos is equipped with a displacement air bin vent filter to minimize emissions of the raw materials to the atmosphere. SN-45 and SN-46 are reserved for future use.

Scrap steel is received by barge, rail, and trucks. The scrap is stored in piles on mill property. Some scrap is stored in the scrap handling building. Periodically, in-house-produced scrap is cut with torches to facilitate charging. This operation is conducted infrequently. Due to relatively small amounts of emissions associated with scrap storage and handling, this source is considered a *de minimis* emissions source. Previous permits listed the scrap handling building as an insignificant source.

Alloy materials such as silicon-manganese and ferro-silicon are received in screened form by barge. These materials are then unloaded using a grapple or clam-type bucket into trucks (denoted SN-26) and transported to an alloy storage building (denoted SN-25), where material is stored in bins. The building is enclosed. The alloys are then transported by front end loader to the melt shop area, where they are conveyed into a ladle, as needed. PM emissions are possible due to the handling of the alloy materials.

Permit #: 1139-AOP-R16

AFIN: 47-00233

Charge carbon is delivered to the mill via barge and truck. Carbon delivered by barge is sprayed with water prior to shipment. It is unloaded into dump trucks using a clam-type bucket and stored in an enclosed building. Then the charge carbon is placed into charge containers to be charged in the furnaces. Carbon delivered by truck is delivered in a tanker truck and is pneumatically conveyed into the silo.

Injection carbon is delivered to the mill by truck and pneumatically conveyed into the silos. Then, it is blown with an injection lance into the furnaces.

Nucor operates a lime storage silo (SN-64) at the wastewater treatment plant. Lime is loaded into the storage silo by truck. During this process there is a potential for particulate emissions. The storage silo has a displacement air bin vent filter with an outlet emission rate of 0.01 gr/dscf. At 950 scfm, the maximum potential emission rate is 0.1 lb/hr. The bottom of the silo will have a rotary air lock with a rubber hose attached to feed lime into a cement truck.

Dust collected by the EAF baghouse is loaded onto railcar or truck. The railcar loading equipment is vented back to the SN-67. The railcar loading occurs in an enclosed building which is exhausted to a baghouse (SN-67). The emissions from railcar and truck unloading of fluxes are controlled by a baghouse (SN-72).

Nucor also conveys raw materials (e.g. pebble lime, carbon, etc.) from rail car to a tanker truck via an enclosed conveyor. This conveyor is equipped with a baghouse (SN-68). Nucor also has a second conveyor (SN-69) which is mobile and can operate at the same time as with SN-68.

The Rice Hull Storage Silo (SN-71) is controlled by a bin vent filter.

Transfer Points along the Roof Flux Feed system are controlled by Roof Flux Feed Bin Vent BC5, BC6, and BC7 (SN-75, 76 and 77)

The Day Bin Baghouse and Day Bin Cyclone (SN-78 and 78A) control emissions from the day bins inside the melt shop.

The Rust Preventative Coating (SN-123) operation coats the tempered coils sold to a small portion of customers.

Specific Conditions

61. The permittee shall not exceed the emission rates set forth in the following table. Compliance with these emission limits shall be demonstrated by compliance with Plantwide Condition 5. [§19.901 of Regulation 19 and 40 CFR Part 52, Subpart E]

Source	Pollutant	lb/hr	tpy
SN-27	PM	0.1	0.5
SN-27	PM_{10}	0.1	0.5

Permit #: 1139-AOP-R16

AFIN: 47-00233

Source	Pollutant	lb/hr	tpy
SN-29	PM	0.1	0.5
SIN-29	PM_{10}	0.1	0.5
SN-37	PM	0.2	0.9
SIN-3/	PM ₁₀	0.2	0.9
SN-38	PM	0.2	0.9
311-30	PM_{10}	0.2	0.9
SN-42	PM	0.1	0.5
511-42	PM_{10}	0.1	0.5
SN-43		-	-
SN-44	PM	0.1	0.5
SN-45	PM_{10}	0.1	0.5
SN-46			
SN-47	PM	0.5	1.5
511-47	PM_{10}	0.5	1.5
SN-48	PM	0.1	0.2
211-40	PM ₁₀	0.1	0.2
SN-49	PM	0.2	0.6
SIN-43	PM_{10}	0.2	0.6
SN-50	PM	0.4	1.2
514-30	PM ₁₀	0.4	1.2
SN-70	PM	0.1	0.3
SIN-70	PM_{10}	0.1	0.3
SN-64	PM	0.1	0.5
511-04	PM_{10}	0.1	0.5
CN 67	PM	0.3	1.3
SN-67	PM_{10}	0.3	1.3
CNI (Q	PM	0.1	0.3
SN-68	PM_{10}	0.1	0.3
SN-69	PM	0.1	0.3
SIN-03	PM ₁₀	0.1	0.3

62. The permittee shall not exceed the emission rates set forth in the following table. Compliance with these emission limits shall be demonstrated by compliance with Specific Conditions 61 and 66. [19.501 et seq. of Regulation 19 and 40 CFR Part 52, Subpart E]

Source	Pollutant	lb/hr	tpy
SN-71	PM ₁₀	0.1	0.5
SN-72	PM ₁₀	1.8	7.9
SN-75	PM ₁₀	0.1	0.3
SN-76	PM ₁₀	0.1	0.3
SN-77	PM ₁₀	0.1	0.3

Permit #: 1139-AOP-R16

AFIN: 47-00233

Source	Pollutant	lb/hr	tpy
SN-78	PM ₁₀	0.2	0.9
SN-78A	PM ₁₀	0.2	1.0
SN-99	PM ₁₀	0.1	0.3
SN-123	VOC	27.5	8.3

63. The permittee shall not exceed the emission rates set forth in the following table. Compliance with these emission limits shall be demonstrated by compliance with Specific Conditions 61 and 66. [§18.801 of Regulation 18, and A.C.A. §8-4-203 as referenced by §8-4-304 and §8-4-311]

Source	Pollutant	lb/hr	tpy
SN-71	PM	0.1	0.5
SN-72	PM	1.8	7.9
SN-75	PM	0.1	0.3
SN-76	PM	0.1	0.3
SN-77	PM	0.1	0.3
SN-78	PM	0.2	0.9
SN-78A	PM	0.2	1.0
SN-99	PM	0.1	0.3

- 64. The permittee shall not exceed 20% opacity from the pelletized lime handling (SN-27). Compliance with this opacity limit shall be demonstrated by Specific Condition 67. [§19.503 of Regulation 19 and 40 CFR Part 52, Subpart E]
- 65. The permittee shall not exceed 10% opacity from SN-37 or SN-38. Compliance with this opacity limit shall be demonstrated by complying with Specific Condition 67. [§18.501 of Regulation 18, and A.C.A. §8-4-203 as referenced by §8-4-304 and §8-4-311]
- 66. The permittee shall not exceed 5% opacity from SN-67, 68, 71, 72, 75, 76, 77, 78, 78A, and 99. Compliance with this opacity limit shall be demonstrated by complying with Specific Condition 67. [§18.501 of Regulation 18, and A.C.A. §8-4-203 as referenced by §8-4-304 and §8-4-311]
- 67. The permittee shall conduct weekly observations of the opacity from SN-27, 37, 38, 67, 68, 71, 72, 75, 76, 77, 78, 78A, and 99. If visible emissions are detected, then the permittee shall immediately conduct a 6-minute opacity reading in accordance with EPA Reference Method 9. The results of these observations or readings shall be recorded in a log which shall be kept on site and made available for inspection upon request. [§19.705 of Regulation 19 and 40 CFR Part 52, Subpart E]

Permit #: 1139-AOP-R16

AFIN: 47-00233

68. The permittee shall not use more than 6,000 gallons of rust preventative coating in any consecutive 12-month period. The rust preventative coating must not have a VOC content greater than 2.75 lb/gallon.

69. The permittee shall maintain monthly records of the amount of rust preventative coating used each month and the VOC content of each coating used. These records shall be updated by the 15th day of the month following the month to which the records pertain, kept on site, made available to Department personnel upon request, and submitted in accordance with General Provision 7.

Permit #: 1139-AOP-R16

AFIN: 47-00233

Steel Coil Cutting Operations

SN-65

Source Description

The steel coil cutting operations are located in the steel coil cutting building. The cutting operations are conducted by 6 oxy-fuel torches. The torches are rated at 0.4 MMBtu/hr each. Hoods are installed over the cutting area and the exhaust is routed to four filter cartridges.

Specific Conditions

70. The permittee shall not exceed the emission rates set forth in the following table. Compliance with this condition will be demonstrated by proper control equipment operation. [§19.501 et seq. and 40 CFR Part 52, Subpart E]

Pollutant	lb/hr	tpy
PM	0.5	2.0
PM ₁₀	0.5	2.0
SO_2	0.1	0.1
VOC	0.1	0.1
СО	0.2	0.9
NO_X	0.3	1.1

- 71. The permittee shall not exceed 5% opacity from SN-65. Compliance with this opacity limit shall be demonstrated by complying with Specific Condition 72. [18.501 of Regulation 18, and A.C.A. §8-4-203 as referenced by §8-4-304 and §8-4-311]
- 72. The permittee shall conduct weekly observations of the opacity from SN-65. If visible emissions are detected, then the permittee shall immediately conduct a 6-minute opacity reading in accordance with EPA Reference Method 9. The results of these observations or readings shall be recorded in a log which shall be kept on site and made available for inspection upon request. [§19.705 of Regulation 19 and 40 CFR Part 52, Subpart E]

Permit #: 1139-AOP-R16

AFIN: 47-00233

Internal Combustion Engines

SN-96 Emergency Generator - Electrical Substation SN-97 Emergency Generator - Water System 1 SN-98 Emergency Generator - Water System 1 SN-100 Emergency Generator - Cold Mill Treatment SN-101 Emergency Generator - Water System 1 North #3 SN-102 Emergency Generator - Water System 1 South #4 SN-103 Emergency Generator - Megawater #1 Water System 1 SN-104 Emergency Generator – Megawater #2 SN-106 Emergency Generator Cold Mill SN-107 Emergency Generator - Cold Mill East SN-108 Emergency Generator - Cold Mill West SN-109 Emergency Generator – Galvanizing Line SN-110 Emergency Generator – IT Administration SN-111 Emergency Generator - Radio Tower SN-112 Emergency Generator - Radio Tower Backup SN-113 Emergency Generator - Cold Mill Pump East SN-114 Emergency Generator - Cold Mill Pump Water Treatment

Source Description

The Emergency Generator - Electrical Substation, SN-96, is a 200 kW, 284.8 bhp diesel-fired generator which provides power to the electrical substation in emergencies.

The Emergency Generators - Water System 1, SN-97 and 98, are 2,000 KW, 2,848 bhp diesel-fired emergency generators and provide electrical power to cooling system 1 in case of emergencies.

Emergency Generator - Cold Mill Treatment, SN-100, is a 400 bhp diesel-fired generator which provides power to the Cold Mill in emergencies.

Emergency Generator - Water System 1 North #3, SN-101 is a 2,447 bhp emergency diesel-fired emergency generator.

Emergency Generator - Water System 1 South #4, SN-102 is a 3,353 bhp diesel-fired emergency generator.

Emergency Generator – Megawater #1, SN-103 is a 2,447 bhp emergency diesel-fired emergency generator.

Emergency Generator – Megawater #2, SN-104 is a 3,353 bhp emergency diesel-fired emergency generator.

Permit #: 1139-AOP-R16

AFIN: 47-00233

Emergency Generator - Cold Mill, SN-106, is a 1,073 bhp diesel-fired generator.

Emergency Generator - Cold Mill East, SN-107, is a 201 bhp diesel-fired generator.

Emergency Generator - Cold Mill West, SN-108, is a 201 bhp diesel-fired generator.

Emergency Generator - Galvanizing Line, SN-109, is an 80 hp natural gas-fired generator.

Emergency Generator – IT Administration, SN-110, is a 134 hp natural gas-fired generator.

Emergency Generator – Radio Tower, SN-111, is a 16 hp natural gas-fired generator.

Emergency Generator – Radio Tower Backup, SN-112 is a 7 hp natural gas-fired generator.

Emergency Generator - Cold Mill Pump East, SN-113, is a 38 bhp diesel-fired emergency pump.

Emergency Generator - Cold Mill Pump Water Treatment, SN-114, is a 400 bhp diesel-fired generator.

Specific Conditions

73. The permittee shall not exceed the emission rates set forth in the following table. The permittee shall demonstrate compliance with this condition by compliance with Specific Conditions 76, 77, and 79 through 83. [Regulation 19, §19.501 et seq. and 40 CFR Part 52, Subpart E]

SN	Pollutant	lb/hr	tpy
	PM_{10}	0.7	0.2
	SO_2	0.6	0.2
SN-96	VOC	0.7	0.2
	CO	1.9	0.5
	NO_x	8.9	2.2
	PM_{10}	2.0	0.2
	SO_2	9.3	1.0
SN-97	VOC	2.0	0.2
	CO	15.7	1.6
	NO_x	68.4	6.9
	PM_{10}	2.0	0.2
	SO_2	9.3	1.0
SN-98	VOC	2.0	0.2
	СО	15.7	1.6
	NO_x	68.4	6.9

Nucor Corporation (Nucor Steel, Arkansas) Permit #: 1139-AOP-R16 AFIN: 47-00233

SN	Pollutant	lb/hr	tpy
	PM_{10}	0.9	0.1
	SO_2	0.9	0.1
SN-100	VOC	1.0	0.1
311-100	CO	2.7	0.3
	NO_x	12.4	1.3
	PM ₁₀	1.8	0.2
	SO_2	8.0	0.8
SN-101	VOC	1.8	0.2
	CO	13.5	1.4
	NO_x	58.8	5.9
	PM_{10}	2.4	0.3
	SO_2	10.9	1.1
SN-102	VOC	2.4	0.3
	CO	18.4	1.9
	NO_x	80.5	8.0
	PM ₁₀	2.0	0.2
	SO_2	8.0	0.8
SN-103	VOC	1.8	0.2
	CO	13.5	1.4
	NO_x	58.8	5.9
	PM ₁₀	2.4	0.3
	SO_2	10.9	1.1
SN-104	VOC	2.4	0.3
	CO	18.4	1.9
	NO_x	80.5	8.0
	PM_{10}	0.8	0.1
	SO_2	3.5	0.1
SN-106	VOC	0.8	0.1
	CO	5.9	0.6
	NO _X	25.8	2.6
	PM_{10}	0.5	0.1
	SO_2	0.5	0.1
SN-107	VOC	0.5	0.1
	CO	1.4	0.2
	NO_x	6.3	0.7
	PM_{10}	0.5	0.1
	SO_2	0.5	0.1
SN-108	VOC	0.5	0.1
	CO	1.4	0.2
	NO _x	6.3	0.7
	PM_{10}	0.1	0.1
SN-109	SO_2	0.1	0.1
	VOC	0.1	0.1

Permit #: 1139-AOP-R16

SN	Pollutant	lb/hr	tpy
	CO	2.9	0.3
	NO_x	1.7	0.2
	PM_{10}	0.1	0.1
	SO_2	0.1	0.1
SN-110	VOC	0.1	0.1
	CO	4.8	0.5
	NO_x	2.9	0.3
	PM_{10}	0.1	0.1
	SO_2	0.1	0.1
SN-111	VOC	0.1	0.1
i	CO	0.6	0.1
	NO_x	0.4	0.1
	PM_{10}	0.1	0.1
	SO_2	0.1	0.1
SN-112	VOC	0.1	0.1
	СО	0.3	0.1
	NO_x	0.2	0.1
	\overline{PM}_{10}	0.1	0.1
	SO_2	0.1	0.1
SN-113	VOC	0.1	0.1
	СО	0.3	0.1
	NO_x	1.2	0.2
	PM ₁₀	0.9	0.1
	SO_2	0.9	0.1
SN-114	VOC	1.0	0.1
	СО	2.7	0.3
	NO _x	12.4	1.3

74. The permittee shall not exceed the emission rates set forth in the following table. The permittee shall demonstrate compliance with this condition by compliance with Specific Conditions 76 and 77. [Regulation 18, §18.801, and A.C.A. §8-4-203 as referenced by A.C.A. §8-4-304 and §8-4-311]

SN	Pollutant	lb/hr	tpy
SN-96	PM	0.7	0.2
SN-97	PM	2.0	0.2
SN-98	PM	2.0	0.2
SN-100	PM	0.9	0.1
SN-101	PM	1.8	0.2

Permit #: 1139-AOP-R16

SN	Pollutant	lb/hr	tpy
SN-102	PM	2.4	0.3
SN-103	PM	2.0	0.2
SN-104	PM	2.4	0.3
SN-106	PM	0.8	0.1
SN-107	PM	0.5	0.1
SN-108	PM	0.5	0.1
SN-109	PM	0.1	0.1
SN-110	PM	0.1	0.1
SN-111	PM	0.1	0.1
SN-112	PM	0.1	0.1
SN-113	PM	0.1	0.1
SN-114	PM	0.9	0.1

- 75. The permittee shall not exceed 20% opacity from the Sources SN-96, 97, 98, 100, 101, 102, 103, 104, 106, 107, 108, 109, 110, 111, 112, 113, and 114. [§19.503 of Regulation 19 and 40 CFR Part 52, Subpart E]
- 76. The permittee shall not operate any single emergency engine, SN-97, 98, 100, 101, 102, 103, 104, 106, 107, 108, 109, 110, 111, 112, 113, and 114 more than 200 hours in any consecutive 12 month period. The permittee shall maintain records of the hours of operation of each generator each month. These records shall be updated by the 15th day of the month following the month that the records represent, kept on site, made available to Department personnel upon request and in accordance with General Provision 7. [§19.705 of Regulation 19 and 40 CFR Part 52, Subpart E]
- 77. The permittee shall not operate emergency generator, SN-96 more than 500 hours in any consecutive 12 month period. The permittee shall maintain records of the hours of operation of the generator each month. These records shall be updated by the 15th day of the month following the month that the records represent, kept on site, made available to Department personnel upon request and in accordance with General Provision 7. [§19.705 of Regulation 19 and 40 CFR Part 52, Subpart E]
- 78. The permittee shall comply with the provisions of 40 CFR Part 63 Subpart ZZZZ for SN-100 by complying with the provisions of 40 CFR Part 60 Subpart IIII. [§19.304 of and 40 CFR Part 63, Subpart ZZZZ]

Permit #: 1139-AOP-R16

- 79. The permittee shall comply with the emissions standards specified in §60.4202 of 40 CFR Part 60 Subpart IIII for SN-100. Nucor shall operate and maintain the emergency generator, SN-100 according to the manufacturer's written instruction or procedures developed by Nucor and approved by the generator manufacturer, over the life of the entire engine. [§19.304 of and 40 CFR Part 60, Subpart IIII]
- 80. The permittee shall install a non-resettable hour meter on the Emergency Generator, SN-100. [§19.304 of and 40 CFR Part 60, Subpart IIII]
- 81. The permittee shall use a diesel fuel that meets the requirements of 40 CFR 80.510(b) in the Emergency Generator, SN-100. [§19.304 of and 40 CFR Part 60, Subpart IIII]
- 82. If the Emergency Generator, SN-100 is equipped with a diesel particulate filter to comply with emission standards, the diesel particulate filter must be installed with a back pressure monitor that notifies Nucor when the high backpressure limit of the engine is approached. [§19.304 of and 40 CFR Part 60, Subpart IIII]
- 83. The permittee may only operate the Emergency Generator, SN-100, 100 hours in any consecutive 12 month period for maintenance checks and readiness testing. Nucor shall maintain monthly records of the usage of the generator. [§19.304 of and 40 CFR Part 60, Subpart IIII]
- 84. SN-96, 97, 98, 99, 101, 102, 103, 104, 106, 107, 108, 109, 110, 111, 112, 113, and 114 are subject to 40 CFR Part 63, Subpart ZZZZ. As these are existing sources the compliance date is May 3, 2013. For those sources Specific Conditions 86 through 93 take effect after the compliance date. The permittee is not required to comply with those conditions till then. Since SN-100 is a new source under the MACT Specific Condition 85 applies upon issuance of this permit. [Regulation 19, §19.304 and 40 CFR Part 63, Subpart ZZZZ]
- 85. The permittee shall for SN-100 comply with the provisions of 40 CFR Part 63 Subpart ZZZZ by complying with the provisions of 40 CFR Part 60 Subpart IIII. [40 CFR Part 63 Subpart ZZZZ and §19.304 of Regulation 19]
- 86. The permittee must meet the following maintenance requirements for SN-96, 97, 98, 99, 101, 102, 103, 104, 106, 107, 108, 109, 110, 111, 112, 113, and 114.: Change the oil and filter every 500 hours of operation or annually, whichever comes first; inspect the air cleaner every 1,000 hours of operation or annually, whichever comes first; and inspect all hoses and belts every 500 hours of operation or annually, whichever comes first, and replace as necessary. [Regulation 19, §19.304 and 40 CFR Part 63, Subpart ZZZZ]
- 87. The permittee must for SN-96, 97, 98, 99, 101, 102, 103, 104, 106, 107, 108, 109, 110, 111, 112, 113, and 114, minimize the engine's time spent at idle and minimize the engine's startup time at startup to a period needed for appropriate and safe loading of the

Permit #: 1139-AOP-R16

- engine, not to exceed 30 minutes. [Regulation 19, §19.304 and 40 CFR Part 63, Subpart ZZZZ]
- 88. The permittee is to comply with the operating limitations of 40 CFR Part 63, Subpart ZZZZ that apply at all times and maintain any affected source including any associated air pollution control equipment and monitoring equipment in a manner consistent with safety and good air pollution control practices for minimizing emissions. [Regulation 19, §19.304 and 40 CFR Part 63, Subpart ZZZZ]
- 89. The permittee must maintain the Emergency Generators, SN-96, 97, 98, 99, 101, 102, 103, 104, 106, 107, 108, 109, 110, 111, 112, 113, and 114, according to the manufacturer's emission-related written instructions or develop their own maintenance plan according to 40 CFR 63.6625(e). [Regulation 19, §19.304 and 40 CFR Part 63, Subpart ZZZZ]
- 90. The permittee must install on each of the Emergency Engines, SN-96, 97, 98, 99, 101, 102, 103, 104, 106, 107, 108, 109, 110, 111, 112, 113, and 114, a non-resettable hour meter. [Regulation 19, §19.304 and 40 CFR Part 63, Subpart ZZZZ]
- 91. The permittee may utilize an oil analysis program in order to extend the specified oil change requirements in Specific Condition 86. This analysis program shall be conducted as required in §63.6625(i). [Regulation 19, §19.304 and 40 CFR Part 63, Subpart ZZZZ]
- 92. The permittee may operate the Emergency Engines, SN-96, 97, 98, 99, 101, 102, 103, 104, 106, 107, 108, 109, 110, 111, 112, 113, and 114, 100 hours per year for maintenance and readiness checks. The permittee may operate the engines 50 hours per year in non-emergency situations as outlined in §63.6640(f)(4). Those 50 hours must be included in the 100 hours for maintenance and readiness checks. There is no limit on emergency operation due to Subpart ZZZZ. [Regulation 19, §19.304 and 40 CFR Part 63, Subpart ZZZZ]
- 93. The permittee shall submit reports as outlined in §63.6650. [Regulation 19, §19.304 and 40 CFR Part 63, Subpart ZZZZ]

Permit #: 1139-AOP-R16

AFIN: 47-00233

Gasoline Storage Tanks

SN-115, 116, 117, 118, 119, and 120

Source Description

The gasoline storage tanks store fuel for dispensing into motor vehicles. The tanks are former insignificant activities now subject to MACT Subpart CCCCCC.

Specific Conditions

94. The permittee shall not exceed the emission rates set forth in the following table. Compliance with this condition will be demonstrated by compliance with Specific Condition 96. [§19.501 et seq. and 40 CFR Part 52, Subpart E]

SN	Description	Pollutant	lb/hr	tpy
SN-115	Gasoline Tank – Contractor Village (423 gallon)	VOC	5.2	0.4
SN-116	Gasoline Tank – Cold Mill Fuel Island (550 gallon)	VOC	6.1	0.3
SN-117	Gasoline Tank – Contractor Village (564 gallon)	VOC	6.2	0.3
SN-118	Gasoline Tank – Contractor Village (564 gallon)	VOC	6.9	0.3
SN-119	Gasoline Tank – Harsco Slag Processor (575 gallon)	VOC	7.0	0.4
SN-120	Gasoline Tank – Main Fuel Island (1000 gallon)	VOC	11.0	0.5

95. The permittee shall not exceed the emission rates set forth in the following table. Compliance with this condition will be demonstrated by compliance with Specific Condition 96. [Regulation 18, §18.801, and A.C.A. §8-4-203 as referenced by A.C.A. §8-4-304 and §8-4-311]

SN	Description	Pollutant	lb/hr	tpy
Gasoline Tank –	Benzene	0.07	0.01	
SNL115	SN-115 Contractor Village (423	Toluene	0.10	0.01
511-113		Hexane	0.18	0.02
g	gallon)	2, 2, 4 – Trimethylpentane	0.04	0.01
	Cosolina Touls Cold	Benzene	0.08	0.01
Gasoline Tank – Cold SN-116 Mill Fuel Island (550 gallon)	Toluene	0.11	0.01	
	Hexane	0.20	0.01	
	2, 2, 4 – Trimethylpentane	0.04	0.01	
SN-117	Gasoline Tank –	Benzene	0.08	0.01

Permit #: 1139-AOP-R16

AFIN: 47-00233

	Contractor Village (564	Toluene	0.11	0.01
	gallon)	Hexane	0.20	0.01
		2, 2, 4 – Trimethylpentane	0.04	0.01
	Gasoline Tank –	Benzene	0.09	0.01
SN-118	Contractor Village (564	Toluene	0.13	0.01
511-110	gallon)	Hexane	0.24	0.01
	ganon	2, 2, 4 – Trimethylpentane	0.05	0.01
	Gasoline Tank – Harsco	Benzene	0.09	0.01
SN-119	Slag Processor (575	Toluene	0.14	0.01
SIN-119	gallon)	Hexane	0.24	0.02
	ganon)	2, 2, 4 – Trimethylpentane	0.05	0.01
		Benzene	0.14	0.01
SN-120	Gasoline Tank – Main	Toluene	0.20	0.01
DIN-120	Fuel Island (1000 gallon)	Hexane	0.37	0.02
		2, 2, 4 – Trimethylpentane	0.07	0.01

96. The permittee shall for sources SN-115, 116, 117, 118, 119, and 120 not exceed the maximum throughput listed in the table below in any consecutive 12-month period. [§19.705 of Regulation 19, A.C.A. §8-4-203 as referenced by §8-4-304 and §8-4-311, and 40 CFR 70.6]

SN	Description	Maximum Throughput (Gallons)
SN-115	Gasoline Tank – Contractor Village	28,000
SN-116	Gasoline Tank – Cold Mill Fuel Island	20,000
SN-117	Gasoline Tank – Contractor Village	20,000
SN-118	Gasoline Tank – Contractor Village	7,000
SN-119	Gasoline Tank – Harsco Slag Processor	20,000
SM-120	Gasoline Tank – Main Fuel Island	80,000

- 97. The permittee shall maintain monthly records of the amount of gasoline received at each of the tanks SN-115, 116, 117, 118, 119, and 120. These records shall be kept on site, made available to Department personnel upon request and in accordance with General Provision 7. [19.705 of Regulation 19, and 40 CFR Part 52, Subpart E]
- 98. The permittee must not allow gasoline to be handled in a manner that would result in vapor releases to the atmosphere for extended periods of time. Measures to be taken

Permit #: 1139-AOP-R16

AFIN: 47-00233

include: Minimize all gasoline spills, clean up all spills as expeditiously as practicable, cover all open gasoline containers and all gasoline storage tank fill-pipes with a gasketed seal when not in use, minimize gasoline sent to open waste collection systems that collect and transport gasoline to reclamation and recycling devices. [40 CFR Part 63 Subpart CCCCCC and §19.304 of Regulation 19]

99. The records in Specific Condition 97 must be made available to the Administrator of 40 CFR Part 63, Subpart CCCCC within 24 hours of a request. [40 CFR Part 63 Subpart CCCCCC and §19.304 of Regulation 19]

Permit #: 1139-AOP-R16

AFIN: 47-00233

Roadway Sources

SN-121 and SN-122

Source Description

SN-121 accounts for emissions from unpaved roadways and SN-122 accounts for emission from Paved Roadways

Specific Conditions

100. The permittee shall not exceed the emission rates set forth in the following table. Compliance with this condition will be shown by application of dust suppressant as necessary to control dust emissions. [§19.501 et seq. and 40 CFR Part 52, Subpart E]

Source	Pollutant	lb/hr	tpy
121	PM_{10}	16.5	72.3
122	PM ₁₀	3.1	13.3

101. The permittee shall not exceed the emission rates set forth in the following table. Compliance with this condition will be shown by application of dust suppressant as necessary to control dust emissions. [Regulation 18, §18.801, and A.C.A. §8-4-203 as referenced by A.C.A. §8-4-304 and §8-4-311]

Source	Pollutant	lb/hr	tpy
121	PM	16.5	72.3
122	PM	3.1	13.3

102. Dust suppression activities should be conducted in a manner and at a rate of application that will not cause runoff from the area being applied. Best Management Practices (40 CFR §122.44(k)) should be used around streams and waterbodies to prevent the dust suppression agent from entering Waters of the State. Except for potable water, no agent shall be applied within 100 feet of wetlands, lakes, ponds, springs, streams, or sinkholes. Failure to meet this condition may require the permittee to obtain a National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) permit in accordance with 40 CFR §122.1(b). [A.C.A. §8-4-203 as referenced by A.C.A. §8-4-304 and §8-4-311]

Permit #: 1139-AOP-R16

AFIN: 47-00233

Vacuum Degasser Compliance Unit

SN-94, 95, 124 and 125

Source Description

SN-94, The Vacuum Degasser (VTD) is equipped with a flare to control CO emissions. The vacuum degasser is used to remove gases trapped in the steel so specific metallurgy grades of steel can more easily be obtained.

SN-95, The Vacuum Degasser boiler is a 50.4 MMBTU/hr natural gas-fired boiler.

SN-124, The Truck Dump/6 Bin Alloy System & VTD Wire Feed is controlled by a baghouse. This source accounts for emissions from alloy unloading and storage at the VTD.

SN-125, The Contact Cooling Tower is a 5,000 gallon per minute cooling tower.

SN-126 Non-Contact Cooling Tower is a 2,800 gallon per minute cooling tower for the vacuum degasser system.

Specific Conditions

103. The permittee shall not exceed the emission rates set forth in the following table. The permittee shall demonstrate compliance with this condition by compliance with Specific Conditions 107 and 108. [Regulation 19 §19.501 et seq. and 40 CFR Part 52, Subpart E]

SN	Description	Pollutant	lb/hr	tpy
		PM ₁₀	0.5	2.0
SN-94	Vacuum Degasser	VOC	1.5	6.6
		NO_X	1.5	6.6
	Vacuum Dagagan	PM ₁₀	0.4	1.7
SN-95	SN-95 Vacuum Degasser Boiler	VOC	0.2	0.6
		NO_X	1.8	7.7
SN-124	Truck Dump/6 Bin Alloy System and VTD Wire Feed System	PM_{10}	0.4	1.7
SN-125	Contact Cooling Tower	PM ₁₀	0.1	0.2
SN-126	Non-Contact Cooling Tower	PM ₁₀	0.1	0.1

Permit #: 1139-AOP-R16

AFIN: 47-00233

The permittee shall not exceed the emission rates set forth in the following table. The permittee shall demonstrate compliance with this condition by compliance with Specific Conditions 107 and 108. [Regulation 18 §18.801 and A.C.A. §8-4-203 as referenced by §8-4-304 and §8-4-311]

SN	Description	Pollutant	lb/hr	tpy
SN-94	Vacuum Degasser	PM	0.5	2.0
SN-95	Vacuum Degasser Boiler	PM	0.4	1.7
SN-124	Truck Dump/6 Bin Alloy System and VTD Wire Feed System	PM	0.4	1.7
SN-125	Contact Cooling Tower	PM	0.2	0.9
SN-126	Non-Contact Cooling Tower	PM	0.1	0.1

105. The permittee shall not exceed the emission rates set forth in the following table. The permittee shall demonstrate compliance with this condition by compliance with Specific Conditions 107 and 108. [Regulation 19 §19.901 and 40 CFR Part 52, Subpart E]

SN	Description	Pollutant	lb/hr	tpy
SN-94	Vacuum Degasser	SO_2 CO	1.5 22.5	6.6 98.6
SN-95	Vacuum Degasser Boiler	SO ₂ CO	0.1 3.1	0.2 13.5

106. The permittee shall not exceed the emission rates set forth in the following table. Compliance with this condition will be show by compliance with Specific Condition 107, natural gas combustion only for SN-95, and Plantwide Condition 5. [Regulation 19, §19.901 et seq. and 40 CFR Part 52, Subpart E]

Permit #: 1139-AOP-R16

AFIN: 47-00233

	BACT Analysis Summary			
Source	Description	Pollutant	Control Technology	BACT Limit
SN-94	Vacuum Tank		No control	0.005 lb/ton steel processed
511-94	Degasser	СО	CO Flare	0.075 lb/ton steel processed
SN-95	VTD Boiler	SO ₂	Natural Gas Combustion	0.0006 lb/MMBTU
51N-93	VID Boller	СО	Good Combustion Practice	0.061 lb/MMBTU

- 107. The permittee shall install and operate alarm system to notify the operator of the presence of a pilot flame or other possible flare malfunction. The permittee shall perform monthly visual confirmation of the pilot lights, semi-annually remove the strainer and check for debris, and annual test fire to ensure pilot light. The permittee shall maintain logs of all flare inspection and maintenance activities. These logs shall be kept on site, in accordance with General Provision 7, and made available to Department personnel upon request. [§19.702, §19.304, 40 CFR 52, Subpart E, and 40 CFR Part 64]
- 108. The permittee shall record and monthly maintain records of the amounts of natural gas combusted in the Vacuum Degasser Boiler, SN-95, during each month. These records shall be kept on site and available for inspection upon request. [§19.304 and 40 CFR Part 60 Subpart Dc]
- 109. Visible emissions may not exceed the limits specified in the following table of this permit as measured by EPA Reference Method 9.

Source	Limit	Regulatory Citation
94, 95, and 124	5%	§18.501 of Regulation 18, and A.C.A. §8-4-203 as referenced by §8-4-304 and §8-4-311

110. The permittee shall conduct weekly observations of the opacity from SN-124. If visible emissions are detected, then the permittee shall immediately conduct a 6-minute opacity reading in accordance with EPA Reference Method 9. The result of these observations or readings shall be recorded in a log which shall be kept on site and made available for inspection upon request. [§19.705 of Regulation 19 and 40 CFR 52, Subpart E]

Permit #: 1139-AOP-R16

AFIN: 47-00233

111. The permittee shall test the VTD Boiler, SN-95 for CO emissions. This test shall be conducted in accordance with Plantwide Condition 3 and EPA Reference Method 10 and repeated every 5 years after the initial test. [§19.702 of Regulation 19 and 40 CFR Part 52, Subpart E]

112. The permittee shall test the Vacuum Tank Degasser, SN-95, to show the flare is designed and operated in accordance with 40 CFR 60.18(b) through (f). This test includes a Method 22 for opacity, measurement of the actual gas flow rate and, calculations of the heating value of the gas (if complying with 60.18(c)(3)(ii) and (c)(4)). This test shall be conducted in accordance with Plantwide Condition 3. [§19.702 of Regulation 19 and 40 CFR Part 52, Subpart E]

Permit #: 1139-AOP-R16

AFIN: 47-00233

SECTION V: COMPLIANCE PLAN AND SCHEDULE

Nucor Corporation (Nucor Steel, Arkansas) will continue to operate in compliance with those identified regulatory provisions. The facility will examine and analyze future regulations that may apply and determine their applicability with any necessary action taken on a timely basis.

Permit #: 1139-AOP-R16

AFIN: 47-00233

SECTION VI: PLANTWIDE CONDITIONS

- 1. The permittee shall notify the Director in writing within thirty (30) days after commencing construction, completing construction, first placing the equipment and/or facility in operation, and reaching the equipment and/or facility target production rate. [Regulation 19 §19.704, 40 CFR Part 52, Subpart E, and A.C.A. §8-4-203 as referenced by §8-4-304 and §8-4-311]
- 2. If the permittee fails to start construction within eighteen months or suspends construction for eighteen months or more, the Director may cancel all or part of this permit. [Regulation 19 §19.410(B) and 40 CFR Part 52, Subpart E]
- 3. The permittee must test any equipment scheduled for testing, unless otherwise stated in the Specific Conditions of this permit or by any federally regulated requirements, within the following time frames: (1) new equipment or newly modified equipment within sixty (60) days of achieving the maximum production rate, but no later than 180 days after initial start up of the permitted source or (2) operating equipment according to the time frames set forth by the Department or within 180 days of permit issuance if no date is specified. The permittee must notify the Department of the scheduled date of compliance testing at least fifteen (15) business days in advance of such test. The permittee shall submit the compliance test results to the Department within thirty (30) calendar days after completing the testing. [Regulation 19 §19.702 and/or Regulation 18 §18.1002 and A.C.A. §8-4-203 as referenced by §8-4-304 and §8-4-311]
- 4. The permittee must provide:
 - a. Sampling ports adequate for applicable test methods;
 - b. Safe sampling platforms;
 - c. Safe access to sampling platforms; and
 - d. Utilities for sampling and testing equipment.

[Regulation 19 §19.702 and/or Regulation 18 §18.1002 and A.C.A. §8-4-203 as referenced by §8-4-304 and §8-4-311]

- 5. The permittee must operate the equipment, control apparatus and emission monitoring equipment within the design limitations. The permittee shall maintain the equipment in good condition at all times. [Regulation 19 §19.303 and A.C.A. §8-4-203 as referenced by §8-4-304 and §8-4-311]
- 6. This permit subsumes and incorporates all previously issued air permits for this facility. [Regulation 26 and A.C.A. §8-4-203 as referenced by §8-4-304 and §8-4-311]

Permit #: 1139-AOP-R16

AFIN: 47-00233

SECTION VII: INSIGNIFICANT ACTIVITIES

The following sources are insignificant activities. Any activity that has a state or federal applicable requirement shall be considered a significant activity even if this activity meets the criteria of §26.304 of Regulation 26 or listed in the table below. Insignificant activity determinations rely upon the information submitted by the permittee in an application dated January 17, 2011.

Description	Category
Scrap Handling	A-13
Alloy Handling	A-13
Pressure washer – MS	A-1
Power Washer and Skid Boiler	A-1
Pressure Water – Other	A-1
Crane Maintenance	A-1
QA/QC laboratory electric annealing furnace	A-5

Permit #: 1139-AOP-R16

AFIN: 47-00233

SECTION VIII: GENERAL PROVISIONS

- 1. Any terms or conditions included in this permit which specify and reference Arkansas Pollution Control & Ecology Commission Regulation 18 or the Arkansas Water and Air Pollution Control Act (A.C.A. §8-4-101 et seq.) as the sole origin of and authority for the terms or conditions are not required under the Clean Air Act or any of its applicable requirements, and are not federally enforceable under the Clean Air Act. Arkansas Pollution Control & Ecology Commission Regulation 18 was adopted pursuant to the Arkansas Water and Air Pollution Control Act (A.C.A. §8-4-101 et seq.). Any terms or conditions included in this permit which specify and reference Arkansas Pollution Control & Ecology Commission Regulation 18 or the Arkansas Water and Air Pollution Control Act (A.C.A. §8-4-101 et seq.) as the origin of and authority for the terms or conditions are enforceable under this Arkansas statute. [40 CFR 70.6(b)(2)]
- 2. This permit shall be valid for a period of five (5) years beginning on the date this permit becomes effective and ending five (5) years later. [40 CFR 70.6(a)(2) and Regulation 26 §26.701(B)]
- 3. The permittee must submit a complete application for permit renewal at least six (6) months before permit expiration. Permit expiration terminates the permittee's right to operate unless the permittee submitted a complete renewal application at least six (6) months before permit expiration. If the permittee submits a complete application, the existing permit will remain in effect until the Department takes final action on the renewal application. The Department will not necessarily notify the permittee when the permit renewal application is due. [Regulation 26 §26.406]
- 4. Where an applicable requirement of the Clean Air Act, as amended, 42 U.S.C. 7401, et seq. (Act) is more stringent than an applicable requirement of regulations promulgated under Title IV of the Act, the permit incorporates both provisions into the permit, and the Director or the Administrator can enforce both provisions. [40 CFR 70.6(a)(1)(ii) and Regulation 26 §26.701(A)(2)]
- 5. The permittee must maintain the following records of monitoring information as required by this permit.
 - a. The date, place as defined in this permit, and time of sampling or measurements;
 - b. The date(s) analyses performed;
 - c. The company or entity performing the analyses;
 - d. The analytical techniques or methods used;
 - e. The results of such analyses; and
 - f. The operating conditions existing at the time of sampling or measurement.

[40 CFR 70.6(a)(3)(ii)(A) and Regulation 26 §26.701(C)(2)]

Permit #: 1139-AOP-R16

AFIN: 47-00233

6. The permittee must retain the records of all required monitoring data and support information for at least five (5) years from the date of the monitoring sample, measurement, report, or application. Support information includes all calibration and maintenance records and all original strip chart recordings for continuous monitoring instrumentation, and copies of all reports required by this permit. [40 CFR 70.6(a)(3)(ii)(B) and Regulation 26 §26.701(C)(2)(b)]

7. The permittee must submit reports of all required monitoring every six (6) months. If the permit establishes no other reporting period, the reporting period shall end on the last day of the month six months after the issuance of the initial Title V permit and every six months thereafter. The report is due on the first day of the second month after the end of the reporting period. Although the reports are due every six months, each report shall contain a full year of data. The report must clearly identify all instances of deviations from permit requirements. A responsible official as defined in Regulation No. 26, §26.2 must certify all required reports. The permittee will send the reports to the address below:

Arkansas Department of Environmental Quality Air Division ATTN: Compliance Inspector Supervisor 5301 Northshore Drive North Little Rock, AR 72118-5317

[40 CFR 70.6(a)(3)(iii)(A) and Regulation 26 §26.701(C)(3)(a)]

- 8. The permittee shall report to the Department all deviations from permit requirements, including those attributable to upset conditions as defined in the permit.
 - a. For all upset conditions (as defined in Regulation 19, § 19.601), the permittee will make an initial report to the Department by the next business day after the discovery of the occurrence. The initial report may be made by telephone and shall include:
 - i. The facility name and location;
 - ii. The process unit or emission source deviating from the permit limit;
 - iii. The permit limit, including the identification of pollutants, from which deviation occurs;
 - iv. The date and time the deviation started:
 - v. The duration of the deviation;
 - vi. The average emissions during the deviation;
 - vii. The probable cause of such deviations;
 - viii. Any corrective actions or preventive measures taken or being taken to prevent such deviations in the future; and
 - ix. The name of the person submitting the report.

Permit #: 1139-AOP-R16

AFIN: 47-00233

The permittee shall make a full report in writing to the Department within five (5) business days of discovery of the occurrence. The report must include, in addition to the information required by the initial report, a schedule of actions taken or planned to eliminate future occurrences and/or to minimize the amount the permit's limits were exceeded and to reduce the length of time the limits were exceeded. The permittee may submit a full report in writing (by facsimile, overnight courier, or other means) by the next business day after discovery of the occurrence, and the report will serve as both the initial report and full report.

b. For all deviations, the permittee shall report such events in semi-annual reporting and annual certifications required in this permit. This includes all upset conditions reported in 8a above. The semi-annual report must include all the information as required by the initial and full reports required in 8a.

[Regulation 19 §19.601 and §19.602, Regulation 26 §26.701(C)(3)(b), and 40 CFR 70.6(a)(3)(iii)(B)]

- 9. If any provision of the permit or the application thereof to any person or circumstance is held invalid, such invalidity will not affect other provisions or applications hereof which can be given effect without the invalid provision or application, and to this end, provisions of this Regulation are declared to be separable and severable. [40 CFR 70.6(a)(5), Regulation 26 §26.701(E), and A.C.A. §8-4-203 as referenced by §8-4-304 and §8-4-311]
- 10. The permittee must comply with all conditions of this Part 70 permit. Any permit noncompliance with applicable requirements as defined in Regulation 26 constitutes a violation of the Clean Air Act, as amended, 42 U.S.C. §7401, et seq. and is grounds for enforcement action; for permit termination, revocation and reissuance, for permit modification; or for denial of a permit renewal application. [40 CFR 70.6(a)(6)(i) and Regulation 26 §26.701(F)(1)]
- 11. It shall not be a defense for a permittee in an enforcement action that it would have been necessary to halt or reduce the permitted activity to maintain compliance with the conditions of this permit. [40 CFR 70.6(a)(6)(ii) and Regulation 26 §26.701(F)(2)]
- 12. The Department may modify, revoke, reopen and reissue the permit or terminate the permit for cause. The filing of a request by the permittee for a permit modification, revocation and reissuance, termination, or of a notification of planned changes or anticipated noncompliance does not stay any permit condition. [40 CFR 70.6(a)(6)(iii) and Regulation 26 §26.701(F)(3)]
- 13. This permit does not convey any property rights of any sort, or any exclusive privilege. [40 CFR 70.6(a)(6)(iv) and Regulation 26 §26.701(F)(4)]

Permit #: 1139-AOP-R16

AFIN: 47-00233

- 14. The permittee must furnish to the Director, within the time specified by the Director, any information that the Director may request in writing to determine whether cause exists for modifying, revoking and reissuing, or terminating the permit or to determine compliance with the permit. Upon request, the permittee must also furnish to the Director copies of records required by the permit. For information the permittee claims confidentiality, the Department may require the permittee to furnish such records directly to the Director along with a claim of confidentiality. [40 CFR 70.6(a)(6)(v) and Regulation 26 §26.701(F)(5)]
- 15. The permittee must pay all permit fees in accordance with the procedures established in Regulation 9. [40 CFR 70.6(a)(7) and Regulation 26 §26.701(G)]
- 16. No permit revision shall be required, under any approved economic incentives, marketable permits, emissions trading and other similar programs or processes for changes provided for elsewhere in this permit. [40 CFR 70.6(a)(8) and Regulation 26 §26.701(H)]
- 17. If the permit allows different operating scenarios, the permittee shall, contemporaneously with making a change from one operating scenario to another, record in a log at the permitted facility a record of the operational scenario. [40 CFR 70.6(a)(9)(i) and Regulation 26 §26.701(I)(1)]
- 18. The Administrator and citizens may enforce under the Act all terms and conditions in this permit, including any provisions designed to limit a source's potential to emit, unless the Department specifically designates terms and conditions of the permit as being federally unenforceable under the Act or under any of its applicable requirements. [40 CFR 70.6(b) and Regulation 26 §26.702(A) and (B)]
- 19. Any document (including reports) required by this permit must contain a certification by a responsible official as defined in Regulation 26, §26.2. [40 CFR 70.6(c)(1) and Regulation 26 §26.703(A)]
- 20. The permittee must allow an authorized representative of the Department, upon presentation of credentials, to perform the following: [40 CFR 70.6(c)(2) and Regulation 26 §26.703(B)]
 - a. Enter upon the permittee's premises where the permitted source is located or emissions related activity is conducted, or where records must be kept under the conditions of this permit;
 - b. Have access to and copy, at reasonable times, any records required under the conditions of this permit;
 - c. Inspect at reasonable times any facilities, equipment (including monitoring and air pollution control equipment), practices, or operations regulated or required under this permit; and

Permit #: 1139-AOP-R16

AFIN: 47-00233

- d. As authorized by the Act, sample or monitor at reasonable times substances or parameters for assuring compliance with this permit or applicable requirements.
- 21. The permittee shall submit a compliance certification with the terms and conditions contained in the permit, including emission limitations, standards, or work practices. The permittee must submit the compliance certification annually. If the permit establishes no other reporting period, the reporting period shall end on the last day of the anniversary month of the initial Title V permit. The report is due on the first day of the second month after the end of the reporting period. The permittee must also submit the compliance certification to the Administrator as well as to the Department. All compliance certifications required by this permit must include the following: [40 CFR 70.6(c)(5) and Regulation 26 §26.703(E)(3)]
 - a. The identification of each term or condition of the permit that is the basis of the certification;
 - b. The compliance status;
 - c. Whether compliance was continuous or intermittent;
 - d. The method(s) used for determining the compliance status of the source, currently and over the reporting period established by the monitoring requirements of this permit; and
 - e. Such other facts as the Department may require elsewhere in this permit or by §114(a)(3) and §504(b) of the Act.
- 22. Nothing in this permit will alter or affect the following: [Regulation 26 §26.704(C)]
 - a. The provisions of Section 303 of the Act (emergency orders), including the authority of the Administrator under that section;
 - b. The liability of the permittee for any violation of applicable requirements prior to or at the time of permit issuance;
 - c. The applicable requirements of the acid rain program, consistent with §408(a) of the Act; or
 - d. The ability of EPA to obtain information from a source pursuant to §114 of the Act.
- 23. This permit authorizes only those pollutant emitting activities addressed in this permit. [A.C.A. §8-4-203 as referenced by §8-4-304 and §8-4-311]
- 24. The permittee may request in writing and at least 15 days in advance of the deadline, an extension to any testing, compliance or other dates in this permit. No such extensions are authorized until the permittee receives written Department approval. The Department may grant such a request, at its discretion in the following circumstances:
 - a. Such an extension does not violate a federal requirement;
 - b. The permittee demonstrates the need for the extension; and

Permit #: 1139-AOP-R16

AFIN: 47-00233

c. The permittee documents that all reasonable measures have been taken to meet the current deadline and documents reasons it cannot be met.

[Regulation 18 §18.314(A), Regulation 19 §19.416(A), Regulation 26 §26.1013(A), A.C.A. §8-4-203 as referenced by §8-4-304 and §8-4-311, and 40 CFR Part 52, Subpart E]

- 25. The permittee may request in writing and at least 30 days in advance, temporary emissions and/or testing that would otherwise exceed an emission rate, throughput requirement, or other limit in this permit. No such activities are authorized until the permittee receives written Department approval. Any such emissions shall be included in the facility's total emissions and reported as such. The Department may grant such a request, at its discretion under the following conditions:
 - a. Such a request does not violate a federal requirement;
 - b. Such a request is temporary in nature;
 - c. Such a request will not result in a condition of air pollution;
 - d. The request contains such information necessary for the Department to evaluate the request, including but not limited to, quantification of such emissions and the date/time such emission will occur:
 - e. Such a request will result in increased emissions less than five tons of any individual criteria pollutant, one ton of any single HAP and 2.5 tons of total HAPs; and
 - f. The permittee maintains records of the dates and results of such temporary emissions/testing.

[Regulation 18 §18.314(B), Regulation 19 §19.416(B), Regulation 26 §26.1013(B), A.C.A. §8-4-203 as referenced by §8-4-304 and §8-4-311, and 40 CFR Part 52, Subpart E]

- 26. The permittee may request in writing and at least 30 days in advance, an alternative to the specified monitoring in this permit. No such alternatives are authorized until the permittee receives written Department approval. The Department may grant such a request, at its discretion under the following conditions:
 - a. The request does not violate a federal requirement;
 - b. The request provides an equivalent or greater degree of actual monitoring to the current requirements; and
 - c. Any such request, if approved, is incorporated in the next permit modification application by the permittee.

[Regulation 18 §18.314(C), Regulation 19 §19.416(C), Regulation 26 §26.1013(C), A.C.A. §8-4-203 as referenced by §8-4-304 and §8-4-311, and 40 CFR Part 52, Subpart E]

Appendix A

Arkansas Department of Environmental Quality



CONTINUOUS EMISSION MONITORING SYSTEMS CONDITIONS

PREAMBLE

These conditions are intended to outline the requirements for facilities required to operate Continuous Emissic Monitoring Systems/Continuous Opacity Monitoring Systems (CEMS/COMS). Generally there are three types sources required to operate CEMS/COMS:

- 1. CEMS/COMS required by 40 CFR Part 60 or 63,
- 2. CEMS required by 40 CFR Part 75,
- 3. CEMS/COMS required by ADEQ permit for reasons other that Part 60, 63 or 75.

These CEMS/COMS conditions are not intended to supercede Part 60, 63 or 75 requirements.

- Only CEMS/COMS in the third category (those required by ADEQ permit for reasons other than Part 6
 63, or 75) shall comply with SECTION II, MONITORING REQUIREMENTS and SECTION PROPERTY ASSURANCE/QUALITY CONTROL.
- All CEMS/COMS shall comply with Section III, NOTIFICATION AND RECORDKEEPING.

SECTION I

DEFINITIONS

Continuous Emission Monitoring System (CEMS) - The total equipment required for the determination of a gas concentration and/or emission rate so as to include sampling, analysis and recording of emission data.

Continuous Opacity Monitoring System (COMS) - The total equipment required for the determination of opacity as to include sampling, analysis and recording of emission data.

Calibration Drift (CD) - The difference in the CEMS output reading from the established reference value after a stated period of operation during which no unscheduled maintenance, repair, or adjustments took place.

Back-up CEMS (Secondary CEMS) - A CEMS with the ability to sample, analyze and record stack pollutant to determine gas concentration and/or emission rate. This CEMS is to serve as a back-up to the primary CEMS to minimize monitor downtime.

Excess Emissions - Any period in which the emissions exceed the permit limits.

Monitor Downtime - Any period during which the CEMS/COMS is unable to sample, analyze and record a minimum of four evenly spaced data points over an hour, except during one daily zero-span check during which two data points per hour are sufficient.

Out-of-Control Period - Begins with the time corresponding to the completion of the fifth, consecutive, daily CD check with a CD in excess of two times the allowable limit, or the time corresponding to the completion of the daily CD check preceding the daily CD check that results in a CD in excess of four times the allowable limit and the time corresponding to the completion of the sampling for the RATA, RAA, or CGA which exceeds the limits outlined in Section IV. Out-of-Control Period ends with the time corresponding to the completion of the CD check following corrective action with the results being within the allowable CD limit or the completion of the sampling of the subsequent successful RATA, RAA, or CGA.

Primary CEMS - The main reporting CEMS with the ability to sample, analyze, and record stack pollutant to determine gas concentration and/or emission rate.

Relative Accuracy (RA) - The absolute mean difference between the gas concentration or emission rate determined by the CEMS and the value determined by the reference method plus the 2.5 percent error confidence coefficient of a series of tests divided by the mean of the reference method tests of the applicable emission limit.

Span Value - The upper limit of a gas concentration measurement range.

SECTION 11

MONITORING REQUIREMENTS

- A. For new sources, the installation date for the CEMS/COMS shall be no later than thirty (30) days from t date of start-up of the source.
- B. For existing sources, the installation date for the CEMS/COMS shall be no later than sixty (60) days fro the issuance of the permit unless the permit requires a specific date.
- C. Within sixty (60) days of installation of a CEMS/COMS, a performance specification test (PST) must completed. PST's are defined in 40 CFR, Part 60, Appendix B, PS 1-9. The Department may acce alternate PST's for pollutants not covered by Appendix B on a case-by-case basis. Alternate PST's shall approved, in writing, by the ADEQ CEM Coordinator prior to testing.
- D. Each CEMS/COMS shall have, as a minimum, a daily zero-span check. The zero-span shall be adjust whenever the 24-hour zero or 24-hour span drift exceeds two times the limits in the applicable performan specification in 40 CFR, Part 60, Appendix B. Before any adjustments are made to either the zero or sp drifts measured at the 24-hour interval the excess zero and span drifts measured must be quantified a recorded.
- E. All CEMS/COMS shall be in continuous operation and shall meet minimum frequency of operation requirements of 95% up-time for each quarter for each pollutant measured. Percent of monitor down-time is calculated by dividing the total minutes the monitor is not in operation by the total time in the calence quarter and multiplying by one hundred. Failure to maintain operation time shall constitute a violation of the CEMS conditions.
- F. Percent of excess emissions are calculated by dividing the total minutes of excess emissions by the total tir the source operated and multiplying by one hundred. Failure to maintain compliance may constitute violation of the CEMS conditions.
- G. All CEMS measuring emissions shall complete a minimum of one cycle of operation (sampling, analyzir and data recording) for each successive fifteen minute period unless more cycles are required by the perm For each CEMS, one-hour averages shall be computed from four or more data points equally spaced ov each one hour period unless more data points are required by the permit.
- H. All COMS shall complete a minimum of one cycle of sampling and analyzing for each successive 10-secon period and one cycle of data recording for each successive 6-minute period.
- I. When the pollutant from a single affected facility is released through more than one point, a CEMS/COM shall be installed on each point unless installation of fewer systems is approved, in writing, by the ADE CEM Coordinator. When more than one CEM/COM is used to monitor emissions from one affected facili the owner or operator shall report the results as required from each CEMS/COMS.

SECTION III

NOTIFICATION AND RECORD KEEPING

- A. When requested to do so by an owner or operator, the ADEQ CEM Coordinator will review plans for installation or modification for the purpose of providing technical advice to the owner or operator.
- B. Each facility which operates a CEMS/COMS shall notify the ADEQ CEM Coordinator of the date for which the demonstration of the CEMS/COMS performance will commence (i.e. PST, RATA, RAA, CGA). Notification shall be received in writing no less than 15 days prior to testing. Performance test results shall be submitted to the Department within thirty days after completion of testing.
- C. Each facility which operates a CEMS/COMS shall maintain records of the occurrence and duration of start up/shut down, cleaning/soot blowing, process problems, fuel problems, or other malfunction in the operation of the affected facility which causes excess emissions. This includes any malfunction of the air pollution control equipment or any period during which a continuous monitoring device/system is inoperative.
- D. Except for Part 75 CEMs, each facility required to install a CEMS/COMS shall submit an excess emission and monitoring system performance report to the Department (Attention: Air Division, CEM Coordinator) at least quarterly, unless more frequent submittals are warranted to assess the compliance status of the facility. Quarterly reports shall be postmarked no later than the 30th day of the month following the end of each calendar quarter. Part 75 CEMs shall submit this information semi-annually and as part of Title V six (6) month reporting requirement if the facility is a Title V facility.
- E. All excess emissions shall be reported in terms of the applicable standard. Each report shall be submitted on ADEQ Quarterly Excess Emission Report Forms. Alternate forms may be used with prior written approval from the Department.
- F. Each facility which operates a CEMS/COMS must maintain on site a file of CEMS/COMS data including all raw data, corrected and adjusted, repair logs, calibration checks, adjustments, and test audits. This file must be retained for a period of at least five years, and is required to be maintained in such a condition that it can easily be audited by an inspector.
- G. Except for Part 75 CEMs, quarterly reports shall be used by the Department to determine compliance with the permit. For Part 75 CEMs, the semi-annual report shall be used.

SECTION IV

QUALITY ASSURANCE/QUALITY CONTROL

- A. For each CEMS/COMS a Quality Assurance/Quality Control (QA/QC) plan shall be submitted to t Department (Attn.: Air Division, CEM Coordinator). CEMS quality assurance procedures are defined in CFR, Part 60, Appendix F. This plan shall be submitted within 180 days of the CEMS/COMS installatic A QA/QC plan shall consist of procedure and practices which assures acceptable level of monitor diaccuracy, precision, representativeness, and availability.
- B. The submitted QA/QC plan for each CEMS/COMS shall not be considered as accepted until the facili receives a written notification of acceptance from the Department.
- C. Facilities responsible for one, or more, CEMS/COMS used for compliance monitoring shall meet the minimum requirements and are encouraged to develop and implement a more extensive QA/QC program, to continue such programs where they already exist. Each QA/QC program must include written procedure which should describe in detail, complete, step-by-step procedures and operations for each of the following activities:
 - 1. Calibration of CEMS/COMS
 - a. Daily calibrations (including the approximate time(s) that the daily zero and span drifts will be checked and the time required to perform these checks and return to stable operation)
 - 2. Calibration drift determination and adjustment of CEMS/COMS
 - a. Out-of-control period determination
 - b. Steps of corrective action
 - 3. Preventive maintenance of CEMS/COMS
 - a. CEMS/COMS information .
 - 1) Manufacture
 - 2) Model number
 - 3) Serial number
 - b. Scheduled activities (check list)
 - c. Spare part inventory
 - 4. Data recording, calculations, and reporting
 - 5. Accuracy audit procedures including sampling and analysis methods
 - 6. Program of corrective action for malfunctioning CEMS/COMS
- D. A Relative Accuracy Test Audit (RATA), shall be conducted at least once every four calendar quarters. A Relative Accuracy Audit (RAA), or a Cylinder Gas Audit (CGA), may be conducted in the other three quarters but in no more than three quarters in succession. The RATA should be conducted in accordance with the applicable test procedure in 40 CFR Part 60 Appendix A and calculated in accordance with the applicable performance specification in 40 CFR Part 60 Appendix B. CGA's and RAA's should be conducted and the data calculated in accordance with the procedures outlined on 40 CFR Part 60 Appendix F.

If alternative testing procedures or methods of calculation are to be used in the RATA, RAA or CGA audits prior authorization must be obtained from the ADEQ CEM Coordinator.

E. Criteria for excessive audit inaccuracy.

	RATA
All Pollutants except Carbon Monoxide	> 20% Relative Accuracy
Carbon Monoxide	> 10% Relative Accuracy
All Pollutants except Carbon Monoxide	> 10% of the Applicable Standard
Carbon Monoxide	> 5% of the Applicable Standard
Diluent (O ₂ & CO ₂)	> 1.0 % O2 or CO2
Flow	> 20% Relative Accuracy

CGA		
Pollutant	> 15% of average audit value or 5 ppm difference	
Diluent (O ₂ & CO ₂)	> 15% of average audit value or 5 ppm difference	

	RAA
Pollutant	> 15% of the three run average or > 7.5 % of the applicable standard
Diluent (O ₂ & CO ₂)	> 15% of the three run average or > 7.5 % of the applicable standard

- F. If either the zero or span drift results exceed two times the applicable drift specification in 40 CFR, Pa 60, Appendix B for five consecutive, daily periods, the CEMS is out-of-control. If either the zero or span drift results exceed four times the applicable drift specification in Appendix B during a calibratic drift check, the CEMS is out-of-control. If the CEMS exceeds the audit inaccuracies listed above, the CEMS is out-of-control. If a CEMS is out-of-control, the data from that out-of-control period is not counted towards meeting the minimum data availability as required and described in the applicable subpart. The end of the out-of-control period is the time corresponding to the completion of the successful daily zero or span drift or completion of the successful CGA, RAA or RATA.
- G. A back-up monitor may be placed on an emission source to minimize monitor downtime. This back CEMS is subject to the same QA/QC procedure and practices as the primary CEMS. The back-up CEI shall be certified by a PST. Daily zero-span checks must be performed and recorded in accordance we standard practices. When the primary CEMS goes down, the back-up CEMS may then be engaged sample, analyze and record the emission source pollutant until repairs are made and the primary unit placed back in service. Records must be maintained on site when the back-up CEMS is placed in servit these records shall include at a minimum the reason the primary CEMS is out of service, the date and time the primary CEMS was placed back in servition.

Appendix B

Subpart Dc—Standards of Performance for Small Industrial-Commercial-Institutional Steam Generating Units

Source: 72 FR 32759, June 13, 2007, unless otherwise noted.

§ 60.40c Applicability and delegation of authority.

- (a) Except as provided in paragraphs (d), (e), (f), and (g) of this section, the affected facility to which this subpart applies is each steam generating unit for which construction, modification, or reconstruction is commenced after June 9, 1989 and that has a maximum design heat input capacity of 29 megawatts (MW) (100 million British thermal units per hour (MMBtu/hr)) or less, but greater than or equal to 2.9 MW (10 MMBtu/hr).
- (b) In delegating implementation and enforcement authority to a State under section 111(c) of the Clean Air Act, §60.48c(a)(4) shall be retained by the Administrator and not transferred to a State.
- (c) Steam generating units that meet the applicability requirements in paragraph (a) of this section are not subject to the sulfur dioxide (SO₂) or particulate matter (PM) emission limits, performance testing requirements, or monitoring requirements under this subpart (§§60.42c, 60.43c, 60.44c, 60.45c, 60.46c, or 60.47c) during periods of combustion research, as defined in §60.41c.
- (d) Any temporary change to an existing steam generating unit for the purpose of conducting combustion research is not considered a modification under §60.14.
- (e) Heat recovery steam generators that are associated with combined cycle gas turbines and meet the applicability requirements of subpart KKKK of this part are not subject to this subpart. This subpart will continue to apply to all other heat recovery steam generators that are capable of combusting more than or equal to 2.9 MW (10 MMBtu/hr) heat input of fossil fuel but less than or equal to 29 MW (100 MMBtu/hr) heat input of fossil fuel. If the heat recovery steam generator is subject to this subpart, only emissions resulting from combustion of fuels in the steam generating unit are subject to this subpart. (The gas turbine emissions are subject to subpart GG or KKKK, as applicable, of this part).
- (f) Any facility covered by subpart AAAA of this part is not subject by this subpart.
- (g) Any facility covered by an EPA approved State or Federal section 111(d)/129 plan implementing subpart BBBB of this part is not subject by this subpart.

[72 FR 32759, June 13, 2007, as amended at 74 FR 5090, Jan. 28, 2009]

§ 60.41c Definitions.

As used in this subpart, all terms not defined herein shall have the meaning given them in the Clean Air Act and in subpart A of this part.

Annual capacity factor means the ratio between the actual heat input to a steam generating unit from an individual fuel or combination of fuels during a period of 12 consecutive calendar months and the potential heat input to the steam generating unit from all fuels had the steam generating unit been operated for 8,760 hours during that 12-month period at the maximum design heat input capacity. In the case of steam generating units that are rented or leased, the actual heat input shall be determined based on the combined heat input from all operations of the affected facility during a period of 12 consecutive calendar months.

Coal means all solid fuels classified as anthracite, bituminous, subbituminous, or lignite by the American Society of Testing and Materials in ASTM D388 (incorporated by reference, see §60.17), coal refuse, and petroleum coke. Coal-derived synthetic fuels derived from coal for the purposes of creating useful heat, including but not limited to solvent refined coal, gasified coal not meeting the definition of natural gas, coal-oil mixtures, and coal-water mixtures, are also included in this definition for the purposes of this subpart.

Coal refuse means any by-product of coal mining or coal cleaning operations with an ash content greater than 50 percent (by weight) and a heating value less than 13,900 kilojoules per kilogram (kJ/kg) (6,000 Btu per pound (Btu/lb) on a dry basis.

Cogeneration steam generating unit means a steam generating unit that simultaneously produces both electrical (or mechanical) and thermal energy from the same primary energy source.

Combined cycle system means a system in which a separate source (such as a stationary gas turbine, internal combustion engine, or kiln) provides exhaust gas to a steam generating unit.

Combustion research means the experimental firing of any fuel or combination of fuels in a steam generating unit for the purpose of conducting research and development of more efficient combustion or more effective prevention or control of air pollutant emissions from combustion, provided that, during these periods of research and development, the heat generated is not used for any purpose other than preheating combustion air for use by that steam generating unit (i.e., the heat generated is released to the atmosphere without being used for space heating, process heating, driving pumps, preheating combustion air for other units, generating electricity, or any other purpose).

Conventional technology means wet flue gas desulfurization technology, dry flue gas desulfurization technology, atmospheric fluidized bed combustion technology, and oil hydrodesulfurization technology.

Distillate oil means fuel oil that complies with the specifications for fuel oil numbers 1 or 2, as defined by the American Society for Testing and Materials in ASTM D396 (incorporated by reference, see §60.17) or diesel fuel oil numbers 1 or 2, as defined by the American Society for Testing and Materials in ASTM D975 (incorporated by reference, see §60.17).

Dry flue gas desulfurization technology means a SO₂ control system that is located between the steam generating unit and the exhaust vent or stack, and that removes sulfur oxides from the combustion gases of the steam generating unit by contacting the combustion gases with an

alkaline reagent and water, whether introduced separately or as a premixed slurry or solution and forming a dry powder material. This definition includes devices where the dry powder material is subsequently converted to another form. Alkaline reagents used in dry flue gas desulfurization systems include, but are not limited to, lime and sodium compounds.

Duct burner means a device that combusts fuel and that is placed in the exhaust duct from another source (such as a stationary gas turbine, internal combustion engine, kiln, etc.) to allow the firing of additional fuel to heat the exhaust gases before the exhaust gases enter a steam generating unit.

Emerging technology means any SO₂control system that is not defined as a conventional technology under this section, and for which the owner or operator of the affected facility has received approval from the Administrator to operate as an emerging technology under §60.48c(a)(4).

Federally enforceable means all limitations and conditions that are enforceable by the Administrator, including the requirements of 40 CFR parts 60 and 61, requirements within any applicable State implementation plan, and any permit requirements established under 40 CFR 52.21 or under 40 CFR 51.18 and 51.24.

Fluidized bed combustion technology means a device wherein fuel is distributed onto a bed (or series of beds) of limestone aggregate (or other sorbent materials) for combustion; and these materials are forced upward in the device by the flow of combustion air and the gaseous products of combustion. Fluidized bed combustion technology includes, but is not limited to, bubbling bed units and circulating bed units.

Fuel pretreatment means a process that removes a portion of the sulfur in a fuel before combustion of the fuel in a steam generating unit.

Heat input means heat derived from combustion of fuel in a steam generating unit and does not include the heat derived from preheated combustion air, recirculated flue gases, or exhaust gases from other sources (such as stationary gas turbines, internal combustion engines, and kilns).

Heat transfer medium means any material that is used to transfer heat from one point to another point.

Maximum design heat input capacity means the ability of a steam generating unit to combust a stated maximum amount of fuel (or combination of fuels) on a steady state basis as determined by the physical design and characteristics of the steam generating unit.

Natural gas means:

(1) A naturally occurring mixture of hydrocarbon and nonhydrocarbon gases found in geologic formations beneath the earth's surface, of which the principal constituent is methane; or

- (2) Liquefied petroleum (LP) gas, as defined by the American Society for Testing and Materials in ASTM D1835 (incorporated by reference, see §60.17); or
- (3) A mixture of hydrocarbons that maintains a gaseous state at ISO conditions. Additionally, natural gas must either be composed of at least 70 percent methane by volume or have a gross calorific value between 34 and 43 megajoules (MJ) per dry standard cubic meter (910 and 1,150 Btu per dry standard cubic foot).

Noncontinental area means the State of Hawaii, the Virgin Islands, Guam, American Samoa, the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico, or the Northern Mariana Islands.

Oil means crude oil or petroleum, or a liquid fuel derived from crude oil or petroleum, including distillate oil and residual oil.

Potential sulfur dioxide emission rate means the theoretical SO₂emissions (nanograms per joule (ng/J) or lb/MMBtu heat input) that would result from combusting fuel in an uncleaned state and without using emission control systems.

Process heater means a device that is primarily used to heat a material to initiate or promote a chemical reaction in which the material participates as a reactant or catalyst.

Residual oil means crude oil, fuel oil that does not comply with the specifications under the definition of distillate oil, and all fuel oil numbers 4, 5, and 6, as defined by the American Society for Testing and Materials in ASTM D396 (incorporated by reference, see §60.17).

Steam generating unit means a device that combusts any fuel and produces steam or heats water or heats any heat transfer medium. This term includes any duct burner that combusts fuel and is part of a combined cycle system. This term does not include process heaters as defined in this subpart.

Steam generating unit operating day means a 24-hour period between 12:00 midnight and the following midnight during which any fuel is combusted at any time in the steam generating unit. It is not necessary for fuel to be combusted continuously for the entire 24-hour period.

Wet flue gas desulfurization technology means an SO₂ control system that is located between the steam generating unit and the exhaust vent or stack, and that removes sulfur oxides from the combustion gases of the steam generating unit by contacting the combustion gases with an alkaline slurry or solution and forming a liquid material. This definition includes devices where the liquid material is subsequently converted to another form. Alkaline reagents used in wet flue gas desulfurization systems include, but are not limited to, lime, limestone, and sodium compounds.

Wet scrubber system means any emission control device that mixes an aqueous stream or slurry with the exhaust gases from a steam generating unit to control emissions of PM or SO₂.

Wood means wood, wood residue, bark, or any derivative fuel or residue thereof, in any form, including but not limited to sawdust, sanderdust, wood chips, scraps, slabs, millings, shavings, and processed pellets made from wood or other forest residues.

[72 FR 32759, June 13, 2007, as amended at 74 FR 5090, Jan. 28, 2009]

§ 60.42c Standard for sulfur dioxide (SO2).

- (a) Except as provided in paragraphs (b), (c), and (e) of this section, on and after the date on which the performance test is completed or required to be completed under §60.8, whichever date comes first, the owner or operator of an affected facility that combusts only coal shall neither: cause to be discharged into the atmosphere from the affected facility any gases that contain SO₂in excess of 87 ng/J (0.20 lb/MMBtu) heat input or 10 percent (0.10) of the potential SO₂emission rate (90 percent reduction), nor cause to be discharged into the atmosphere from the affected facility any gases that contain SO₂in excess of 520 ng/J (1.2 lb/MMBtu) heat input. If coal is combusted with other fuels, the affected facility shall neither: cause to be discharged into the atmosphere from the affected facility any gases that contain SO₂in excess of 87 ng/J (0.20 lb/MMBtu) heat input or 10 percent (0.10) of the potential SO₂emission rate (90 percent reduction), nor cause to be discharged into the atmosphere from the affected facility any gases that contain SO₂in excess of the emission limit is determined pursuant to paragraph (e)(2) of this section.
- (b) Except as provided in paragraphs (c) and (e) of this section, on and after the date on which the performance test is completed or required to be completed under §60.8, whichever date comes first, the owner or operator of an affected facility that:
- (1) Combusts only coal refuse alone in a fluidized bed combustion steam generating unit shall neither:
- (i) Cause to be discharged into the atmosphere from that affected facility any gases that contain SO₂in excess of 87 ng/J (0.20 lb/MMBtu) heat input or 20 percent (0.20) of the potential SO₂emission rate (80 percent reduction); nor
- (ii) Cause to be discharged into the atmosphere from that affected facility any gases that contain SO_2 in excess of SO_2 in
- (2) Combusts only coal and that uses an emerging technology for the control of SO₂emissions shall neither:
- (i) Cause to be discharged into the atmosphere from that affected facility any gases that contain

- (ii) Cause to be discharged into the atmosphere from that affected facility any gases that contain SO₂in excess of 260 ng/J (0.60 lb/MMBtu) heat input. If coal is combusted with other fuels, the affected facility is subject to the 50 percent SO₂reduction requirement specified in this paragraph and the emission limit determined pursuant to paragraph (e)(2) of this section.
- (c) On and after the date on which the initial performance test is completed or required to be completed under §60.8, whichever date comes first, no owner or operator of an affected facility that combusts coal, alone or in combination with any other fuel, and is listed in paragraphs (c)(1), (2), (3), or (4) of this section shall cause to be discharged into the atmosphere from that affected facility any gases that contain SO₂in excess of the emission limit determined pursuant to paragraph (e)(2) of this section. Percent reduction requirements are not applicable to affected facilities under paragraphs (c)(1), (2), (3), or (4).
- (1) Affected facilities that have a heat input capacity of 22 MW (75 MMBtu/hr) or less.
- (2) Affected facilities that have an annual capacity for coal of 55 percent (0.55) or less and are subject to a federally enforceable requirement limiting operation of the affected facility to an annual capacity factor for coal of 55 percent (0.55) or less.
- (3) Affected facilities located in a noncontinental area.
- (4) Affected facilities that combust coal in a duct burner as part of a combined cycle system where 30 percent (0.30) or less of the heat entering the steam generating unit is from combustion of coal in the duct burner and 70 percent (0.70) or more of the heat entering the steam generating unit is from exhaust gases entering the duct burner.
- (d) On and after the date on which the initial performance test is completed or required to be completed under §60.8, whichever date comes first, no owner or operator of an affected facility that combusts oil shall cause to be discharged into the atmosphere from that affected facility any gases that contain SO₂in excess of 215 ng/J (0.50 lb/MMBtu) heat input; or, as an alternative, no owner or operator of an affected facility that combusts oil shall combust oil in the affected facility that contains greater than 0.5 weight percent sulfur. The percent reduction requirements are not applicable to affected facilities under this paragraph.
- (e) On and after the date on which the initial performance test is completed or required to be completed under §60.8, whichever date comes first, no owner or operator of an affected facility that combusts coal, oil, or coal and oil with any other fuel shall cause to be discharged into the atmosphere from that affected facility any gases that contain SO₂in excess of the following:
- (1) The percent of potential SO₂ emission rate or numerical SO₂ emission rate required under paragraph (a) or (b)(2) of this section, as applicable, for any affected facility that
- (i) Combusts coal in combination with any other fuel;
- (ii) Has a heat input capacity greater than 22 MW (75 MMBtu/hr); and

- (iii) Has an annual capacity factor for coal greater than 55 percent (0.55); and
- (2) The emission limit determined according to the following formula for any affected facility that combusts coal, oil, or coal and oil with any other fuel:

$$E_{s} = \frac{\left(K_{s}H_{s} + K_{b}H_{b} + K_{s}H_{s}\right)}{\left(H_{s} + H_{b} + H_{s}\right)}$$

Where:

E,= SO₂emission limit, expressed in ng/I or lb/MMBtu heat input;

 $K_a = 520 \text{ ng/J (1.2 lb/MMBtu)};$

 $K_b = 260 \text{ ng/J } (0.60 \text{ lb/MMBtu});$

Ke= 215 ng/J (0.50 lb/MMBtu);

H_s= Heat input from the combustion of coal, except coal combusted in an affected facility subject to paragraph (b)(2) of this section, in Joules (J) [MMBm];

 H_b = Heat input from the combustion of coal in an affected facility subject to paragraph (b)(2) of this section, in I (MMBm); and

H_e= Heat input from the combustion of oil, in I (MMBtu).

- (f) Reduction in the potential SO₂emission rate through fuel pretreatment is not credited toward the percent reduction requirement under paragraph (b)(2) of this section unless:
- (1) Fuel pretreatment results in a 50 percent (0.50) or greater reduction in the potential SO₂emission rate; and
- (2) Emissions from the pretreated fuel (without either combustion or post-combustion SO₂control) are equal to or less than the emission limits specified under paragraph (b)(2) of this section.
- (g) Except as provided in paragraph (h) of this section, compliance with the percent reduction requirements, fuel oil sulfur limits, and emission limits of this section shall be determined on a 30-day rolling average basis.
- (h) For affected facilities listed under paragraphs (h)(1), (2), or (3) of this section, compliance with the emission limits or fuel oil sulfur limits under this section may be determined based on a certification from the fuel supplier, as described under §60.48c(f), as applicable.
- (1) Distillate oil-fired affected facilities with heat input capacities between 2.9 and 29 MW (10 and 100 MMBtu/hr).

- (2) Residual oil-fired affected facilities with heat input capacities between 2.9 and 8.7 MW (10 and 30 MMBtu/hr).
- (3) Coal-fired facilities with heat input capacities between 2.9 and 8.7 MW (10 and 30 MMBtu/hr).
- (i) The SO₂emission limits, fuel oil sulfur limits, and percent reduction requirements under this section apply at all times, including periods of startup, shutdown, and malfunction.
- (j) For affected facilities located in noncontinental areas and affected facilities complying with the percent reduction standard, only the heat input supplied to the affected facility from the combustion of coal and oil is counted under this section. No credit is provided for the heat input to the affected facility from wood or other fuels or for heat derived from exhaust gases from other sources, such as stationary gas turbines, internal combustion engines, and kilns.

[72 FR 32759, June 13, 2007, as amended at 74 FR 5090, Jan. 28, 2009]

§ 60.43c Standard for particulate matter (PM).

- (a) On and after the date on which the initial performance test is completed or required to be completed under §60.8, whichever date comes first, no owner or operator of an affected facility that commenced construction, reconstruction, or modification on or before February 28, 2005, that combusts coal or combusts mixtures of coal with other fuels and has a heat input capacity of 8.7 MW (30 MMBtu/hr) or greater, shall cause to be discharged into the atmosphere from that affected facility any gases that contain PM in excess of the following emission limits:
- (1) 22 ng/J (0.051 lb/MMBtu) heat input if the affected facility combusts only coal, or combusts coal with other fuels and has an annual capacity factor for the other fuels of 10 percent (0.10) or less.
- (2) 43 ng/J (0.10 lb/MMBtu) heat input if the affected facility combusts coal with other fuels, has an annual capacity factor for the other fuels greater than 10 percent (0.10), and is subject to a federally enforceable requirement limiting operation of the affected facility to an annual capacity factor greater than 10 percent (0.10) for fuels other than coal.
- (b) On and after the date on which the initial performance test is completed or required to be completed under §60.8, whichever date comes first, no owner or operator of an affected facility that commenced construction, reconstruction, or modification on or before February 28, 2005, that combusts wood or combusts mixtures of wood with other fuels (except coal) and has a heat input capacity of 8.7 MW (30 MMBtu/hr) or greater, shall cause to be discharged into the atmosphere from that affected facility any gases that contain PM in excess of the following emissions limits:
- (1) 43 ng/J (0.10 lb/MMBtu) heat input if the affected facility has an annual capacity factor for wood greater than 30 percent (0.30); or

- (2) 130 ng/J (0.30 lb/MMBtu) heat input if the affected facility has an annual capacity factor for wood of 30 percent (0.30) or less and is subject to a federally enforceable requirement limiting operation of the affected facility to an annual capacity factor for wood of 30 percent (0.30) or less.
- (c) On and after the date on which the initial performance test is completed or required to be completed under §60.8, whichever date comes first, no owner or operator of an affected facility that can combust coal, wood, or oil and has a heat input capacity of 8.7 MW (30 MMBtu/hr) or greater shall cause to be discharged into the atmosphere from that affected facility any gases that exhibit greater than 20 percent opacity (6-minute average), except for one 6-minute period per hour of not more than 27 percent opacity. Owners and operators of an affected facility that elect to install, calibrate, maintain, and operate a continuous emissions monitoring system (CEMS) for measuring PM emissions according to the requirements of this subpart and are subject to a federally enforceable PM limit of 0.030 lb/MMBtu or less are exempt from the opacity standard specified in this paragraph.
- (d) The PM and opacity standards under this section apply at all times, except during periods of startup, shutdown, or malfunction.
- (e)(1) On and after the date on which the initial performance test is completed or is required to be completed under §60.8, whichever date comes first, no owner or operator of an affected facility that commences construction, reconstruction, or modification after February 28, 2005, and that combusts coal, oil, wood, a mixture of these fuels, or a mixture of these fuels with any other fuels and has a heat input capacity of 8.7 MW (30 MMBtu/hr) or greater shall cause to be discharged into the atmosphere from that affected facility any gases that contain PM in excess of 13 ng/J (0.030 lb/MMBtu) heat input, except as provided in paragraphs (e)(2), (e)(3), and (e)(4) of this section.
- (2) As an alternative to meeting the requirements of paragraph (e)(1) of this section, the owner or operator of an affected facility for which modification commenced after February 28, 2005, may elect to meet the requirements of this paragraph. On and after the date on which the initial performance test is completed or required to be completed under §60.8, whichever date comes first, no owner or operator of an affected facility that commences modification after February 28, 2005 shall cause to be discharged into the atmosphere from that affected facility any gases that contain PM in excess of both:
- (i) 22 ng/J (0.051 lb/MMBtu) heat input derived from the combustion of coal, oil, wood, a mixture of these fuels, or a mixture of these fuels with any other fuels; and
- (ii) 0.2 percent of the combustion concentration (99.8 percent reduction) when combusting coal, oil, wood, a mixture of these fuels, or a mixture of these fuels with any other fuels.
- (3) On and after the date on which the initial performance test is completed or is required to be completed under §60.8, whichever date comes first, no owner or operator of an affected facility

greater shall cause to be discharged into the atmosphere from that affected facility any gases that contain PM in excess of 43 ng/J (0.10 lb/MMBtu) heat input.

(4) On and after the date on which the initial performance test is completed or is required to be completed under §60.8, whichever date comes first, an owner or operator of an affected facility that commences construction, reconstruction, or modification after February 28, 2005, and that combusts only oil that contains no more than 0.50 weight percent sulfur or a mixture of 0.50 weight percent sulfur oil with other fuels not subject to a PM standard under §60.43c and not using a post-combustion technology (except a wet scrubber) to reduce PM or SO₂emissions is not subject to the PM limit in this section.

[72 FR 32759, June 13, 2007, as amended at 74 FR 5091, Jan. 28, 2009]

§ 60.44c Compliance and performance test methods and procedures for sulfur dioxide.

- (a) Except as provided in paragraphs (g) and (h) of this section and §60.8(b), performance tests required under §60.8 shall be conducted following the procedures specified in paragraphs (b), (c), (d), (e), and (f) of this section, as applicable. Section 60.8(f) does not apply to this section. The 30-day notice required in §60.8(d) applies only to the initial performance test unless otherwise specified by the Administrator.
- (b) The initial performance test required under §60.8 shall be conducted over 30 consecutive operating days of the steam generating unit. Compliance with the percent reduction requirements and SO₂emission limits under §60.42c shall be determined using a 30-day average. The first operating day included in the initial performance test shall be scheduled within 30 days after achieving the maximum production rate at which the affect facility will be operated, but not later than 180 days after the initial startup of the facility. The steam generating unit load during the 30-day period does not have to be the maximum design heat input capacity, but must be representative of future operating conditions.
- (c) After the initial performance test required under paragraph (b) of this section and §60.8, compliance with the percent reduction requirements and SO₂emission limits under §60.42c is based on the average percent reduction and the average SO₂emission rates for 30 consecutive steam generating unit operating days. A separate performance test is completed at the end of each steam generating unit operating day, and a new 30-day average percent reduction and SO₂emission rate are calculated to show compliance with the standard.
- (d) If only coal, only oil, or a mixture of coal and oil is combusted in an affected facility, the procedures in Method 19 of appendix A of this part are used to determine the hourly SO_2 emission rate (E_{bo}) and the 30-day average SO_2 emission rate (E_{bo}). The hourly averages used to compute the 30-day averages are obtained from the CEMS. Method 19 of appendix A of this part shall be used to calculate E_{ao} when using daily fuel sampling or Method 6B of appendix A of this part.
- (e) If coal, oil, or coal and oil are combusted with other fuels:

(1) An adjusted $E_{ho}(E_{ho}0)$ is used in Equation 19–19 of Method 19 of appendix A of this part to compute the adjusted $E_{ho}(E_{ho}0)$. The $E_{ho}0$ is computed using the following formula:

$$E_{b} \circ = \frac{E_{b} - E_{v}(1 - X_{1})}{X_{1}}$$

Where:

 $E_{bo}o = Adjusted E_{bo}$, ng/I (lb/MMBtu);

E_{bo}= Hourly SO₂emission rate, ng/I (lb/MMBn);

E_w= SO₂concentration in fuels other than coal and oil combusted in the affected facility, as determined by fuel sampling and analysis procedures in Method 9 of appendix A of this part, ng/I (lb/MMBtu). The value E_w for each fuel lot is used for each hourly average during the time that the lot is being combusted. The owner or operator does not have to measure E_w if the owner or operator elects to assume E_w= 0.

 X_k = Fraction of the total heat input from fuel combustion derived from coal and oil, as determined by applicable procedures in Method 19 of appendix A of this part.

- (2) The owner or operator of an affected facility that qualifies under the provisions of $\S60.42c(c)$ or (d) (where percent reduction is not required) does not have to measure the parameters E_{wor} X_{k} if the owner or operator of the affected facility elects to measure emission rates of the coal or oil using the fuel sampling and analysis procedures under Method 19 of appendix A of this part.
- (f) Affected facilities subject to the percent reduction requirements under §60.42c(a) or (b) shall determine compliance with the SO₂emission limits under §60.42c pursuant to paragraphs (d) or (e) of this section, and shall determine compliance with the percent reduction requirements using the following procedures:
- (1) If only coal is combusted, the percent of potential SO₂emission rate is computed using the following formula:

$$%P_{i} = 100 \left(1 - \frac{\%R_{f}}{100}\right) \left(1 - \frac{\%R_{f}}{100}\right)$$

Where:

%P,= Potential SO₂emission rate, in percent,

%R₂= SO₂removal efficiency of the control device as determined by Method 19 of appendix A of this part, in percent; and

%R= SO₂removal efficiency of fuel pretreatment as determined by Method 19 of appendix A of this part, in percent.

the second second second procedures remited in

(i) To compute the % P_s , an adjusted % R_g (% R_g 0) is computed from E_{ao} 0 from paragraph (e)(1) of this section and an adjusted average SO_2 inlet rate (E_{ai} 0) using the following formula:

$$%R_{r^0} = 100 \left(1 - \frac{E_{\omega}^*}{E_{\omega}^*} \right)$$

Where:

%R,o = Adjusted %R, in percent;

 $E_{\infty}o = Adjusted E_{\infty}$, ng/J (lb/MMBnı); and

Eno = Adjusted average SO2inlet rate, ng/J (1b/MMBtu).

(ii) To compute E_{ai} , an adjusted hourly SO_2 inlet rate $(E_{bi}$) is used. The E_{bi} 0 is computed using the following formula:

$$E^{HO} = \frac{E^{H} - E^{A}(1 - X^{2})}{X^{2}}$$

Where:

Ehio = Adjusted Ehi, ng/J (lb/MMBtu);

E_h= Hourly SO₂inlet rate, ng/J (lb/MMBtu);

E_w= SO₂concentration in fuels other than coal and oil combusted in the affected facility, as determined by fuel sampling and analysis procedures in Method 19 of appendix A of this part, ng/I (lb/MMBtu). The value E_w for each fuel lot is used for each hourly average during the time that the lot is being combusted. The owner or operator does not have to measure E_w if the owner or operator elects to assume E_w = 0; and

 X_k = Fraction of the total heat input from fuel combustion derived from coal and oil, as determined by applicable procedures in Method 19 of appendix A of this part.

- (g) For oil-fired affected facilities where the owner or operator seeks to demonstrate compliance with the fuel oil sulfur limits under §60.42c based on shipment fuel sampling, the initial performance test shall consist of sampling and analyzing the oil in the initial tank of oil to be fired in the steam generating unit to demonstrate that the oil contains 0.5 weight percent sulfur or less. Thereafter, the owner or operator of the affected facility shall sample the oil in the fuel tank after each new shipment of oil is received, as described under §60.46c(d)(2).
- (h) For affected facilities subject to §60.42c(h)(1), (2), or (3) where the owner or operator seeks to demonstrate compliance with the SO₂ standards based on fuel supplier certification, the performance test shall consist of the certification from the fuel supplier, as described in §60.48c(f), as applicable.
- (i) The owner or operator of an affected facility seeking to demonstrate compliance with the SO₂standards under §60.42c(c)(2) shall demonstrate the maximum design heat input capacity of

the steam generating unit by operating the steam generating unit at this capacity for 24 hours. This demonstration shall be made during the initial performance test, and a subsequent demonstration may be requested at any other time. If the demonstrated 24-hour average firing rate for the affected facility is less than the maximum design heat input capacity stated by the manufacturer of the affected facility, the demonstrated 24-hour average firing rate shall be used to determine the annual capacity factor for the affected facility; otherwise, the maximum design heat input capacity provided by the manufacturer shall be used.

(j) The owner or operator of an affected facility shall use all valid SO₂emissions data in calculating %P₅and E_{ho}under paragraphs (d), (e), or (f) of this section, as applicable, whether or not the minimum emissions data requirements under §60.46c(f) are achieved. All valid emissions data, including valid data collected during periods of startup, shutdown, and malfunction, shall be used in calculating %P₅or E_{ho}pursuant to paragraphs (d), (e), or (f) of this section, as applicable.

[72 FR 32759, June 13, 2007, as amended at 74 FR 5091, Jan. 28, 2009]

§ 60.45c Compliance and performance test methods and procedures for particulate matter.

Link to an amendment published at 76 FR 3523, Jan. 20, 2011.

- (a) The owner or operator of an affected facility subject to the PM and/or opacity standards under §60.43c shall conduct an initial performance test as required under §60.8, and shall conduct subsequent performance tests as requested by the Administrator, to determine compliance with the standards using the following procedures and reference methods, except as specified in paragraph (c) of this section.
- (1) Method 1 of appendix A of this part shall be used to select the sampling site and the number of traverse sampling points.
- (2) Method 3A or 3B of appendix A-2 of this part shall be used for gas analysis when applying Method 5 or 5B of appendix A-3 of this part or 17 of appendix A-6 of this part.
- (3) Method 5, 5B, or 17 of appendix A of this part shall be used to measure the concentration of PM as follows:
- (i) Method 5 of appendix A of this part may be used only at affected facilities without wet scrubber systems.
- (ii) Method 17 of appendix A of this part may be used at affected facilities with or without wet scrubber systems provided the stack gas temperature does not exceed a temperature of 160 °C (320 °F). The procedures of Sections 8.1 and 11.1 of Method 5B of appendix A of this part may be used in Method 17 of appendix A of this part is used in conjunction with a wet scrubber system. Method 17 of appendix A of this part shall not

- (iii) Method 5B of appendix A of this part may be used in conjunction with a wet scrubber system.
- (4) The sampling time for each run shall be at least 120 minutes and the minimum sampling volume shall be 1.7 dry standard cubic meters (dscm) [60 dry standard cubic feet (dscf)] except that smaller sampling times or volumes may be approved by the Administrator when necessitated by process variables or other factors.
- (5) For Method 5 or 5B of appendix A of this part, the temperature of the sample gas in the probe and filter holder shall be monitored and maintained at 160 ± 14 °C (320 ± 25 °F).
- (6) For determination of PM emissions, an oxygen (O₂) or carbon dioxide (CO₂) measurement shall be obtained simultaneously with each run of Method 5, 5B, or 17 of appendix A of this part by traversing the duct at the same sampling location.
- (7) For each run using Method 5, 5B, or 17 of appendix A of this part, the emission rates expressed in ng/J (lb/MMBtu) heat input shall be determined using:
- (i) The O₂or CO₂measurements and PM measurements obtained under this section, (ii) The dry basis F factor, and
- (iii) The dry basis emission rate calculation procedure contained in Method 19 of appendix A of this part.
- (8) Method 9 of appendix A-4 of this part shall be used for determining the opacity of stack emissions.
- (b) The owner or operator of an affected facility seeking to demonstrate compliance with the PM standards under §60.43c(b)(2) shall demonstrate the maximum design heat input capacity of the steam generating unit by operating the steam generating unit at this capacity for 24 hours. This demonstration shall be made during the initial performance test, and a subsequent demonstration may be requested at any other time. If the demonstrated 24-hour average firing rate for the affected facility is less than the maximum design heat input capacity stated by the manufacturer of the affected facility, the demonstrated 24-hour average firing rate shall be used to determine the annual capacity factor for the affected facility; otherwise, the maximum design heat input capacity provided by the manufacturer shall be used.
- (c) In place of PM testing with Method 5 or 5B of appendix A-3 of this part or Method 17 of appendix A-6 of this part, an owner or operator may elect to install, calibrate, maintain, and operate a CEMS for monitoring PM emissions discharged to the atmosphere and record the output of the system. The owner or operator of an affected facility who elects to continuously monitor PM emissions instead of conducting performance testing using Method 5 or 5B of appendix A-3 of this part or Method 17 of appendix A-6 of this part shall install, calibrate, maintain, and operate a CEMS and shall comply with the requirements specified in paragraphs (c)(1) through (c)(14) of this section.

- (1) Notify the Administrator 1 month before starting use of the system.
- (2) Notify the Administrator 1 month before stopping use of the system.
- (3) The monitor shall be installed, evaluated, and operated in accordance with §60.13 of subpart A of this part.
- (4) The initial performance evaluation shall be completed no later than 180 days after the date of initial startup of the affected facility, as specified under §60.8 of subpart A of this part or within 180 days of notification to the Administrator of use of CEMS if the owner or operator was previously determining compliance by Method 5, 5B, or 17 of appendix A of this part performance tests, whichever is later.
- (5) The owner or operator of an affected facility shall conduct an initial performance test for PM emissions as required under §60.8 of subpart A of this part. Compliance with the PM emission limit shall be determined by using the CEMS specified in paragraph (d) of this section to measure PM and calculating a 24-hour block arithmetic average emission concentration using EPA Reference Method 19 of appendix A of this part, section 4.1.
- (6) Compliance with the PM emission limit shall be determined based on the 24-hour daily (block) average of the hourly arithmetic average emission concentrations using CEMS outlet data.
- (7) At a minimum, valid CEMS hourly averages shall be obtained as specified in paragraph (c)(7)(i) of this section for 75 percent of the total operating hours per 30-day rolling average.
- (i) At least two data points per hour shall be used to calculate each 1-hour arithmetic average.
- (ii) [Reserved]
- (8) The 1-hour arithmetic averages required under paragraph (c)(7) of this section shall be expressed in ng/J or lb/MMBtu heat input and shall be used to calculate the boiler operating day daily arithmetic average emission concentrations. The 1-hour arithmetic averages shall be calculated using the data points required under §60.13(e)(2) of subpart A of this part.
- (9) All valid CEMS data shall be used in calculating average emission concentrations even if the minimum CEMS data requirements of paragraph (c)(7) of this section are not met.
- (10) The CEMS shall be operated according to Performance Specification 11 in appendix B of this part.
- (11) During the correlation testing runs of the CEMS required by Performance Specification 11 in appendix B of this part, PM and O₂(or CO₂) data shall be collected concurrently (or within a 30- to 60-minute period) by both the continuous emission monitors and performance tests

- (i) For PM, Method 5 or 5B of appendix A-3 of this part or Method 17 of appendix A-6 of this part shall be used; and
- (ii) After July 1, 2010 or after Method 202 of appendix M of part 51 has been revised to minimize artifact measurement and notice of that change has been published in the Federal Register, whichever is later, for condensable PM emissions, Method 202 of appendix M of part 51 shall be used; and
- (iii) For O2 (or CO₂), Method 3A or 3B of appendix A-2 of this part, as applicable shall be used.
- (12) Quarterly accuracy determinations and daily calibration drift tests shall be performed in accordance with procedure 2 in appendix F of this part. Relative Response Audit's must be performed annually and Response Correlation Audits must be performed every 3 years.
- (13) When PM emissions data are not obtained because of CEMS breakdowns, repairs, calibration checks, and zero and span adjustments, emissions data shall be obtained by using other monitoring systems as approved by the Administrator or EPA Reference Method 19 of appendix A of this part to provide, as necessary, valid emissions data for a minimum of 75 percent of total operating hours on a 30-day rolling average.
- (14) After July 1, 2011, within 90 days after the date of completing each performance evaluation required by paragraph (c)(11) of this section, the owner or operator of the affected facility must either submit the test data to EPA by successfully entering the data electronically into EPA's WebFIRE data base available at http://cfpub.epa.gov/oarweb/index.cfm?action=fire.main or mail a copy to: United States Environmental Protection Agency; Energy Strategies Group; 109 TW Alexander DR; Mail Code: D243-01; RTP, NC 27711.
- (d) The owner or operator of an affected facility seeking to demonstrate compliance under §60.43c(e)(4) shall follow the applicable procedures under §60.48c(f). For residual oil-fired affected facilities, fuel supplier certifications are only allowed for facilities with heat input capacities between 2.9 and 8.7 MW (10 to 30 MMBtu/hr).

[72 FR 32759, June 13, 2007, as amended at 74 FR 5091, Jan. 28, 2009]

§ 60.46c Emission monitoring for sulfur dioxide.

- (a) Except as provided in paragraphs (d) and (e) of this section, the owner or operator of an affected facility subject to the SO₂emission limits under §60.42c shall install, calibrate, maintain, and operate a CEMS for measuring SO₂concentrations and either O₂or CO₂concentrations at the outlet of the SO₂control device (or the outlet of the steam generating unit if no SO₂control device is used), and shall record the output of the system. The owner or operator of an affected facility subject to the percent reduction requirements under §60.42c shall measure SO₂concentrations and either O₂or CO₂concentrations at both the inlet and outlet of the SO₂control device.
- (b) The 1-hour average SO₂emission rates measured by a CEMS shall be expressed in ng/J or lb/MMBtu heat input and shall be used to calculate the average emission rates under §60.42c.

Each 1-hour average SO₂emission rate must be based on at least 30 minutes of operation, and shall be calculated using the data points required under §60.13(h)(2). Hourly SO₂emission rates are not calculated if the affected facility is operated less than 30 minutes in a 1-hour period and are not counted toward determination of a steam generating unit operating day.

- (c) The procedures under §60.13 shall be followed for installation, evaluation, and operation of the CEMS.
- (1) All CEMS shall be operated in accordance with the applicable procedures under Performance Specifications 1, 2, and 3 of appendix B of this part.
- (2) Quarterly accuracy determinations and daily calibration drift tests shall be performed in accordance with Procedure 1 of appendix F of this part.
- (3) For affected facilities subject to the percent reduction requirements under §60.42c, the span value of the SO₂CEMS at the inlet to the SO₂control device shall be 125 percent of the maximum estimated hourly potential SO₂emission rate of the fuel combusted, and the span value of the SO₂CEMS at the outlet from the SO₂control device shall be 50 percent of the maximum estimated hourly potential SO₂emission rate of the fuel combusted.
- (4) For affected facilities that are not subject to the percent reduction requirements of §60.42c, the span value of the SO₂CEMS at the outlet from the SO₂control device (or outlet of the steam generating unit if no SO₂control device is used) shall be 125 percent of the maximum estimated hourly potential SO₂emission rate of the fuel combusted.
- (d) As an alternative to operating a CEMS at the inlet to the SO₂control device (or outlet of the steam generating unit if no SO₂control device is used) as required under paragraph (a) of this section, an owner or operator may elect to determine the average SO₂emission rate by sampling the fuel prior to combustion. As an alternative to operating a CEMS at the outlet from the SO₂control device (or outlet of the steam generating unit if no SO₂control device is used) as required under paragraph (a) of this section, an owner or operator may elect to determine the average SO₂emission rate by using Method 6B of appendix A of this part. Fuel sampling shall be conducted pursuant to either paragraph (d)(1) or (d)(2) of this section. Method 6B of appendix A of this part shall be conducted pursuant to paragraph (d)(3) of this section.
- (1) For affected facilities combusting coal or oil, coal or oil samples shall be collected daily in an as-fired condition at the inlet to the steam generating unit and analyzed for sulfur content and heat content according the Method 19 of appendix A of this part. Method 19 of appendix A of this part provides procedures for converting these measurements into the format to be used in calculating the average SO₂input rate.
- (2) As an alternative fuel sampling procedure for affected facilities combusting oil, oil samples may be collected from the fuel tank for each steam generating unit immediately after the fuel tank is filled and before any oil is combusted. The owner or operator of the affected facility shall

of the fuel analysis taken after each new shipment of oil is received shall be used as the daily value when calculating the 30-day rolling average until the next shipment is received. If the fuel analysis shows that the sulfur content in the fuel tank is greater than 0.5 weight percent sulfur, the owner or operator shall ensure that the sulfur content of subsequent oil shipments is low enough to cause the 30-day rolling average sulfur content to be 0.5 weight percent sulfur or less.

- (3) Method 6B of appendix A of this part may be used in lieu of CEMS to measure SO₂at the inlet or outlet of the SO₂control system. An initial stratification test is required to verify the adequacy of the Method 6B of appendix A of this part sampling location. The stratification test shall consist of three paired runs of a suitable SO₂and CO₂measurement train operated at the candidate location and a second similar train operated according to the procedures in §3.2 and the applicable procedures in section 7 of Performance Specification 2 of appendix B of this part. Method 6B of appendix A of this part, Method 6A of appendix A of this part, or a combination of Methods 6 and 3 of appendix A of this part or Methods 6C and 3A of appendix A of this part are suitable measurement techniques. If Method 6B of appendix A of this part is used for the second train, sampling time and timer operation may be adjusted for the stratification test as long as an adequate sample volume is collected; however, both sampling trains are to be operated similarly. For the location to be adequate for Method 6B of appendix A of this part 24-hour tests, the mean of the absolute difference between the three paired runs must be less than 10 percent (0.10).
- (e) The monitoring requirements of paragraphs (a) and (d) of this section shall not apply to affected facilities subject to §60.42c(h) (1), (2), or (3) where the owner or operator of the affected facility seeks to demonstrate compliance with the SO₂standards based on fuel supplier certification, as described under §60.48c(f), as applicable.
- (f) The owner or operator of an affected facility operating a CEMS pursuant to paragraph (a) of this section, or conducting as-fired fuel sampling pursuant to paragraph (d)(1) of this section, shall obtain emission data for at least 75 percent of the operating hours in at least 22 out of 30 successive steam generating unit operating days. If this minimum data requirement is not met with a single monitoring system, the owner or operator of the affected facility shall supplement the emission data with data collected with other monitoring systems as approved by the Administrator.

§ 60.47e Emission monitoring for particulate matter.

Link to an amendment published at 76 FR 3523, Jan. 20, 2011.

(a) Except as provided in paragraphs (c), (d), (e), (f), and (g) of this section, the owner or operator of an affected facility combusting coal, oil, or wood that is subject to the opacity standards under §60.43c shall install, calibrate, maintain, and operate a continuous opacity monitoring system (COMS) for measuring the opacity of the emissions discharged to the atmosphere and record the output of the system. The owner or operator of an affected facility subject to an opacity standard in §60.43c(c) and that is not required to install a COMS due to paragraphs (c), (d), (e), or (f) of this section that elects not to install a COMS shall conduct a performance test using Method 9 of appendix A-4 of this part and the procedures in §60.11 to demonstrate compliance with the applicable limit in §60.43c and shall comply with either

paragraphs (a)(1), (a)(2), or (a)(3) of this section. If during the initial 60 minutes of observation all 6-minute averages are less than 10 percent and all individual 15-second observations are less than or equal to 20 percent, the observation period may be reduced from 3 hours to 60 minutes.

- (1) Except as provided in paragraph (a)(2) and (a)(3) of this section, the owner or operator shall conduct subsequent Method 9 of appendix A-4 of this part performance tests using the procedures in paragraph (a) of this section according to the applicable schedule in paragraphs (a)(1)(i) through (a)(1)(iv) of this section, as determined by the most recent Method 9 of appendix A-4 of this part performance test results.
- (i) If no visible emissions are observed, a subsequent Method 9 of appendix A-4 of this part performance test must be completed within 12 calendar months from the date that the most recent performance test was conducted;
- (ii) If visible emissions are observed but the maximum 6-minute average opacity is less than or equal to 5 percent, a subsequent Method 9 of appendix A-4 of this part performance test must be completed within 6 calendar months from the date that the most recent performance test was conducted;
- (iii) If the maximum 6-minute average opacity is greater than 5 percent but less than or equal to 10 percent, a subsequent Method 9 of appendix A-4 of this part performance test must be completed within 3 calendar months from the date that the most recent performance test was conducted; or
- (iv) If the maximum 6-minute average opacity is greater than 10 percent, a subsequent Method 9 of appendix A-4 of this part performance test must be completed within 30 calendar days from the date that the most recent performance test was conducted.
- (2) If the maximum 6-minute opacity is less than 10 percent during the most recent Method 9 of appendix A-4 of this part performance test, the owner or operator may, as an alternative to performing subsequent Method 9 of appendix A-4 of this part performance tests, elect to perform subsequent monitoring using Method 22 of appendix A-7 of this part according to the procedures specified in paragraphs (a)(2)(i) and (ii) of this section.
- (i) The owner or operator shall conduct 10 minute observations (during normal operation) each operating day the affected facility fires fuel for which an opacity standard is applicable using Method 22 of appendix A-7 of this part and demonstrate that the sum of the occurrences of any visible emissions is not in excess of 5 percent of the observation period (i.e., 30 seconds per 10 minute period). If the sum of the occurrence of any visible emissions is greater than 30 seconds during the initial 10 minute observation, immediately conduct a 30 minute observation. If the sum of the occurrence of visible emissions is greater than 5 percent of the observation period (i.e., 90 seconds per 30 minute period) the owner or operator shall either document and adjust the operation of the facility and demonstrate within 24 hours that the sum of the occurrence of

procedures in paragraph (a) of this section within 30 calendar days according to the requirements in \$60.45c(a)(8).

- (ii) If no visible emissions are observed for 30 operating days during which an opacity standard is applicable, observations can be reduced to once every 7 operating days during which an opacity standard is applicable. If any visible emissions are observed, daily observations shall be resumed.
- (3) If the maximum 6-minute opacity is less than 10 percent during the most recent Method 9 of appendix A-4 of this part performance test, the owner or operator may, as an alternative to performing subsequent Method 9 of appendix A-4 performance tests, elect to perform subsequent monitoring using a digital opacity compliance system according to a site-specific monitoring plan approved by the Administrator. The observations shall be similar, but not necessarily identical, to the requirements in paragraph (a)(2) of this section. For reference purposes in preparing the monitoring plan, see OAQPS "Determination of Visible Emission Opacity from Stationary Sources Using Computer-Based Photographic Analysis Systems." This document is available from the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (U.S. EPA); Office of Air Quality and Planning Standards; Sector Policies and Programs Division; Measurement Policy Group (D243-02), Research Triangle Park, NC 27711. This document is also available on the Technology Transfer Network (TTN) under Emission Measurement Center Preliminary Methods.
- (b) All COMS shall be operated in accordance with the applicable procedures under Performance Specification 1 of appendix B of this part. The span value of the opacity COMS shall be between 60 and 80 percent.
- (c) Owners and operators of an affected facilities that burn only distillate oil that contains no more than 0.5 weight percent sulfur and/or liquid or gaseous fuels with potential sulfur dioxide emission rates of 26 ng/J (0.060 lb/MMBtu) heat input or less and that do not use a post-combustion technology to reduce SO2 or PM emissions and that are subject to an opacity standard in §60.43c(c) are not required to operate a COMS if they follow the applicable procedures in §60.48c(f).
- (d) Owners or operators complying with the PM emission limit by using a PM CEMS must calibrate, maintain, operate, and record the output of the system for PM emissions discharged to the atmosphere as specified in §60.45c(c). The CEMS specified in paragraph §60.45c(c) shall be operated and data recorded during all periods of operation of the affected facility except for CEMS breakdowns and repairs. Data is recorded during calibration checks, and zero and span adjustments.
- (e) Owners and operators of an affected facility that is subject to an opacity standard in §60.43c(c) and that does not use post-combustion technology (except a wet scrubber) for reducing PM, SO₂, or carbon monoxide (CO) emissions, burns only gaseous fuels or fuel oils that contain less than or equal to 0.5 weight percent sulfur, and is operated such that emissions of CO discharged to the atmosphere from the affected facility are maintained at levels less than or equal to 0.15 lb/MMBtu on a boiler operating day average basis is not required to operate a

COMS. Owners and operators of affected facilities electing to comply with this paragraph must demonstrate compliance according to the procedures specified in paragraphs (e)(1) through (4) of this section; or

- (1) You must monitor CO emissions using a CEMS according to the procedures specified in paragraphs (e)(1)(i) through (iv) of this section.
 - (i) The CO CEMS must be installed, certified, maintained, and operated according to the provisions in §60.58b(i)(3) of subpart Eb of this part.
 - (ii) Each 1-hour CO emissions average is calculated using the data points generated by the CO CEMS expressed in parts per million by volume corrected to 3 percent oxygen (dry basis).
 - (iii) At a minimum, valid 1-hour CO emissions averages must be obtained for at least 90 percent of the operating hours on a 30-day rolling average basis. The 1-hour averages are calculated using the data points required in §60.13(h)(2).
 - (iv) Quarterly accuracy determinations and daily calibration drift tests for the CO CEMS must be performed in accordance with procedure 1 in appendix F of this part.
 - (2) You must calculate the 1-hour average CO emissions levels for each steam generating unit operating day by multiplying the average hourly CO output concentration measured by the CO CEMS times the corresponding average hourly flue gas flow rate and divided by the corresponding average hourly heat input to the affected source. The 24-hour average CO emission level is determined by calculating the arithmetic average of the hourly CO emission levels computed for each steam generating unit operating day.
 - (3) You must evaluate the preceding 24-hour average CO emission level each steam generating unit operating day excluding periods of affected source startup, shutdown, or malfunction. If the 24-hour average CO emission level is greater than 0.15 lb/MMBtu, you must initiate investigation of the relevant equipment and control systems within 24 hours of the first discovery of the high emission incident and, take the appropriate corrective action as soon as practicable to adjust control settings or repair equipment to reduce the 24-hour average CO emission level to 0.15 lb/MMBtu or less.
 - (4) You must record the CO measurements and calculations performed according to paragraph (e) of this section and any corrective actions taken. The record of corrective action taken must include the date and time during which the 24-hour average CO emission level was greater than 0.15 lb/MMBtu, and the date, time, and description of the corrective action.
- (f) Owners and operators of an affected facility that is subject to an opacity standard in §60.43c(c) and that uses a bag leak detection system to monitor the performance of a fabric filter (baghouse) according to the most recent requirements in section §60.48Da of this part is not

(g) Owners and operators of an affected facility that is subject to an opacity standard in §60.43c(c) and that burns only gaseous fuels or fuel oils that contain less than or equal to 0.5 weight percent sulfur and operates according to a written site-specific monitoring plan approved by the permitting authority is not required to operate a COMS. This monitoring plan must include procedures and criteria for establishing and monitoring specific parameters for the affected facility indicative of compliance with the opacity standard.

[72 FR 32759, June 13, 2007, as amended at 74 FR 5091, Jan. 28, 2009]

- § 60.48c Reporting and recordkeeping requirements.
- (a) The owner or operator of each affected facility shall submit notification of the date of construction or reconstruction and actual startup, as provided by §60.7 of this part. This notification shall include:
- (1) The design heat input capacity of the affected facility and identification of fuels to be combusted in the affected facility.
- (2) If applicable, a copy of any federally enforceable requirement that limits the annual capacity factor for any fuel or mixture of fuels under §60.42c, or §60.43c.
- (3) The annual capacity factor at which the owner or operator anticipates operating the affected facility based on all fuels fired and based on each individual fuel fired.
- (4) Notification if an emerging technology will be used for controlling SO₂emissions. The Administrator will examine the description of the control device and will determine whether the technology qualifies as an emerging technology. In making this determination, the Administrator may require the owner or operator of the affected facility to submit additional information concerning the control device. The affected facility is subject to the provisions of §60.42c(a) or (b)(1), unless and until this determination is made by the Administrator.
- (b) The owner or operator of each affected facility subject to the SO2emission limits of §60.42c, or the PM or opacity limits of §60.43c, shall submit to the Administrator the performance test data from the initial and any subsequent performance tests and, if applicable, the performance evaluation of the CEMS and/or COMS using the applicable performance specifications in appendix B of this part.
- (c) In addition to the applicable requirements in §60.7, the owner or operator of an affected facility subject to the opacity limits in §60.43c(c) shall submit excess emission reports for any excess emissions from the affected facility that occur during the reporting period and maintain records according to the requirements specified in paragraphs (c)(1) through (3) of this section, as applicable to the visible emissions monitoring method used.
- (1) For each performance test conducted using Method 9 of appendix A-4 of this part, the owner or operator shall keep the records including the information specified in paragraphs (c)(1)(i) through (iii) of this section.

- (i) Dates and time intervals of all opacity observation periods;
- (ii) Name, affiliation, and copy of current visible emission reading certification for each visible emission observer participating in the performance test; and
- (iii) Copies of all visible emission observer opacity field data sheets;
- (2) For each performance test conducted using Method 22 of appendix A-4 of this part, the owner or operator shall keep the records including the information specified in paragraphs (c)(2)(i) through (iv) of this section.
- (i) Dates and time intervals of all visible emissions observation periods;
- (ii) Name and affiliation for each visible emission observer participating in the performance test;
- (iii) Copies of all visible emission observer opacity field data sheets; and
- (iv) Documentation of any adjustments made and the time the adjustments were completed to the affected facility operation by the owner or operator to demonstrate compliance with the applicable monitoring requirements.
- (3) For each digital opacity compliance system, the owner or operator shall maintain records and submit reports according to the requirements specified in the site-specific monitoring plan approved by the Administrator
- (d) The owner or operator of each affected facility subject to the SO₂emission limits, fuel oil sulfur limits, or percent reduction requirements under §60.42c shall submit reports to the Administrator.
- (e) The owner or operator of each affected facility subject to the SO₂emission limits, fuel oil sulfur limits, or percent reduction requirements under §60.42c shall keep records and submit reports as required under paragraph (d) of this section, including the following information, as applicable.
- (1) Calendar dates covered in the reporting period.
- (2) Each 30-day average SO₂emission rate (ng/J or lb/MMBtu), or 30-day average sulfur content (weight percent), calculated during the reporting period, ending with the last 30-day period; reasons for any noncompliance with the emission standards; and a description of corrective actions taken.
- (3) Each 30-day average percent of potential SO₂emission rate calculated during the reporting period, ending with the last 30-day period; reasons for any noncompliance with the emission standards; and a description of the corrective actions taken.

- (4) Identification of any steam generating unit operating days for which SO₂ or diluent (O₂ or CO₂) data have not been obtained by an approved method for at least 75 percent of the operating hours; justification for not obtaining sufficient data; and a description of corrective actions taken.
- (5) Identification of any times when emissions data have been excluded from the calculation of average emission rates; justification for excluding data; and a description of corrective actions taken if data have been excluded for periods other than those during which coal or oil were not combusted in the steam generating unit.
- (6) Identification of the F factor used in calculations, method of determination, and type of fuel combusted.
- (7) Identification of whether averages have been obtained based on CEMS rather than manual sampling methods.
- (8) If a CEMS is used, identification of any times when the pollutant concentration exceeded the full span of the CEMS.
- (9) If a CEMS is used, description of any modifications to the CEMS that could affect the ability of the CEMS to comply with Performance Specifications 2 or 3 of appendix B of this part.
- (10) If a CEMS is used, results of daily CEMS drift tests and quarterly accuracy assessments as required under appendix F, Procedure 1 of this part.
- (11) If fuel supplier certification is used to demonstrate compliance, records of fuel supplier certification as described under paragraph (f)(1), (2), (3), or (4) of this section, as applicable. In addition to records of fuel supplier certifications, the report shall include a certified statement signed by the owner or operator of the affected facility that the records of fuel supplier certifications submitted represent all of the fuel combusted during the reporting period.
- (f) Fuel supplier certification shall include the following information:
- (1) For distillate oil:
- (i) The name of the oil supplier;
- (ii) A statement from the oil supplier that the oil complies with the specifications under the definition of distillate oil in §60.41c; and
- (iii) The sulfur content or maximum sulfur content of the oil.
- (2) For residual oil:
- (i) The name of the oil supplier;

- (ii) The location of the oil when the sample was drawn for analysis to determine the sulfur content of the oil, specifically including whether the oil was sampled as delivered to the affected facility, or whether the sample was drawn from oil in storage at the oil supplier's or oil refiner's facility, or other location:
- (iii) The sulfur content of the oil from which the shipment came (or of the shipment itself); and
- (iv) The method used to determine the sulfur content of the oil.
- (3) For coal:
- (i) The name of the coal supplier;
- (ii) The location of the coal when the sample was collected for analysis to determine the properties of the coal, specifically including whether the coal was sampled as delivered to the affected facility or whether the sample was collected from coal in storage at the mine, at a coal preparation plant, at a coal supplier's facility, or at another location. The certification shall include the name of the coal mine (and coal seam), coal storage facility, or coal preparation plant (where the sample was collected);
- (iii) The results of the analysis of the coal from which the shipment came (or of the shipment itself) including the sulfur content, moisture content, ash content, and heat content; and
- (iv) The methods used to determine the properties of the coal.
- (4) For other fuels:
- (i) The name of the supplier of the fuel;
- (ii) The potential sulfur emissions rate or maximum potential sulfur emissions rate of the fuel in ng/J heat input; and
- (iii) The method used to determine the potential sulfur emissions rate of the fuel.
- (g)(1) Except as provided under paragraphs (g)(2) and (g)(3) of this section, the owner or operator of each affected facility shall record and maintain records of the amount of each fuel combusted during each operating day.
- (2) As an alternative to meeting the requirements of paragraph (g)(1) of this section, the owner or operator of an affected facility that combusts only natural gas, wood, fuels using fuel certification in §60.48c(f) to demonstrate compliance with the SO₂standard, fuels not subject to an emissions standard (excluding opacity), or a mixture of these fuels may elect to record and maintain records of the amount of each fuel combusted during each calendar month.

unit where the only fuels combusted in any steam generating unit (including steam generating units not subject to this subpart) at that property are natural gas, wood, distillate oil meeting the most current requirements in §60.42C to use fuel certification to demonstrate compliance with the SO₂standard, and/or fuels, excluding coal and residual oil, not subject to an emissions standard (excluding opacity) may elect to record and maintain records of the total amount of each steam generating unit fuel delivered to that property during each calendar month.

- (h) The owner or operator of each affected facility subject to a federally enforceable requirement limiting the annual capacity factor for any fuel or mixture of fuels under §60.42c or §60.43c shall calculate the annual capacity factor individually for each fuel combusted. The annual capacity factor is determined on a 12-month rolling average basis with a new annual capacity factor calculated at the end of the calendar month.
- (i) All records required under this section shall be maintained by the owner or operator of the affected facility for a period of two years following the date of such record.
- (j) The reporting period for the reports required under this subpart is each six-month period. All reports shall be submitted to the Administrator and shall be postmarked by the 30th day following the end of the reporting period.

[72 FR 32759, June 13, 2007, as amended at 74 FR 5091, Jan. 28, 2009]

Appendix C

Subpart AAa—Standards of Performance for Steel Plants: Electric Arc Furnaces and Argon-Oxygen Decarburization Vessels Constructed After August 17, 1983

Source: 49 FR 43845, Oct. 31, 1984, unless otherwise noted.

§ 60.270a Applicability and designation of affected facility.

- (a) The provisions of this subpart are applicable to the following affected facilities in steel plants that produce carbon, alloy, or specialty steels: electric arc furnaces, argon-oxygen decarburization vessels, and dust-handling systems.
- (b) The provisions of this subpart apply to each affected facility identified in paragraph (a) of this section that commences construction, modification, or reconstruction after August 17, 1983.

§ 60.271a Definitions.

As used in this subpart, all terms not defined herein shall have the meaning given them in the Act and in subpart A of this part.

Argon-oxygen decarburization vessel (AOD vessel) means any closed-bottom, refractory-lined converter vessel with submerged tuyeres through which gaseous mixtures containing argon and oxygen or nitrogen may be blown into molten steel for further refining.

Bag leak detection system means a system that is capable of continuously monitoring relative particulate matter (dust) loadings in the exhaust of a baghouse to detect bag leaks and other conditions that result in increases in particulate loadings. A bag leak detection system includes, but is not limited to, an instrument that operates on triboelectric, electrodynamic, light scattering, light transmittance, or other effect to continuously monitor relative particulate matter loadings.

Capture system means the equipment (including ducts, hoods, fans, dampers, etc.) used to capture or transport particulate matter generated by an electric arc furnace or AOD vessel to the air pollution control device.

Charge means the addition of iron and steel scrap or other materials into the top of an electric arc furnace or the addition of molten steel or other materials into the top of an AOD vessel.

Control device means the air pollution control equipment used to remove particulate matter from the effluent gas stream generated by an electric arc furnace or AOD vessel.

Direct-shell evacuation control system (DEC system) means a system that maintains a negative pressure within the electric arc furnace above the slag or metal and ducts emissions to the control device.

Dust-handling system means equipment used to handle particulate matter collected by the control device for an electric arc firmace or AOD vessel subject to this subpart. For the purposes of this subpart, the dust-handling system shall consist of the control device dust hoppers, the dust-conveying equipment, any central dust storage equipment, the dust-treating equipment (e.g., oug

mill, pelletizer), dust transfer equipment (from storage to truck), and any secondary control devices used with the dust transfer equipment.

Electric arc furnace (EAF) means a furnace that produces molten steel and heats the charge materials with electric arcs from carbon electrodes. For the purposes of this subpart, an EAF shall consist of the furnace shell and roof and the transformer. Furnaces that continuously feed direct-reduced iron ore pellets as the primary source of iron are not affected facilities within the scope of this definition.

Heat cycle means the period beginning when scrap is charged to an empty EAF and ending when the EAF tap is completed or beginning when molten steel is charged to an empty AOD vessel and ending when the AOD vessel tap is completed.

Meltdown and refining period means the time period commencing at the termination of the initial charging period and ending at the initiation of the tapping period, excluding any intermediate charging periods and times when power to the EAF is off.

Melting means that phase of steel production cycle during which the iron and steel scrap is heated to the molten state.

Negative-pressure fabric filter means a fabric filter with the fans on the downstream side of the filter bags.

Positive-pressure fabric filter means a fabric filter with the fans on the upstream side of the filter bags.

Refining means that phase of the steel production cycle during which undesirable elements are removed from the molten steel and alloys are added to reach the final metal chemistry.

Shop means the building which houses one or more EAF's or AOD vessels.

Shop opacity means the arithmetic average of 24 observations of the opacity of emissions from the shop taken in accordance with Method 9 of appendix A of this part.

Tap means the pouring of molten steel from an EAF or AOD vessel.

Tapping period means the time period commencing at the moment an EAF begins to pour molten steel and ending either three minutes after steel ceases to flow from an EAF, or six minutes after steel begins to flow, whichever is longer.

[49 FR 43845, Oct. 31, 1984, as amended at 64 FR 10110, Mar. 2, 1999; 70 FR 8532, Feb. 22, 2005]

§ 60,272a Standard for particulate matter.

- (a) On and after the date of which the performance test required to be conducted by §60.8 is completed, no owner or operator subject to the provisions of this subpart shall cause to be discharged into the atmosphere from an EAF or an AOD vessel any gases which:
- (1) Exit from a control device and contain particulate matter in excess of 12 mg/dscm (0.0052 gr/dscf);
- (2) Exit from a control device and exhibit 3 percent opacity or greater; and
- (3) Exit from a shop and, due solely to the operations of any affected EAF(s) or AOD vessel(s), exhibit 6 percent opacity or greater.
- (b) On and after the date on which the performance test required to be conducted by §60.8 is completed, no owner or operator subject to the provisions of this subpart shall cause to be discharged into the atmosphere from the dust-handling system any gases that exhibit 10 percent opacity or greater.

§ 60.273a Emission monitoring.

- (a) Except as provided under paragraphs (b) and (c) of this section, a continuous monitoring system for the measurement of the opacity of emissions discharged into the atmosphere from the control device(s) shall be installed, calibrated, maintained, and operated by the owner or operator subject to the provisions of this subpart.
- (b) No continuous monitoring system shall be required on any control device serving the dust-handling system.
- (c) A continuous monitoring system for the measurement of the opacity of emissions discharged into the atmosphere from the control device(s) is not required on any modular, multi-stack, negative-pressure or positive-pressure fabric filter if observations of the opacity of the visible emissions from the control device are performed by a certified visible emission observer; or on any single-stack fabric filter if visible emissions from the control device are performed by a certified visible emission observer and the owner installs and continuously operates a bag leak detection system according to paragraph (e) of this section. Visible emission observations shall be conducted at least once per day for at least three 6-minute periods when the furnace is operating in the melting and refining period. All visible emissions observations shall be conducted in accordance with Method 9. If visible emissions occur from more than one point, the opacity shall be recorded for any points where visible emissions are observed. Where it is possible to determine that a number of visible emission sites relate to only one incident of the visible emission, only one set of three 6-minute observations will be required. In that case, the Method 9 observations must be made for the site of highest opacity that directly relates to the cause (or location) of visible emissions observed during a single incident. Records shall be. maintained of any 6-minute average that is in excess of the emission limit specified in §60.272a(a).

- (d) A furnace static pressure monitoring device is not required on any EAF equipped with a DEC system if observations of shop opacity are performed by a certified visible emission observer as follows: Shop opacity observations shall be conducted at least once per day when the furnace is operating in the meltdown and refining period. Shop opacity shall be determined as the arithmetic average of 24 consecutive 15-second opacity observations of emissions from the shop taken in accordance with Method 9. Shop opacity shall be recorded for any point(s) where visible emissions are observed. Where it is possible to determine that a number of visible emission sites relate to only one incident of visible emissions, only one observation of shop opacity will be required. In this case, the shop opacity observations must be made for the site of highest opacity that directly relates to the cause (or location) of visible emissions observed during a single incident.
- (e) A bag leak detection system must be installed and continuously operated on all single-stack fabric filters if the owner or operator elects not to install and operate a continuous opacity monitoring system as provided for under paragraph (c) of this section. In addition, the owner or operator shall meet the visible emissions observation requirements in paragraph (c) of this section. The bag leak detection system must meet the specifications and requirements of paragraphs (e)(1) through (8) of this section.
- (1) The bag leak detection system must be certified by the manufacturer to be capable of detecting particulate matter emissions at concentrations of 1 milligram per actual cubic meter (0.00044 grains per actual cubic foot) or less.
- (2) The bag leak detection system sensor must provide output of relative particulate matter loadings and the owner or operator shall continuously record the output from the bag leak detection system using electronic or other means (e.g., using a strip chart recorder or a data logger.)
- (3) The bag leak detection system must be equipped with an alarm system that will sound when an increase in relative particulate loading is detected over the alarm set point established according to paragraph (e)(4) of this section, and the alarm must be located such that it can be heard by the appropriate plant personnel.
- (4) For each bag leak detection system required by paragraph (e) of this section, the owner or operator shall develop and submit to the Administrator or delegated authority, for approval, a site-specific monitoring plan that addresses the items identified in paragraphs (i) through (v) of this paragraph (e)(4). For each bag leak detection system that operates based on the triboelectric effect, the monitoring plan shall be consistent with the recommendations contained in the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency guidance document "Fabric Filter Bag Leak Detection Guidance" (EPA-454/R-98-015). The owner or operator shall operate and maintain the bag leak detection system according to the site-specific monitoring plan at all times. The plan shall describe the following:
- (i) Installation of the bag leak detection system;

- (ii) Initial and periodic adjustment of the bag leak detection system including how the alarm setpoint will be established;
- (iii) Operation of the bag leak detection system including quality assurance procedures;
- (iv) How the bag leak detection system will be maintained including a routine maintenance schedule and spare parts inventory list; and
- (v) How the bag leak detection system output shall be recorded and stored.
- (5) The initial adjustment of the system shall, at a minimum, consist of establishing the baseline output by adjusting the sensitivity (range) and the averaging period of the device, and establishing the alarm set points and the alarm delay time (if applicable).
- (6) Following initial adjustment, the owner or operator shall not adjust the averaging period, alarm set point, or alarm delay time without approval from the Administrator or delegated authority except as provided for in paragraphs (e)(6)(i) and (ii) of this section.
- (i) Once per quarter, the owner or operator may adjust the sensitivity of the bag leak detection system to account for seasonal effects including temperature and humidity according to the procedures identified in the site-specific monitoring plan required under paragraphs (e)(4) of this section.
- (ii) If opacities greater than zero percent are observed over four consecutive 15-second observations during the daily opacity observations required under paragraph (c) of this section and the alarm on the bag leak detection system does not sound, the owner or operator shall lower the alarm set point on the bag leak detection system to a point where the alarm would have sounded during the period when the opacity observations were made.
- (7) For negative pressure, induced air baghouses, and positive pressure baghouses that are discharged to the atmosphere through a stack, the bag leak detection sensor must be installed downstream of the baghouse and upstream of any wet scrubber.
- (8) Where multiple detectors are required, the system's instrumentation and alarm may be shared among detectors.
- (f) For each bag leak detection system installed according to paragraph (e) of this section, the owner or operator shall initiate procedures to determine the cause of all alarms within 1 hour of an alarm. Except as provided for under paragraph (g) of this section, the cause of the alarm must be alleviated within 3 hours of the time the alarm occurred by taking whatever corrective action(s) are necessary. Corrective actions may include, but are not limited to, the following:
- (1) Inspecting the baghouse for air leaks, tom or broken bags or filter media, or any other condition that may cause an increase in particulate emissions;
- (2) Sealing off defective bags or filter media;

- (3) Replacing defective bags or filter media or otherwise repairing the control device;
- (4) Sealing off a defective baghouse compartment;
- (5) Cleaning the bag leak detection system probe or otherwise repairing the bag leak detection system; and
- (6) Shutting down the process producing the particulate emissions.
- (g) In approving the site-specific monitoring plan required in paragraph (e)(4) of this section, the Administrator or delegated authority may allow owners or operators more than 3 hours to alleviate specific conditions that cause an alarm if the owner or operator identifies the condition that could lead to an alarm in the monitoring plan, adequately explains why it is not feasible to alleviate the condition within 3 hours of the time the alarm occurred, and demonstrates that the requested additional time will ensure alleviation of the condition as expeditiously as practicable.

[49 FR 43845, Oct. 31, 1984, as amended at 54 FR 6672, Feb. 14, 1989; 64 FR 10111, Mar. 2, 1999; 70 FR 8532, Feb. 22, 2005]

§ 60.274a Monitoring of operations.

- (a) The owner or operator subject to the provisions of this subpart shall maintain records of the following information:
- (1) All data obtained under paragraph (b) of this section; and
- (2) All monthly operational status inspections performed under paragraph (c) of this section.
- (b) Except as provided under paragraph (e) of this section, the owner or operator subject to the provisions of this subpart shall check and record on a once-per-shift basis the furnace static pressure (if DEC system is in use, and a furnace static pressure gauge is installed according to paragraph (f) of this section) and either: check and record the control system fan motor amperes and damper position on a once-per-shift basis; install, calibrate, and maintain a monitoring device that continuously records the volumetric flow rate through each separately ducted hood; or install, calibrate, and maintain a monitoring device that continuously records the volumetric flow rate at the control device inlet and check and record damper positions on a once-per-shift basis. The monitoring device(s) may be installed in any appropriate location in the exhaust duct such that reproducible flow rate monitoring will result. The flow rate monitoring device(s) shall have an accuracy of ±10 percent over its normal operating range and shall be calibrated according to the manufacturer's instructions. The Administrator may require the owner or operator to demonstrate the accuracy of the monitoring device(s) relative to Methods 1 and 2 of appendix A of this part.
- (c) When the owner or operator of an affected facility is required to demonstrate compliance with the standards under §60.272a(a)(3) and at any other time that the Administrator may require (under section 114 of the CAA, as amended) either: the control system fan motor amperes and all

damper positions, the volumetric flow rate through each separately ducted hood, or the volumetric flow rate at the control device inlet and all damper positions shall be determined during all periods in which a hood is operated for the purpose of capturing emissions from the affected facility subject to paragraph (b) of this section. The owner or operator may petition the Administrator for reestablishment of these parameters whenever the owner or operator can demonstrate to the Administrator's satisfaction that the affected facility operating conditions upon which the parameters were previously established are no longer applicable. The values of these parameters as determined during the most recent demonstration of compliance shall be maintained at the appropriate level for each applicable period. Operation at other than baseline values may be subject to the requirements of §60.276a(c).

- (d) Except as provided under paragraph (e) of this section, the owner or operator shall perform monthly operational status inspections of the equipment that is important to the performance of the total capture system (i.e., pressure sensors, dampers, and damper switches). This inspection shall include observations of the physical appearance of the equipment (e.g., presence of holes in ductwork or hoods, flow constrictions caused by dents or accumulated dust in ductwork, and fan erosion). Any deficiencies shall be noted and proper maintenance performed.
- (e) The owner or operator may petition the Administrator to approve any alternative to either the monitoring requirements specified in paragraph (b) of this section or the monthly operational status inspections specified in paragraph (d) of this section if the alternative will provide a continuous record of operation of each emission capture system.
- (f) Except as provided for under §60.273a(d), if emissions during any phase of the heat time are controlled by the use of a DEC system, the owner or operator shall install, calibrate, and maintain a monitoring device that allows the pressure in the free space inside the EAF to be monitored. The pressure shall be recorded as 15-minute integrated averages. The monitoring device may be installed in any appropriate location in the EAF or DEC duct prior to the introduction of ambient air such that reproducible results will be obtained. The pressure monitoring device shall have an accuracy of ±5 mm of water gauge over its normal operating range and shall be calibrated according to the manufacturer's instructions.
- (g) Except as provided for under §60.273a(d), when the owner or operator of an EAF controlled by a DEC is required to demonstrate compliance with the standard under §60.272a(a)(3), and at any other time the Administrator may require (under section 114 of the Clean Air Act, as amended), the pressure in the free space inside the furnace shall be determined during the meltdown and refining period(s) using the monitoring device required under paragraph (f) of this section. The owner or operator may petition the Administrator for reestablishment of the pressure whenever the owner or operator can demonstrate to the Administrator's satisfaction that the EAF operating conditions upon which the pressures were previously established are no longer applicable. The pressure determined during the most recent demonstration of compliance shall be maintained at all times when the EAF is operating in a meltdown and refining period. Operation at higher pressures may be considered by the Administrator to be unacceptable operation and maintenance of the affected facility.

- (h) During any performance test required under §60.8, and for any report thereof required by §60.276a(f) of this subpart, or to determine compliance with §60.272a(a)(3) of this subpart, the owner or operator shall monitor the following information for all heats covered by the test:
- (1) Charge weights and materials, and tap weights and materials;
- (2) Heat times, including start and stop times, and a log of process operation, including periods of no operation during testing and the pressure inside an EAF when direct-shell evacuation control systems are used;
- (3) Control device operation log; and
- (4) Continuous opacity monitor or Method 9 data.

[49 FR 43845, Oct. 31, 1984, as amended at 64 FR 10111, Mar. 2, 1999; 65 FR 61758, Oct. 17, 2000; 70 FR 8533, Feb. 22, 2005]

§ 60.275a Test methods and procedures.

- (a) During performance tests required in §60.8, the owner or operator shall not add gaseous diluents to the effluent gas stream after the fabric in any pressurized fabric filter collector, unless the amount of dilution is separately determined and considered in the determination of emissions.
- (b) When emissions from any EAF(s) or AOD vessel(s) are combined with emissions from facilities not subject to the provisions of this subpart but controlled by a common capture system and control device, the owner or operator shall use either or both of the following procedures during a performance test (see also §60.276a(e)):
- (1) Determine compliance using the combined emissions.
- (2) Use a method that is acceptable to the Administrator and that compensates for the emissions from the facilities not subject to the provisions of this subpart.
- (c) When emission from any EAF(s) or AOD vessel(s) are combined with emissions from facilities not subject to the provisions of this subpart, the owner or operator shall demonstrate compliance with §60.272(a)(3) based on emissions from only the affected facility(ies).
- (d) In conducting the performance tests required in §60.8, the owner or operator shall use as reference methods and procedures the test methods in appendix A of this part or other methods and procedures as specified in this section, except as provided in §60.8(b).
- (e) The owner or operator shall determine compliance with the particulate matter standards in §60.272a as follows:
- (1) Method 5 shall be used for negative-pressure fabric filters and other types of control devices and Method 5D shall be used for positive-pressure fabric filters to determine the particulate

matter concentration and volumetric flow rate of the effluent gas. The sampling time and sample volume for each run shall be at least 4 hours and 4.50 dscm (160 dscf) and, when a single EAF or AOD vessel is sampled, the sampling time shall include an integral number of heats.

(2) When more than one control device serves the EAF(s) being tested, the concentration of particulate matter shall be determined using the following equation:

$$c_{xt} = \left[\sum_{i=1}^{n} \left(c_{xi} Q_{xit}\right)\right] \sum_{i=1}^{n} Q_{xit}$$

where:

c_n=average concentration of particulate matter, mg/dscm (gr/dscf).

c,=concentration of particulate matter from control device "i", mg/dscm (gr/dscf).

n=total number of control devices tested.

Q_{sdi}=volumetric flow rate of stack gas from control device "i", dscm/hr (dscf/hr).

- (3) Method 9 and the procedures of §60.11 shall be used to determine opacity.
- (4) To demonstrate compliance with §60.272a(a) (1), (2), and (3), the Method 9 test runs shall be conducted concurrently with the particulate matter test runs, unless inclement weather interferes.
- (f) To comply with §60.274a (c), (f), (g), and (h), the owner or operator shall obtain the information required in these paragraphs during the particulate matter runs.
- (g) Any control device subject to the provisions of the subpart shall be designed and constructed to allow measurement of emissions using applicable test methods and procedures.
- (h) Where emissions from any EAF(s) or AOD vessel(s) are combined with emissions from facilities not subject to the provisions of this subpart but controlled by a common capture system and control device, the owner or operator may use any of the following procedures during a performance test:
- (1) Base compliance on control of the combined emissions;
- (2) Utilize a method acceptable to the Administrator that compensates for the emissions from the facilities not subject to the provisions of this subpart, or;
- (3) Any combination of the criteria of paragraphs (h)(1) and (h)(2) of this section.
- (i) Where emissions from any EAF(s) or AOD vessel(s) are combined with emissions from facilities not subject to the provisions of this subpart, determinations of compliance with §60.272a(a)(3) will only be based upon emissions originating from the affected facility(ies).

(j) Unless the presence of inclement weather makes concurrent testing infeasible, the owner or operator shall conduct concurrently the performance tests required under §60.8 to demonstrate compliance with §60.272a(a) (1), (2), and (3) of this subpart.

[49 FR 43845, Oct. 31, 1984, as amended at 54 FR 6673, Feb. 14, 1989; 54 FR 21344, May 17, 1989; 65 FR 61758, Oct. 17, 2000]

§ 60.276a Recordkeeping and reporting requirements.

- (a) Records of the measurements required in §60.274a must be retained for at least 2 years following the date of the measurement.
- (b) Each owner or operator shall submit a written report of exceedances of the control device opacity to the Administrator semi-annually. For the purposes of these reports, exceedances are defined as all 6-minute periods during which the average opacity is 3 percent or greater.
- (c) Operation at a furnace static pressure that exceeds the value established under §60.274a(g) and either operation of control system fan motor amperes at values exceeding ±15 percent of the value established under §60.274a(c) or operation at flow rates lower than those established under §60.274a(c) may be considered by the Administrator to be unacceptable operation and maintenance of the affected facility. Operation at such values shall be reported to the Administrator semiannually.
- (d) The requirements of this section remain in force until and unless EPA, in delegating enforcement authority to a State under section 111(c) of the Act, approves reporting requirements or an alternative means of compliance surveillance adopted by such State. In that event, affected sources within the State will be relieved of the obligation to comply with this section, provided that they comply with the requirements established by the State.
- (e) When the owner or operator of an EAF or AOD is required to demonstrate compliance with the standard under §60.275 (b)(2) or a combination of (b)(1) and (b)(2) the owner or operator shall obtain approval from the Administrator of the procedure(s) that will be used to determine compliance. Notification of the procedure(s) to be used must be postmarked at least 30 days prior to the performance test.
- (f) For the purpose of this subpart, the owner or operator shall conduct the demonstration of compliance with §60.272a(a) of this subpart and furnish the Administrator a written report of the results of the test. This report shall include the following information:
- (1) Facility name and address;
- (2) Plant representative;
- (3) Make and model of process, control device, and continuous monitoring equipment;

(4) Flow diagram of process and emission capture equipment including other equipment or process(es) ducted to the same control device; (5) Rated (design) capacity of process equipment; (6) Those data required under §60.274a(h) of this subpart; (i) List of charge and tap weights and materials; (ii) Heat times and process log; (iii) Control device operation log; and (iv) Continuous opacity monitor or Method 9 data. (7) Test dates and test times; (8) Test company; (9) Test company representative; (10) Test observers from outside agency; (11) Description of test methodology used, including any deviation from standard reference methods; (12) Schematic of sampling location; (13) Number of sampling points; (14) Description of sampling equipment; (15) Listing of sampling equipment calibrations and procedures; (16) Field and laboratory data sheets; (17) Description of sample recovery procedures; (18) Sampling equipment leak check results; (19) Description of quality assurance procedures;

(20) Description of analytical procedures;

(21) Notation of sample blank corrections; and

- (22) Sample emission calculations.
- (g) The owner or operator shall maintain records of all shop opacity observations made in accordance with §60.273a(d). All shop opacity observations in excess of the emission limit specified in §60.272a(a)(3) of this subpart shall indicate a period of excess emission, and shall be reported to the administrator semi-annually, according to §60.7(c).
- (h) The owner or operator shall maintain the following records for each bag leak detection system required under §60.273a(e):
- (1) Records of the bag leak detection system output;
- (2) Records of bag leak detection system adjustments, including the date and time of the adjustment, the initial bag leak detection system settings, and the final bag leak detection system settings; and
- (3) An identification of the date and time of all bag leak detection system alarms, the time that procedures to determine the cause of the alarm were initiated, if procedures were initiated within 1 hour of the alarm, the cause of the alarm, an explanation of the actions taken, the date and time the cause of the alarm was alleviated, and if the alarm was alleviated within 3 hours of the alarm.

[49 FR 43845, Oct. 31, 1984, as amended at 54 FR 6673, Feb. 14, 1989; 64 FR 10111, Mar. 2, 1999; 65 FR 61758, Oct. 17, 2000; 70 FR 8533, Feb. 22, 2005]

Appendix D

\$75.68 of this chapter to the Administrator requesting approval to apply an alternative to any requirement of \$50.4170 through 60.4174 and \$60.4176. Application of an alternative to any requirement of \$50.4170 through 60.4174 and \$60.4176 is in accordance with this section and \$560.4170 through 60.4174 and \$60.4176 only to the extent that the petition is approved in writing by the Administrator, in consultation with the permitting authority.

160.4176 Additional requirements to provide heat input data.

The owner or operator of a Hg Budget unit that monitors and reports Hg mass emissions using a Hg concentration monitoring system and a flow monitoring system shall also monitor and report heat input rate at the unit level using the procedures set forth in part 75 of this chapter.

Subpart IIII—Standards of Performance for Stationary Compression Ignition Internal Combustion Engines

Source: 71 FR. 39172, July 11, 2006, unless otherwise noted.

WHAT THIS SUBPART COVERS

§ 80.4200 Am I subject to this subpart?

- (a) The provisions of this subpart are applicable to manufacturers, owners, and operators of stationary compression ignition (OI) internal combustion engines (ICE) as specified in paragraphs (a)(1) through (3) of this section. For the purposes of this subpart, the date that construction commences is the date the engine is ordered by the owner or operator.
- (1) Manufacturers of stationary CI ICE with a displacement of less than 30 liters per cylinder where the model year is:
- (i) 2007 or later, for engines that are not fire pump engines.
- (ii) The model year listed in table 3 to this subpart or later model year, for fire pump engines.

(2) Owners and operators of sta-

(i) Manufactured after April 1, 2006 and are not fire pump engines, or

- (ii) Manufactured as a cartified National Fire Protection Association (NFPA) fire pump engine after July 1, 2008
- (3) Owners and operators of stationary CI ICE that modify or reconstruct their stationary CI ICE after July 11, 2005.
- (b) The provisions of this subpart are not applicable to stationary CI ICE being tested at a stationary CI ICE test cellystand.

(c) If you are an owner or operator of an area source subject to this subpart, you are exempt from the obligation to obtain a permit under 40 CFR part 70 or 40 CFR part 71, provided you are not required to obtain a permit under 40 CFR 70.3(a) or 40 CFR 71.3(a) for a reason other than your status as an area source under this subpart. Notwithstanding the previous sentence, you must continue to comply with the provisions of this subpart applicable to area sources.

(d) Stationary CI ICE may be eligible for exemption from the requirements of this subpart as described in 40 CFR part 1068, subpart C (or the exemptions described in 40 CFR part 89, subpart J and 40 CFR part 94, subpart J, for engines that would need to be certified to standards in those parts), except that owners and operators, as well as manufacturers, may be eligible to request an exemption for national security.

EMIBBION STANDARDS FOR MANUFACTURERS

- \$60,4201 What emission standards must I meet for non-emergency engines if I am a stationary CI internal combustion engine manufacturer?
- (a) Stationary CI internal combustion engine manufacturers must certify their 2007 model year and later non-emergency stationary CI ICE with a maximum engine power less than or equal to 2,237 kilowatt (KW) (3,000 horsepower (HP)) and a displacement of less than 10 liters per cylinder to the certification emission standards. for new nonroad CI engines in 40 CFR

1039.115, as applicable, for all pollutants, for the same model year and maximum engine power.

(b) Stationary CI internal combustion engine manufacturers must certify their 2007 through 2010 model year non-emergency stationary CI ICE with a maximum engine power greater than 2,237 KW (3,000 HP) and a displacement of less than 10 liters per cylinder to the emission standards in table 1 to this subpart, for all pollutants, for the same maximum engine power.

(c) Stationary CI internal combustion engine manufacturers must certify their 2011 model year and later non-amergency stationary CI ICE with a maximum engine power greater than 2.237 KW (3.000 HP) and a displacement of less than 10 liters per cylinder to the certification emission standards for new nonroad CI engines in 40 CFR 1039.101, 40 CFR 1039.102, 40 CFR 1039.104, 40 CFR 1039.105, 40 CFR 1039.107, and 40 CFR 1039.115, as applicable, for all pollutants, for the same maximum engine power.

(d) Stationary CI internal combustion engine manufacturers must certify their 2007 model year and later nonemergency stationary CI ICE with a displacement of greater than or equal to 10 liters per cylinder and less than 30 liters per cylinder to the certification emission standards for new marine CI engines in 40 CFR 94.8, as applicable, for all pollutants, for the same displacement and maximum engine power.

§ 60.4202 What emission standards must I meet for emergency engines if I am a stationary CI internal combustion engine manufacturer?

(a) Stationary CI internal combustion engine manufacturers must certify their 2007 model year and later emergency stationary CI ICE with a maximum engine power less than or equal to 2,237 KW (3,000 HP) and a displacement of less than 10 liters per cylinder that are not fire pump engines to the emission standards specified in paragraphs (a)(1) through (2) of this section.

(1) For engines with a maximum engine power less than 37 KW (50 HP):

(i) The certification emission standards for new nonroad CI engines for the same model year and maximum engine power in 40 CFR 89.112 and 40 CFR

89.113 for all pollutants for model year 2007 engines, and

(ii) The certification emission standards for new nonroad CI engines in 40 CFR 1039.104, 40 CFR 1039.105, 40 CFR 1039.107, 40 CFR 1039.115, and table 2 to this subpart, for 2008 model year and later engines.

(2) For engines with a maximum engine power greater than or equal to 37 KW (50 HP), the certification emission standards for new nonroad CI engines for the same model year and maximum engine power in 40 CFR 89.112 and 40 CFR 89.113 for all pollutants beginning in model year 2007.

(b) Stationary CI internal combustion engine manufacturers must certify their 2007 model year and later emergency stationary CI ICE with a maximum engine power greater than 2,237 KW (3,000 HP) and a displacement of less than 10 liters per cylinder that are not fire pump engines to the emission standards specified in paragraphs (b)(1) through (2) of this section.

(1) For 2007 through 2010 model years, the emission standards in table 1 to this subpart, for all pollutants, for the same maximum engine power.

(2) For 2011 model year and later, the certification emission standards for new nonroad CI engines for engines of the same model year and maximum engine power in 40 CFR 89.112 and 40 CFR 89.113 for all pollutants.

(c) Stationary CI internal combustion engine manufacturers must certify their 2007 model year and later emergency stationary CI ICE with a displacement of greater than or equal to 10 liters per cylinder and less than 30 liters per cylinder that are not fire pump engines to the certification emission standards for new marine CI engines in 40 CFR 94.8, as applicable, for all pollutants, for the same displacement and maximum engine power.

(d) Beginning with the model years in table 3 to this subpart, stationary CI internal combustion angine manufacturers must certify their fire pump stationary CI IOE to the emission standards in table 4 to this subpart, for all pollutants, for the same model year and NFPA nameplate power.

i60.4203 How long must my engines meet the emission standards if I am a stationary CI internal combustion engine manufacturer?

Engines manufactured by stationary CI internal combustion engine manufacturers must meet the emission standards as required in \$5 60.4201 and 60.4202 during the useful life of the engines.

EMISSION STANDARDS FOR OWNERS AND OPERATORS

- 160.4204 What emission standards must I meet for non-emergency engines if I am an owner or operator of a stationary CI internal combustion engine?
- (a) Owners and operators of pre-2007 model year non-emergency stationary CI ICE with a displacement of less than 10 liters per cylinder must comply with the emission standards in table 1 to this subpart. Owners and operators of pre-2007 model year non-emergency stationary OI ICE with a displacement of greater than or equal to 10 liters per cylinder and less than 30 liters per cylinder must comply with the emission standards in 40 CFR 94.8(a)(1).
- (b) Owners and operators of 2007 model year and later non-emergency stationary CI ICE with a displacement of less than 30 liters per cylinder must comply with the emission standards for new CI engines in \$60.4201 for their 2007 model year and later stationary CI ICE, as applicable.
- (o) Owners and operators of nonemergency stationary OI ICE with a displacement of greater than or equal to 30 liters per cylinder must meet the requirements in paragraphs (o)(1) and (2) of this section.
- (1) Reduce nitrogen oxides (NO_x) emissions by 90 percent or more, or limit the emissions of NO_x in the stationary CI internal combustion engine exhaust to 1.6 grams per KW-hour (g/KW-hr) (1.2 grams per HP-hour (g/HP-hr)).
- (2) Reduce particulate matter (PM) emissions by 60 percent or more, or limit the emissions of PM in the sta-

- \$60.4205 What emission standards must I meet for emergency engines if I am an owner or operator of a stationary CI internal combustion engine?
- (a) Owners and operators of pre-2007 model year emergency stationary CI ICE with a displacement of less than 10 liters per cylinder that are not fire pump engines must comply with the emission standards in table 1 to this subpart. Owners and operators of pre-2007 model year non-emergency stationary CI ICE with a displacement of greater than or equal to 10 liters per cylinder and less than 30 liters per cylinder that are not fire pump engines must comply with the emission standards in 40 OFR 94.8(a)(1).
- (b) Owners and operators of 2007 model year and later emergency stationary CI ICE with a displacement of less than 30 liters per cylinder that are not fire pump engines must comply with the emission standards for new nonroad CI engines in \$60.4202, for all pollutants, for the same model year and maximum engine power for their 2007 model year and later emergency stationary OI ICE.
- (c) Owners and operators of fire pump engines with a displacement of less than 30 liters per cylinder must comply with the emission standards in table 4 to this subpart, for all pollutants.
- (d) Owners and operators of emergency stationary CI IOE with a displacement of greater than or equal to 30 liters per cylinder must meet the requirements in paragraphs (d)(1) and (2) of this section.
- (1) Reduce NO_X emissions by 90 percent or more, or limit the emissions of NO_X in the stationary OI internal combustion engine exhaust to 1.8 grams per KW-hour (1.2 grams per HP-hour).
- (3) Reduce PM emissions by 60 percent or more, or limit the emissions of PM in the stationary CI internal combustion engine exhaust to 0.15 g/KW-hr (0.11 g/HP-hr).

\$60.4206 How long must I meet the emission standards if I am an owner or operator of a stationary CI internal combustion engine?

Owners and operators of stationary CI ICE must operate and maintain stationary CI ICE that achieve the emission standards as required in §560.4204 and 60.4205 according to the manufacturer's written instructions or procedures developed by the owner or operator that are approved by the engine manufacturer, over the entire life of the engine.

FUEL REQUIREMENTS FOR OWNERS AND OPERATORS

§ 60.4207 What fuel requirements must I meet if I am an owner or operator of a stationary CI internal combustion engine subject to this subpart?

(a) Beginning October 1, 2007, owners and operators of stationary CI ICE subject to this subpart that use diesel fuel must use diesel fuel that meets the requirements of 40 CFR 80.510(a).

(b) Beginning October 1, 2010, owners and operators of stationary CI ICE subject to this subpart with a displacement of less than 30 liters per cylinder that use diesel fuel that meets the requirements of 40 CFR 80.510(b) for nonroad diesel fuel.

(0) Owners and operators of pre-2011 model year stationary CI ICE subject to this subpart may petition the Administrator for approval to use remaining non-compliant fuel that does not meet the fuel requirements of paragraphs (a) and (b) of this section beyond the dates required for the purpose of using up existing fuel inventories. If approved, the petition will be valid for a period of up to 8 months. If additional time is needed, the owner or operator is required to submit a new petition to the Administrator.

(d) Owners and operators of pre-2011 model year stationary CI ICE subject to this subpart that are located in areas of Alaska not accessible by the Federal Aid Highway System may petition the Administrator for approval to use any fuels mixed with used Indricating oil that do not meet the fuel requirements of paragraphs (a) and (b) of this section. Owners and operators must demonstrate in their petition to the Administrator that there is no

other place to use the lubricating oil. If approved, the petition will be valid for a period of up to 6 months. If additional time is needed, the owner or operator is required to submit a new petition to the Administrator.

(e) Stationary CI ICE that have a national security exemption under \$60.4200(d) are also exempt from the mel requirements in this section.

OTHER REQUIREMENTS FOR OWNERS AND OPERATORS

- \$60.4208 What is the deadline for importing or installing stationary CI ICE produced in the previous model year?
- (a) After December 31, 2008, owners and operators may not install stationary CHICE (excluding fire pump engines) that do not meet the applicable requirements for 2007 model year engines.
- (b) After December 31, 2009, owners and operators may not install stationary CI ICE with a maximum engine power of less than 19 KW (25 HP) (excluding fire pump engines) that do not meet the applicable requirements for 2008 model year engines.

(c) After December 31, 2014, owners and operators may not install non-emergency stationary CI ICE with a maximum engine power of greater than or equal to 19 KW (25 HP) and less than 58 KW (75 HP) that do not meet the applicable requirements for 2013 model year non-emergency engines.

(d) After December 31, 2013, owners and operators may not install non-emergency stationary CI ICE with a maximum engine power of greater than or equal to 58 KW (75 HP) and less than 130 KW (175 HP) that do not meet the applicable requirements for 2012 model year non-emergency engines.

(e) After December 31, 2012, owners and operators may not install non-emergency stationary CI ICE with a maximum engine power of greater than or equal to 130 KW (175 HP), including those above 560 KW (750 HP), that do not meet the applicable requirements for 2011 model year non-emergency entires.

(f) After December 31, 2016, owners and operators may not install nonemergency stationary CI ICE with a maximum engine power of greater than or equal to 560 KW (750 HP) that do not meet the applicable requirements for 2015 model year non-emergency enrines.

(g) In addition to the requirements specified in \$5.60.4201, .60.4202, .60.4204, and 80.4205, it is prohibited to import stationary OI ICE with a displacement of less than 30 liters per cylinder that do not meet the applicable requirements specified in paragraphs (a) through (f) of this section after the dates specified in paragraphs (a) through (f) of this section.

(h) The requirements of this section do not apply to owners or operators of stationary CIICE that have been modified, reconstructed, and do not apply to engines that were removed from one existing location and reinstalled at a new location

160.4209 What are the monitoring requirements if I am an owner or operator of a stationary CI internal combustion engine?

If you are an owner or operator, you must meet the monitoring requirements of this section. In addition, you must also meet the monitoring requirements specified in \$60.4211.

(a) If you are an owner or operator of an emergency stationary OI internal combustion engine, you must install a non-resettable hour meter prior to startup of the engine.

(b) If you are an owner or operator of a stationary OI internal combustion engine equipped with a diesel particulate filter to comply with the emission standards in \$60.4204, the diesel particulate filter must be installed with a backpressure monitor that notifies the owner or operator when the high backpressure limit of the engine is approached.

COMPLIANCE REQUIREMENTS

§ 60.4210 What are my compliance requirements if I am a stationary GI internal combustion engine manufacturer?

(a) Stationary CI internal combustion engine manufacturers must certify their stationary CI ICE with a displacement of less than 10 liters per cylinder

cedures required in 40 CFR part 89, subpart B, or 40 CFR part 1039, subpart C, as applicable, and must test their engines as specified in those parts. For the purposes of this subpart, engines certified to the standards in table 1 to this subpart shall be subject to the same requirements as engines certified to the standards in 40 CFR part 89. For the purposes of this subpart, engines certified to the standards in table 4 to this subpart shall be subject to the same requirements as engines certified to the standards in 40 CFR part 89, except that engines with NFPA nameplate power of less than 37 KW (50 HP) certified to model year 2011 or later standards shall be subject to the same requirements as engines certified to the standards in 40 CFR part 1039.

(b) Stationary CI internal combustion engine manufacturers must cartify their stationary CI ICE with a displacement of greater than or equal to 10 liters per cylinder and less than 30 liters per cylinder to the emission standards specified in \$60.4201(d) and \$60.4202(o) using the certification procedures required in 40 CFR part 94 subpart C, and must test their engines as specified in 40 CFR part 94.

(c) Stationary CI internal combustion engine manufacturers must meet the requirements of 40 OFR 1039.120, 40 OFR 1039,125, 40 OFR 1039,130, 40 OFR 1039,135, and 40 OFR part 1068 for engines that are certified to the emission standards in 40 OFR part 1039. Stationary OI internal combustion engine manufacturers must meet the corresponding provisions of 40 CFR part 89 or 40 OFR part 94 for engines that would be covered by that part if they were nonroad (including marine) engines. Labels on such engines must refer to stationary engines, rather than or in addition to nonroad or marine engines, as appropriate. Stationary CI internal combustion engine manufacturers must label their engines according to paragraphs (o)(1) through (3) of this section.

(1) Stationary CI internal combustion engines manufactured from January 1, 2008 to March 31, 2008 (January 1, 2008 to June 30, 2008 for fire pump ennonroad CI engine regulations, must be labeled according to 40 CFR 1039.20.

(2) Stationary CI internal combustion engines manufactured from April 1, 2006 to December 31, 2006 (or, for fire pump engines, July 1, 2006 to December 31 of the year preceding the year listed in table 3 to this subpart) must be labeled according to paragraphs (c)(2)(1) through (iii) of this section:

(i) Stationary CI internal combustion engines that are part of certified engine families under the nonroad regulations must meet the labeling requirements for nonroad CI engines, but do not have to meet the labeling require-

ments in 40 CFR 1039.20.

(ii) Stationary CI internal combustion engines that meet Tier 1 requirements (or requirements for fire pumps) under this subpart, but do not meet the requirements applicable to nonroad CI engines must be labeled according to 40 CFR 1039.20. The engine manufacturer may add language to the label claritying that the engine meets Tier 1 requirements (or requirements for fire pumps) of this subpart.

(iii) Stationary CI internal combustion engines manufactured after April 1, 2006 that do not meet Tier 1 requirements of this subpart, or fire pumps engines manufactured after July 1, 2008 that do not meet the requirements for fire pumps under this subpart, may not be used in the U.S. If any such engines are manufactured in the U.S. after April 1, 2006 (July 1, 2006 for fire pump engines), they must be exported or must be brought into compliance with the appropriate standards prior to initial operation. The export provisions of 40 CFR 1068.230 would apply to engines for export and the manufacturers must label such engines according to 40 CFR 1068,230.

(3) Stationary CI internal combustion engines manufactured after January 1, 2007 (for fire pump engines, after January 1 of the year listed in table 3 to this subpart, as applicable) must be labeled according to paragraphs (0)(3)(i) through (iii) of this section.

(1) Stationary CI internal combination engines that meet the requirements of this subpart and the corresponding requirements for nonroad (including marine) engines of the same model year and HP must be labeled according to

the provisions in part 89, 94 or 1039, as appropriate.

(ii) Stationary CI internal combustion engines that meet the requirements of this subpart, but are not certified to the standards applicable to nonroad (including marine) engines of the same model year and HP must be labeled according to the provisions in part 89, 94 or 1039, as appropriate, but the words "stationary" must be included instead of "nonroad" or "marine" on the label. In addition, such engines must be labeled according to 40 CFR 1039.20.

(iii) Stationary CI internal combustion engines that do not meet the requirements of this subpart must be labeled according to 40 CFR 1068.230 and must be exported under the provisions of 40 CFR 1068.230.

(d) An engine manufacturer certifying an engine family or families to standards under this subpart that are identical to standards applicable under parts 89, 94, or 1039 for that model year may certify any such family that contains both nonroad (including marine) and stationary engines as a single engine family and/or may include any such family containing stationary engines in the averaging, banking and trading provisions applicable for such engines under those parts.

(e) Manufacturers of engine families discussed in paragraph (d) of this section may meet the labeling requirements referred to in paragraph (c) of this section for stationary CI ICE by either adding a separate label containing the information required in paragraph (c) of this section or by adding the words "and stationary" after the word "nonroad" or "marine," as

appropriate, to the label.

(f) Starting with the model years shown in table 5 to this subpart, stationary CI internal combustion engine manufacturers must add a permanent label stating that the engine is for stationary emergency use only to each new emergency stationary CI internal combustion engine greater than or equal to 19 KW (25 HP) that meets all the emission standards for emergency engines in \$60.4202 but does not meet all the emission standards for non-emergency engines in \$60.4201. The label must be added according to the

labeling requirements specified in 40 CFR 1039.135(b). Engine manufacturers must specify in the owner's manual that operation of emergency engines is limited to emergency operations and required maintenance and testing.

(g) Manufacturers of fire pump engines may use the test cycle in table 8 to this subpart for testing fire pump engines and may test at the NFPA certified nameplate HP, provided that the engine is labeled as "Fire Pump Appli-

cations Only".

- (h) Engine manufacturers, including importers, may introduce into commerce uncertified engines or engines certified to earlier standards that were manufactured before the new or changed standards took effect until inventories are depleted, as long as such engines are part of normal inventory. For example, if the engine manufacturers' normal industry practice is to keep on hand a one-month supply of engines based on its projected sales, and a new tier of standards starts to apply for the 2009 model year, the engine manufacturer may manufacture engines based on the normal inventory requirements late in the 2008 model year, and sell those engines for installation. The engine manufacturer may not circumvent the provisions of \$50.4201 or 80.4202 by stookpiling engines that are built before new or changed standards take effect. Stockpiling of such engines beyoud normal industry practice is a viclation of this subpart.
- (i) The replacement engine provisions of 40 OFR 89.1003(b)(7), 40 OFR 94.1103(b)(3), 40 OFR 94.1103(b)(4) and 40 OFR 1063,240 are applicable to stationary QI engines replacing existing equipment that is less than 15 years old.
- \$60.4211 What are my compliance requirements if I am an owner or operator of a stationary CI internal combustion engine?
- (a) If you are an owner or operator and must comply with the emission standards specified in this subpart, you must operate and maintain the stationary OI internal combustion engine and control device according to the manufacturer's written instructions or

gine manufacturer. In addition, owners and operators may only change those settings that are permitted by the manufacturer. You must also meet the requirements of 40 CFR parts 89, 94 and/or 1068, as they apply to you.

(b) If you are an owner or operator of a pre-2007 model year stationary CI internal combustion engine and must comply with the emission standards specified in §§ 60.4204(a) or 60.4205(a), or if you are an owner or operator of a CI fire pump engine that is manufactured prior to the model years in table 3 to this subpart and must comply with the emission standards specified in §60.4205(o), you must demonstrate compliance according to one of the meth-

ods specified in paragraphs (b)(1) through (5) of this section.

(1) Purchasing an engine certified according to 40 CFR part 89 or 40 CFR part 94, as applicable, for the same model year and maximum engine power. The engine must be installed and configured according to the manufacturer's specifications.

- (2) Keeping records of performance test results for each pollutant for a test conducted on a similar engine. The test must have been conducted using the same methods specified in this subpart and these methods must have been followed correctly.
- (3) Keeping records of engine manusacturer data indicating compliance with the standards.
- (4) Keeping records of control device yendor data indicating compliance with the standards.
- (δ) Conducting an initial performance test to demonstrate compliance with the emission standards according to the requirements specified in §60.4212, as applicable.
- (c) If you are an owner or operator of a 2007 model year and later stationary CI internal combustion engine and must comply with the emission standards specified in \$60.4204(0) or \$60.4205(0), or if you are an owner or operator of a CI fire pump engine that is manufactured during or after the model year that applies to your fire pump engine power rating in table 3 to

§60.4205(c), you must comply by purchasing an engine certified to the emission standards in §60.4204(b), or §60.4205(b) or (c), as applicable, for the same model year and maximum (or in the case of fire pumps, NFPA nameplate) engine power. The engine must be installed and configured according to the manufacturer's specifications.

(d) If you are an owner or operator and must comply with the emission standards specified in \$60.4204(c) or \$60.4205(d), you must demonstrate compliance according to the requirements specified in paragraphs (d)(1) through (3) of this section.

(1) Conducting an initial performance test to demonstrate initial compliance with the emission standards as specified in §60.4213.

(2) Establishing operating parameters to be monitored continuously to ensure the stationary internal combustion engine continues to meet the emission standards. The owner or operator must petition the Administrator for approval of operating parameters to be monitored continuously. The petition must include the information described in paragraphs (d)(2)(i) through (v) of this section.

 (i) Identification of the specific parameters you propose to monitor continuously;

(ii) A discussion of the relationship between these parameters and NO_X and PM emissions, identifying how the emissions of these pollutants change with changes in these parameters, and how limitations on these parameters will serve to limit NO_X and PM emissions:

(iii) A discussion of how you will establish the upper and/or lower values for these parameters which will establish the limits on these parameters in the operating limitations;

(iv) · A discussion identifying the methods and the instruments you will use to monitor these parameters, as well as the relative accuracy and precision of these methods and instruments; and

(v) A discussion identifying the frequency and methods for recalibrating the instruments you will use for monitoring these parameters.

(3) For non-emergency engines with a displacement of greater than or equal

to 30 liters per cylinder, conducting annual performance tests to demonstrate continuous compliance with the emission standards as specified in §60.4213.

(e) Emergency stationary ICE may be operated for the purpose of maintenance checks and readiness testing, provided that the tests are recommended by Federal, State, or local government, the manufacturer, the vendor, or the insurance company associated with the engine. Maintenance checks and readiness testing of such units is limited to 100 hours per year. There is no time limit on the use of emergency stationary ICE in emergency situations. Anyone may petition the Administrator for approval of additional hours to be used for maintenance checks and readiness testing, but a petition is not required if the owner or operator maintains records indicating that Federal, State, or local standards require maintenance and testing of emergency ICE beyond 100 hours per year. For owners and operators of emergency engines meeting standards under \$60.4205 but not \$60,4204, any operation other than emergency operation, and maintenance and testing as permitted in this section, is prohibited.

TESTING REQUIREMENTS FOR OWNERS AND OPERATORS

\$60.4212 What test methods and other procedures must I use if I am an owner or operator of a stationary CI internal combustion engine with a displacement of less than 30 liters per cylinder?

Owners and operators of stationary CIICE with a displacement of less than 30 liters per cylinder who conduct performance tests pursuant to this subpart must do so according to paragraphs (a) through (d) of this section.

- (a) The performance test must be conducted according to the in-use testing procedures in 40 CFR part 1039, subpart F.
- (b) Exhaust emissions from stationary CI ICE that are complying with the emission standards for new CI engines in 40 CFR part 1039 must not exceed the not-to-exceed (NTE) standards for the same model year and maximum engine power as required in 40 CFR

1039.101(e) and 40 OFR 1039.102(g)(1), except as specified in 40 CFR 1039.104(d). This requirement starts when NTE requirements take effect for nonroad diesel angines under 40 OFR part 1039.

(c) Exhaust emissions from stationary CI ICE that are complying with the emission standards for new CI en-

gines in 40 CFR 89.112 or 40 CFR 94.8, as applicable, must not exceed the NTE numerical requirements, rounded to the same number of decimal places as the applicable standard in 40 CFR 89.112 or 40 CFR 94.8, as applicable, determined from the following equation:

NTE requirement for each pollutant = (1.25) x (STD) (Eq.1)

Where:

STD = The standard specified for that pollutant in 40 OFR 89.112 or 40 OFR 94.8, as applicable.

Alternatively, stationary CI ICE that are complying with the emission standards for new CI engines in 40 CFR 89.112 or 40 CFR 94.8 may follow the testing procedures specified in \$60.4213 of this subpart, as appropriate.

(d) Exhaust emissions from stationary CI ICE that are complying with the emission standards for pre-2007 model year engines in \$60.4204(a), \$60.4205(a), or \$60.4205(o) must not exceed the NTE numerical requirements, rounded to the same number of decimal places as the applicable standard in \$60.4204(a), \$60.4205(a), or \$60.4205(o), determined from the equation in paragraph (o) of this section.

·Where:

BTD = The standard specified for that pollutant in \$50.4204(a), \$60.4206(a), or \$60.4205(o).

Alternatively, stationary CI ICE that are complying with the emission standards for pre-2007 model year engines in \$60.4204(a), \$60.4205(a), or \$60.4205(c) may follow the testing procedures specified in \$60.4213, as appropriate.

\$60,4218 What test methods and other procedures must I use if I am an owner or operator of a stationary CI internal combustion engine with a displacement of greater than or equal to 30 liters per cylinder?

Owners and operators of stationary OI ICE with a displacement of greater than or equal to 30 liters per cylinder

(a) Each performance test must be conducted according to the requirements in § 60.8 and under the specific conditions that this subpart specifies in table 7. The test must be conducted within 10 percent of 100 percent peak (or the highest achievable) load.

(b) You may not conduct performance tests during periods of startup, shutdown, or malfunction, as specified in § 60.8(c).

(c) You must conduct three separate test runs for each performance test required in this section, as specified in \$60.8(f). Each test run must last at least 1 hour.

(d) To determine compliance with the percent reduction requirement, you must follow the requirements as specified in paragraphs (d)(1) through (3) of this section.

(1) You must use Equation 2 of this section to determine compliance with the percent reduction requirement:

$$\frac{C_i - C_o}{C_i} \times 100 = R \qquad (Eq.2)$$

Where:

C, = concentration of NO_x or PM at the control device inlet.

C. = concentration of NOx or PM at the control device outlet, and

R = percent reduction of NOx or PM emissions.

(2) You must normalize the NOx or PM concentrations at the inlet and outlet of the control device to a dry basis and to 15 percent oxygen (O₂) using Equation 3 of this section, or an

\$60,4213

$$C_{adj} = C_4 \frac{59}{209 - 80}$$
 (Eq.3)

Where:

Cad = Calculated NOx or PM concentration adjusted to 15 percent O2.

Ca = Measured concentration of NOx or PM, nncorrected.

5.9 = 20.9 percent O_2-15 percent O_2 , the defined O2 correction value, percent.

%O2 = Measured O2 concentration, dry basis, percent.

(3) If pollutant concentrations are to be corrected to 15 percent O2 and CO2 concentration is measured in lieu of O2 concentration measurement, a CO2 correction factor is needed. Calculate the CO2 correction factor as described in paragraphs (d)(3)(i) through (iii) of this section.

(i) Calculate the Mel-specific F. value for the fuel burned during the test using values obtained from Method 19, Section 5.2, and the following equa-

$$P_{o} = \frac{0.209_{r_{o}}}{F_{o}}$$
 (Eq.4)

Where:

.F. = Fuel factor based on the ratio of O2 volume to the ultimate CO2 volume produced by the fuel at zero percent excess air.

0.209 = Fraction of air that is O2, percent/100.

F. = Ratio of the volume of dry effuent gas

to the gross calorific value of the fuel from Method 19, damwJ (decillo Btn).

Pe = Ratio of the volume of CO2 produced to the gross calorific value of the fuel from Method 19, dsm³/J (dscl/10s Btu).

(ii) Calculate the CO2 correction factor for correcting measurement data to 15 percent O2, as follows:

$$X_{co_1} = \frac{59}{F_0}$$
 (Eq.5)

Where:

 $X_{CO2} = CO_2$ correction factor, percent. 5.9 = 20.9 percent O_2-15 percent O_2 , the defined O2 correction value, percent.

(iii) Calculate the NO_x and PM gas concentrations adjusted to 15 percent O2 using CO2 as follows:

$$C_{adj} = C_a \frac{X_{co}}{\$ CO_a}$$
 (Eq.6)

 $C_{\text{MS}} = Calculated NO_X$ or PM concentration adjusted to 15 percent Oz.

Co = Measured concentration of NOx or PM, uncorrected.

%CO2 = Measured CO2 concentration, dry basis, percent.

(e) To determine compliance with the NOx mass per unit output emission limitation, convert the concentration of NOx in the engine exhaust using Equation 7 of this section:

$$ER = \frac{C_a \times 1.912 \times 10^{-3} \times Q \times T}{KW - hour}$$
 (Eq.7)

Where:

ER = Emission rate in grams per XW-hour. C. = Measured NOx concentration in ppm.

1.912x10-> = Conversion constant for ppm NOx to grams per standard cubic meter at 25 degrees Celsius.

Q = Stack gas volumetric flow rate, in standard cubic meter per hour.

T = Time of test run, in hours,

KW-hour = Brake work of the engine, in KW-

(f) To determine compliance with the PM mass per unit output emission limitation, convert the concentration of PM in the engine exhaust using Equation 8 of this section:

$$ER = \frac{C_{edj} \times Q \times T}{KW - hour}$$
 (Eq.8)

Where:

ER = Emission rate in grams per KW-hour. O_{sej} = Calculated PM concentration in grams per standard onblo meter.

Q = Stack gas volumetric flow rate, in standard cubic meter per hour,

T = Time of test run, in hours.

KW-honr = Energy ontput of the engine, in

NOTIFICATION, REPORTS, AND RECORDS FOR OWNERS AND OPERATORS

- §60.4214 What are my notification, reporting, and recordkeeping requirements if I am an owner or operator of a stationary CI internal combustion engine?
- (a) Owners and operators of nonemergency stationary OI IOB that are greater than 2,237 KW (3,000 HP), or have a displacement of greater than or equal to 10 liters per cylinder, or are pre-2007 model year engines that are greater than 130 KW (175 HP) and not certified, must meet the requirements of paragraphs (a)(1) and (2) of this section.
- (1) Submit an initial notification as required in \$60.7(a)(1). The notification must include the information in paragraphs (a)(1)(i) through (v) of this section.
- (1) Name and address of the owner or operator;
- (ii) The address of the affected source;
- (iii) Engine information including make, model, engine family, serial number, model year, maximum engine power, and engine displacement;
 - (iv) Emission control equipment; and (v) Fuel used.
- (2) Keep records of the information in paragraphs (a)(2)(i) through (iv) of this
- section.
 (i) All notifications submitted to comply with this subpart and all documentation supporting any notification.
- (ii) Maintenance conducted on the angine.
- (iii) If the stationary CI internal combustion is a certified engine, documentation from the manufacturer that the engine is certified to meet the emission standards.
- (iv) If the stationary CI internal combustion is not a certified engine, documentation that the engine meets the emission standards.
- (b) If the stationary OI internal combustion engine is an emergency stationary internal combustion engine, the owner or operator is not required to submit an initial notification. Starting with the model years in table 5 to this subpart, if the emergency engine does not meet the standards applicable

ator must keep records of the operation of the engine in emergency and non-emergency service that are recorded through the non-resettable hour meter. The owner must record the time of operation of the engine and the reason the engine was in operation during that time.

(c) If the stationary CI internal combustion engine is equipped with a diesel particulate filter, the owner or operator must keep records of any corrective action taken after the backpressure monitor has notified the owner or operator that the high backpressure limit of the engine is approached.

SPECIAL REQUIREMENTS

- § 60.4215 What requirements must I meet for engines used in Guam, American Samoa, or the Commonwealth of the Northern Mariana Islands?
- (a) Stationary CI IOE that are used in Guam, American Bamos, or the Commonwealth of the Northern Marians Islands are required to meet the applicable emission standards in \$60.4205. Non-emergency stationary CI IOE with a displacement of greater than or equal to 30 liters per cylinder, must meet the applicable emission standards in \$60.4204(c).
- (b) Stationary OI IOE that are used in Guam, American Samoa, or the Commonwealth of the Northern Marians Islands are not required to meet the mel requirements in \$60.4207.

\$60.4216 What requirements must I meet for engines used in Alaska?

(a) Prior to December 1, 2010, owners and operators of stationary OI engines located in areas of Alaska not accessible by the Federal Aid Highway System should refer to 40 CFR part 69 to determine the diesel fuel requirements applicable to such engines.

(b) The Governor of Alaska may submit for EPA approval, by no later than January 11, 2008, an alternative plan for implementing the requirements of 40 OFR part 60, subpart HII, for public-sector electrical utilities located in rural areas of Alaska not accessible by the Federal Aid Highway System. This

Clean Air Act including any increased risks to human health and the environment and must also be based on the unique circumstances related to remote power generation, climatic conditions, and serious economic impacts resulting from implementation of 40 CFR part 60, subpart HH. If EPA approves by rulemaking process an alternative plan, the provisions as approved by EPA under that plan shall apply to the diesel engines used in new stationary internal combustion engines subject to this paragraph.

§ 60.4217 What emission standards must I meet if I am an owner or operator of a stationary internal combustion engine using special fuels?

(a) Owners and operators of stationary CI ICE that do not use diesel fuel, or who have been given authority by the Administrator under \$60.4207(d) of this subpart to use fuels that do not meet the fuel requirements of paragraphs (a) and (b) of \$60.4207, may petition the Administrator for approval of alternative emission standards, if they can demonstrate that they use a fuel that is not the fuel on which the manufacturer of the angine cortified the engine and that the engine cannot meet the applicable standards required in \$60.4202 or \$60.4203 using such fuels.

General Provisions

(b) [Reserved]

§ 60,4218 What parts of the General Provisions apply to me?

Table 8 to this subpart shows which parts of the General Provisions in \$560.1 through 60.19 apply to you.

DEFINITIONS

\$60.4219 What definitions apply to this subpart?

As used in this subpart, all terms not defined herein shall have the meaning given them in the CAA and in subpart A of this part.

Combustion turbine means all equipment, including but not limited to the turbine, the fuel, air, inbrication and exhaust gas systems, control systems (except emissions control equipment), and any ancillary components and sub-components comprising any simple cycle combustion turbine, any regen-

erative/recuperative cycle combustion turbine, the combustion turbine portion of any cogeneration cycle combustion system, or the combustion turbine portion of any combined cycle steam/ electric generating system.

Compression ignition means relating to a type of stationary internal combustion engine that is not a spark igni-

tion engine.

Diesel fuel means any liquid obtained from the distillation of petroleum with a boiling point of approximately 150 to 360 degrees Celsius. One commonly used form is number 2 distillate oil.

Diesel particulate filter means an emission control technology that reduces PM emissions by trapping the particles in a flow filter substrate and periodically removes the collected particles by either physical action or by oxidizing (burning off) the particles in a

process called regeneration. Emergency stationary internal combustion engine means any stationary internal combustion engine whose operation is limited to emergency situations and required testing and maintenance. Examples include stationary ICE used to produce power for critical networks or equipment (including power supplied to portions of a facility) when electric power from the local utility (or the normal power source, if the facility runs on its own power production) is interrupted, or stationary ICE used to pump water in the case of fire or flood, etc. Stationary CI ICE used to supply power to an electric grid or that supply power as part of a financial arrangement with another entity are not considered to be emergency engines.

Engine manufacturer means the manufacturer of the engine. See the definition of "manufacturer" in this section.

Fire pump engine means an emergency stationary internal combustion engine certified to NFPA requirements that is used to provide power to pump water for fire suppression or protection.

Munufacturer has the meaning given in section 216(1) of the Act. In general, this term includes any person who manufactures a stationary angine for sale in the United States or otherwise introduces a new stationary engine into commerce in the United States. This includes importers who import stationary engines for sale or resale.

Maximum engine power means maximum engine power as defined in 40 CFR 1039.801.

Model year means either:

(1) The calendar year in which the engine was originally produced, or

(2) The annual new model production period of the engine manufacturer if it is different than the calendar year. This must include January 1 of the calendar year for which the model year is named. It may not begin before January 2 of the previous calendar year and it must end by December 31 of the named calendar year. For an engine that is converted to a stationary engine after being placed into service as a nonroad or other non-stationary angine, model year means the calendar year or new model production period in which the engine was originally produced.

Other internal combustion engine means any internal combustion engine, except combustion turbines, which is not a reciprocating internal combustion engine or rotary internal combustion engine.

Reciprocating internal combustion engine means any internal combustion engine which uses reciprocating motion to convert heat energy into mechanical work.

Rotary . internal combustion engine means any internal combustion engine which uses rotary motion to convert heat energy into mechanical work.

Spark ignition means relating to a gasoline, natural gas, or liquefied petroleum gas fueled engine or any other type of engine with a spark plug (or other sparking device) and with operating characteristics significantly similar to the theoretical Otto combus-

tion cycle. Spark ignition engines usually use a throttle to regulate intake air flow to control power during normal operation. Dual-fuel engines in which a liquid fuel (typically diese) fuel) is used for CI and gaseous fuel (typically natural gas) is used as the primary fuel at an annual average ratio of less than 2 parts diesel fuel to 100 parts total fuel on an energy equivalent basis are spark ignition engines.

Stationary internal combustion engine means any internal combustion engine. except combustion turbines, that converts heat energy into mechanical work and is not mobile. Stationary ICE differ from mobile ICE in that a stationary internal combustion engine is not a nonroad engine as defined at 40 CFR 1068,30 (excluding paragraph (2)(ii) of that definition), and is not used to propel a motor vehicle or a vehicle used solely for competition. Stationary ICE include reciprocating ICE, rotary ICE, and other ICE, except combustion turbines.

Subport means 40 CFR part 60, subpart IIII.

Useful life means the period during which the engine is designed to properly function in terms of reliability and fuel consumption, without being remanufactured, specified as a number of hours of operation or calendar years, whichever comes first. The values for useful life for stationary CI ICE with a displacement of less than 10 liters per cylinder are given in 40 OFR 1039.101(g). The values for useful life for stationary CI ICE with a displacement of greater than or equal to 10 liters per cylinder and less than 30 liters per cylinder are given in 40 CFR 94.9(a).

TABLE 1 TO SUBPART III OF PART 60—EMISSION STANDARDS FOR STATIONARY PRE-2007 Model Year Engines With a Displacement of <10 Liters per Cylinder AND 2007-2010 MODEL YEAR ENGINES >2,237 KW (3,000 HP) AND WITH A DISPLACEment of <10 Liters per Cylinder

[As stated in §§ 80.4201(b), 60.4202(b), 60.4204(a), and 60.4205(a), you must comply with the following amission standards]

Emission standards for stationary pra-2007 model year engines with a displacement of 410 lears per cylinder and 2007–2010 model year en-gines >2,207 KW (3,000 HP) and with a displacement of 410 lears per cylinder in gNKW-hr (g/HP-hr)

NMHC + PM co

Part 60, Subpt. IIII, Table 2

[As stated in \$5 60.4201 [b], 60.4202(b), 60.4204(a), and 60.4205(a), you must comply with the following emission standards]

Maximum angina powar	Emission standards for stationary pre-2007 model year engines with a displacement of <10 liters per cylinder and 2007–2010 model year engines >2,237 KW (3,000 HP) and with a displacement of <10 liters per cylinder in Q/KW-hr (Q/HP-hr)				
	+ 2HMH + NO ₂	нс	NO _x	co	PM
375/W<58 (50sHP<75) 585/W<75 (75sHP<100) 755/W<130 (100sHP<175) 100s(W<225 (175sHP<200) 2255/W<450 (300sHP<800) 4505/WS280 (800sHP>750)	Ja sa Pinana, un i naumaño de pala tra hanna santa i maga la ma da han santa di na tana santa da para sa tana minana da hanna sa	1.3 (1.0) 1.3 (1.0) 1.3 (1.0) 1.3 (1.0)	9.2 (8.9) 9.2 (8.9) 9.2 (8.9) 9.2 (8.9) 9.2 (8.9) 9.2 (8.9) 9.2 (8.9)	11.4 (8.5) 11.4 (8.5) 11.4 (8.5) 11.4 (8.5)	0.54 (0.40) 0.54 (0.40) 0.54 (0.40) 0.54 (0.40)

Table 2 to Subpart IIII of Part 60—Emission Standards for 2008 Model Year and Later Emergency Stationary CI ICE <37 KW (50 HP) With a Displacement of <10 Liters fer Cylinder

(As stated in §60.4202(a)(1), you must comply with the following emission standards)

Engine power	Emission standards for 2006 model year and later emergency stationary CI ICE c37 KW (50 HP) with a displacement of <10 there per cylinder in g/KW-hr (of HP-hr)			
	Model year(s)	HOX +	co	P M
KW-8 (HP-(1)) 85KW-19 (115HP-25) 195KW-37 (255HP-50)	2008+ 2008+ 2008+	7.5 (5.8) 7.5 (5.6) 7.5 (5.8)	8.0 (8.0) · 8.6 (4.9) 5.5 (4.1)	0,40 (0.30) 0,40 (0.30) 0,30 (0.22)

Table 3 to Subpart IIII op Part 60—Certification Requirements for Stationary Fire Pump Engines

[As stated in § 80,4202(d), you must certify new stationary fire pump angines beginning with the following model years:)

Engline power	Starting model year an- gine menulacturers must centify new stationary fire pump angines ac- cording to § 50.4202(d)
XW-75 (HP<100) 7547W+130 (1003-P-175) 13040YY-580 (1754-P-5750) XW-580 (HP-760)	2011 2010 2009 2006

Table 4 to Subpart IIII of Part 60—Emission Standards for Stationary Fire Pump Engines

[As staind in §§ 60.4202(d) and 60.4205(c), you must comply with the following arrisation standards for stationary fire pump ancients.]

Medimum engine power	Model year(s)	NMHC + NO _x	œ	PM
KW<8 (HP<11)	2010 and serier	10.5 (7.8)	8.0 (8.0)	1.0 (0.75)
BOXW-19 (115HP-25)	2011+	7.5 (5.8) 9.5 (7.1)	0.8 (4.9)	0.40 (0.30)
105XXVI-037 (256XHP-650)	2011+	7.5 (5.5) 9.5 (7.1)	5.5 (4.1)	0.40 (0.30) 0.80 (0.80)
379KW-68 (50:01P<75)	2010 and serier	7.5 (5.8) 10.5 (7.8)	50 (37)	0.30 (0.22) 0.80 (0.80)
585XW478 (755HP4100)	2011+1	4.7 (3.5) 10.5 (7.8)	5.0 (3.7)	0.40 (0.30)
7500We130 (1000HPe175)		4.7 (3.5) 10.5 (7.5)	50(27)	0.40 (0.30)
130s00W-225 (175s0HP-300)		4.0 (3.0) 10.3 (7.8)	3.5 (2.5)	0.30 (0.22) 0.54 (0.40)
225sXXV<460 (300sHP<600)	2009+9	4.0 (3.0) 10.5 (7.8)	3.5 (2.6)	0.20 (0.15) 0.54 (0.40)
	2000+3	4.0 (3.0)		0.20 (0.15)

Environmental Protection Agency

Part 60, Subpt. IIII, Table 7

(As stated in §§ 80.4202(d) and 80.4205(c), you must comply with the following emission standards for elationary fire pump singless)

Hadman engine power	Model year(s)	NMHC + NO _X	œ	PN
450:00Ws580 (800sHPs750)	2008 and partier	10.5 (7.8)	3.6 (2.8)	0.54 (0,40)
XVV>580 (HP>750)	2009+	4.0 (3.0)	3.5 (2.5)	0.20 (0.15)
	2008+	8.4 (4.B)		0.20 (0.15)

TABLE 5 TO SUBPART IIII OF PART 50-LABELING AND RECORDREEPING REQUIREMENTS FOR NEW STATIONARY EMERGENCY ENGINES

(You must comply with the labeling requirements in \$50.4210(f) and the reconsteeping requirements in \$60.4214(b) for new american stationary CI ICE beginning in the following model years:]

Engine power	Starting model year
19-SCN-SB (25-SHP-275)	2013
58SCW<130 (75SHP<175)	2012
XYY2130 (HP2175)	2011

Table 6 to Subpart IIII of Part 60—Optional 3-Mode Test Cycle for STATIONARY FIRE PUMP ENGINES

(As stated in § 80.4210(g), manufacturers of fire pump engines may use the tollowing test cycle for testing fire pump engines:)

Mode No.	Engine speed 9	Torque (percent)*	Weighting factors	
1	Rated	100	0.30	
2	Rated	. 75	0.50	
3	Paled	50	0,20	

Table 7 to Subpart IIII of Part 60—Requirements for Performance Tests for Stationary OI IOE With a Displacement of >30 Liters per Cylinder (As stained in \$ 60.4213, you must comply with the following requirements for parformance tests for stationary CI ICE with a displacement of 200 litera per cylinder.)

For each	Complying with the requirement to	You must	Using	According to the fol- lowing requirements
1, Stationary CI Internal combustion angine with a displacement of ≥00 there per cyl-	a. Reduce NO _X emissions by 90 percent of more.	I. Select the sampling port location and the number of traversa polma;	(1) Method 1 or 1A of 40 CFR part 80, ap- pendix A.	(a) Sampling sites must be located at the inte- and outlet of the con- trol device.
Indet,		II. Measure O ₂ at the inlet and outlet of the control device;	(2) Method 3, 3A, or 3B or 40 CFR part 60, appendix A.	(b) Measurements to determine O ₂ concentration must be made at the same time as the ribasure ments for NO _X concentration.
•		III. If necessary, measure moisture content at the inter and outet of the control device:	(3) Method 4 of 40 CFR part 80, appendix A, Method 320 of 40 CFR part 83, ap-	(c) Measurements to determine incisture content must be made at the same

¹ For modal years 2011–2013, manufacturers, owners and operators of fire pump stationary CI ICE in this angine power category with a rated speed of greater than 2,850 revolutions per minute (rpm) may comply with the emission stratistions for 2010 model years 2010–2012, manufacturers, owners and operators of fire pump stationary CI ICE in this angine power category with a rated speed of greater than 2,850 rpm may comply with the emission firmitations for 2009 model year engines.

3 in model years 2009–2011, manufacturers of fire pump stationary CI ICE in this angine power category with a rated speed of greater than 2,850 rpm may comply with the emission limitations for 2008 model year engines.

^{*} Engine speed: ±2 percent of point.
*Torquet NFPA certified namepiate HP for 100 percent point. All points should be ±2 percent of angine percent load value.

Part 60, Subpl. IIII, Table 7

[As stated in §60,4213, you must comply with the following requirements for performance tests for stationary CFXCE with a displacement of 230 liters per cylinder.]

For each	Complying with the requirement to	You must	Using	According to the fol- lowing requirements
		ly, Massurs NO _X at the Inlet and outsit of the control device.	(4) Method 7E of 40 CFR part 80, appendix A, Method 320 of 40 CFR part 83, appendix A, or ASTM D 8348-03 (Incorporated by relatence, see \$60.17).	(d) NO _x concentration must be at 15 percent O _x dry balls. Results of this test consist of the average of the three 1-hour or longer runs.
	b. Umit the concentra- tion of NO _X in the stationary CI internal combustion engine sohaust.	i. Select the sampling port location and the number of traverse points;	(1) Method 1 or 1A of 40 CFR part 80, ap- pendtx A.	(a) It using a control device, the sampling site must be located at the outer of the control device.
		Determine the O ₂ concentration of the stationary internal combustion angine exhaust at the sampling port location; and,	(2) Method 3, 3A, or 3B of 40 CFB part 80, appendix A.	(b) Messurements to determine O ₂ concentration must be mede at the same time as the measurement for NO _X concentration.
	·	Ill. If necessary, measure moisture content of the stationary internal combustion engine extraous at the sampling port location; and,	(3) Method 4 of 40 CFR pan 80; appendix A, Method 320 of 40 CFR pan 83; appendix A, or ASTM D 848-03 (Incorporated by relerance, see \$60,17).	(c) Measurements to determine moishurs content must be made at the same time as the measurement for NO _X concentration.
		Measure NO _X at the athaust of the sta- lonary internet con- bustion engine.	(4) Method 7E of 40 CFR part 80, appendix A, Method 320 of 40 CFR part 83, appendix A, or ASTM D 8948–03 (Incorporated by reference, ase § 80,17).	(d) HO _X concentration must be at 15 percent O _X dry basis. Results of this test consist of the sverage of the three 3-hour or longer runs.
	Reduce PM emis- alons by 60 percent or more.	Select the sampling port location and the number of traversa points;	(1) Method 1 or 1A of 40 CFR part 50, ap- pendit A.	(a) Sempling alter must be located at the inte- and outlet of the con- trol device.
	·	II. Measure O ₂ at the inlet and outlet of the control device;	appendix A.	(b) Measurements to determine O ₂ con- centration must be made at the terms the terms the terms through the measure- ments for PAs con- centration.
		III. If necessary, measure moisture content at the intel and outer of the control device; and	(3) Method 4 of 40 CFR part 80, appendix A.	(c) Measurements to determine and mole- lure content must be made at the same line as the measure- ments for PM con- centration.
		N. Measure PM at the inlet and outsit of the control device.	(4) Method 5 of 40 CFR part 80, appendix A.	(d) PM concentration must be at 15 per- cent O ₂ , dry basis, Results of the test consist of the pres- age of the three 1-
	d. Limit the concentra- tion of PM in the sta- tionary CI internal combustion angine achieust.	I. Select the sampling port location and the number of traverse points;	(1) Method 1 or 1A of 40 CFR part 60, ap- pendix A.	hour or longer runs. (a) It using a control device, the sampling site must be located at the outsit of the control device.

Environmental Protection Agency

Part 60, Subpt. III, Table 8

[As stated in \$60.4213, you must comply with the following requirements for performance tests for stationary CI ICE with a displacement of 230 litera per cytholer.]

For each	Complying with the requirement to	You must	Using	According to the tol- lowing requirements
		R. Cetermine the O ₂ concentration of the stationary internal combustion engine exhaust at the sampling port location; and	(2) Hethod 3, 3A, or 3B of 40 CFR part 80, appendix A.	(b) Measurements to determine O ₃ concentration must be made at the same time as the measurements for PM concentration.
		III. If necessary, measure moleture content of the stationary internal combustion engine sometime to the sampling port location; and	(3) Method 4 of 40 CFR part 60, appendix A.	(c) Measurements to determine moisture content must be made at the same time as the measure ments for PNA con- centration.
•		lv. Measure PM at the achieust of the sta- tionary Internal com- bustion engine.	(4) Nethod 5 of 40 CFR part 80, appendix A.	(d) PM concentration must be at 15 per- cent O ₂ , dry bests. Results of this test consist of the average of the street hour or longer runs.

Table 8 to Subpart IIII of Part 60—Applicability of General Provisions to Subpart IIII

[As stated in § 50,4218, you must comply with the lollowing applicable General Provisions:]

General Provisions chatten	Subject of citation	Applies to subpart	Explanation
§ 80.1	General applicability of the General Provi-	Yes	
\$60.2	Definitions	Yos	Additional terms defined in § 60.4219.
\$60.3	Units and abbreviations	Yas.	(
\$80.4	Address	Yes.	
§ 60.5	Determination of construction or modifica-	Y99.	
\$80.8	Review of plane	Yes.	•
\$60.7	Notification and Recordkeeping	Y==	Except that § 80.7 only applies as specified in § 80.4214(a).
§ 60.8	Performance tests	Yes	Except that § 50.8 only applies to sta- tonary CI ICE with a displacement of (200 there per cylinder and engines that are not cartified.
\$ 60.9	Availability of Information	Yes.	
\$ 60.10	State Authority	Yes	
\$60.11	Compliance with standards and mainta- nance requirements.	1	Requirements are specified in subpart lift.
\$50.12	Circumvention	Yes	!
§80.13	Monitoring requirements	YP8	Except that § 60.13 only applies to stationary C3 ICE with a displacement of \$200 liters per cylinder.
\$ 50.14	Modification	Y88.	1 ' '
\$60.15			1
\$ 50.18		1	1
\$ 50.17			}
			1
\$80.18	I GROWN CONDUCTORYCO PROGRAMMY		•
\$ 50,19	 General notification and reporting require ments. 	, , ,	

Appendix E

SUBCHAPTER C-AIR PROGRAMS (CONTINUED)

PART 63—NATIONAL EMISSION STANDARDS FOR HAZARDOUS AIR POLLUTANTS FOR SOURCE CATEGORIES (CONTINUED)

Subpart ZZZ-National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants for Stationary Reciprocating Internal Combustion Engines

WHAT THIS SUBPART COVERS

Sea.

\$3.6580 What is the purpose of subpart ZZZZ?

63.8585 Am I subject to this subpart?

63.8590 What parts of my plant does this subpart cover?

63.6595 When do I have to comply with this subpart?

EMISSION LIMITATIONS

63.6600 What emission limitations and operating limitations must I meet if I own or operate a stationary RICE with a gite rating of more than 500 brake HP located at a major source of HAP amissions?

63.6601 What emission limitations must I meet if I own or operate a 4BLB stationary RICE with a site rating of great-er than or equal to 260 brake HP and less than 500 brake HP located at a major source of HAP emissions?

63.6802 What emission limitations must I meet if I own or operate an existing stationary OI RICE with a site rating of equal to or less than 500 brake HP located at a major source of HAP emis-

sions? 63.8603 What emission limitations and operating limitations must I meet if I own or operate an existing stationary OI RIUE located at an area source of HAP emisslons?

83.6604 What fuel requirements must I meet if I own or operate an existing stationary OI RICE?

GENERAL COMPLIANCE REQUIREMENTS

63.6605 What are my general requirements for complying with this subpart?

TESTINO AND INTITAL COMPLIANCE REQUIREMENTS

53.6810 By what date must I conduct the initial performance tests or other initial compliance demonstrations if I own or operate a stationary RIOB with a site rating of more than 500 brake HP located

53.6811 By what date must I conduct the initial performance tests or other initial compliance, demonstrations if I own or operate a 48LB BI stationary RICE with a site rating of greater than or equal to. 250 and less than or equal to 500 brake HP located at a major source of HAP emissionat

83.6812 By What date must I conduct the initial performance tests or other initial compliance demonstrations if I own or operate an existing stationary RICE with a site rating of less than or equal to 500 brake HP located at a major source of HAP emissions or an existing stationary RIUE located at an area source of HAP emissions?

53.6615 When must I conduct subsequent parformance testa?

63.6620 What performance tests and other procedures must I use?

63.6625 What are my monitoring, installation, collection, operation, and maintenance requirements?

83.8630 How do I demonstrate initial compliance with the emission limitations and operating limitations?

CONTINUOUS COMPLIANCE REQUIREMENTS

63.8635 How do I monitor and collect data to damonstrate continuous compliance?

83.6840 How do I demonstrate continuous compliance with the emission limitations and operating limitations?

NOTIFICATION, REPORTS, AND RECORDS

63,6645 What notifications must I submit and when?

63.6650 What reports must I submit and when?

83.6665 What records must I keep? 83.6660 In what form and how long must I keep my records?

OTHER REQUIREMENTS AND INFORMATION

83.8885 What parts of the General Provisions apply to me?

83.8870 Who implements and enforces this subpart?

63.6878 What definitions apply to this subpart?

TABLE 1A TO SUBPART ZZZZ OF PART 63-EMBRION LIMITATIONS FOR EXISTING, NEW, AND RECONSTRUCTED SPARK IONI-TION, 4BRB STATIONARY RIOE >500 HP LOCATED AT A MAJOR BOURDS OF HAP EMISSIONS

TABLE 18 TO SUBPART ZZZZ OF PART 63-ERATING LIMITATIONS FOR EDISTING, NEW, AND RECONSTRUCTED BPARK IONITION, ASRB STATIONARY RICE >500 HP LOCATED

- TABLE 2A TO SUBPART ZZZZ OF PART 63-EMISSION LIMITATIONS FOR NEW AND RE-CONSTRUCTED 2SLB AND COMPRESSION 10-NITION STATIONARY RICE >500 HP AND NEW AND RECONSTRUCTED 4SLB STA-TIONARY RICE 2250 HP LOCATED AT A MAJOR SOURCE OF HAP EMISSIONS
- TABLE 28 TO SUBPART ZZZZ OF PART 63-OP-ERATING LIMITATIONS FOR NEW AND RE-CONSTRUCTED 2BLB AND COMPRESSION IO-NITION STATIONARY RICE >500 HP LO-CATED AT A MAJOR SOURCE OF HAP EMIS-BIONS, EXISTING NON-EMERGENCY COM-Pression Iontton Stationary RICE >500 HP, AND NEW AND RECONSTRUCTED ASLB BURN STATIONARY RICE >260 HP LOCATED AT A MAJOR SOURCE OF HAP EMISSIONS
- TABLE 20 TO SUBPART ZZZZ OF PART 63-RE-QUIREMENTS FOR EXISTING COMPRESSION IGNITION STATIONARY RICE LOCATED AT MAJOR SOURCES OF HAP EMISSIONS
- TABLE 20 TO SUBPART ZZZZ OF PART 63-Re-QUIREMENTS FOR EXISTING COMPRESSION IGNITION STATIONARY RICE LOCATED AT ARRA SOURCES OF HAP EMISSIONS
- TABLE 3 TO SUBPART ZZZZ OF PART 63-SUB-BEOUENT PERFORMANCE TESTS
- TABLE 4 TO SUBPART ZZZZ OF PART 63-RE-QUIREMENTS FOR PERFORMANCE TESTS
- TABLE 5 TO SUBPART ZZZZ OF PART 63-INI-TIAL COMPLIANCE WITH EMISSION LIMITA-TIONS AND OPERATING LIMITATIONS
- TABLE 8 TO SUBPART ZZZZ OF PART 63-CON-TINUOUS COMPLIANCE WITH EMISSION LIMI-PATIONS AND OPERATING LIGHTATIONS
- TABLE 7 TO SUBPART ZZZZ OF PART 63—RE-QUIREMENTS FOR REPORTS
- TABLE 5 TO SUBPART ZZZZ OF PART 83-AP-PLICABILITY OF GENERAL PROVISIONS TO SUBPART ZZZZ
- Subpart AAAAA—National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants for Lime Monutacturing Plants

WHAT THIS SURPART COVERS

- 83,7080 What is the purpose of this subpart? 63.7081 Am I subject to this subpart? 63.7082 What parts of my plant does this
- subpart cover?
- 83,7083 When do I have to comply with this subpart?

EMISSION LIMITATIONS

63.7090 What emission limitations must I meet?

General Compliance Requirements

63.7100 What are my general requirements for complying with this subpart?

TESTING AND INTIAL COMPLIANCE REQUIREMENTS

63,7110 By what date must I conduct performance tests and other initial compliance demonstrations?

- 63.7111 When must I conduct subsequent performance tests?
- 63.7112 What performance tests, design evalnations, and other procedures must I
- 63.7113 What are my monitoring installation, operation, and maintenance reonirements?
- 63.7114 How do I demonstrate initial compliance with the emission limitations standard?

CONTINUOUS COMPLIANCE REQUIREMENTS

- 63.7120 How do I monitor and collect data to demonstrate continuous compliance?
- 53.7121 How do I demonstrate continuous compliance with the emission limitations standard?

NOTIFICATIONS, REPORTS, AND RECORDS

- 63.7130 What notifications must I submit and when?
- 63.7131 What reports must I submit and
- 63.7132 What records must I keep? 63.7133 In what form and for how long must I keep my records?

OTHER REQUIREMENTS AND INFORMATION

- 63.7140 What parts of the General Provisions apply to me?
- 63.7141 Who implements and enforces this anbpart?
- 53.7142 What are the requirements for claiming area source status?
- 63.7143 What definitions apply to this subpart?
- TABLE 1 TO SUBPART AAAAA OF PART 53-EMISSION LIMITS
- TABLE 2 TO SUBPART AAAAA OF PART 53-OP-ERATING LIMITS TABLE 3 TO SUBPART AAAAA OF PART 63-DVI-
- TIAL COMPLIANCE WITH EXISSION LIMITS
 TABLE 1 TO SUBPART AAAAA OP PART 63—RB-
- QUIREMENTS FOR PERFORMANCE TESTS TABLE 5 TO SUBPART AAAAA OF PART SI-CONTINUOUS COMPLIANCE WITE OPERATING LIMOTA
- TABLE 6 TO SUBPART AAAAA OF PART 63-PERIODIO MONITORINO FOR COMPLIANCE WITH OPACITY AND VIRIBLE EMISSIONS LDams
- TABLE 7 TO SUBPART AAAAA OF PART 63-RE-QUIREMENTS FOR REPORTS
- TABLE 8 TO SUBPART AAAAA OF PART 63-AP-PLICABILITY OF GENERAL PROVISIONS TO Subpart AAAAA
- Subjoart BBBBB—National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutonis for Semiconductor Manufacturing

WHAT THIS SUBPART COVERS

63.7180 What is the purpose of this subpart? 63.7181 Am I subject to this subpart?

63.7182 What parts of my facility does this subpart cover?

63.7183 When do I have to comply with this subpart?

EMISSION STANDARDS

63.7184 What amission limitations, operating limits, and work practice standards must I meat?

COMPLIANCE REQUIREMENTS

63.7185 What are my general requirements for complying with this subpart?

63.7186 By what date must I conduct performance tests or other initial compliance demonstrations?

63,7187 What performance tests and other compliance procedures must I use?

63.7188 What are my monitoring installation, operation, and maintenance requiramenta?

Applications, Notifications, Reports, and RECORDS

63.7189 What applications and notifications must I submit and when?

53.7190 What reports must I submit and when?

63.7191 What records must I keep? 63.7192 In what form and how long must I keep my records?

OTHER REQUIREMENTS AND INFORMATION

63.7193. What parts of the General Provisions

apply to me? 63.7194 Who implements and enforces this subpart?

63,7198 What definitions apply to this subpart?

TABLE 1 TO SUBPART BREBB OF PART 83-RE-

QUIRROCOVES FOR PERFORMANCE TESTS
TABLE 2 TO SUSPART BERGS OF PART 63—AP-PLICABILITY OF GENERAL PROVISIONS TO BUBPART BERBE

Subport CCCCC—National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants for Coke Ovens: Pushing, Quenching, and **Battery Stacks**

WHAT THIS BURPART COVERS

63.7280 What is the purpose of this subpart? 63,7281 Am I subject to this subpart?

63.7282 What parts of my plant does this subpart cover?

83.7283 When do I have to comply with this subpart?

EMISSION LIMITATIONS AND WORK PRACTICE STANDARDS

63,7290 What emission limitations must I meet for capture systems and control devices applied to pushing emissions?

have a by-product coke oven battery with vertical fines?

63.7292 What work practice standards must I meet for fugitive pushing emissions if I have a by-product coke oven battery with horizontal flues?

63.7293 What work practice standards must I meet for fagitive pushing emissions if I have a non-recovery coke oven battery?

63.7294 What work practice standard must I meet for soaking?

63.7295 What requirements must I meet for ?gaidoasap?

63.7296 What emission limitations must I most for battery stacks?

OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE REQUIREMENTS

63.7300 What are my operation and maintenance requirements?

GENERAL COMPLIANCE REQUIREMENTS

63,7310 What are my general requirements for complying with this subpart?

INTIIAL COMPILANCE REQUIREMENTS

63.7320 By what date must I conduct performance tests or other initial compliance demonstrations?

83:7321 When must I conduct subsequent performance tests?

83.7322 What test methods and other procedurss must I use to demonstrate initial compliance with the amission limits for partionlate matter?

63.7323 What procedures must I use to establish operating limits?

53.7324 What procedures must I use to demonstrate initial compliance with the opacity limita?

83,7325 What test methods and other procedures must I use to demonstrate initial compliance with the TDS or constituent limits for quench water?

63.7326 How do I demonstrate initial compliance with the emission limitations that apply to mat

63,7327 How do I demonstrate initial compliabos with the work practice standards that apply to me?

83.7328 How do I demonstrate initial compliance with the operation and maintenance requirements that apply to me?

CONTINUOUS COMPLIANCE REQUIREMENTS

63.7330 What are my monitoring requiremants?

63.7331 What are the installation, operation, and maintenance requirements for my monitors?

63.7332 How do I monitor and collect data to demonstrate continuous compliance?

63.7333 How do I demonstrate continuous commission with the emission limita-

- 63.7334 How do I demonstrate continuous compliance with the work practice standards that apply to me?
- 63,7335 How do I demonstrate continuous compliance with the operation and maintenance requirements that apply to me?
- 63,7338 What other requirements must I meet to demonstrate continuous compliance?

NOTIFICATIONS, REPORTS, AND RECORDS

- 63,7340 What notifications must I submit fasdw ban?
- 63,7341 What reports must I submit and when?
- 63,7342 What records must I keep?
- 53,7343 In what form and how long must I keep my records?

OTHER REQUIREMENTS AND INFORMATION

- 63,7350 What parts of the General Provisions apply to ma?
- 53,7361 Who implements and enforces this subpart?
- 63.7352 What definitions apply to this subpart?
- TABLE 1 TO SUBPART CCCCO OF PART 63-AP-PLICABILITY OF GENERAL PROVISIONS TO SUBPART CCCCO
- Subport DDDDD-Notlonal Emission Standards for Hazardous Air Pollulants for Industrial, Commercial, and Institutional Bollers and Process Heaters

WHAT THIS SUBPART COVERS

- 63,7480 What is the purpose of this subpart? 63.7485 Am I subject to this subpart?
- 63,7490 What is the affected source of this subpart?
- 53,7491 Are any bollers or process heaters not subject to this subpart?
- 83,7495 When do I have to comply with this subpart?

EMBSION LIMITS AND WORK PRACTICE STANDARDS.

- 83.7499 What are the subcategories of boilers and process heaters?
- 63.7500 What emission limits, work practice standards, and operating limits must I meat?

GENERAL COMPLIANCE REQUIREMENTS

- 63,7505 What are my general requirements for complying with this subpart?
- 63.7508 Do any bollers or process heaters have limited requirements?
- 63.7507 What are the health-based compliance alternatives for the hydrogen chicride (HCI) and total selected metals (TSM) standards?

- TESTINO, FUEL ANALYSES, AND INITIAL COMPLIANCE REQUIREMENTS
- 53,7510 What are my initial compliance requirements and by what date must I conduct them?
- 63,7515 When must I conduct subsequent performance tests or fuel analyses?
- 53.7520 What performance tests and procedures must I use?
- 63.7521 What fuel analyses and procedures mast I ase?
- 63.7522 Can I use emission averaging to comply with this subpart?
- 83.7525 What are my monitoring, installation, operation, and maintenance requirements?
- 63,7530 How do I demonstrate initial compliance with the emission limits and work practice standards?

CONTINUOUS COMPLIANCE REQUIREMENTS

- 63.7535 How do I monitor and collect data to demonstrate continuous compliance?
- 63,7540 How do I demonstrate continuous compliance with the emission limits and
- work practice standards? 63.7641 How do I demonstrate continuous compliance under the emission averaging provision?

NOTIFICATIONS, REPORTS, AND RECORDS

- 63.7545 What notifications must I submit
- and when? 63.7550 What reports must I submit and when?
- 63,7555 What records must I keep? 63,7560 In what form and how long must I keep my records?

OTHER REQUIREMENTS AND INFORMATION

- 53.7888 What parts of the General Provisions apply to me?
- 53.7570 Who implements and enforces this subpart?
- 83.7575 What definitions apply to this subpart?
- TABLE 1 TO SUSPART DDDDD OF PART 63-EMISSION LIMITS AND WORK PRACTICE BTANDARDS
- TABLE 2 TO SUBPART DDDDD OF PART 63-OP-ERATING LIMITS FOR BOILERS AND PROC-ESS HEATERS WITH PARTICULATE MATTER EMISSION LIMITS
- TABLE 3 TO SURPART DDDDD OF PART 63-OP-ERATING LIMITS FOR BOILERS AND PROC-ESS HEATERS WITH MERCURY EMISSION LIMITS AND BOILERS AND PROCESS HEAT-ERS THAT CHOOSE TO COMPLY WITH THE ALTERNATIVE TOTAL SELECTED METALS Emission Limits
- TABLE 4 TO SUBPART DDDDD OF PART 63-OP-ERATING LIMITS FOR BOILERS AND PROCESS HEATERS WITH HYDROGEN CHLORIDS EMISSION LIMITS

TABLE 5 TO SUBPART DDDDD OF PART 63— PERFORMANCE TESTING REQUIREMENTS

TABLE 6 TO SUSPART DDDDD OF PART 83-FUEL ANALYSIS REQUIREMENTS

TABLE 7 TO SUPPART DDDDD OF PART 63—ES-TABLISHING OPERATING LIMITS

TABLE 8 TO SUBPART DDDDD OF PART 63— DEMONSTRATING CONTINUOUS COMPLIANCE TABLE 9 TO SUBPART DDDDD OF PART 63—RE-PORTING REQUIREMENTS

TABLE 10 TO SUBPART DDDDD OF PART 63— APPLICABILITY OF GENERAL PROVISIONS TO SUBPART DDDDD.

SUBPART DDDDD

APPENDIX A TO SUBPART DDDDD—METHOD
OLOGY AND CRITERIA FOR DEMONSTRATING
ELIOIBILITY FOR THE HEALTH-BASED COMPLIANCE ALTERNATIVES

Subpart EEEEE—National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants for Iron and Stael Foundries

WHAT THIS SUBPART COVERS .

63.7680 What is the purpose of this subpart? 63.7681 Am I subject to this subpart?

3.7682 What parts of my foundry does this subpart cover?

63.7683 When do I have to comply with this subpart?

EMBRIONE LIMITATIONS

63.7690. What emissions limitations must I. most?

Work Practice Standards

63.7700 What work practice standards must I meet?

OPERATION AND MAINTINANCE REQUIREMENTS

63.7710 What are my operation and maintenance requirements?

GENERAL COMPLIANCE REQUIREMENTS

63.7720 What are my general requirements for complying with this subpart?

INITIAL COMPLIANCE REQUIREMENTS

63.7730 By what date must I conduct performance tests or other initial compliance demonstrations?

63.7731 When must I conduct subsequent performance tests?

63.7732 What test methods and other procedures must I use to demonstrate initial compliance with the emissions limitations?

63.7733 What procedures must I use to establish operating limits?

63.7734 How do I demonstrate initial compliance with the emissions limitations that apply to me?

63.7738 How do I demonstrate initial compliance with the operation and maintenance requirements that apply to me?

CONTINUOUS COMPLIANCE REQUIREMENTS

63.7740 What are my monitoring requirements?

63.7741 What are the installation, operation, and maintenance requirements for my monitors?

53.7742 How do I monitor and collect data to demonstrate continuous compliance?

63.7743 How do I demonstrate continuous compliance with the emissions limitations that apply to me?

63.7744 How do I demonstrate continuous compliance with the work practice standards that apply to me?

63.7745 How do I demonstrate continuous compliance with the operation and maintenance requirements that apply to me? 63.7748 What other requirements must I

meet to demonstrate continuous compliance?

63.7747 How do I apply for alternative monitoring requirements for a continuous emissions monitoring system?

NOTIFICATIONS, REPORTS, AND RECORDS

63.7750 What notifications must I submit and when?

63,7761 What reports must I submit and when?

53,7752 What records must I keep?

63.7763 In what form and for how long must I keep my records?

OTHER REQUIREMENTS AND INFORMATION

63.7760 What parts of the General Provisions apply to me?

63.7761 Who implements and enforces this subpart?

DEFINITIONS

63.7765 What definitions apply to this subpart?

Takin'i To Burpart Emere of Part 63—Applicability of General Provisions to Burpart Remer

Subpart FFFFF—National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air Poliutants for Integrated from and Steel Manufacturing Focilities

WHAT THIS SUBPART COVERS

83.7780 What is the purpose of this subpart? 83.7781 Am I subject to this subpart?

83.7782 What parts of my plant does this

EMISSION LIMITATIONS

63,7790 What emission limitations must 1 meet?

OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE REQUIREMENTS

63.7800 What are my operation and maintenance requirements?

GENERAL COMPLIANCE REQUIREMENTS

63.7810 What are my general requirements for complying with this subpart?

INITIAL COMPLIANCE REQUIREMENTS

63.7820 By what date must I conduct performance tests or other initial compliance demonstrations?

63.7821 When must I conduct subsequent performance teats?

63.7822 What test methods and other procedures must I use to demonstrate initial compliance with the emission limits for particulate matter?

63.7823 What test methods and other procedures must I use to demonstrate initial compliance with the opacity limits?

63.7824 What test methods and other procedures must I use to establish and demonstrate initial compliance with the operating limits?

63.7825 How do I demonstrate initial compliance with the emission limitations that apply to me?

63.7826 How do I demonstrate initial compliance with the operation and maintenance requirements that apply to me?

CONTINUOUS COMPLIANCE REQUIREMENTS

63.7830 What are my monitoring requirements?

63.7831 What are the installation, operation, and maintenance requirements for my monitors?

63.7832 How do I monitor and collect data to demonstrate continuous compliance?

63.7833 How do I demonstrate continuous compliance with the amission limitations that apply to me?

63.7834 How do I demonstrate continuous compliance with the operation and maintenance requirements that apply to me?

53.7835 What other requirements must I meet to demonstrate continuous compliance?

NOTIFICATIONS, REPORTS, AND RECORDS

63.7840 What notifications must I submit and when?

63,7841 What reports must I submit and when?

63.7842 What records must I keep?

53.7843 In what form and how long must I keep my records?

OTHER REQUIREMENTS AND INFORMATION

63.7850 What parts of the General Provisions apply to me?

63.7851 Who implements and enforces this subpart?

63.7852 What definitions apply to this andpart?

TABLE 1 TO SUBPART FFFFF OF PART 83— EMISSION AND OPACITY LIMITS

TABLE 2 TO SUBPART FFFFF OF PART 63—INITIAL COMPLIANCE WITH EMISSION AND OPACITY LIMITS

TABLE 3 TO SUBPART FPPPP OF PART 63— CONTINUOUS COMPLIANCE WITH EMISSION AND OPACITY LIDITS

Table 4 to Subpart PFFFF of Part 53—Applicability of General Provisions to Subpart FFFFF

Subpart GGGGG—National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants: Site Remediation

WHAT THIS SUBPART COVERS

63,7880 What is the purpose of this subpart?

63,7881 Am I ambject to this subpart?

63.7882 What site remediation sources at my facility does this subpart affect?

63,7883 When do I have to comply with this subpart?

General Standards

53.7884 What are the general standards I must meet for each site remediation with affected sources?

63,7885 What are the general standards I must meet for my affected process vents? 63,7886 What are the general standards I must meet for my affected remediation

material management unite?

53.7887 What are the general standards I must meet for my affected equipment leak sources?

63.7888 How do I implement this rule at my facility using the cross-referenced requirements in other subparts?

PROCESS VENTS

63.7890 What emissions limitations and work practice standards must I meet for process yents?

53.7891 How do I demonstrate initial compliance with the emissions limitations and work practice standards for process vents?

63.7892 What are my inspection and monitoring requirements for process vents?

63.7863 How do I demonstrate continuous compliance with the emissions limitations and work practice standards for process vents?

TANTO

- 33.7895 What emissions limitations and work practice standards must I meet for tanks?
- 63.7896 How do I demonstrate initial compliance with the emissions limitations and work practice standards for tanks?
- 83.7897 What are my inspection and monitoring requirements for tanks?
- 53.7898 How do I demonstrate continuous compliance with the emissions limitations and work practice standards for tanks?

CONTAINERS

- 3.7900 What emissions limitations and work practice standards must I meet for containers?
- 63.7901 How do I demonstrate initial compliance with the emissions limitations and work practice standards for containers?
- 63.7902 What are my inspection and monitoring requirements for containers?
- 63.7903 How do I demonstrate continuous compliance with the emissions limitations and work practice standards for containers?

SURFACE IMPOUNDMENTS

- 63.7906 What emissions limitations and work practice standards must I meet for surface impoundments?
- 63.7908 How do I demonstrate initial compliance with the emissions limitations and work practice standards for surface impoundments?
- 63.7907 What are my inspection and monitoring requirements for surface impoundments?
- 63.7908 How do I demonstrate continuous compliance with the emissions limitations and work practice standards for surface impoundments?

SEPARATORS

- 83.7910 What emissions limitations and work practice standards must I meet for separators?
- 53.7911 How do I demonstrate initial compliance with the emissions limitations and work practice standards for separators?
- 83.7912 What are my inspection and monitoring requirements for separators?
- 53.7913 How do I demonstrate continuous compliance with the emissions limitations and work practice standards for separators?

Transper Systems

63.7915 What emissions limitations and work practice standards must I meet for

- work practice standards for transfer systems?
- 63.7917 What are my inspection and monitoring requirements for transfer systems?
- 63.7918 How do I demonstrate continuous compliance with the emissions limitations and work practice standards for transfer systems?

EQUIPMENT LEAKS

- 63.7920 What emissions limitations and work practice standards must I meet for equipment leaks?
- 63.792] How do I demonstrate initial compliance with the emissions limitations and work practice standards for equipment leaks?
- 83.7922 How do I demonstrate continuous compliance with the amissions limitations and work practice standards for equipment leake?
- CLOSED VENT SYSTEMS AND CONTROL DEVICES
- 63.7925 What emissions limitations and work practice standards must I meet for closed vent systems and control devices?
- 63.7928 How do I demonstrate initial compliance with the emissions limitations and work practice standards for closed vent systems and control devices?
- 63.7827 What are my inspection and monitoring requirements for closed went systems and control devices?
- 63,7928 How do I demonstrate continuous compliance with the emissions limitations and work practice, standards for closed yes systems and control devices;

GINERAL COMPLIANCE REQUIREMENTS

- 63.7935 What are my general requirements for complying with this subpart?
- \$3,788 What requirements must I meet if I transfer remediation material off-sits to another facility?
- 63.7937 How do I demonstrate initial compli-
- ance with the general standards? 83,7838 How do I demonstrate continuous compliance with the general standards?

PERFORMANCE TESTS

- 83.7940 By what date must I conduct performance tests or other initial compliance demonstrations?
- 63.7941 How do I conduct a performance test, design evaluation, or other type of initial compliance demonstration?
- 63.7942 When must I conduct subsequent performance tests?
- 83.7943 How do I determine the average VOHAP concentration of my remediation material?
 - Tow do I determine the maximum

CONTINUOUS MONITORING SYSTEMS

63.7945 What are my monitoring installa-tion, operation, and maintenance requirements?

63.7946 How do I monitor and collect data to demonstrate continuous compliance?

63,7947 What are my monitoring alter natives?

NOTIFICATIONS, REPORTS, AND RECORDS

63,7960 What notifications must I submit and when?

63,7951 What reports must I submit and when?

63.7962 What records must I keep?
63.7963 In what form and how long must I keep my records?

OTHER REQUIREMENTS AND INFORMATION

63,7955 What parts of the General Provisions apply to me? 63.7958 Who implements and enforces this

subpart? 63,7957 What definitions apply to this sub-

part? TABLE 1 TO SUSPART GOOGG OF PART 63-LIGT OF HAZARDOUS AIR POLLUTANTS

PARLE 2 TO SUBPART GGGGG OF PART 53-CONTROL LEVELS AS REQUIRED BY § 83.7896(A) FOR TANKS MANAGING REMEDI-ATION MATERIAL WITH A MAXIMUM HAP VAPOR PRESSURE LESS THAN 78.6 XPA

TABLE 3 TO SUBPART GGGGG OF PART 63-AP-PLICABILITY OF GENERAL PROVISIONS TO SUBPART GGGGG

Subpart HHHHH-National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air Poliutants: Miscellaneous Coating Manufacturing

WHAT THIS SUBPART COVERS

63.7960 What is the purpose of this subpart? 63,7965 Am I subject to the requirements in this subpart?

63,7990 What parts of my plant does this subpart cover?

COMPLIANCE DATES

63.7996 When do I have to comply with this subpart?

EMISSION LIMITS, WORK PRACTICE STANDARDS, AND COMPLIANCE REQUIREMENTS

63.8000 What are my general requirements for complying with this subpart?

63.8006 What requirements apply to my process vessels? 63.8010 What requirements apply to my

storage tanke? 63.8018 What requirements apply to my

equipment leaket 63.8020 What requirements apply to my wastewater streams?

63.8025 What requirements apply to my transfer operations?

63.8030 What requirements apply to my heat exchange systems?

ALTERNATIVE MEANS OF COMPLIANCE

83.8050 How do I comply with emissions averaging for stationary process vessels at existing sources?

83.8085 How do I comply with a weight percent HAP limit in coating products?

NOTIFICATIONS, REPORTS, AND RECORDS

63,8070 What notifications must I submit and when?

63,8075 What reports must I submit and

63,8080 What records must I keep?

OTHER REQUIREMENTS AND INFORNATION

63.8090 What compliance options do I have if part of my plant is subject to both this subpart and another subpart?

63.8095 What parts of the General Provisions apply to me? 63.8100 Who implements and enforces this

subpart?

83.8105 What definitions apply to this subpart?

TABLE 1 TO SUBPART HHHHHH OF PART 53-EMISSION LIMITS AND WORK PRACTICE STANDARDS FOR PROCESS VESSILS

TABLE 2 TO SUBPART HHHHH OF PART 63-EMBRION LIMITS AND WORK PRACTICE STANDARDS FOR STORAGE TANKS

Table 3 to Subpart Hihhh of Part 63—Re-Quirements for Equipment Leads

Table 4 to Subpart Haileh of Part 63— Embelon Limits and Work Practice Standards for Wastewater Streams

TABLE 5 TO SUBPART HHHHH OF PART 63-EMISSION LIMITS AND WORE PRACTICE STANDARDS FOR TRANSFER OPERATIONS TABLE 6 TO SUEPART HIGHH OF PART 3—RE-

QUIREMENTS FOR HEAT EXCHANGE SYS-TRACE

TABLE 7 TO SUBPART HHHHH OF PART 63-PARTIALLY SOLUBLE HAZARDOUS AIR POL-LUTANTS

TABLE 8 TO SUBPARY HHHHH OF PART 63-SOLUBLE HAZARDOUS AIR POLLUTAFIS

TABLE 9 TO SUBPART HHHHH OF PART 63-RE-QUIREMENTS FOR REPORTS

TABLE 10 TO SUSPART HHEHH OF PART 63-APPLICABILITY OF GENERAL PROVISIONS TO SUBPART HHHHH

Subport IIIII—National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants: Mercury Emissions from Morcury Cell Chlor-Alkali Plants

WHAT THIS SURPART COVERS

63,8180 What is the purpose of this subpart? 63.8182 Am I subject to this subpart? 53,8384 What parts of my plant does this subpart cover?

- 83,8188 When do I have to comply with this support?
- EMBBION LIMITATIONS AND WORK PRACTICE BTANDARDS
- 53.8190 What emission limitations must I mest?
- 63,8192 What work practice standards must I maat?
- OPERATION AND MADYTENANCE REQUIREMENTS
- 63.8222 What are my operation and maintenance requirementa?

GENERAL COMPLIANCE REQUIREMENTS

63.8228 What are my general requirements for complying with this subpart?

DIFFIAL COMPLIANCE REQUIREMENTS

- 83.8230 By what date must I conduct performance tests or other initial compliance demonstrations?
- 63.8232 What test methods and other procedures must I use to demonstrate initial compliance with the emission limits?
- 83,8234 What equations and procedures must I use for the initial compliance demonstration?
- 63.8288 How do I demonstrate initial compli-ance with the amission limitations and work practice standards?

CONTINUOUS COMPLIANCE REQUIREMENTS

- 63.8240 What are my monitoring requirementa?
- 63.8242 What are the installation, operation, and maintenance requirements for my continuous monitoring systems?
- 63.8243 What equations and procedures must I use to demonstrate continuous compliance?
- 83.8244 How do I monitor and collect data to demonstrate continuous compliance?
- 63.8248 How do I demonstrate continuous compliance with the emission limita-tions and work practice standards?
- 63,8248 What other requirements must I

NOTIFICATIONS, REPORTS, AND RECORDS

- 63.8252 What notifications must I submit and when?
- 83.8284 What reports must I submit and when?
- 63,8258 What records must I keep? 63,8258 In what form and how long must I keep my records?

OTHER REQUIREMENTS AND INFORMATION

83.8262 What parts of the General Provisions apply to ma? 63,8264 Who implements and enforces this

- TABLE 1 TO SUBPART IIII OF PART 63-WORK PRACTICE STANDARDS-DESIGN, OPER-ATION, AND MAINTENANCE REQUIREMENTS
- TABLE 2 TO SUBPART HILL OF PART 83-WORK PRACTICE STANDARDS-REQUIRED INSPEC-TIONS
- TABLE 3 TO SUBPART HILL OF PART 63-WORK PRACTICE STANDARDS-REQUIRED ACTIONS FOR LIQUID MERCURY SPILLS AND ACCUMU-LATIONS AND HYDROGEN AND MERCURY VAPOR LEAKS
- TABLE 4 TO SUBPART IIIII OF PART 63-WORK STANDARDS-REQUIREMENTS PRACTICE FOR MERCURY LIQUID COLLECTION
- TABLE 5 TO SUBPART HILL OF PART 83-RE-QUIRED ELEMENTS OF FLOOR-LEVEL MER-CURY VAPOR MEASUREMENT AND CELL ROOM MONITORING PLANS
- TABLE 5 TO SUBPART IIII OF PART 63-EXAM-PLES OF TECHNIQUES FOR EQUIPMENT PROBLEM IDENTIFICATION, LEAK DETEC-TION AND MERCURY VAPOR MEASURE-MENTS
- TABLE 7 TO SUSPART IIII OF PART 63-RE-QUIRED ELEMENTS OF WASHDOWN PLANS
- TABLE 8 TO SUSPART HILL OF PART 63-RE-QUIREMENTS FOR CELL BOOM MONITORING PROGRAM
- TABLE 9- TO SUBPART HILL OF PART 63-RE-QUIRED RECORDS FOR WORK PRACTICE STANDARDS
- TABLE 10 TO SUBPART IIIII OF PART 63-AP-PLICABILITY OF GENERAL PROVISIONS TO SUBPART IIIII
- Subpart 11111-National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air Poliutants for Brick and Structural Clay Products Monufacturina

WHAT THIS SUBPART COVERS

- 63,8380 What is the purpose of this subpart? 63,8385 Am I subject to this subpart?
- What parts of my plant does this 63_B390 subpart cover?
- 83.8395 When do I have to comply with this subpart?

KLUBBION LIMITATIONS

- 83,8405 What emission limitations must I mest?
- 83.8410 What are my options for meeting the emission limitations?

GENERAL COMPLIANCE REQUIREMENTS

- 63.8420 What are my general requirements for complying with this subpart?
- 63,8425 What do I need to know about operation, maintenance, and monitoring tage for

TESTING AND DITTAL COMPLIANCE REQUIREMENTS

- 63 8440 When must I conduct subsequent performance tests?
- 63.8445 How do I conduct performance tests and establish operating limits?
- 63.8460 What are my monitoring installation, operation, and maintenance reonirements?
- 63.8455 How do I demonstrate initial compliance with the emission limitations?

CONTINUOUS COMPLIANCE REQUIREMENTS

- 63.8465 How do I monitor and collect data to demonstrate continuous compliance?
- 63.8470 How do I demonstrate continuous compliance with the emission limitations?

NOTIFICATIONS, REPORTS, AND RECORDS

- 63.8480 What notifications must I submit and when?
- 63.8485 What reports must I submit and when?
- 63.8490 What records must I keep?
- 63.8495 In what form and for how long must I keep my records?

OTHER REQUIREMENTS AND INFORMATION

- 63.8505 What parts of the General Provisions apply to me? 53.8510 Who implements and enforces this
- subpart? 53.8515 What definitions apply to this sub-
- DATE? TABLE 1 TO SUBPART JJJJJ OF PART 53-
- EMISSION LIMITS TABLE 2 TO SURPART JJJJJ OF PART 63-OF-
- ERATING LIMITS
- TARLE 3 TO SUBPART JJJJJ OF PART 63-RE-QUIREMENTS FOR PERFORMANCE TESTS TABLE 4 TO SUBPART JJJJJ OF PART 63-Di-
- TIAL COMPLIANCE WITH EMISSION LIMITA-TIONS TABLE 5 TO SUBJECT JJJJJ OF PART 63-CON-
- TINUOUS COMPLIANCE WITH EMBSION LIM-ITS AND OPERATING LIMITS TABLE 8 TO SUPPART JJJJJ OF PART 63-RE-
- QUIREMENTS FOR REPORTS
- TABLE 7 TO SUBPART JUJJJ OF PART 63-AP PLICABILITY OF GENERAL PROVISIONS TO Subpart JJJJJ
- Subpart KKXXX—National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants for Clay Ceramics Manufacturina

WHAT THIS SUSPART COVERS

- 63.8530 What is the purpose of this subpart?
- 63.8535 Am I subject to this subpart?
- 63.8840 What parts of my plant does this subpart cover?
- 63.8545 When do I have to comply with this subpart?

- EMISSION LIMITATIONS AND WORK PRACTICE STANDARDS
- 63.8555 What emission limitations and work practice standards must I mest?
- 53.8560 What are my options for meeting the emission limitations and work practics standards?

GENERAL COMPLIANCE REQUIREMENTS

- 63.8570 What are my general requirements for complying with this subpart?
- 83.8575 What do I need to know about operation, maintenance, and monitoring plans?

TESTING AND INTITAL COMPLIANCE REQUIREMENTS

- 63.8585 By what date must I conduct performance testa?
- 63.8590 When must I conduct subsequent performance tests?
- 63.8595 How do I conduct performance tests and establish operating limits?
- 63.8800 What are my monitoring installation, operation, and maintenance requirements?
- 63.8605 How do I demonstrate initial compliance with the emission limitations and work practice standards?

CONTINUOUS COMPLIANCE REQUIREMENTS

- 53.8815 How do I monitor and collect data to demonstrate continuous compliance?
- 63.8620 How do I demonstrate continuous compliance with the emission limitations and work practice standards?

NOTIFICATIONS, REPORTS, AND RECORDS

- 53.8830 What notifications must I submit
- and when?

 63.8635 What reports must I submit and when?
- 53.8845 In what form and for how long must
 - I keep my records?

OTHER REQUIREMENTS AND INFORMATION

- 53.8888 What parts of the General Provisions apply to ma?
- 53.8860 Who implements and enforces this subpart?
- 63.8665 What definitions apply to this subpart?
- TABLE 1 TO SUBPART KKKKK OF PART 63-EMISSION LIMITS
- TABLE 2 TO SUBPART KKKKK OF PART 63-OP-ERATING LIMITS
- TABLE 3 TO SUSPART XXXXX OF PART 63-WORK PRACTICE STANDARDS TABLE 4 TO SUBPART KKKKK OF PART 53-RE-
- QUIRIMENTS FOR PERFORMANCE TESTS TABLE 5 TO SUSPART KKKKK OF PART 53-Dit-TIAL COMPLIANCE WITH EMBRION LIMITA-TIONS AND WORK PRACTICE STANDARDS

- TABLE 6 TO SUBPART KKKKK OF PART 63-CONTINUOUS COMPLIANCE WITH EMISSION LIMITATIONS AND WORK PRACTICE STAND-ARDR
- TABLE 7 TO SUBPART XXXXX OF PART 53—RE-QUIREMENTS FOR REPORTS
- TABLE 8 TO SUSPART KKKKK OF PART 63-AP-PLICABILITY OF GENERAL PROVISIONS TO SUBPART KKKKK
- Subpart LLLL—National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air Polititants: Asphalt Processing and Asphalt Roofing Manufacturing

What This Budpart Covers

- 63.8680 What is the purpose of this subpart?
- 63.8681 Am I subject to this subpart? What parts of my plant does this
- subpart cover? 63.8683 When must I comply with this subpart?

EMISSION LIMITATIONS

83.8884 What emission limitations must I mesti

· OENERAL COMPLIANCE REQUIREMENTS

63.8885 What are my general requirements for complying with this subpart?

TESTING AND DITTLAL COMPLIANCE REQUIREMENTS

- 63.8688 By what date must I conduct performance tests or other initial compliance demonstrations?
- 83.8687 What performance tests, design syalnations, and other procedures must I 16ag
- 83.8688 What are my monitoring installation, operation, and maintenance re-
- quirements?
 63.8889 How do I demonstrate initial compliance with the amission limitations?

CONTINUOUS COMPLIANCE REQUIREMENTS

- 63.8690 How do I monitor and collect data to demonstrate continuous compliance?
- 63.8691 How do I damonstrate continuous compliance with the operating limits?

NOTIFICATIONS, REPORTS, AND RECORDS

- 63.8692 What notifications must I submit and when?
- 63.8693 What reports must I submit and MDon?
- 63,8694 What records must I keep? 63,8695 In what form and how long must I keep my records?

OTHER REQUIREMENTS AND INFORMATION

occa What navis of the General Provisions

- 63.8698 What definitions apply to this subpart?
- TABLE 1 TO SUBPART LLLLL OF PART 63-EMBSION LIMITATIONS
- TABLE 2 TO SUBPART LLLLL OF PART 53-OP-ERATINO LIMITE
- TABLE 3 TO SUBPART LLLLL OF PART 63-RE-QUIREMENTS FOR PERFORMANCE TESTS
- TABLE 4 TO SUBPART LLLLL OF PART 63-DII-TIAL COMPLIANCE WITH EMISSION LIMITA-TIONS
- TABLE 5 TO SUBPART LLLLL OF PART 63-CONTINUOUS COMPLIANCE WITH OPERATINO
- TABLE 6 TO BUBPART LLLLL OF PART 63—RE-QUIREMENTS FOR REPORTS
- TABLE 7 TO SUBPART LLLLL OF PART 63-AP-PLICABILITY OF GENERAL PROVISIONS TO BUBPART LLLLL
- MMMM—National Emission Subpart Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants: Flexible Polyurethane Foam Fabrication Operations

WHAT THIS SUBPART COVERS

- 63,8780 What is the purpose of this subpart? 53.8782 Am I subject to this subpart?
- 63.8784 What parts of my plant does this andpart cover?
- 83.8785 When do I have to comply with this subpart?

EMISSION LIMITATIONS

63.8790 What emission limitations must I meet?

GENERAL COMPLIANCE REQUIREMENTS

63.8794 What are my general requirements for complying with this subpart?

TESTING AND INITIAL COMPLIANCE REQUIREMENTS

- 83.8798. By what date must I conduct parformance tests or other initial compliance demonstrations?
- 63.8800 What performance tests and other procedures must I use to demonstrate compliance with the emission limit for flame lamination?
- 63.8802 What methods must I use to damonatrate compliance with the emission limitation for loop alitter adhesive use?
- 63.8806 How do I demonstrate initial compilance with the emission limitations?
- Continuous Compliance Requirements 63.8810 How do I monitor and collect data to
- demonstrate continuous compliance?

NOTIFICATIONS, REPORTS, AND RECORDS

63.8816 What notifications must I submit

and when?
63.8818 What reports must I submit and when?

53.8820 What records must I keep?

63,8822 In what form and how long must I keep my records?

OTHER REQUIREMENTS AND INFORMATION

53.8828 What parts of the General Provisions

apply to me?
63.8828 Who implements and enforces this subpart?

63.8830 What definitions apply to this subpart?

TABLE 1 TO SUBPART MMMMMM OF PART 63-EMISSION LIMITS

TABLE 2 TO SUBPART MMMMMM OF PART 63-OPERATING LIMITS FOR NEW OR RECON-STRUCTED FLAME LAMINATION AFFECTED

TABLE 3 TO SUBPART MMMMMM OF PART 53-PERFORMANCE TEST REQUIREMENTS FOR NEW OR RECONSTRUCTED FLAME LAMINA-TION APPROTED BOURCES

TABLE 4 TO SUBPART MIMMMM OF PART 63-INITIAL COMPLIANCE WITH EMISSION LIM-

TABLE 5 TO SUBPART MMMMM OF PART 63-CONTINUOUS COMPLIANCE WITH EMISSION LIMITS AND OPERATING LIMITS

TABLE 8 TO SUBPART MMMMM OF PART 63-REQUIREMENTS FOR REPORTS

TABLE 7 TO SUBPART MIMMMM OF PART 63— APPLICABILITY OF GENERAL PROVISIONS TO SUBPART MIMMMM

AUTHORITY: 42 U.S.C. 7401 et seg.

SOURCE: 57 FR 81992, Dec. 29, 1992, unless otherwise noted.

Subpart 2222—National Emissions Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants for Stationary Reciprocating Internal Combustion Engines

SOURCE: 59 FR 33506, June 15, 2004, unless otherwise noted.

What This Subpart Covers

\$63.6580 What is the purpose of subpart ZZZZ?

Subpart ZZZZ establishes national emission limitations and operating limitations for hazardons air pollutants (HAP) emitted from stationary reciprocating internal combustion engines (RICE) located at major and area sources of HAP emissions. This subpart

also establishes requirements to demonstrate initial and continuous compliance with the emission limitations and operating limitations.

[73 FR 3603, Jan. 18, 2008]

\$63.6585 Am I subject to this subpart?

You are subject to this subpart if you own or operate a stationary RICE at a major or area source of HAP emissions, except if the stationary RICE is being tested at a stationary RICE test cell/ stand.

(a) A stationary RICE is any internal combustion engine which uses reciprocating motion to convert heat energy into mechanical work and which is not mobile. Stationary RICE differ from mobile RICE in that a stationary RICE is not a non-road engine as defined at 40 CFR 1068.30, and is not used to propel a motor vehicle or a vehicle used solely for competition.

(b) A major source of HAP emissions is a plant site that emits or has the potential to emit any single HAP at a rate of 10 tons (9.07 megagrams) or more per year or any combination of HAP at a rate of 25 tons (22.68 megagrams) or more per year, except that for oil and gas production facilities, a major source of HAP emissions is determined for each surface site.

(c) An area source of HAP emissions is a source that is not a major source.

(d) If you are an owner or operator of an area source subject to this subpart, your status as an entity subject to a standard or other requirements under this subpart does not subject you to the obligation to obtain a permit under 40 CFR part 70 or 71, provided you are not required to obtain a permit under 40 CFR 70.3(a) or 40 CFR 71.3(a) for a reason other than your status as an area source under this subpart. Notwithstanding the previous sentence, you must continue to comply with the provisions of this subpart as applicable.

(e) If you are an owner or operator of a stationary RICE used for national secorrity purposes, you may be sligible to request an exemption from the requirements of this subpart as described in 40 OFR part 1068, subpart C.

[69 FR 33506, June 15, 2004, as amended at 73 FR 3803, Jan. 18, 2008)

163.6590 What parts of my plant does this subpart cover?

This subpart applies to each affected source.

- (a) Affected source. An affected source is any existing, new, or reconstructed stationary RICE located at a major or area source of HAP emissions, excluding stationary RICE being tested at a stationary RICE test cell/stand.
 - (1) Existing stationary RICS.
- (i) For stationary RIOE with a site rating of more than 500 brake horse-power (HP) located at a major source of HAP emissions; a stationary RIOE is existing if you commenced construction or reconstruction of the stationary RIOE before December 19, 2002.
- (ii) For stationary RICE with a site rating of less than or equal to 500 brake HP located at a major source of HAP emissions, a stationary RICE is existing if you commenced construction or reconstruction of the stationary RICE before June 12, 2006.
- (iii) For stationary RICE located at an area source of HAP emissions, a stationary RICE is existing if you commenced construction or reconstruction of the stationary RICE before June 12,
- (iv) A change in ownership of an existing stationary RICE does not make that stationary RICE a new or reconstructed stationary RICE.
- (2) New stationary RICE. (1) A stationary RICE with a site rating of more than 500 brake HP located at a major source of HAP emissions is new if you commenced construction of the stationary RICE on or after December 19, 2002.
- (ii) A stationary RICE with a site rating of equal to or less than 500 brake HP located at a major source of HAP emissions is new if you commenced construction of the stationary RICE on or after June 12, 2006.
- (iii) A stationary RICE located at an area source of HAP emissions is new if you commenced construction of the stationary RICE on or after June 12, 2006.
- (3) Reconstructed stationary RICE. (1) A stationary RICE with a site rating of more than 500 brake HP located at a

struction is commenced on or after December 19, 2002.

- (ii) A stationary RICE with a site rating of equal to or less than 500 brake HP located at a major source of HAP emissions is reconstructed if you meet the definition of reconstruction in \$63.2 and reconstruction is commenced on or after June 12, 2008.
- (iii) A stationary RICE located at an area source of HAP emissions is reconstructed if you meet the definition of reconstruction in §63.2 and reconstruction is commenced on or after June 12, 2006.
- (b) Stationary RICE subject to limited requirements. (1) An affected source which meets either of the criteria in paragraphs (b)(1)(1) through (ii) of this section does not have to meet the requirements of this subpart and of subpart A of this part except for the initial notification requirements of §63.6845(f).
- (i) The stationary RICE is a new or reconstructed emergency stationary. RICE with a site rating of more than 500 brake HP located at a major source of HAP emissions.
- (ii) The stationary RICE is a new or reconstructed limited use stationary RICE with a site rating of more than 500 brake HP located at a major source of HAP emissions.
- (2) A new or reconstructed stationary RICE with a site rating of more than 500 brake HP located at a major source of HAP emissions which combusts landfill or digester gas equivalent to 10 percent or more of the gross heat input on an annual basis must meet the initial notification requirements of \$63.6656(1) and the requirements of \$63.6655(0), \$3.6650(g), and \$3.6655(0). These stationary RICE do not have to meet the emission limitations and operating limitations of this subpart.
- (3) A stationary RICE which is an existing spark ignition 4 stroke rich burn (48RB) stationary RICE located at an area source of HAP emissions; an existing spark ignition 48RB stationary RICE with a site rating of less than or equal to 500 brake HP located at a major source of HAP emissions; an existing spark ignition 2 stroke lean burn and the stationary RICE: an existing

compression ignition emergency stationary RICE with a site rating of more than 500 brake HP located at a major source of HAP emissions; an existing spark ignition emergency or limited use stationary RICE; an existing limited use stationary RICE with a site rating of more than 500 brake HP located at a major source of HAP emissions; an existing stationary RICE that combusts landfill gas or digester gas equivalent to 10 percent or more of the gross heat input on an annual basis; or an existing stationary residential, commercial, or institutional emergency stationary RICE located at an area source of HAP emissions, does not have to meet the requirements of this subpart and of subpart A of this part. No initial notification is necessary.

(c) Stationary RICE subject to Regulations under 40 CFR Part 60. An affected source that is a new or reconstructed stationary RICE located at an area source, or is a new or reconstructed stationary RICE located at a major source of HAP emissions and is a spark ignition 2 stroke lean burn (2SLB) stationary RICE with a site rating of less than 500 brake HP, a spark ignition 4 stroke lean burn (48LB) stationary RICE with a site rating of less than 250 brake HP, or a 4 stroke rich burn (48RB) stationary RICE with a site rating of less than or equal to 500 brake HP, a stationary RICE with a site rating of less than or equal to 500 brake HP which combusts landfill or digester gas equivalent to 10 percent or more of the gross heat input on an annual basis, an emergency or limited use stationary RICE with a site rating of less than or equal to 500 brake HP, or a compression ignition (CI) stationary RICE with a site rating of less than or equal to 500 brake HP, must meet the requirements of this part by meeting the requirements of 40 OFR part 60 subpart IIII, for compression ignition engines or 40 CFR part 60 subpart JJJJ, for spark ignition engines. No further requirements apply for such engines under this part.

[69 FR 33506, June 15, 2004, as amended at 73 FR 3504, Jan. 18, 2005, 75 FR 9674, Mar. 3, 2010, 75 FR 37733, June 30, 2010]

\$63.6595 When do I have to comply with this subpart?

(a) Affected sources. (1) If you have an existing stationary RICE, excluding existing non-emergency CI stationary RICE, with a site rating of more than 500 brake HP located at a major source of HAP emissions, you must comply with the applicable emission limitations and operating limitations no later than June 15, 2007. If you have an existing non-emergency CI stationary RICE with a site rating of more than 500 brake HP located at a major source of HAP emissions, an existing stationary CI RICE with a site rating of less than or equal to 500 brake HP located at a major source of HAP emissions, or an existing stationary CI RICE located at an area source of HAP emissions, you must comply with the applicable emission limitations and operating limitations no later than May

(2) If you start up your new or reconstructed stationary RICE with a site rating of more than 500 brake HP located at a major source of HAP emissions before August 18, 2004, you must comply with the applicable emission limitations and operating limitations in this subpart no later than August 18, 2004.

(3) If you start up your new or reconstructed stationary RICE with a site rating of more than 500 brake HP located at a major source of HAP emissions after August 18, 2004, you must comply with the applicable emission limitations and operating limitations in this subpart upon startup of your affected source.

(4) If you start up your new or reconstructed stationary RICE with a site rating of less than or equal to 500 brake HP located at a major source of HAP emissions before January 18, 2008, you must comply with the applicable emission limitations and operating limitations in this subpart no later than January 18, 2008.

(5) If you start up your new or reconstructed stationary RICE with a site rating of less than or equal to 500 brake HP located at a major source of HAP emissions after January 18, 2008, you

must comply with the applicable emission limitations and operating limitations in this subpart upon startup of your affected source.

(6) If you start up your new or reconstructed stationary RICE located at an area source of HAP emissions before January 18, 2008, you must comply with the applicable emission limitations and operating limitations in this subpart no later than January 18, 2008,

(7) If you start up your new or reconstructed stationary RICE located at an area source of HAP emissions after January 18, 2008, you must comply with the applicable emission limitations and operating limitations in this subpart upon startup of your affected source.

(b) Area sources that become major sources. If you have an area source that increases its emissions or its potential to emit such that it becomes a major source of HAP, the compliance dates in paragraphs (b)(1) and (2) of this section apply to you.

(1) Any stationary RICE for which construction or reconstruction is commenced after the date when your area source becomes a major source of HAP must be in compliance with this subpart upon startup of your affected source.

(2) Any stationary RIOB for which construction or reconstruction is commenced before your area source becomes a major source of HAP must be in compliance with the provisions of this subpart that are applicable to RIOE located at major sources within 3 years after your area source becomes a major source of HAP.

(0) If you own or operate an affected source, you must meet the applicable notification requirements in §63.6845 and in 40 CFR part 63, subpart A.

[69 FR 33506, June 15, 2004, as amended at 73 FR 3604, Jan. 1B, 2008; 75 FR 9675, Mar. 3, 2010]

EMIBBION AND OPERATING LIMITATIONS

\$63.6600 What emission limitations and operating limitations must I meet if I own or operate a stationary RICE with a site rating of more than 500 brake HP located at a major source of HAP emissions?

using the testing requirements and procedures in §63.6620 and Table 4 to this subpart.

(a) If you own or operate an existing, new, or reconstructed spark ignition iSRB stationary RICE with a site rating of more than 500 brake HP located at a major source of HAP emissions, you must comply with the emission limitations in Table la to this subpart and the operating limitations in Table 1b to this subpart which apply to you.

(b) If you own or operate a new or reconstructed 2SLB stationary RICE with a site rating of more than 500 brake HP located at major source of HAP emissions, a new or reconstructed 4SLB stationary RICE with a site rating of more than 500 brake HP located at major source of HAP emissions, or a new or reconstructed CI stationary RICE with a site rating of more than 500 brake HP located at a major source of HAP emissions, you must comply with the emission limitations in Table 2a to this subpart and the operating limitations in Table 2b to this subpart which apply to you.

(0) If you own or operate any of the following stationary RICE with a site rating of more than 500 brake HP located at a major source of HAP emissions, you do not need to comply with the emission limitations in Tables la, 2a, 2a, and 2d to this subpart or operating limitations in Tables 1b and 2b to this subpart: an existing 28LB stationary RICE; an existing 48LB stationary RICE; a stationary RICE that combusts landfill gas or digester gas equivalent to 10 percent or more of the gross heat input on an annual basis; an emergency stationary RICE; or a limited use stationary RICE.

(d) If you own or operate an existing non-emergancy stationary CI RICE with a site rating of more than 500 brake HP located at a major source of HAP emissions, you must comply with the emission limitations in Table 2c to this subpart and the operating limitations in Table 2b to this subpart which

§ 63.6601 What emission limitations must I meet if I own or operate a 45LB stationary RICE with a site rating of greater than or equal to 250 brake HP and less than 500 brake HP located at a major source of HAP emissions?

Compliance with the numerical emission limitations established in this subpart is based on the results of testing the average of three 1-hour runs using the testing requirements and procedures in \$63.6620 and Table 4 to this subpart. If you own or operate a new or reconstructed 4SLB stationary RICE with a site rating of greater than or equal to 250 and less than or equal to 500 brake HP located at major source of HAP emissions manufactured on or after January 1, 2008, you must comply with the emission limitations in Table 2a to this subpart and the operating limitations in Table 2b to this subpart which apply to you.

[73 FR 3605, Jan. 18, 2008, as amended at 75 FR 9675, Mar. 3, 2010]

§ 63.6602 What emission limitations must I meet if I own or operate an existing stationary CI RICE with a site rating of equal to or less than 500 brake HP located at a major source of HAP emissions?

If you own or operate an existing stationary CI RICE with a site rating of equal to or less than 500 brake HP located at a major source of HAP emissions, you must comply with the emission limitations in Table 2c to this subpart which apply to you. Compliance with the numerical emission limitations established in this subpart is based on the results of testing the average of three 1-hour runs using the testing requirements and procedures in §63,6620 and Table 4 to this subpart.

. [75 FR 9675, Mar. 3, 2010]

§ 63.6603 What emission limitations and operating limitations must I meet if I own or operate an existing stationary CI RICE located at an area source of HAP emissions?

Compliance with the numerical emission limitations established in this subpart is based on the results of testing the average of three 1-hour runs using the testing requirements and

procedures in \$63,6620 and Table 4 to this subpart.

(a) If you own or operate an existing stationary CI RICE located at an area source of HAP emissions, you must comply with the requirements in Table 2d to this subpart and the operating limitations in Table 2b to this subpart which apply to you.

(b) If you own or operate an existing stationary non-emergency CI RICE greater than 300 HP located at area sources in areas of Alaska not accessible by the Federal Aid Highway System (FAHS) you do not have to meet the numerical CO emission limitations specified in Table 2d to this subpart. Existing stationary non-emergency CI RICE greater than 300 HP located at area sources in areas of Alaska not accessible by the FAHS must meet the management practices that are shown for stationary non-emergency CI RICE less than or equal to 300 HP in Table 2d to this subpart.

(75 FR 9675, Mar. 3, 2010)

§ 63.6604 What fuel requirements must I meet if I own or operate an existing stationary CI RICE?

If you own or operate an existing non-emergency CI stationary RICE with a site rating of more than 300 brake HP with a displacement of less than 30 liters per cylinder that uses diesel fuel, you must use diesel fuel that meets the requirements in 40 CFR 80.510(b) for nonroad diesel fuel. Existing non-emergency CI stationary RICE located in Gnam, American Samoa, the Commonwealth of the Northern Mariana Islands, or at area sources in areas of Alaska not accessible by the FAHS are exempt from the requirements of this section.

[75 PR 9675, Mar. 3, 2010]

GENERAL COMPLIANCE REQUIREMENTS

- § 63.6605 What are my general requirements for complying with this subpart?
- (a) You must be in compliance with the amission limitations and operating limitations in this subpart that apply to you at all times.
- (b) At all times you must operate and maintain any affected source, including associated air pollution control

equipment and monitoring equipment, in a manner consistent with safety and good air pollution control practices for minimizing emissions. The general duty to minimize emissions does not require you to make any further efforts to reduce emissions if levels required by this standard have been achieved. Determination of whether such operation and maintenance procedures are being used will be based on information available to the Administrator which may include, but is not limited to, monitoring results, review of operation and maintenance procedures, review of operation and maintenance records, and inspection of the source.

[75 PR 9875, Mar. 3, 2010]

TESTING AND INITIAL COMPLIANCE REQUIREMENTS

i63.6610 By what date must I conduct the initial performance tests or other initial compliance demonstrations if I own or operate a stationary RICE with a site rating of more than 500 brake HP located at a major source of HAP emissions?

If you own or operate a stationary RIOE with a site rating of more than 500 brake HP located at a major source of HAP emissions you are subject to the requirements of this section.

(a) You must conduct the initial performance test or other initial compliance demonstrations in Table 4 to this subpart that apply to you within 180 days after the compliance date that is specified for your stationary RICE in §63,6595 and according to the provisions in §63,7(a)(2).

(b) If you commenced construction or reconstruction between December 19, 2002 and June 18, 2004 and own or operate stationary RICE with a site rating of more than 500 brake HP located at a major source of HAP emissions, you must demonstrate initial compliance with either the proposed emission limitations or the promulgated emission limitations no later than February 10, 2005 or no later than 180 days after startup of the source, whichever is later, according to §63.7(a)(2)(ix).

(a) If you commenced construction or

major source of HAP emissions, and you chose to comply with the proposed emission limitations when demonstrating initial compliance, you must conduct a second performance test to demonstrate compliance with the promulgated emission limitations by December 13, 2007 or after startup of the source, whichever is later, according to §63.7(a)(2)(ix).

(d) An owner or operator is not required to conduct an initial performance test on units for which a performance test has been previously conducted, but the test must meet all of the conditions described in paragraphs (dX1) through (5) of this section.

(1) The test must have been conducted using the same methods specified in this subpart, and these methods must have been followed correctly.

(2) The test must not be older than 2 years.

(3) The test must be reviewed and accepted by the Administrator.

(4) Either no process or equipment changes must have been made since the test was performed, or the owner or operator must be able to demonstrate that the results of the performance test, with or without adjustments, reliably demonstrate compliance despite process or equipment changes.

(5) The test must be conducted at any load condition within plus or minus 10 percent of 100 percent load.

[69 FR 33506, June 15, 2004, as amended at 73 FB 3605, Jan. 18, 2008]

§63.6611 By what date must I conduct the initial performance tests or other initial compliance demonstrations if I own or operate a 4SLB SI stationary RICE with a site rating of greater than or equal to 250 and less than or equal to 500 brake HP located at a major source of HAP emissions?

If you own or operate a new or reconstructed 48LB stationary RICE with a site rating of greater than or equal to 250 and less than or equal to 500 brake HP located at a major source of HAP

and according to the provisions specified in Table 4 to this subpart, as appropriate.

[73 FR 3605, Jan. 18, 2008]

§ 83.6612 By what date must I conduct the initial performance tests or other initial compliance demonstrations if I own or operate an existing stationary RICE with a site rating of less than or equal to 500 brake HP located at a major source of HAP emissions or an existing stationary RICE located at an area source of HAP emissions?

If you own or operate an existing CI stationary RICE with a site rating of less than or equal to 500 brake HP located at a major source of HAP emissions or an existing stationary CI RICE located at an area source of HAP emissions you are subject to the requirements of this section.

- (a) You must conduct any initial performance test or other initial compliance demonstration according to Tables 4 and 5 to this subpart that apply to you within 180 days after the compliance date that is specified for your stationary RICE in \$63.6595 and according to the provisions in \$63.7(a)(2).
- (b) An owner or operator is not required to conduct an initial performance test on a unit for which a performance test has been previously conducted, but the test must meet all of the conditions described in paragraphs (b)(1) through (4) of this section.
- (1) The test must have been conducted using the same methods specified in this subpart, and these methods must have been followed correctly.
- (2) The test must not be older than 2 years.
- (3) The test must be reviewed and accepted by the Administrator.
- (4) Either no process or equipment changes must have been made since the test was performed, or the owner or operator must be able to demonstrate that the results of the performance test, with or without adjustments, reliably demonstrate compliance despite process or equipment changes.

[75 FR 9676, Mar. 3, 2010]

§63,6615 When must I conduct subsequent performance tests?

If you must comply with the emission limitations and operating limitations, you must conduct subsequent performance tests as specified in Table 3 of this subpart.

§ 63.6620 What performance tests and other procedures must I use?

- (a) You must conduct each performance test in Tables 3 and 4 of this subpart that applies to you.
- (b) Each performance test must be conducted according to the requirements that this subpart specifies in Table 4 to this subpart. If you own or operate a non-operational stationary RICE that is subject to performance testing, you do not need to start up the engine solely to conduct the performance test. Owners and operators of a non-operational engine can conduct the performance test when the engine is started up again.
 - (c) [Reserved]
- (d) You must conduct three separate test runs for each performance test required in this section, as specified in \$53.7(e)(3). Each test run must last at least 1 hour.
- (e)(1) You must use Equation 1 of this section to determine compliance with the percent reduction requirement:

$$\frac{C_i - C_o}{C_i} \times 100 = R \qquad \text{(Eq. 1)}$$

Where:

O_i = concentration of CO or formaldehyde at the control device injet,

O_e = concentration of CO or formaldehyde at the control device outlet, and

R = percent reduction of CO or formaldehyde emissions.

(2) You must normalize the carbon monoxide (CO) or formaldehyde concentrations at the inlet and ontlet of the control device to a dry basis and to 15 percent oxygen, or an equivalent percent carbon dioxide (CO₂). If polluteant concentrations are to be corrected to 15 percent oxygen and CO₂ concentration is measured in lieu of oxygen concentration measurement, a CO₂ correction factor is needed. Calculate the CO₂ correction factor as described in paragraphs (e)(2)(i) through (iii) of this section.

(i) Calculate the fuel-specific F. value for the fuel burned during the test using values obtained from Method 19, section 5.2, and the following equa-

$$F_0 = \frac{0.209 \, F_0}{F_0}$$
 (Eq. 2)

Where

Pa = Puel factor based on the ratio of oxygen volume to the ultimate CO2 volume produced by the fuel at zero percent excess

0.209 = Praction of air that is oxygen, percant/100.

Ya = Ratio of the volume of dry effluent gas to the gross calorific value of the fuel from Method 19, dam WJ (dact/10° Btu).

". " Ratio of the volume of OO2 produced to the gross calorific value of the fuel from Method 19, dam 4J (dect/100 Btu).

(ii) Calculate the CO2 correction factor for correcting measurement data to 15 percent oxygen, as follows:

$$X_{\infty_2} = \frac{5.9}{F}$$
 (Eq. 3)

Where:

X_{out} = CO₂ correction factor, possessed, 5.9 = 20.9 percent O₂-15 percent O₂, the defined O2 correction value, percent.

(iii) Calculate the NOx and SO2 gas concentrations adjusted to 15 percent O2 using CO2 as follows:

$$C_{adj} = C_d \frac{X_{co_2}}{\%CO_2}$$
 (Eq. 4)

 $\%00_2 = Measured 00_2$ concentration measured, dry basis, percent.

(f) If you comply with the emission limitation to reduce CO and you are not using an oxidation catalyst, if you comply with the emission limitation to reduce formaldshyde and you are not using NSCR, or if you comply with the emission limitation to limit the concontration of formaldehyde in the stationary RIOE exhaust and you are not using an oxidation catalyst or NSCR. you must petition the Administrator, for operating limitations to be established during the initial performance

petition has been approved by the Administrator.

(g) If you petition the Administrator for approval of operating limitations. your petition must include the information described in paragraphs (g)(1) through (5) of this section.

(1) Identification of the specific parameters you propose to use as oper-

ating limitations;

(2) A discussion of the relationship between these parameters and HAP emissions, identifying how HAP emissions change with changes in these parameters, and how limitations on these parameters will serve to limit HAP emissions:

(3) A discussion of how you will establish the upper and/or lower values for these parameters which will establish the limits on these parameters in the operating limitations:

(4) A discussion identifying the methods you will use to measure and the instruments you will use to monitor these parameters, as well as the relative accuracy and precision of these methods and instruments; and

(5) A discussion identifying the frequency and methods for recalibrating the instruments you will use for moni-

toring these parameters.

(h) If you petition the Administrator for approval of no operating limitations, your petition must include the information described in paragraphs (h)(1) through (7) of this section.

- (1) Identification of the parameters associated with operation of the stationary RICE and any amission control device which could change intentionally (e.g., operator adjustment, automatic controller adjustment, etc.) or unintentionally (e.g., wear and tear, error, etc.) on a routine basis or over time:
- (2) A discussion of the relationship, if any, between changes in the parameters and changes in HAP emissions;
- (3) For the parameters which could change in such a way as to increase HAP emissions, a discussion of whether establishing limitations on the parameters would serve to limit HAP emis-

(4) For the neremeters which could

values for the parameters which would establish limits on the parameters in operating limitations;

(5) For the parameters, a discussion identifying the methods you could use to measure them and the instruments you could use to monitor them, as well as the relative accuracy and precision of the methods and instruments;

(6) For the parameters, a discussion identifying the frequency and methods for recalibrating the instruments you could use to monitor them; and

(7) A discussion of why, from your point of view, it is infeasible or unreasonable to adopt the parameters as operating limitations.

(i) The engine percent load during a performance test must be determined by documenting the calculations, assumptions, and measurement devices used to measure or estimate the percent load in a specific application. A written report of the average percent load determination must be included in the notification of compliance status. The following information must be included in the written report: the engine model number, the engine manufacturer, the year of purchase, the manufacturer's site-rated brake horsepower, the ambient temperature, pressure, and humidity during the performance test, and all assumptions that were made to estimate or calculate percent load during the performance test must be clearly explained. If measurement devices such as flow meters, kilowatt meters, beta analyzers, stain ganges, etc. are used, the model number of the measprement device, and an estimate of its accurate in percentage of true value

[69 FR 33506, June 15, 2004, as amended at 75 FR 9676, Mar. 3, 2010]

must be provided.

\$63.6625 What are my monitoring, installation, collection, operation, and maintenance requirements?

(a) If you elect to install a CEMS as specified in Table 5 of this subpart, you must install, operate, and maintain a CEMS to monitor CO and either oxygen or CO, at both the inlet and the outlet of the control device according to the requirements in paragraphs (a)(1) through (4) of this section.

(1) Each CEMS must be installed, operated, and maintained according to

the applicable performance specifications of 40 CFR part 60, appendix B.

(2) You must conduct an initial performance evaluation and an annual relative accuracy test audit (RATA) of each CEMS according to the requirements in §63.8 and according to the applicable performance specifications of 40 CFR part 60, appendix B as well as daily and periodic data quality checks in accordance with 40 CFR part 60, appendix F, procedure 1.

(3) As specified in \$63.8(c)(4)(ii), each CEMS must complete a minimum of one cycle of operation (sampling, analyzing, and data recording) for each successive 15-minute period. You must have at least two data points, with each representing a different 15-minute period, to have a valid hour of data.

(4) The CEMS data must be reduced as specified in §63.8(g)(2) and recorded in parts per million or parts per billion (as appropriate for the applicable limitation) at 15 percent oxygen or the equivalent CO₂ concentration.

(b) If you are required to install a continuous parameter monitoring system (CPMS) as specified in Table 5 of this subpart, you must install, operate, and maintain each CPMS according to the requirements in §63.8.

(c) If you are operating a new or reconstructed stationary RICE which fires landfill gas or digester gas equivalent to 10 percent or more of the gross heat input on an annual basis, you must monitor and record your fuel usage daily with separate fuel meters to measure the volumetric flow rate of each fuel, In addition, you must operate your stationary RICE in a manner which reasonably minimizes HAP emissions...

(d) If you are operating a new or reconstructed emergency 48LB stationary RICE with a site rating of greater than or equal to 250 and less than or equal to 500 brake HP located at a major source of HAP emissions, you must install a non-resettable hour meter prior to the startup of the engine.

(e) If you own or operate an existing stationary RICE with a site rating of less than 100 brake HP located at a major source of HAP emissions, an existing stationary emergency RICE, or an existing stationary RICE located at

an area source of HAP emissions not subject to any numerical emission standards shown in Table 2d to this subpart, you must operate and maintain the stationary RIOE and aftertreatment control device (if any) according to the manufacturer's emission-related written instructions or develop your own maintenance plan which must provide to the extent practicable for the maintenance and operation of the engine in a manner consistent with good air pollution control practice for minimizing emissions.

(1) If you own or operate an existing emergency stationary RICE with a site rating of less than or equal to 500 brake HP located at a major source of HAP emissions or an existing emergency stationary RICE located at an area source of HAP emissions, you must install a non-resettable hour meter if one

is not already installed.

(g) If you own or operate an existing non-emergency CI engine greater than or equal to 300 HP that is not equipped with a closed crankcase ventilation system, you must comply with either paragraph (g)(1) or paragraph (g)(2) of this section. Owners and operators must follow the manufacturer's specifled maintenance requirements for operating and maintaining the open or closed crankoase ventilation systems and replacing the crankcase filters, or can request the Administrator to approve different maintenance requirements that are as protective as manufacturer requirements. Existing OI engines located at area sources in areas of Alaska not accessible by the FAHS do not have to meet the requirements of paragraph (g) in this section.

(1) Install a closed crankcase ventilation system that prevents crankcase emissions from being emitted to the at-

mosphere, or

(2) Install an open crankcase filtration emission control system that reduces emissions from the crankcase by filtering the exhaust stream to remove oil mist, particulates, and metals.

(h) If you operate a new or existing stationary engine, you must minimize the engine's time spent at idle during startum and minimize the engine's

which time the emission standards applicable to all times other than startup in Tables 1a, 2a, 2c, and 2d to this sub-

part apply.

(i) If you own or operate a stationary engine that is subject to the work, operation or management practices in items 1, 2, or 4 of Table 2c to this subpart or in items 1 or 4 of Table 2d to this subpart, you have the option of utilizing an oil analysis program in order to extend the specified oil change requirement in Tables 2c and 2d to this subpart. The oil analysis must be performed at the same frequency specified for changing the oil in Table 20 or 2d to this subpart. The analysis program must at a minimum analyze the following three parameters: Total Base Number, viscosity, and percent water content. The condemning limits for these parameters are as follows: Total Base Number is less than 30 percent of the Total Base Number of the oil when new; viscosity of the oil has changed by more than 20 percent from the viscosity of the oil when new; or percent water content (by volume) is greater than 0.5. If all of these condemning limits are not exceeded, the engine owner or operator is not required to change the oil. If any of the limits are exceeded, the angine owner or operator must change the oil before continuing to use the engine. The owner or operator must keep records of the parameters that are analyzed as part of the program, the results of the analysis, and the oil changes for the engine. The analysis program must be part of the maintenance plan for the engine.

[69 FR 33505, June 15, 2004, as amended at 73 FR 3806, Jan. 18, 2008; 75 FR 9875, Mar. 3, 2010]

§63.6630 How do I demonstrate initial compliance with the emission limitations and operating limitations?

(a) You must demonstrate initial compliance with each emission and operating limitation that applies to you according to Table 5 of this subpart.

(b) During the initial performance test, you must establish each operating limitation in Tables 1b and 2b of this results of the initial compliance demonstration according to the requirements in §63.6645.

CONTINUOUS COMPLIANCE REQUIREMENTS

- §63.6635 How do I monitor and collect data to demonstrate continuous compliance?
- (a) If you must comply with emission and operating limitations, you must monitor and collect data according to this section.
- (b) Except for monitor malfunctions, associated repairs, and required quality assurance or control activities (including, as applicable, calibration checks and required zero and span adjustments), you must monitor continuously at all times that the stationary RICE is operating.
- (c) You may not use data recorded during monitoring malfunctions, associated repairs, and required quality assurance or control activities in data averages and calculations used to report emission or operating levels. You must, however, use all the valid data collected during all other periods.
- § 63.6640 How do I demonstrate continuous compliance with the emission limitations and operating limitations?
- (a) You must demonstrate continuous compliance with each emission limitation and operating limitation in Tables 1a and 1b, Tables 2a and 2b, Table 2c, and Table 2d to this subpart that apply to you according to methods specified in Table 6 to this subpart.
- (b) You must report each instance in which you did not meet each emission limitation or operating limitation in Tables la and lb, Tables 2a and 2b, Table 2c, and Table 2d to this subpart that apply to you. These instances are deviations from the emission and operating limitations in this subpart. These deviations must be reported according to the requirements in 163.6650. If you change your catalyst, you must recetablish the values of the operating parameters measured during the initial performance test. When you reestablish the values of your operating parameters, you must also conduct a performance test to demonstrate that you are meeting the required emission lim-

itation applicable to your stationary RICE.

- (c) [Reserved]
- (d) For new, reconstructed, and rebuilt stationary RICE, deviations from the emission or operating limitations that occur during the first 200 hours of operation from engine startup (engine burn-in period) are not violations. Rebuilt stationary RICE means a stationary RICE that has been rebuilt as that term is defined in 40 CFR 94.11(a).
- (e) You must also report each instance in which you did not meet the requirements in Table 8 to this subpart that apply to you. If you own or operate a new or reconstructed stationary RICE with a site rating of less than or equal to 500 brake HP located at a major source of HAP emissions (except new or reconstructed 48LB engines greater than or equal to 250 and less than or equal to 500 brake HP), a new or reconstructed stationary RICE located at an area source of HAP emissions, or any of the following RICE with a site rating of more than 500 brake HP located at a major source of HAP emissions, you do not need to comply with the requirements in Table 8 to this subpart: An existing 28LB stationary RICE, an existing 4SLB stationary RICE, an existing emergency stationary RICE, an existing limited use stationary RICE, or an existing stationary RICE which fires landfill gas or digester gas equivalent to 10 percent or more of the gross heat input on an annual basis. If you own or operate any of the following RICE with a site rating of more than 500 brake HP located at a major source of HAP emissions, you do not need to comply with the requirements in Table 8 to this subpart, except for the initial notification requirements: a new or reconstructed stationary RICE that combusts landfill gas or digester gas equivalent to 10 percent or more of the gross heat input on an annual besis, a new or reconstructed emergency stationary RICE, or a new or reconstructed limited use stationary RICE.
 - (f) If you own or operate an existing emergency stationary RICE with a site rating of less than or equal to 500 brake HP located at a major source of HAP emissions, a new emergency stationary RICE with a site rating of more than

500 brake HP located at a major source of HAP emissions that was installed on or after June 12, 2008, or an existing amergency stationary RIUE located at an area source of HAP emissions, you must operate the engine according to the conditions described in paragraphs (I)(1) through (4) of this section.

(1) For owners and operators of emergency engines, any operation other than emergency operation, maintenance and testing, and operation in non-emergency situations for 50 hours per year, as permitted in this section, is prohibited.

(2) There is no time limit on the use of emergency stationary RICE in emergency situations.

(3) You may operate your emergency stationary RICE for the purpose of maintenance checks and readiness testing, provided that the tests are recommended by Federal, State or local government, the manufacturer, the vendor, or the insurance company associated with the engine. Maintenance checks and readiness testing of such units is limited to 100 hours per year. The owner or operator may petition the Administrator for approval of additional hours to be used for maintenance checks and readiness testing, but a petition is not required if the owner or operator maintains records indicating that Federal, State, or local standards require maintenance and testing of emergency RICE beyond 100 hours per year.

(4) You may operate your emergency stationary RIOE up to 50 hours per year in non-emergency situations, but those 50 hours are counted towards the 100 hours per year provided for maintenance and testing. The 50 hours per year for non-emergency situations cannot be used for peak shaving or to generate income for a facility to supply power to an electric grid or otherwise supply power as part of a financial arrangement with another entity; except that owners and operators may operate the emergency engine for a maximum of 15 hours per year as part of a demand response program if the regional transmission organization or equivalent balancing authority and trans-

such as unusually low frequency, equipment overload, capacity or energy deficiency, or unacceptable voltage level. The engine may not be operated for more than 30 minutes prior to the time when the emergency condition is expected to occur, and the engine operation must be terminated immediately after the facility is notified that the emergency condition is no longer imminent. The 15 hours per year of demand response operation are counted as part of the 50 hours of operation per year provided for non-emergency situations. The supply of emergency power to another entity or entities parsuant to financial arrangement is not limited by this paragraph (f)(4), as long as the power provided by the financial arrangement is limited to emergency power.

[69 FR 33506, June 15, 2004, as amended at 71 FR 20467, Apr. 20, 2006; 73 FR 3606, Jan. 18, 2008; 75 FR 9678, Mar. 3, 2010]

NOTIFICATIONS, REPORTS, AND RECORDS

§63.6645 What notifications must I submit and when?

(a) You must submit all of the notifications in §§63.7(b) and (o), 63.8(e), (f)(4) and (f)(6), 63.9(b) through (e), and (g) and (h) that apply to you by the dates specified if you own or operate any of the following;

(1) An existing stationary OI RICE with a site rating of less than or equal to 500 brake HP located at a major source of HAP emissions.

(2) An existing stationary CI RICE located at an area source of HAP emissions.

(3) A stationary RICE with a site rating of more than 500 brake HP located at a major source of HAP emissions.

(4) A new or reconstructed 4SLB stationary RICE with a site rating of greater than or equal to 250 HP located at a major source of HAP emissions.

(5) This requirement does not apply if you own or operate an existing stationary CI RICE less than 100 HP, an existing stationary emergency CI RICE, or an existing stationary CI RICE that is not subject to any numerical emission standards.

ical allegator actual to acc orbital if you

located at a major source of HAP emissions before the effective date of this subpart, you must submit an Initial Notification not later than December 13, 2004.

(c) If you start np your new or reconstructed stationary RICE with a site rating of more than 500 brake HP located at a major source of HAP emissions on or after August 18, 2004, you must submit an Initial Notification not later than 120 days after you become subject to this subpart.

(d) As specified in \$63.9(b)(2), if you start up your stationary RICE with a site rating of equal to or less than 500 brake HP located at a major source of HAP emissions before the effective date of this subpart and you are required to submit an initial notification, you must submit an Initial Notification not later than July 18, 2008.

(e) If you start up your new or reconstructed stationary RICE with a site rating of equal to or less than 600 brake HP located at a major source of HAP emissions on or after March 18, 2008 and you are required to submit an initial notification, you must submit an Initial Notification not later than 120 days after you become subject to this subpart.

(f) If you are required to submit an Initial Notification but are otherwise not affected by the requirements of this subpart, in accordance with §63.6590(b), your notification should include the information in §63.9(b)(2)(l) through (v), and a statement that your stationary RICE has no additional requirements and explain the basis of the exclusively as an emergency stationary RICE if it has a site rating of more than 500 brake HP located at a major source of HAP emissions).

(g) If you are required to conduct a performance test, you must submit a Notification of Intent to conduct a performance test at least 60 days before the performance test is scheduled to begin as required in §63.7(b)(1).

(h) If you are required to conduct a performance test or other initial compliance demonstration as specified in Tables 4 and 5 to this subpart, you must submit a Notification of Compliance Status according to §63.9(h)(2)(11).

(1) For each initial compliance demonstration required in Table 5 to this subpart that does not include a performance test, you must submit the Notification of Compliance Status before the close of business on the 30th day following the completion of the initial compliance demonstration.

(2) For each initial compliance demonstration required in Table 5 to this subpart that includes a performance test conducted according to the requirements in Table 3 to this subpart, you must submit the Notification of Compliance Status, including the performance test results, before the close of business on the 60th day following the completion of the performance test according to §63.10(d)(2).

[73 PR 3608, Jan. 18, 2008, as amended at 75 PR 9677, Mar. 3, 2010]

\$63.6650 What reports must I submit and when?

(a) You must submit each report in Table 7 of this subpart that applies to

(b) Unless the Administrator has approved a different schedule for submission of reports under \$63.10(a), you must submit each report by the date in Table 7 of this subpart and according to the requirements in paragraphs (b)(1) through (b)(9) of this section.

(1) For semiannal Compliance reports, the first Compliance report must cover the period beginning on the compliance date that is specified for your affected source in §63.6595 and ending on June 30 or December 31, whichever date is the first date following the end of the first calendar half after the compliance date that is specified for your source in §63.6595.

(2) For semiannual Compliance reports, the first Compliance report must be postmarked or delivered no later than July 31 or January 31, whichever date follows the end of the first calendar half after the compliance date that is specified for your affected source in § 63,6595.

(3) For semiannual Compliance reports, each subsequent Compliance report must cover the semiannual reporting period from January 1 through June 30 or the semiannual reporting period from July 1 through December 31.

(4) For semiannual Compliance reports, each subsequent Compliance report must be postmarked or delivered no later than July 31 or January 31, whichever date is the first date following the and of the semiannual re-

porting period.

(5) For each stationary RICE that is subject to permitting regulations pursuant to 40 CFR part 70 or 71, and if the permitting authority has established dates for submitting semiannual repursuant DOTTA 70.8(a)(3)(11)(A) or 40 CFR 71.6 (AX3Xiii)(A), you may submit the first and subsequent Compliance reports according to the dates the permitting authority has established instead of according to the dates in paragraphs (b)(1) through (b)(4) of this section.

(6) For annual Compliance reports, the first Compliance report must cover the period beginning on the compliance date that is specified for your affected source in §63.6598 and ending on De-

comber 31.

(7) For annual Compliance reports, the first Compliance report must be postmarked or delivered no later than January 31 following the end of the first calendar year after the compliance date that is specified for your affected source in § 63.686.

(3) For annual Compliance reports, each subsequent Compliance report must cover the annual reporting period from January 1 through December 31.

- (9) For annual Compliance reports, each subsequent Compliance report must be postmarked or delivered no later than January 31.
- (o) The Compliance report must contain the information in paragraphs (o)(1) through (6) of this section.
 - (1) Company name and address.
- (2) Statement by a responsible official, with that official's name, title, and signature, certifying the accuracy of the content of the report.

(3) Date of report and beginning and ending dates of the reporting period.

(4) If you had a malfunction during the reporting period, the compliance report must include the number, duration, and a brief description for each type of malfunction which occurred during the reporting period and which

ed. The report must also include a description of actions taken by an owner or operator during a malfunction of an affected source to minimize emissions in accordance with §63.6606(b), including actions taken to correct a malfunction.

(5) If there are no deviations from any emission or operating limitations that apply to you, a statement that there were no deviations from the emission or operating limitations dur-

ing the reporting period.

(6) If there were no periods during which the continuous monitoring system (CMS), including CEMS and CPMS, was out-of-control, as specified in §63.8(c)(T), a statement that there were no periods during which the CMS was out-of-control during the reporting pariod.

(d) For each deviation from an emission or operating limitation that occurs for a stationary RICE where you are not using a CMS to comply with the emission or operating limitations in this subpart, the Compliance report must contain the information in paragraphs (c)(1) through (4) of this section and the information in paragraphs (d)(1) and (2) of this section.

(1) The total operating time of the stationary RIGE at which the deviation occurred during the reporting period.

- (2) Information on the number, duration, and cause of deviations (including unknown cause, if applicable), as applicable, and the corrective action taken.
- (a) For each deviation from an emission or operating limitation occurring for a stationary RICE where you are using a CMS to comply with the emission and operating limitations in this subpart, you must include information in paragraphs (c)(1) through (4) and (e)(1) through (12) of this section.

(1) The date and time that each malfunction started and stopped.

(2) The date, time, and duration that each CMS was inoperative, except for zero (low-level) and high-level checks.

(3) The date, time, and duration that each CMS was out-of-control, including the information in \$63.8(0)(8).

(4) The date and time that each deviation started and stopped, and whether each deviation occurred during a period (5) A summary of the total duration of the deviation during the reporting period, and the total duration as a percent of the total source operating time during that reporting period.

(6) A breakdown of the total duration of the deviations during the reporting period into those that are due to control equipment problems, process problems, other known causes, and other

unknown causes.

(7) A summary of the total duration of CMS downtime during the reporting period, and the total duration of CMS downtime as a percent of the total operating time of the stationary RICE at which the CMS downtime occurred during that reporting period.

(8) An identification of each parameter and pollutant (CO or formaldehyde) that was monitored at the sta-

tionary RICE.

(9) A brief description of the stationary RICE.

(10) A brief description of the CMS.

(11) The date of the latest CMS certification or andit.

(12) A description of any changes in CMS, processes, or controls since the

last reporting period.

- (D Each affected source that has obtained a title V operating permit purspant to 40 CFR part 70 or 71 must report all deviations as defined in this subpart in the semiannual monitoring report required by 40 CFR 70.6 (a)(3)(111)(A) or 40 CFR 71.6(a)(3)(111)(A). If an affected source submits a Compliance report pursuant to Table 7 of this subpart along with, or as part of, the semianumal monitoring report required by 40 CFR 70.8(a)(3)(111)(A) or 40 CFR 71.6(a)(3)(iii)(A), and the Compliance report includes all required information concerning deviations from any emission or operating limitation in this subpart, submission of the Compliance report shall be deemed to satisfy any obligation to report the same deviations in the semiannual monitoring report. However, submission of a Compliance report shall not otherwise affect any obligation the affected source may have to report deviations from permit requirements to the permit au-
- (g) If you are operating as a new or reconstructed stationary RICE which fires landfill gas or digester gas equiva-

lent to 10 percent or more of the gross heat input on an annual basis, you must submit an annual report according to Table 7 of this subpart by the date specified unless the Administrator has approved a different schedule, according to the information described in paragraphs (b)(1) through (b)(5) of this section. You must report the data specified in (g)(1) through (g)(3) of this section.

(1) Fuel flow rate of each fuel and the heating values that were used in your calculations. You must also demonstrate that the percentage of heat input provided by landfill gas or digester gas is equivalent to 10 percent or more of the total fuel consumption on an annual basis.

(2) The operating limits provided in your federally enforceable permit, and any deviations from these limits.

(3) Any problems or errors suspected with the meters.

[69 FR 33608, June 15, 2004, as amended at 75 FR 9677, Mar. 3, 2010]

163,6655 What records must I keep?

(a) If you must comply with the emission and operating limitations, you must keep the records described in paragraphs (a)(1) through (a)(5), (b)(1) through (b)(3) and (0) of this section.

(1) A copy of each notification and report that you submitted to comply with this subpart, including all documentation supporting any Initial Notification or Notification of Compliance Status that you submitted, according to the requirement in §63.10(b)(2)(xiv).

(2) Records of the occurrence and duration of each malfunction of operation (i.e., process equipment) or the air pollution control and monitoring equipment.

(3) Records of performance tests and performance evaluations as required in §63.10(b)(2)(viii).

(4) Records of all required maintenance performed on the air pollution control and monitoring equipment.

(5) Records of actions taken during periods of malfunction to minimize emissions in accordance, with \$53,6505(b), including corrective actions to restore malfunctioning process and air pollution control and monitoring equipment to its normal or usual manner of operation.

- (b) For each CEMS or OPMS, you must keep the records listed in paragraphs (b)(1) through (3) of this section.
- Records described \$63.10(b)(2)(vi) through (xi).
- (2) Previous (i.e., superseded) versions of the performance evaluation plan as required in \$63.8(d)(3).
- (3) Requests for alternatives to the relative accuracy test for CEMS or CPMS as required in \$63.8(1)(6)(1), if ap-
- (c) If you are operating a new or reconstructed stationary RICE which fires landfill gas or digester gas equivalant to 10 percent or more of the gross heat input on an annual basis, you must keep the records of your daily mel usage monitors.
- (d) You must keep the records required in Table 8 of this subpart to show continuous compliance with each emission or operating limitation that applies to you.
- (e) You must keep records of the maintenance conducted on the sta-tionary RICE in order to demonstrate that you operated and maintained the stationary RIOB and after-treatment control device (if any) according to your own maintenance plan if you own or operate any of the following sta-HODALY RICE;
- (1) An existing stationary CI RICE with a site rating of less than 100 brake HP located at a major source of HAP emissions.
- (2) An existing stationary emergency OI RICE.
- (3) An existing stationary CI RICE 10cated at an area source of HAP emissions subject to management practices as shown in Table 2d to this subpart.
- (f) If you own or operate any of the stationary RICE in paragraphs (O(1) or ②) of this section, you must keep records of the hours of operation of the angine that is recorded through the non-resettable hour meter. The owner or operator must document how many hours are spent for emergency operation, including what classified the operation as emergency and how many hours are spent for non-emergency operation. If the engines are used for demand response operation, the owner or

and the time the engine was operated as part of demand response.

(1) An existing emergency stationary OI RICE with a site rating of less than or equal to 500 brake HP located at a major source of HAP emissions that does not meet the standards applicable to non-emergency engines.

(2) An existing emergency stationary CI RICE located at an area source of HAP emissions that does not meet the standards applicable to non-emergency

engines.

[59 FR 33506, June 15, 2004, as amended at 75 FR 9678, Mar. 3, 2010)

\$63.6660 In what form and how long must I keep my records?

(a) Your records must be in a form Buitable and readily available for expeditions review according to \$63.10(b)(1).

(b) As specified in \$63.10(b)(1), you must keep each record for 5 years following the date of each occurrence, measurement, maintenance, corrective

action, report, or record.
(c) You must keep each record readily accessible in hard copy or electronic form for at least 5 years after the date of each occurrence, measurement, maintenance, corrective action, report. or record. according \$63.10(b)(1).

[69 FR 33506, June 15, 2004, as amended at 75 PR 9678, Mar. 3, 2010]

OTHER REQUIREMENTS AND INFORMATION

\$63.6865 What parts of the General Provisions apply to me?

Table 8 to this subpart shows which parts of the General Provisions in \$563.1 through 63.15 apply to you. If you own or operate a new or reconstructed stationary RICE with a site rating of less than or equal to 500 brake HP located at a major source of HAP emissions (except new or reconstructed 4SLB engines greater than or equal to 250 and less than or equal to 500 brake HP), a new or reconstructed stationary RICE located at an area source of HAP emissions, or any of the following RICE with a site rating of more than 500 brake HP located at a major source of HAP emissions, you do not need to comply with any of the requirements of RICE, an existing 4SLB stationary RICE, an existing stationary RICE that combusts landfill or digester gas equivalent to 10 percent or more of the gross heat input on an annual basis, an existing emergency stationary RICE, or an existing limited use stationary RICE. If you own or operate any of the following RICE with a site rating of more than 500 brake HP located at a major source of HAP emissions, you do not need to comply with the requirements in the General Provisions specified in Table 8 except for the initial notification requirements: A new stationary RICE that combusts landfill gas or digester gas equivalent to 10 percent or more of the gross heat input on an annnal basis, a new emergency stationary RICE, or a new limited use stationary RICE.

[75 FR 9678, Mar. 3, 2010]

\$63.8670 Who implements and enforces this subpart?

- (a) This subpart is implemented and enforced by the U.S. EPA, or a delegated authority such as your State, local, or tribal agency. If the U.S. EPA Administrator has delegated authority to your State, local, or tribal agency, then that agency (as well as the U.S. EPA) has the authority to implement and enforce this subpart. You should contact your U.S. EPA Regional Office to find out whether this subpart is delegated to your State, local, or tribal agency.
- (b) In delegating implementation and enforcement authority of this subpart to a State, local, or tribal agency under 40 CFR part 63, subpart E, the authorities contained in paragraph (c) of this section are retained by the Administrator of the U.S. EPA and are not transferred to the State, local, or tribal agency.
- (o) The authorities that will not be delegated to State, local, or tribal agencies are:
- (1) Approval of alternatives to the non-opacity amission limitations and operating limitations in §63.6600 under §63.6(g).
- (2) Approval of major alternatives to test methods under \$63.7(e)(2)(ii) and (i) and as defined in \$63.90.

- (3) Approval of major alternatives to monitoring under §63.8(f) and as defined in §63.90.
- (4) Approval of major alternatives to recordkeeping and reporting under §63.10(f) and as defined in §63.90.
- (5) Approval of a performance test which was conducted prior to the effective date of the rule, as specified in §63.6610(b).

§63.6675 What definitions apply to this subpart?

Terms used in this subpart are defined in the Clean Air Act (CAA); in 40 CFR 63.2, the General Provisions of this part; and in this section as follows:

Area source means any stationary source of HAP that is not a major source as defined in part 63.

Associated equipment as used in this subpart and as referred to in section 112(n)(4) of the CAA, means equipment associated with an oil or natural gas exploration or production well, and includes all equipment from the well bore to the point of custody transfer, except glycol dehydration units, storage vessels with potential for flash emissions, combustion turbines, and stationary RICE.

Black start engine means an engine whose only purpose is to start up a combustion turbine.

CAA means the Clean Air Act (42 U.S.C. 7401 et seg., as amended by Public Law 101-549, 104 Stat. 2399).

Compression ignition means relating to a type of stationary internal combustion engine that is not a spark ignition engine.

Custody transfer means the transfer of hydrocarbon liquids or natural gas: After processing and/or treatment in the producing operations, or from storage vessels or automatic transfer facilities or other such equipment, including product loading racks, to pipelines or any other forms of transportation. For the purposes of this subpart, the point at which such liquids or natural gas enters a natural gas processing plant is a point of custody transfer.

Deviation means any instance in which an affected source subject to this subpart, or an owner or operator of such a source:

(1) Fails to meet any requirement or obligation established by this subpart, including but not limited to any emission limitation or operating limitation;

(2) Falls to meet any term or condition that is adopted to implement an applicable requirement in this subpart and that is included in the operating permit for any affected source required to obtain such a permit; or

(3) Fails to meet any emission limitation or operating limitation in this subpart during malfunction, regardless or whether or not such failure is permitted by this subpart.

(4) Fails to satisfy the general duty to minimize emissions established by \$63.6(a)(1)(i).

Diesel engins means any stationary RIOE in which a high boiling point liquid fiel injected into the combustion chamber ignites when the air charge has been compressed to a temperature sufficiently high for auto-ignition. This process is also known as compression ignition.

Diesel fuel means any liquid obtained from the distillation of petroleum with a boiling point of approximately 150 to 380 degrees Celaius. One commonly used form is fuel oil number 2. Diesel fuel also includes any non-distillate fuel with comparable physical and chemical properties (e.g. biodiesel) that is suitable for use in compression ignition engines.

Digester gas means any gaseous byproduct of wastewater treatment typically formed through the ansarobic decomposition of organic waste materials and composed principally of methane and CO.

Dual-fuel engine means any stationary RIOB in which a liquid fuel (typically diesel fuel) is used for compression ignition and gaseous fuel (typically natural gas) is used as the primary fuel.

Emergency stationary RICE means any stationary internal combustion engine whose operation is limited to emergency situations and required testing and maintenance. Examples include stationary IOE used to produce power for critical networks or equipment (including power supplied to portions of a

source, if the facility runs on its own power production) is interrupted, or stationary ICE used to pump water in the case of fire or flood, etc. Stationary CI ICE used for peak shaving are not considered emergency stationary ICE. Stationary CI ICE used to supply power to an electric grid or that supply nonemergency power as part of a financial arrangement with another entity are not considered to be emergency engines, except as permitted under \$63.6640(f). Emergency stationary RICE with a site-rating of more than 500 brake HP located at a major source of HAP emissions that were installed prior to June 12, 2006, may be operated for the purpose of maintenance checks and readiness testing, provided that the tests are recommended by the manufacturer, the vendor, or the insurance company associated with the engine. Required testing of such units should be minimized, but there is no time limit on the use of emergency stationary RICE in emergency situations and for routine testing and maintenance. Emergency stationary RICE with a site-rating of more than 500 brake HP located at a major source of HAP emissions that were installed prior to June 12, 2006, may also operate an additional 50 hours per year in nonemergency situations. All other emergency stationary RIOE must comply with the requirements specified in \$ 63.6640(f).

Engine startup means the time from initial start until applied load and engine and associated equipment reaches steady state or normal operation. For stationary engine with catalytic controls, engine startup means the time from initial start until applied load and engine and associated equipment, including the catalyst, reaches steady state or normal operation.

Four-stroke engine means any type of engine which completes the power cycle in two crankshaft revolutions, with intake and compression strokes in the first revolution and power and exhaust strokes in the second revolution. Gaseous fuel means a material used for combustion which is in the gaseous state at standard atmospheric tem-

perature and pressure conditions.

Vas ni hina lam was

motor vehicle engines, or nonroad or stationary engines, and commonly or commercially known or sold as gasoline.

Glycol dehydration unit means a device in which a liquid glycol (including, but not limited to, ethylene glycol, diethylene glycol, or triethylene glycol) absorbent directly contacts a natural gas stream and absorbs water in a contact tower or absorption column (absorber). The glycol contacts and absorbs water vapor and other gas stream constituents from the natural gas and becomes "rich" glycol. This glycol is then regenerated in the glycol dehydration unit reboiler. The "lean" glycol is then recycled.

Hazardous air pollutants (HAP) means any air pollutants listed in or pursuant to section 112(b) of the CAA.

ISO standard day conditions means 288 degrees Kelvin (15 degrees Celsius), 60 percent relative humidity and 101.3 kilopascals pressure.

Landfill gas means a gaseous by-product of the land application of municipal refuse typically formed through the anaerobic decomposition of waste materials and composed principally of methane and CO₂.

Lean burn engine means any twostroke or four-stroke spark ignited engine that does not meet the definition of a rich burn engine.

Limited use stationary RICE means any stationary RICE that operates less than 100 hours per year.

Liquefied petroleum gas means any liquefied hydrocarbon gas obtained as a by-product in petroleum refining of natural gas production.

Liquid fuel means any fuel in liquid form at standard temperature and pressure, including but not limited to diesel, residual/crude oil, kerosene/naphtha (jet fuel), and gasoline.

Major Source, as used in this subpart, shall have the same meaning as in §63.2 except that:

(1) Emissions from any oil or gas exploration or production well (with its associated equipment (as defined in this section)) and emissions from any pipeline compressor station or pump station shall not be aggregated with emissions from other similar units, to determine whether such emission points or stations are major sources,

even when emission points are in a contiguous area or under common control;

- (2) For oil and gas production facilities, emissions from processes, operations, or equipment that are not part of the same oil and gas production facility, as defined in §63.1271 of subpart HHH of this part, shall not be aggregated:
- (3) For production field facilities, only HAP emissions from glycol dehydration units, storage vessel with the potential for flash emissions, combustion turbines and reciprocating internal combustion engines shall be aggregated for a major source determination; and

(4) Emissions from processes, operations, and equipment that are not part of the same natural gas transmission and storage facility, as defined in §63.1271 of subpart HHH of this part, shall not be aggregated.

Malfunction means any sudden, infrequent, and not reasonably preventable failure of air pollution control equipment, process equipment, or a process to operate in a normal or usual manner which causes, or has the potential to cause, the emission limitations in an applicable standard to be exceeded. Failures that are caused in part by poor maintenance or careless operation are not malfunctions.

Natural gas means a naturally occurring mixture of hydrocarbon and non-hydrocarbon gases found in geologic formations beneath the Earth's surface, of which the principal constituent is methane. Natural gas may be field or pipeline quality.

Non-relective catalytic reduction (NSCR) means an add-on catalytic nitrogen oxides (NO_x) control device for rich burn angines that, in a two-step reaction, promotes the conversion of excess oxygen, NO_x, CO, and volatile organic compounds (VOC) into CO₂, nitrogen, and water,

Oil and pas production facility as used in this subpart means any grouping of equipment where hydrocarbon liquids are processed, upgraded (i.e., remove impurities or other constituents to meet contract specifications), or stored prior to the point of custody transfer, or where natural gas is processed, upgraded, or stored prior to entering the natural gas transmission and storage

source category. For purposes of a major source determination, facility (including a building, structure, or installation) means oil and natural gas production and processing equipment that is located within the boundaries of an individual surface site as defined in this section. Equipment that is part of a facility will typically be located within close proximity to other equipment located at the same facility. Pieces of production equipment or groupings of equipment located on different oil and gas leases, mineral fee tracts, lease tracts, subsurface or surface unit areas, surface fee tracts, surface lease tracts, or separate surface sites, whether or not connected by a road, waterway, power line or pipeline, shall not be considered part of the same facility. Examples of facilities in the oil and natural gas production source category include, but are not limited to, well sites, satellite tank batteries, central tank batteries, a compressor station that transports natural gas to a natural gas processing plant, and natural gas processing planta.

Oxidation catalyst means an add-on catalytic control device that controls CO and VOO by oxidation.

Peaking unit or engine means any standby engine intended for use during periods of high demand that are not emergencies.

Percent load means the fractional power of an engine compared to its maximum manufacturer's design capacity at engine site conditions. Percent load may range between 0 percent to above 100 percent.

Potential to emit means the maximum capacity of a stationary source to emit a pollutant under its physical and operational design. Any physical or operational limitation on the capacity of the stationary source to emit a pollutant, including air pollution control equipment and restrictions on hours of operation or on the type or amount of material combusted, stored, or processed, shall be treated as part of its design if the limitation or the effect it would have on emissions is federally enforceable. For oil and natural gas production facilities subject to subpart

For natural gas transmission and storage facilities subject to subpart HHH of this part, the maximum annual facility gas throughput for storage facilities may be determined according to \$63.1270(a)(1) and the maximum annual throughput for transmission facilities MAV be determined according to \$63.1270(a)(2).

Production field facility means those oil and gas production facilities located prior to the point of custody

transfer.

Production well means any hole drilled in the earth from which crude oil, condensate, or field natural gas is extracted.

Propone means a colorless gas derived from petroleum and natural gas, with the molecular structure CaHa-

Residential/commercial/institutional emergency stationary RICE means an emergency stationary RICE used in residential establishments such as homes or residences, commercial establishments such as office buildings, hotels, or stores, or institutional establishments such as medical centers, research centers, and institutions of higher education.

Responsible official means responsible

official as defined in 40 CFR 70.2. Rich burn engine means any fourstroke spark ignited engine where the manufacturer's recommended operating air/fuel ratio divided by the stoiobiometric sir/fuel ratio at full load conditions is less than or equal to 1.1. Engines originally manufactured as rich burn engines, but modified prior to December 19, 2002 with passive emission control technology for NOx (such as pre-combustion chambers) will be considered lean burn engines. Also, existing engines where there are no manniacturer's recommendations regarding sir/fuel ratio will be considered a rich burn engine if the excess oxygen content of the exhaust at full load conditions is less than or equal to 2 percent.

Site-rated HP means the maximum manufacturer's design capacity at engine site conditions.

Spark ignition means relating to 8ither: A gasoline-fueled engine; or any other type of engine a spark plug (or other energing device) and with opersimilar to the theoretical Otto combustion cycle. Spark ignition engines usually use a throttle to regulate intake air flow to control power during normal operation. Dual-fuel engines in which a liquid fuel (typically diesel fuel) is used for CI and gaseous fuel (typically natural gas) is used as the primary fuel at an annual average ratio of less than 2 parts diesel fuel to 100 parts total fuel on an energy equivalent basis are spark ignition engines.

Stationary reciprocating internal combustion engine (RICE) means any reciprocating internal combustion engine which uses reciprocating motion to convert heat energy into mechanical work and which is not mobile. Stationary RICE differ from mobile RICE in that a stationary RICE is not a nonroad engine as defined at 40 CFR 1068.30, and is not used to propel for competition.

Stationary RICE test cellstand means an engine test cellstand, as defined in subpart PPPPP of this part, that tests stationary RICE.

Stoichiometric means the theoretical air-to-mel ratio required for complete combustion.

Storage vessel with the potential for flash emissions means any storage ves-

sel that contains a hydrocarbon liquid with a stock tank gas-to-oil ratio equal to or greater than 0.31 cubic meters per liter and an American Petroleum Institute gravity equal to or greater than 40 degrees and an actual annual average hydrocarbon liquid throughput equal to or greater than 79,500 liters per day. Flash emissions occur when dissolved hydrocarbons in the fluid evolve from solution when the fluid pressure is reduced.

Subport means 40 CFR part 63, subpart ZZZZ.

Surface site means any combination of one or more graded pad sites, gravel pad sites, foundations, platforms, or the immediate physical location upon which equipment is physically affixed.

Two-stroke engine means a type of engine which completes the power cycle in single crankshaft revolution by combining the intake and compression operations into one stroke and the power and exhaust operations into a second stroke. This system requires auxiliary scavenging and inherently runs lean of stoichiometric.

[69 FR 33506, June 15, 2004, as amended at 71 PR 20467, Apr. 20, 2006; 73 FR 3807, Jan. 18, 2006; 75 FR 9679, Mar. 3, 2010]

Table 1a to Subpart ZZZZ of Part 63—Emission Limitations for Existing, New, and Reconstructed Spark Ignition, 4SRB Stationary RICE >500 HP Located at a Major Source of Hap Emissions

As stated in 1353,6600 and 63.6640, you must comply with the following amission limitations for existing, new and reconstructed 4SRB stationary RICE at 100 percent load plus or minus 10 percent;

For each ,	You must meet the following emission limitation, stoops during periods of startup	During periods of startup you must , , ,
1. 4SRB stationary PSCE	Reduce formaldehyde enisations by 78 'percent or more. If you commenced construction or reconstruction between December 19, 2002 and June 15, 2004, you may reduce formaldehyde enisations by 73 percent or more until June 15, 2007 or. Unit the concentration of immaldehyde in the stationary RICE enhaust to 350 ppivid or least at 15 percent 0.	Minimize the engine's time spent at its and min- imize the engine's starpp time at starpp to a period needed for appropriate and sale load- ing of the engine, not to exceed 30 minutes, after which time the non-startup emission limi- tations apply.*

^{*} Sources can petition the Administrator pulmorate to the requirements of 40 CFR 83,5(g) for alternative work practices.

[75 PR 9879, Mar. 3, 2010]

Table 1d to Subpart ZZZZ of Part 63—Operating Limitations for Existing, New, and Reconstructed Spark Ignition, 48RB Stationary RICE >500 HP Located at a Major Source of HAP Emissions

(As stated in \$\frac{1}{2}\$ \$3.8500, \$3.8500 and \$3.8640, you must comply with the lollowing operating amission limitations for additing, new and reconstructed 4SRB stationary RICE >500 HP located at a major source of HAP amissional.

For each	You must meet the following operating limitation
4SAB stationary RICE complying with the requirement to reduce formaldshyde amissions by 78 percent or more (or by 76 percent or more, it applicable) and using NSCR; or	a. maintain your catalyst so that the pressure drop across the catalyst does not change by more than 2 inches of water at 100 percent load plue or minue 10 percent from the pressure drop across the catalyst measured during the initial performance test; and
4SRB stationary RICE complying with the requirement to limit the concentration of formaldehyde is the stationary RICE so- haust to 350 ppbvd or less at 15 percent O ₂ and using NSCR ₁ .	b. melriain the temperature of your stationery RICE achains so that the catalyst hile! temperature is greater than or equal to 750 °F and less than or equal to 1250 °F.
 4SRB stationary RICE complying with the requirement to re- duce formaldehyde emissions by 78 percent or more (or by 75 percent or more, if applicable) and not using NSCR;. 	Comply with any operating limits tions approved by the Administrator.
ASRB stationary RICE complying with the requirement to limit the concentration of formatdehyde in the stationary RICE exhaust to 360 pployd or leas at 15 percent O ₂ and not using NSCR.	i

[73 FR 3607, Jan. 18, 2008]

Table 2a to Subpart ZZZZ of Part 63—Emission Limitations for New and Reconstructed 2SLB and Compression Ignition Stationary RICE >500 HP and New and Reconstructed 4SLB Stationary RICE ≥250 HP LOCATED at a Major Source of HAP Emissions

As stated in §§ 63.8600 and 63.8840, you must comply with the following emission limitations for new and reconstructed lean burn and new and reconstructed compression ignition stationary RIOE at 100 percent load plus or minus 10 percent:

For each	You must meet the following emission limitation, succept during periods of start- up	During periods of startup you must
1. 2SLB stationary RICE	Reduce CO emissions by 58 percent of more; or Limit concentration of formald-shyde in the stationary RCE sobspal to 12 pprind or less at 15 percent O ₂ . If you commenced construction or reconstruction between December 19, 2002 and June 18, 2004, you may limit concentration of iomald-shyde to 17 pprind or less at 15 percent O ₃ -until June 18, 2007.	and minimize the engine's stamp time at stamp to a period needed for ap- propriate and sale loading of the en- gine, not to occeed 30 minutes, after which time the non-stamp arrisation timitations apply. ³
2.48LB stationary RICE	a. Reduce CO emissions by 93 percent or moret or b. Limit concentration of lormaldeinyde in the stadonary RICE sobaust to 14 pproved or less at 15 percent O>	,
3. CI stationary RICE	Reduce CO emissions by 70 percent or more; or Lithik concentration of tomald shyde in the stationary RICE agrisust to 500 ppbvd or less at 18 percent O ₂ .	, (

¹ Sources can petition the Administrator pursuant to the requirements of 40 CFR 63.5(g) for alternative work practices.

TABLE 2B TO SURPART ZZZZ OF PART 63—OPERATING LIMITATIONS FOR NEW AND RE-CONSTRUCTED 2SLB AND COMPRESSION IGNITION STATIONARY RICE >500 HP LO-CATED AT A MAJOR SOURCE OF HAP EMISSIONS, EXISTING NON-EMERGENCY COM-PRESSION IGNITION STATIONARY RICE >500 HP, AND NEW AND RECONSTRUCTED 4SLB BURN STATIONARY RICE ≥250 HP LOCATED AT A MAJOR SOURCE OF HAP EMISSIONS

As stated in \$62,6600, 63,6601, 63,6630, and 63,6640, you must comply with the following operating limitations for new and reconstructed lean burn and existing, new and reconstructed compression ignition stationary RICE:

For each	You must meet the following operating limitation ,
1. 2SLB and 4SLB stationary RICE and CI stationary RICE complying with the requirement to reduce CO emissions and using an oxidation catalyst or 2SLB and 4SLB stationary RICE and CI stationary RICE complying with the requirement to limit the concentration of formal-delyste in the stationary RICE exhaust and using an oxidation catalysts.	drop across the catalyst that was measured during the initial
	b. Maintain the temperature of your stationary RICE exhaust so that the catalyst hiles temperature is greater than or equal to 450 °F, and less than or equal to 1350 °F.1
2. 29LB and 49LB stationary RICE and CI stationary RICE complying with the requirement to reduce CO emissions and not using an addition catalyst or 25LB and 49LB stationary RICE and CI stationary RICE complying with the requirement to the Rice concentration of tornablashyce in the stationary RICE surbasse and not using any education catalyst.	la traitor.

¹ Sources can petition the Administrator pursuant to the requirements of 40 CFR 83.8(g) for a different temperature range.

[75 FR 9680, Mar. 3, 2010]

TABLE 2C TO SUBPART ZZZZ OF PART 63—REQUIREMENTS FOR EXISTING COMPRESSION IGNITION STATIONARY RICE LOCATED AT MAJOR SOURCES OF HAP EMISSIONS

As stated in § 63.6600 and 63.6640, you must comply with the following requirements for existing compression ignition stationary RICE:

For each	You must meet the following require- ment, accept during periods of startup	During periods of startup you must
1. Emergency Cl and black start Ct.*	Change of and filter every 500 hours of operation or armiety, whichever comes first? Inspect air cleaner every 1,000 hours of operation or armiety, whichever comes first; Inspect air hoses and bets every 500 hours of operation or annually, whichever comes first, and replace as necessary.	Minimize the angine's time spent at lide and minimize the engine's startup time at startup to a period headed for appropriate and eate loading of the engine, not to screed 30 minutes, after which time the non-startup amission limitstons apply.
 Non-Emergency, non-black start C1 < 100 HP. 	a. Charge oil and liber every 1,000 hours of operation or annually, whichever comes first? b. Imaged air cleaner every 1,000 hours of operation or annually, whichever comes first; c. Imaged ail house and belts every 500	
	hours of operation or annually, which- ever comes first, and replace as nec- seasory.2	
 Non-Emergency, non-black start Cl RICE 1005HPs:300 HP. 	Link concentration of CO in the sta- florway RICE scheust to 230 ppmred or less at 15 percent O ₂ .	
 Non-Emergency, non-black start CI 300-d-IP-5300. 	a. Limit concentration of CO in the sta- lonary RICE indepent to 49 permit or lines at 15 percent O ₃ ; or b. Reduce CO emissions by 70 percent or more.	

Environmental Protection Agency

Pt. 63, Subpt. ZZZZ, Toble 2d

For each , , ,			You must meet the following require- ment, accept during periods of startup	During periods of startup you must
5. Hon-Emergency, Cb-500 HP.	non-black	start	a. Unit concentration of CO in the sta- tionary RICE schedust to 23 pprint or less \$1.15 percent O ₂ ; or b. Raduce CO emissions by 70 percent or more.	

¹⁸ an emergency engine is operating during an emergency and it is not possible to stud down the angine is order to partorm the work practice requirements on the schedule required in Table 2c of this subpart, of if performing the work practice on the required schedule revoid otherwise pose an unacceptable falk under Federal, State, or local law, the work practice can be delayed utilit the emergency is over or the unacceptable falk under Federal, State, or local law has beated. The work practice should be performed as soon as practicable after the emergency has ended or the unacceptable falk under Federal, State, or local law has beated. Sources must report any falking to perform the work practice on the schedule required and the Federal, State or local law under which the fish was deemed unacceptable.

2 Sources have the option to utilize an oil snahysis program as described in § 63.6625(f) in order to extend the specified oil change requirement in Table 2c of this subpart.

3 Sources can petition the Administrator pursuant to the requirements of 40 CFR 83.8(p) for alternative work practices.

[75 FR 9681, Mar. 3, 2010]

TABLE 2D TO SUBPART ZZZZ OF PART 63-REQUIREMENTS FOR EXISTING COMPRES-SION IGNITION STATIONARY RICE LOCATED AT AREA SOURCES OF HAP EMIS-

As stated in \$563.6800 and 63.6840, you must comply with the following emission and operating limitations for existing compression ignition stationary RICE:

For each	You must meet the lottowing requirement, except during periods of startup	During periode of startup you must
 Hon-Emergency, non-black start Ct ≤ 300 HP. 	Change oil and lifter every 1,000 hours of operation or ennually, whichever comes list; Inspect air cleaner every 1,000 hours of operation or annually, whichever comes list;	Minimize the engine's time spant at kills and minimize the engine's startup time at startup to a period needed for engine, not to exceed 30 minimas, after which time the non-startup amissions apply.
• •	 napect all hosse and belts every 500 hours of operation or annually, which- ever comes first, and replace as neo- seasty. 	
2. Non-Emergency, non-black start Ct 300-d+Ps500.	Limit concentration of CO in the sta- lionary RICE schedule to 49 ppmvd at 15 percent O ₂ or b. Reduce CO emissions by 70 percent or more.	·
3. Non-Emergency, non-black start CI > 500 HP,		
4. Emergency CI and black start CL ²	a. Change oil and filter every 500 hours of operation or arrawably, whichever comes first; b. Inspect air cleaner every 1,000 hours of operation or annually, whichever comes first; and a. Inspect all house and belts: every 500 hours of operation or annually, which ever comes first, and replace as nec- security.	

Pt. 63, Subpt. ZZZZ, Table 3

[75 FR 968], Mar. 3, 2010]

TABLE 3 TO SUBPART ZZZZ OF PART 63—SUBSEQUENT PERFORMANCE TESTS

As stated in \$563.6615 and 63.6620, you must comply with the following subsequent performance test requirements:

For each	Complying with the requirement to	You must ,
 2SLB and 4SLB stationary RICE with a brake horsepower >500 located at major sources and new or recon- structed CI stationary RICE with a brake horsepower >500 located at major sources. 		Conduct subsequent performance tests semilannually. ³
 4SRB stationary RICE with a brake horsepower 25,000 located at major sources. 	Reduce formatide/ryde emissions	Conduct subsequent performance lasts semiamnusity, ⁵
 Stationary RICE with a brake horse- power >500 located at major sources. 	Limit the concentration of formaldehyde in the stationary RICE acheust.	Conduct subsequent performance lesis semiannually.9
 Existing non-emergency, non-black start CI attributionary RICE with a brake horsepower >500 their are not limited use stationary RICE. 	Limit or reduce CO or formaldehyde emissions.	
 Editing non-emergency, non-black start CI stationary RICE with a brake horsepower >500 that are limited use stationary RICE. 		Conduct subsequent performance tests every 8,780 hzs or 5 years, whichever comes first.

¹After you have demonstrated compliance for two consecutive lasts, you may reduce, the frequency of subsequent performance tests to entually, if the results of any subsequent annual performance test indicate the stationary RICE is not in compliance with the CO or formetivityde emission limitation, or you deviate from any of your operating limitations, you must resume semi-annual performance tests.

[75 FR 9682, Mar. 3, 2010]

TABLE 4 TO SUBPART ZZZZ OF PART 63—REQUIREMENTS FOR PERFORMANCE TESTS

As stated in \$163.6610, 63.6811, 63.6812, 63.6520, and 63.6640, you must comply with the following requirements for performance tests for stationary RICE for existing sources:

For each	Complying with the requirement to	You must	Using	According to the following requirements
1. 2SLB, 4SLB, and CI stationary RICE.	a. Reduce CO emissions.	Measure the O ₂ at the Inlet and bittlet of the control device; and	(1) Portable CO and O ₂ analyzer	(a) Using ASTNs D6522-00 (2005)* (Incorporated by reference, see § 55.14). Measurements to determine Cy must be made at the same time as the company of the contraction of the company of
		II. Measure the CO at the Inter and the cutet of the control device.	(3) Portable CO and O ₂ analyzes	(a) Using ASTNs D6522-00 (2005) ** (incorporated by reference, see § 63.14) or Method 10 of 40 CFR ap- pendit A. The CO con- centration must be at 15
2. 4SRB stationary RICE	a. Raduce tom- aldehyde emis- ziona,	I, Select the sam- pling port loca- ion and the number of tra- verse points; and	(1) Method 1 or 1A of 40 CFR part 60, appendix A § 83.7(d)(1)(0).	percent O ₂ dry basis. (a) Sampling sites must be located at the inlet and outlet of the control device.
		II. Measure O ₃ at the inlet and out- let of the control device; and	(1) Method 3 or 3A or 3B of 40 CFR part 80, appendix A, or ASTM Method D6522-00 (2005).	(a) Measurements to determine O ₂ concentration must be made at the same time as the measurements for terminately/de con- centration.
		Rt. Measure mola- ture content at the inter and out- let of the control device; and	(1) Misthod 4 of 40 CFR part 60, appendix A, or Test Method 320 of 40 CFR part 63, appendix A, or ASTM D 8046-03.	(a) Measurements to delize- mine molecure content must be made at the same time and location as the measurements for form- aldehyde contentration.

For each	Complying with the requirement to	You must	Using	According to the following regularments
		h. Measura iom- aldehyde at the lists and the out- tet of the control davice.	(1) Method 320 of 40 CFR part 63, appendix A; or ASTM D6348—029, provided in ASTM D6348—03 Annex AS (Anna)/as Spiking Technique), the percent R must be greater duan or equal to 70 and less than or equal to 130.	(a) Formaldehyde concentra- tion must be at 15 percent O _{2s} dry basis. Results of this test consist of the av- srage of the three 1-hour or longer nuns.
3. Stationary RICE	a. Limit the con- centration of formaldehyde or CO in the sta- fonany RICE ex- heust.	I. Select the sam- pling port loca- tion and the number of tra- verse points; and	(1) Method 1 or 1A of 40 CFR part 60, appendix A \$63-7(d)(1)(f).	(a) If using a control device, the sampling alls must be located at the outlet of the control device,
		It. Determine the O ₂ concentration of the stationary RICE exhaust as the sampling port location; and	40 CFR part 60, appendix A, or ASTM Method D6522-00 (2006).	(a) Measurements to deter- mine O ₂ concentration must be made at the same time and location as the measurements for form- aldehyde concentration.
		III. Measure mois- ture content of the stationary RICE exhaust at the sampling port location; and	(1) Method 4 of 40 CFR part 80, appendix A, or Test Method 320 of 40 CFR part 83, appendix A, or ASTM D 8348-03.	(a) Measurements to determine moisture content must be made at the same time and location as the measurements for form- aldernot concentration.
		h. Measure form- sidelyde at the sobsust of the stationary RICE; of	(1) Mathod 320 of 40 CFR part 53, appendix A; or ASTM D6348-03; provided in ASTM D6348-03 Annex AS (Analyte Spiding Technique), the percent R must be greater than or aqual to 70 and leas than or equal to 100.	(a) Formaldehyde concentration must be at 15 percent to must be at 15 percent Co., dry beals. Resistrate of this test consist of the average of the three 1-hour or longer nine.
		v. Measure CO st the schaust of the stationary RICE.	(1) Method 10 of 40 CFR part 80, appendix A, ASTN Method D8522-C0 (2005) n, Method 320 of 40 CFR part 83, appendix A, or ASTM D8348-03.	basis. Results of this test

AYOU may also use Methods 3A and 10 as options to ASTM-D8522-00 (2005), You may obtain a copy of ASTM-D8522-00 (2005) from all least one of the following addresses: American Society for Teeting and Maranish, 100 Barr Harbor Drive, West Constriction, PA 19428-2958, or University Microffirms International, 300 North Zeeb Road, Ann Arbor, Mil 48108. ASTM-D8522-00 (2005) may be used to test both CI and St stationary RICE.

AYOU may also use Method 320 of 40 CFR part 63, appendix A, or ASTM D8348-03.

AYOU may obtain a copy of ASTM-D8348-03 from at least one of the following addresses: American Society for Testing and Malarinia, 100 Barr Harbor Drive, West Consciously, PA 19428-2958, or University Microffirms intermetional, 300 North Zeeb Road, Ann Arbor, Mil 48108.

[75 FR 9682, Mar. 3, 2010]

Table 5 to Subpart ZZZZ of Part 63—Initial Compilance With Edgission LIMITATIONS AND OPERATING LIMITATIONS

As stated in §§ 63,6812, 63,6825 and 63,6830, you must initially comply with the amission and operating limitations as required by the following:

For such . , .	Complying with the regularment to	You have demonstrated tritial compli- ance if
25LB and 45LB stationary RICE >500 HP located at a major source and new or reconstructed CI stationary RICE >500 HP located at a major source.	detion catalyst, and using a CPMS.	I. The inversage reduction of emissions of CO determined from the justish per- formance less achieves the required CO percent reductions and IL You have installed a CPMS to con- tinuously monitor catalyst livet tim-

For anch	Complying with the requirement to	You have demonstrated initial compliance if
		You have recorded the catalyst pressure drop and catalyst inlet temperature during the initial performance test.
 2. SSLB and 4SLB stationary RICE >500 HP located at a major source and new or reconstructed. CI stationary. RICE >500 HP located at a major source. 	Reduce CO emissions and not using codetion calelyst.	The average reduction of emissions of CO determined from the initial per- formance test achieves the required CO percent reduction; and S. You have installed a CPMS to con-
·		throughy monther operating parameters approved by the Administrator (if any) according to the requirements in § 53.6525(b); and
		III. You have recorded the approved op- erating personners (if any) during the initial performance test.
 2SLB and 4SLB stationary RICE >500 HP located at a major source and new or reconstructed: CI stationary RICE >500 HP located bl a major source. 		You have installed a CEMS to continuously monitor CO and ather O ₂ or CO ₂ at both the inlet and outet of the citidation catalyst according to the requirements in § 63.6825(a); and
		You have conducted a performance evaluation of your CEMS using PS 3 and 4A of 40 CFR part 50, appendix B; and
:		III. The average reduction of CO cal- culated using § 83.8629 squale or se- ceeds the required person induction. The Initial lest comprises the first 4- hour period after successful validation of the CEMS. Compliance is based on the average persont induction
4. 4SRB stationary RICE >500 HP to ceted at a major source.	a, Reduce formaldehyde amissions and using NSCR.	formaldahyde determined from the Ini- tial performance test is equal to or greater than the required formalde-
		hyde percent reduction; and IL You have installed a CPMS to con- throughy monthor catalyst inlet tem- persure according to the require- ments in §83,6825(b); and
	·	Ili. You have recorded the catalyst pros- sure drop and catalyst inlet tempera- ture during the initial performance test.
 4SRB stationary RICE >500 HP is called at a major source. 	 a. Reduce formaldehyde amissions and not using NSCR. 	1 (3. The average reduction of emissions of formalicative determined from the ini- fiel performance test is equal to or pressor than the required formalica-
		llyce percent reductors and A. You have installed a CPMS to con- druously monitor operating param- stars approved by the Administrator (II
•		My) according to the requirements in § 63,8825(b); and III. You have recorded the approved operating parameters (If any) during the
Stationary PICE >500 HP located at major source	a Limit the concentration of formalds hyde in the stationery RICE adheus and using codesion catalyst or NSCR.	the morning to 12 annual A day
		You have installed a CPMS to con- installed member establish hist tem- perature according to the require- ments in \$ 80.8625(b); and
)	III. You have recorded the catalyst pres- aure drop and catalyst inlet tempera- ture during the initial performance test.

Environmental Protection Agency

Pt. 63, Subpt. ZZZZ, Table 6

for each	Complying with the requirement to	You have demonstrated initial compli- ance it
7. Stationary RICE >800 HP located at a major source.	Limit the concentration of formaldehyde in the stationary RICE exhaust and not using oxidetion catalyst or NSCR.	I. The average tormaldehyde concentration, corrected to 15 percent O _n , dry basis, from the three test rune is less than or equal to the formaldehyde amission limitation; and II. You have installed a CPMS to continuously monitor operating parameters approved by the Administrator (II any) according to the requirements in § 53.8625(b); and III. You have recorded the approved operating parameters (II any) during the livitial performance test.
Bosting stationary non-emergency RICE 2100 HP located at a major source, notating non-emergency Cl stationary RICE >500 HP, and existing stationary non-emergency RICE 2100 HP located at an area source.	sions.	 The average reduction of enleators of CO or formaldehydes, as applicable de- termined from the initial performance test is equal to or greater than the re- quired CO or formaldehyde, as appli- cable, percent reduction.
R. Edeting stationary non-ampropercy RICE 2100 HP located at a major source, adding non-ameripancy CI sta- tionary RICE >500 HP, and adding stationary non-ameripancy RICE >100 HP located at an area source.	hyde or CO in the stationary RICE ex haust.	

[75 FR 9684, Mar. 3, 2010] .

Table 6 to Subpart ZZZZ of Part 63—Continuous Compliance With Emission Limitations and Operating Limitations

As stated in § 63.8640, you must continuously comply with the emissions and operating limitations as required by the following:

HP located at a major source and Ct stationary RICE >500 HP located at a major source.	onducting samiannual performance its for CO to demonstrate that the quired CO percent reduction is
2. 2SLB and ASLB stationary RICE >800 HP located at a major source and CI stationary RICE >800 HP located at a major source. CPMS.	thiswed of and objecting the calabyst hiel tempera- re data according to § 53.825(b); and inducing these data to 4-hour rolling searchest and shall half the constraint of the constraint of the calabyst hield temperatural and shall half the pressure drop across he catalyst once per month and deministrating that the pressure drop across he catalyst a width the operating limitation established during the entermined best.

For each	Complying with the requirement to	You must demonstrate continuous com- plance by
 25LB and 4SLB stationary RICE >500 HP located at a major source and CI stationary RICE >500 HP located at a major source. 	a. Reduce CO emissions and using a CEMS.	L Collecting the monitoring data according to \$63.6625(a), reducing the measurements to 1-hour averages, calculating the person reduction of CO emissions according to \$63.6620; and £ Demonstrating that the catalyst achieves the required parcent reduction of CO emissions over the 4-hour averaging period; and if. Conducting an annual RATA of your CEMS using PS 3 and 4A of 40 CFR part 80, appendix 8, as well as daily and periodic data quality checks in accordance with 40 CFR part 80, appendix 61.
4. 4SRB stationary RICE >500 HP to- cated at a major source.	Reduce formaldehyde emissions and using NSCR.	dix F, procedure 1. Collecting the catalyst filet tempera- lure data according to \$53.8025(b); and I reducing these data to 4-hour rolling inversigns; and M. Maintaining the 4-hour rolling aver- ages within the operating limitations for the catalyst hist temperature; and Nr. Measuring the pressure drop across the catalyst once per month and dem- onstrating that the pressure drop across the catalyst is within the oper- ating limitation established during the performance isset.
5. 4SRB stationary RICE >500 HP to called at a major source.	Beduce formeldehyde emissions and not using NSCR.	Collecting the approved operating perhameter (N any) data according to \$53,625(b); and Reducing these data to 4-hour rolling averages; and Maintaining the 4-hour rolling inverages wholen the operating instations for the operating parameters establish the operating parameters establish
 4SRB stationary PICE with a brate H. 25,000 located at a major source. 	P Reduce tormaldehyde emissions	Bahad during the performance test. Conducting samilasmust performance- tests for formaldehyde to demonstrate that the required formaldehyde per-
7. Stationary RICE >500 HP located at major structs.	a Limit the concentration of formaldehyde in the stationary PICE enhance and using codes fron calalyst or NSCPL	heats for formaldehyde to demonstrate that your emissions remain at or below the formaldehyde concentration limit is and it. Collecting the calalyst hiet temperature data according to \$63.6625(b); and it. Reducing these data to 4-hour rolling averages; and iv. Maintaining the 4-hour rolling averages; and it is to a calalyst intel temperature; and it. Meanstaining the pressure drop across the calalyst once per month and demonstrating that the pressure drop across the catalyst is within the operating and constraining that the pressure drop across the catalyst is within the operating mission actables, and during the catalyst across the catalyst is within the operating mission actables, and during the
Stationary RICE >500 HP located at major source.	Limit the concentration of formaldehyde in the stationery PICE includes and not using indealion catalyst or NSCR.	performance test.

for each	Complying with the requirement to	You must demonstrate continuous com- pliance by
R. Existing stationary CI RICE not subject to any numerical amisalons limitations.	a. Work or Managament practices	III. Reducing these data to 4-hour rolling averages; and M. Maintaining the 4-hour rolling averages within the operating limitations for the operating parameters established during the performence that. Coperating and maintaining the stationary RICE according to the manufacturer's embasion-releted operation and maintainance insurctionary or. I. Davietop and follow your own maintenance plan which must provide to the extent practicable for the maintenance and operation of the angine in a manner consistent with good air potution control practice for minimizing emissions.
 Editing stationary RICE > 500 HP that his not limited use stationary RICE, ac- cept 45RB > 500 HP located at major sources. 	slong or.	Conducting performance tasts every 8,760 hours or 3 years, whichever comes first, for CO or formaldehyde,
 Edating imited use stationary RICE >500 HP that are limited use CI stationary RICE. 	Reduce CO or formaldehyde emissions; or. b. Limit the concentration of formaldehyde or CO in the stationary RICE exhaugt.	Conducting performance tests every 8,780 hours or 5 years, whichever comes first, for CO or formaldehyde.

After you have demonstrated compliance for two consecutive lasts, you may reduce the frequency of autesquark performance tests indicate the stationary ROE is not in compliance and is annually. If the results of any subsequent annual performance test indicate the stationary ROE is not in compliance with the CO or formatically ansistion limitation, or you divisits from any of your operating limitations, you must resume semi-annual performance tests.

[5 FR 9685, Mar. 3, 2010]

Table 7 to Subpart ZZZZ of Part 63—Requirements for Reports

You must submit s(n)	The report must contain , , ,	You must submit the report
i. Complance report	a. If there are no deviations from any smission limitations or operating limitations that spoky to you, a statement that there were no deviations from the emission timitations or operating limitations outling the reporting period. It there were no periods during which the CMS, including CEMS and CPMS, was out-of-control, as specified in \$53.MG/(T), a statement that there were not periods during which the CMS was out-of-control during the reporting periods.	gines that are not limited use sta- tionary CI RICE subject to numerical amission limitations; and IL Annually according to the requir- ments in \$63.8850(b)(5)-(9) for so- gines that are limited use stationary CI RICE subject to numerical emission invitations.
•	b. If you had a deviation from any emis- sion limitation or operating limitation during the reporting period, the infor- mation in § 83,8650(f). If there were	mente in § 63.5650(b).

Pt. 63, Subpt. ZZZZ, Table 8

The report must contain	You must submit the report
c. If you had a malfunction during the re- porting partod, the information in § 83.8850(c)(a). a. The fivel flow rate of each fivel and the heating values that were used in your calculations, and you must demonstrate that the percentage of heat input provided by landfill gas or digester gas, is equivalent to 10 percent or more of the gross heat input on an annual basis; and b. The operating limits provided in your Federally enforceable cermit, and any	I. See hem 2.8J.
deviations from these limits; and c. Any problems or arrors suspected	I. See ham 2.a.l.
	c. If you had a malfunction during the reporting parted, the information in § 83.8850(c)(4). a. The fivel flow rate of each kiel and the heating values that were used in your calculations, and you must demonstrate that the percentage of heat input provided by landfill gas or digester gas, is equivalent to 10 percent or more of the gross heat input on an annual balls, and b. The operating limits provided in your Federally enforceable permit, and any

[75 FR 9687, Mar. 3, 2010]

Table 8 to Subpart ZZZZ of Part 63—Applicability of General Provisions to Subpart ZZZZ.

As stated in §63.6665, you must comply with the following applicable general provisions.

General provisions citation	Subject of cliation	Applies to sub- part	Explanation
\$63.1	Provisions.	Yee.	
\$83.2 ,	Definitions	Yes	Additional terms defined in § 53.8875.
683.3		Yes.	
\$83.4	tion.	YpR,	•
\$63.5		Yes	}
\$83.8(a)	Applicability	Yes	ĺ
\$ 83.0(b)(1)-(4)	structed sources.	i	
\$63.8(b)(5)	Nothcation	Yes.	1
\$83.8(b)(8)		ł	ì
\$83.8(0)(7)	structed area sources that become major sources.	\ .	
\$ 83_6(c)(1)-(2)	Compliance detes for adating sources.	Yes	
\$ 63.6(c)(3)-(4)	[Reterved]	ļ	}
\$63.8(c)(5)	sources that become mejor sources.		
\$83.8(0)		1	ł
\$63.6(0)		No.	1
\$83.6(7)(1)		No.	f .
\$63.6(f)(2)	Methods for determining compliance	Yes.	}
\$83.8(1)(3)	Finding of compliance	YAR	
\$63.6(9)(1)-(3)	Use of alternate standard		1
\$63.0(1)			Subpart ZZZZ dose not contain opeo- hy or visible smission standards.
\$ 63.6(1)		Yea	Hy or visite sinistion transacts.
\$63.6D		lu.,	1
\$3.7(a)(1)-(2)	Performance hel deles	7 DEL.	<u> </u>
		Yes	Subpart ZZZZ contains performance test dates at \$5.03.5610, 83.8611, and 83.6612.
\$63.7(a)(3)	CAA section 114 authority	Y	1
\$63.7(b)(1)	Notification of performance lest	Yes	Except that \$53.7(b)(1) only applies as specified in \$63.8845.
\$ 63.7(b)(2)		Y 200	Encept that \$83.7(b)(2) only applies
\$63.7(t)	, , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , ,	Y >>>	as specified in \$83,8643. Except that \$83,7(d) only applies as
\$83.7(0)	Teeling facilities	Yas	**pecified in § 83.8648.
\$83.7(a)(1)		No	Subpart ZZZZ specifies conditions for conducting performance lesis at \$63,8620.

General provisions citation	Subject of citation	Applies to sub-	Explanation
	Conduct of performance lasts and re- duction of data.	Yas	Subpart ZZZZ specifies test methods at \$63,6620.
63.7(a)(3)	Test run duration	Yes	•
\$53.7(a)(4)	Administrator may require other test-	Yes	
183.7(h	ing under section 114 of the CAA. Alternative test method provisions		· ·
\$80.7(p)	Performance test data analysis, rec-	Yes.	
	ordicasping, and reporting.	100.	
\$80.70h)	Walver of tests	Yes.	1
\$63.8(a)(1)	Applicability of monitoring require- ments.		Subpart ZZZZ contains specific te- quirements for monitoring at \$63,6825.
\$63.8(a)(2)	Performance specifications	Yes	yamozz.
\$63.8(a)(3)	[Paservad]	ł	\
\$83.8(a)(4)	Monitoring for control devices		l .
\$83.8(b)(1)	Montoring	Yos.	
183.8(5)(2)-(3)	Multiple attriants and multiple more- toring systems.	į.	
\$83.8(c)(1)	Monhoring system operation and meintenance.	· ·	
\$83.8(c)(1)(i)	Proutine and pradictable SSM	Yes.	
183-8(o)(1)(1)	SSM not in Startup Shutdown Mal- kingdon Plan.	Yes.	·
\$83.8(c)(1)(0)	Compliance with operation and main-	Yes.	
200 04-100 100	Janance racinjustients	1	
\$83.8(c)(2)-(3)		Yes	l
\$83.8(c)(4)	Continuous monitoring system (CMS) requirements.	Y >>	Except that subpart ZZZZ does not require Continuous Opechy Mora-
\$53.B(c)(5)	COMS minimum procedures	No	bothing System (COMS). Subpart ZZZZ does not require COMS.
\$ 63.8(c)(5)-(8)	1	1	Except that subpart ZZZZ does not require COMS.
\$83.B(d)	CMS quality control	Yas	I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I
\$63.8(a)	CMS performance evaluation	Y 34	Except for \$83.8(e)(5)(II), which ap-
		Except that § 63.8(e) only applies as specified in § 63.6646	piles to COMS.
\$83,8(f)(1)-(f)	bottem gnhodnom evtrament.	. Y	Except that \$83.8(f)(4), only applies as specified in \$83.8845.
	Alternative to relative accuracy test .		Except that \$83.8(f)(5) only applies as specified in \$63.8848.
§83.B(g)	Data reduction	Yee	Except that provisions for COMS are not applicable. Averaging periods for dependentaling compliance are appointed at \$5.53.5635 and 53.5640.
§63.9(a)	Applicability and State delegation	year	63.0010.
\$83.0(0)(1)-(6)	notification requirements. Initial polifications	Y88	Except that \$ 83.9(0)(3) is reserved.
good to first for management	DATE INCIDENCE OF THE PROPERTY	Except that § 83.9(b) only applie as specifie	•
		in § 83.884	
\$63.9(e)	Request for compliance extension		Except that \$63.9(c) only applies as
383.9(d)	Notification of special compliance :	y - Y +	specified in \$63.8645. Except that \$63.8(d) only applies as
5 83.9(a)	quirements for hely sources. Notification of performance test	Yee	specified in \$53,8645. Except that \$63,8(e) only applies as
\$63.9(f)	Notification of visible emission (VI	Y No	specified in \$63.8848. Subpart ZZZZ does not contain opace.
\$63.9(9)(1)	concily test.	1	Buspt that \$83.0(g) only applies as
6 83.9(0)(2)	1	ł	subpart ZZZZ dose not contain opac-

General provisions dilation	Subject of citation	Applies to sub- part	Explanation
		Except that §63.9(g) only applies as specified in §63.6845.	
\$ 63.P(n)(1)—(6)	Notification of compliance status	Y++	Except that notifications for sources using a CEMS are due 30 days after completion of performence evaluations. § 53.9(h)(4) is reserved.
			Except that §83.9(h) only applies as specified in §83.8645.
\$63.9(1)		YOR	,
\$83.90		Yes	}
\$63.10(a)	Administrative provisions for record- keeping/reporting.	YOR	,
\$63.10(0)(1)	Record mendon	YAL	(
\$ 63.10(0)(2)(1)-(1)		No	\$
\$53.10(b)(2)(M)-(b)		Yes	}
\$ 83.10(b)(2)(xil)		Yes	1
\$ 63.10(b)(2)(xiii)			For CO standard if using RATA alter- native.
\$ 83.10(b)(2)(b)		Yes.	1,000
\$63.10(b)(3)		Yes	
\$83.10(c)			Except that \$63.10(c)(2)-(4) and (9) are reserved.
\$83.10(0)(1)		Yes.	
\$ 83.10(0)(2)	Report of performance test results	Yes	}
(QKb)01.882	Reporting opacity or VE observations		Subpart ZZZZ does not contain opac- lty or VE standards.
\$ 63.10(d)(4)	Propress reports	Yes	my OF VE Stanosities.
\$ 63.10(0)(5)	Startup, shutdown, and maltunction		
\$83,10(a)(1) and (2)(1)		Yes	}
\$ 83.50(a)(2)(3)		No	Subpart ZZZZ does not require
5 63L10(0)(3)	Excess emission and paramete	Yes	COMS. Except that \$83,10(e)(3)(f) (C) is re-
\$63.10(b)(4)	Reporting COMS data	- >>	
\$63.10(1)		Yes	1
563.11	Flores	. I No.	
\$63.12	State authority and delegations	Yes	j .
\$63.13	Addresses	. I Yaa.	
\$63.74	Incorporation by reference	Yes	1
\$63,15	Availability of information	Yes	•

[75 PR 9688, Mar. 3, 2010]

Subpart AAAAA—National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants for Lime Monufacturing Plants

SOURCE: 69 FR 416, Jan. 5, 2004, unless otherwise noted.

WHAT THIS SUBPART COVERS

\$63.7080 What is the purpose of this subpart?

This subpart establishes national emission standards for hazardons air pollutants (NESHAP) for lime manufacturing plants. This subpart also es-

tablishes requirements to demonstrate initial and continuous compliance with the emission limitations.

\$63,7081 Am I subject to this subpart?

(a) You are subject to this subpart if you own or operate a lime manufacturing plant (LMP) that is a major source, or that is located at, or is part of, a major source of hazardous air pollutant (HAP) emissions, unless the LMP is located at a kraft pulp mill, soda pulp mill, sulfite pulp mill, beet sugar manufacturing plant, or only processes aludge containing calcium

Appendix F

Citation	Subject .	Applies to support	Explanation
\$ 63.6(c)(2), (5)	Compliance dates for CAA sec- tion 112(f) standards and for area sources that become malor.	No.	
\$63.8(c)(3)-(4)	[Reserved]		(
83.8(0)	[Reserved]		
163.6(a)-(h)	Alternative honopacity amission standard.	No.	
103.60)-(0)	Compliance extension	You.	
163.7	Partormance lesting require- ments.	No.	·
§ 83.8	Monitoring requirements	No.	i
163.0(a)	Applicability and Initial notifica- tions addresses.	YOS.	
\$60.9(b)	Initial notifications	Ha.	l
}83.9(c)	Request for extension of compli- ance.	Yes	.:
163.9(d)~(D)	Other notifications'	l Na.	1
183 10(1)(1)-(2)	Recordicepting and reporting re- quirements, applicability.	Yes	
}63,10(a)(3)-(4)	. Ganeral information	Yes,	}
183.10(a)(5)-(7)	Recordisepting and reporting re- quirements, reporting ached- tiles.		
\$63.10(b)(1)	Retendon time	Yes	1
\$63.10(b)(2)-()	. Recordingping and reporting re- quirements.	Ha	
163.11	. Control device requirements	. No.	{
163.12		Yes.	1
§§ 63.13-63.18	Addresses, incorporations by Reference, availability of information, performance trace provisions.	•	

Subpart XXXXX [Reserved]

Subpart YYYYY—National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants for Area Sources: Electric Arc Furnace Steelmaking Facilities

Source: 72 FR 74111, Dec. 28, 2007, unless otherwise noted.

Applicability and Compliance Dates

163.10680 Am I subject to this subpart?

(a) You are subject to this subpart if you own or operate an electric arc furnace (EAF) steelmaking facility that is an area source of hazardons air pollutant (HAP) emissions.

(b) This subpart applies to each new or existing affected source. The affected source is each EAF steelmaking facility.

(1) An affected source is existing if you commenced construction or reconstruction of the affected source on or before September 20, 2007.

- (2) An affected source is new if you commenced construction or reconstruction of the affected source after September 20, 2007.
- (c) This subpart does not apply to research and development facilities, as defined in section 112(c)(7) of the Clean Air Act (CAA).
- (d) If you own or operate an area source subject to this subpart, you must have or obtain a permit under 40 OFR part 70 or 40 OFR part 71.

163,10681 What are my compliance dates?

(a) Except as provided in paragraph (b) of this section, if you own or operate an existing affected source, you must achieve compliance with the applicable provisions of this subpart by no later than June 30, 2008.

(b) If you own or operate an existing affected source, you must achieve compliance with opacity limit in \$63.10686(b)(2) or (o)(2) by no later than December 23, 2010 if you demonstrate to the satisfaction of the permitting

authority that additional time is needed to install or modify emission control equipment.

(c) If you start up a new affected source on or before December 28, 2007, you must achieve compliance with the applicable provisions of this subpart by no later than December 28, 2007.

(d) If you start up a new affected source after December 28, 2007, you must achieve compliance with the applicable provisions of this subpart upon startup of your affected source.

STANDARDS AND COMPLIANCE REQUIREMENTS

\$63,10685 What are the requirements for the control of contaminants from scrap?

(a) Chlorinated plastics, lead, and free organic liquids. For metallic scrap utilized in the EAF at your facility, you must comply with the requirements in either paragraph (a)(1) or (2) of this section. You may have certain scrap at your facility subject to paragraph (a)(1) of this section and other scrap subject to paragraph (a)(2) of this section provided the scrap remains segregated

until charge make-up.

(1) Pollution prevention plan. For the production of steel other than leaded steel, you must prepare and implement a pollution prevention plan for metallio scrap selection and inspection to minimize the amount of chlorinated plastics, lead, and free organic liquids that is charged to the fornace. For the production of leaded steel, you must prepare and implement a pollution prevention plan for scrap selection and inspection to minimize the amount of chlorinated plastics and free organic liquids in the sorap that is charged to the furnace. You must submit the scrap pollution prevention plan to the permitting authority for approval. You must operate according to the plan as submitted during the review and approval process, operate according to the approved plan at all times after approval, and address any deficiency identified by the permitting authority within 80 days following disapproval of a plan. You may request approval to revise the plan and may operate according to the revised plan unless and until the revision is disapproved by the permitting anthority. You must keep a

copy of the plan onsite, and you must provide training on the plan's requirements to all plant personnel with materials acquisition or inspection duties. Each plan must include the information in paragraphs (a)(1)(i) through (iii) of this section:

(i) Specifications that scrap materials must be depleted (to the extent practicable) of undrained used oil filters, chlorinated plastics, and free organic liquids at the time of charging to the furnace.

(ii) A requirement in your scrap specifications for removal (to the extent practicable) of lead-containing components (such as batteries, battery cables, and wheel weights) from the scrap, except for scrap used to produce leaded ateel.

(iii) Procedures for determining if the requirements and specifications in paragraph (a)(1) of this section are met (such as visual inspection or periodic audits of scrap providers) and procedures for taking corrective actions with vendors whose shipments are not within specifications.

(iv) The requirements of paragraph (a)(1) of this section do not apply to the routine recycling of baghouse bags or other internal process or maintenance materials in the furnace. These exempted materials must be identified in

the pollution prevention plan. (2) Restricted metallic scrap. For the production of steel other than leaded steel, you must not charge to a furnace metallic scrap that contains scrap from motor vehicle bodies, engine blocks, oil filters, oily turnings, machine shop borings, transformers, or capacitors containing production of components, chlorinated plastics, or free organic liquids. For the production of leaded steel, you must not charge to the furnace metallic scrap that contains scrap from motor vehicle bodies, engine blocks, oil filters, oily turnings, machine shop borings, transformers or capacitors containing polychlorinated biphenyls, chlorinated plastics, or free organic liquids. This restriction does not apply to any post-consumer engine blocks, post-consumer oil filters, or oily turnings that are processed or cleaned to the extent practicable such that the materials do not include lead

components, chlorinated plastics, or free organic liquids. This restriction does not apply to motor vehicle scrap that is charged to recover the chromium or nickel content if you meet the requirements in paragraph (b)(3) of this section.

(b) Mercury requirements. For scrap containing motor vehicle scrap, you must procure the scrap pursuant to one of the compliance options in paragraphs (b)(1), (2), or (3) of this section for each scrap provider, contract, or ahipment. For scrap that does not contain motor vehicle scrap, you must procure the scrap pursuant to the requirements in paragraph (b)(4) of this section for each scrap provider, contract, or shipment. You may have one scrap provider, contract, or shipment subject to one compliance provision and others subject to another compliance provision.

(1) Site-specific plan for mercury switches. You must comply with the requirements in paragraphs (b)(1)(1) through (v) of this section.

(i) You must include a requirement in your scrap specifications for removal of mercury switches from vahicle bodies used to make the scrap.

(ii) You must prepare and operate socording to a plan demonstrating how your facility will implement the scrap specification in paragraph (b)(1)(i) of this section for removal of mercury switches. You must aubmit the plan to the permitting authority for approval. You must operate according to this plan as submitted during the review and approval process, operate according to the approved plan at all times after approval, and address any deficlearcy identified by the permitting authority within 60 days following disapproval of a plan. You may request approval to revise the plan and may operate according to the revised plan unless and until the revision is disapproved by the permitting authority. The permitting anthority may change the approval status of the plan upon 90days written notice based upon the semiannual compliance report or other information. The plan must include:

(A) A means of communicating to scrap purchasers and scrap providers the need to obtain or provide motor vehicle scrap from which mercury switch-

es have been removed and the need to ensure the proper management of the mercury switches removed from that scrap as required under the rules implementing subtitle C of the Resource Conservation and Recovery (RORA) (40 CFR: parts 261 through 265 and 268). The plan must include documentation of direction to appropriate staff to communicate to suppliers throughout the scrap supply chain the need to promote the removal of mercury switches from end-of-life vehicles. Upon the request of the permitting authority, you must provide examples of materials that are used for outreach to suppliers, such as letters, contract language, policies for purchasing agents, and scrap inspection protocols;

(B) Provisions for obtaining assurance from scrap providers that motor vehicle scrap provided to the facility meet the scrap specification;

(C) Provisions for periodic inspections or other means of corroboration to ensure that scrap providers and dismantlers are implementing appropriate steps to minimize the presence of mercury switches in motor vehicle scrap and that the mercury switches removed are being properly managed, including the minimum frequency such means of corroboration will be implemented; and

(D) Provisions for taking corrective actions (i.e., actions resulting in scrap providers removing a higher percentage of mercury switches or other mercury-containing components) if needed, based on the results of procedures implemented in paragraph (b)(1)(ii)(U) of this section).

(iii) You must require each motor vehicle scrap provider to provide an estimate of the number of mercury switches removed from motor vehicle scrap sent to your facility during the previous year and the basis for the estimate. The permitting authority may request documentation or additional information at any time.

(iv) You must establish a goal for each scrap provider to remove at least 80 percent of the meroury switches. Although a site-specific plan approved under paragraph (b)(1) of this section may require only the removal of convenience light switch mechanisms, the permitting authority will credit all

documented and verifiable mercurycontaining components removed from motor vehicle scrap (such as sansors in anti-locking brake systems, security systems, active ride control, and other applications) when evaluating progress towards the 80 percent goal.

(V) For each scrap provider, you must submit semiannual progress reports to the permitting authority that provide the number of mercury switches removed or the weight of mercury recovered from the switches, the estimated number of vehicles processed, an estimate of the percent of mercury switches removed, and certification that the removed mercury switches were recycled at RCRA-permitted facilities or otherwise properly managed pursuant to RCRA subtitle C regulations referenced in paragraph (b)(1)(ii)(A) of this section. This information can be submitted in aggregated form and does not have to be submitted for each scrap provider, contract, or shipment. The permitting authority may change the approval status of a site-specific plan following 90-days notice based on the progress reports or other information.

(2) Option for approved mercury programs. You must certify in your notification of compliance status that you participate in and purchase motor vebicle scrap only from scrap providers who participate in a program for removal of mercury switches that has been approved by the Administrator based on the criteria in paragraphs (b)(2)(i) through (iii) of this section. If you purchase motor vehicle scrap from a broker, you must certify that all scrap received from that broker was obtained from other scrap providers who participate in a program for the removal of mercury switches that has been approved by the Administrator based on the criteria in paragraphs (b)(2)(i) through (iii) of this section. The National Vehicle Mercury Switch Recovery Program and the Vehicle Switch Recovery Program mandated by Maine State law are EPA-approved programs under paragraph (b)(2) of this section unless and until the Administrator disapproves the program (in part or in whole) under paragraph (b)(2)(iii) of this section.

(i) The program includes outreach that informs the dismantlers of the

need for removal of mercury switches and provides training and guidance for removing mercury switches;

(ii) The program has a goal to remove at least 80 percent of mercury switches from the motor vehicle scrap the scrap provider processes. Although a program approved under paragraph (b)(2) of this section may require only the removal of convenience light switch mechanisms, the Administrator will credit all documented and verifiable mercury-containing components removed from motor vehicle scrap (such as sensors in anti-locking brake systems, security systems, active ride control, and other applications) when evaluating progress towards the 80 percent goal; and

(iii) The program sponsor agrees to submit progress reports to the Administrator no less frequently than once every year that provide the number of mercury switches removed or the weight of mercury recovered from the switches, the estimated number of vehicles processed, an estimate of the percent of mercury switches recovered, and certification that the recovered mercury switches were recycled at facilities with permits as required under the rules implementing subtitle C of RCRA (40 CFR parts 281 through 265 and 268). The progress reports must be based on a database that includes data for each program participant; however, data may be aggregated at the State level for progress reports that will be publicly available. The Administrator may change the approval status of a program or portion of a program (e.g., at the State level) following 90-days notice based on the progress reports or on other information.

(iv) You must develop and maintain onsite a plan demonstrating the manner through which your facility is participating in the EPA-approved program.

(A) The plan must include facilityspecific implementation elements, corporate-wide policies, and/or efforts coordinated by a trade association as appropriate for each facility.

(B) You must provide in the plan documentation of direction to appropriate staff to communicate to suppliers throughout the scrap supply chain the

need to promote the removal of mercury switches from and-of-life vehicles. Upon the request of the permitting authority, you must provide examples of materials that are used for outreach to suppliers, such as letters, contract language, policies for purchasing agents, and scrap inspection protocols.

(C) You must conduct periodic inspections or provide other means of corroboration to ensure that scrap providers are aware of the need for and are implementing appropriate steps to minimize the presence of mercury in scrap from end-of-life vehicles.

(3) Option for specialty metal scrap. You must certify in your notification of compliance status that the only materials from motor vehicles in the scrap are materials recovered for their specialty alloy (including, but not limited to, chromium, nickel, molybdenum, or other alloys) content (such as certain exhaust systems) and, based on the nature of the scrap and purchase specifications, that the type of scrap is not reasonably, expected to contain mercury switches.

(4) Scrap that does not contain motor vehicle scrap. For scrap not subject to the requirements in paragraphs (b)(1) through (3) of this section, you must certify in your notification of compliance status and maintain records of documentation that this scrap does not

contain motor vehicle scrap.

(0) Recordkeeping and reporting requirements. In addition to the records required by \$63,10, you must keep records to demonstrate compliance with the requirements for your pollution prevention plan in paragraph (a)(1) of this section and/or for the use of only restricted scrap in paragraph (a)(2) of this section and for maronry in paragraphs (b)(i) through (3) of this section as applicable. You must keep records documenting compliance with paragraph (b)(4) of this section for scrap that does not contain motor vehiole scrap.

(1) If you are subject to the requirements for a site-specific plan for mercury under paragraph (b)(1) of this sec-

tion, you must:

(1) Maintain records of the number of mercury switches removed or the weight of mercury recovered from the switches and properly managed, the ca-

timated number of vehicles processed, , and an estimate of the percent of mercury switches recovered; and

(ii) Submit semiannual reports of the number of mercury switches removed or the weight of mercury recovered from the switches and properly managed, the estimated number of vehicles processed, an estimate of the percent of mercury switches recovered, and a certification that the recovered mercury switches were recycled at RCRA-permitted facilities. The semiannual reports must include a certification that you have conducted inspections or taken other means of corroboration as required under paragraph (b)(1)(ii)(C) of this section. You may include this information in the semiannual compliance reports required under paragraph (c)(3) of this section.

(2) If you are subject to the option for approved mercury programs under paragraph (b)(2) of this section, you must maintain records identifying each scrap provider and documenting the scrap provider's participation in an approved mercury switch removal program. If you purchase motor vehicle scrap from a broker, you must maintain records identifying each broker and documentation that all scrap provided by the broker was obtained from other scrap providers who participate in an approved mercury switch removal program.

(3) You must submit semiannual compliance reports to the Administrator for the control of contaminants from scrap according to the requirements in §63.10(e). The report must clearly identify any deviation from the requirements in paragraphs (a) and (b) of this section and the corrective action taken. You must identify which compliance option in paragraph (b) of this section applies to each scrap provider, contract, or shipment.

\$63.10686 What are the requirements for electric are furnaces and argonoxygen decarburization vessels?

(a) You must install, operate, and maintain a capture system that collects the emissions from each EAF (including charging, melting, and tapping operations) 'and argon-oxygen

decarburization (AOD) vessel and conveys the collected emissions to a control device for the removal of particulate matter (PM).

- (b) Except as provided in paragraph (c) of this section, you must not discharge or cause the discharge into the atmosphere from an EAF or AOD vessel any gases which:
- (1) Exit from a control device and contain in excess of 0.0052 grains of PM per dry standard cubic foot (gr/dscf); and
- (2) Exit from a melt shop and, due solely to the operations of any affected EAF(s) or AOD vessel(s), exhibit 6 percent opacity or greater.
- (c) If you own or operate a new or existing affected source that has a production capacity of less than 150,000 tons per year (tpy) of stainless or specialty steel (as determined by the maximum production if specified in the source's operating permit or EAF capacity and maximum number of operating hours per year), you must not discharge or cause the discharge into the atmosphere from an EAF or AOD yessel any gases which:
- (1) Exit from a control device and contain particulate matter (PM) in excess of 0.8 pounds per ton (lb/ton) of steel. Alternatively, the owner or operator may elect to comply with a PM limit of 0.0062 grains per dry standard cubic foot (gr/dedf); and
- (2) Exit from a melt shop and, due solely to the operations of any affected EAF(a) or AOD vessel(s), exhibit δ percent opacity or greater.
- (d) Except as provided in paragraph (d)(6) of this section, you must conduct performance tests to demonstrate initial compliance with the applicable emissions limit for each emissions source subject to an emissions limit in paragraph (b) or (c) of this section.
- (1) You must conduct each PM performance test for an EAF or AOD vessel according to the procedures in §63.7 and 40 CFR 50.775a using the following test methods in 40 CFR part 60, appendices A-1, A-2, A-3, and A-4:
- (i) Method I or 1A of appendix A-1 of 40 OFR part 60 to select sampling port locations and the number of traverse points in each stack or duct. Sampling sites must be located at the outlet of the control device (or at the outlet of

the emissions source if no control device is present) prior to any releases to the atmosphere.

- (ii) Method 2, 2A, 2C, 2D, 2F, or 2G of appendix A-1 of 40 CFR part 60 to determine the volumetric flow rate of the stack gas.
- (iii) Method 3, 3A, or 3B of appendix Ai-3 of 40 CFR part 60 to determine the dry molecular weight of the stack gas. You may use ANBI/ASME PTC 19.10-1981, "Fine and Exhaust Gas Analyses" (incorporated by reference—see §63.14) as an alternative to EPA Method 3B.
- (iv) Method 4 of appendix A-3 of 40 CFR part 60 to determine the moisture content of the stack gas.
- (v) Method 5 or 5D of appendix A-3 of 40 CFR part 60 to determine the PM concentration. Three valid test runs are needed to comprise a PM performance test. For EAF, sample only when metal is being melted and refined. For AOD vessels, sample only when the operation(s) are being conducted.
- (2) You must conduct each opacity test for a melt shop according to the procedures in §63.6(h) and Method 9 of appendix A-4 of 40 CFR part 60. When emissions from any EAF or AOD vessel are combined with emissions from emission sources not subject to this subpart, you must demonstrate compliance with the melt shop opacity limit based on emissions from only the emission sources subject to this subpart.
- (3) During any performance test, you must monitor and record the information specified in 40 CFR 80.274a(h) for all heats covered by the test.
- (4) You must notify and receive approval from the Administrator for procedures that will be used to determine compliance for an EAF or AOD vessel when emissions are combined with those from facilities not subject to this subpart.
- (5) To determine compliance with the PM emissions limit in paragraph (c) of this section for an EAF or AOD vessel in a lbtton of steel format, compute the process-weighted mass emissions (E_p) for each test run using Equation 1 of this section:

$$E_p = \frac{C \times Q \times T}{P \times K}$$
 (Eq. 1)

Where:

- B_p = Process-weighted mass emissions of PM, lb/ton;
- C = Concentration of PM or total metal HAP, gr/decf;
- Q = Volumetric flow rate of stack gas, daciling;
- T = Total time during a test run that a sample is withdrawn from the stack during atesl production cycle, hr;
- P = Total amount of metal produced during the test run, tone; and
- K = Conversion factor, 7,000 grains per pound.
- (6) If you own or operate an existing affected source that is subject to the emissions limits in paragraph (b) or (c) of this section, you may certify initial compliance with the applicable emission limit for one or more emissions sources based on the results of a previous performance test for that emissions source in lieu of the requirement for an initial performance test provided that the test(s) were conducted within 5 years of the compliance date using the methods and procedures specified in paragraph (d)(1) or (2) of this section; the test(s) were for the affected facility; and the test(s) were representative of current or anticipated operating processes and conditions. Should the permitting authority deem the prior test data nnacceptable to demonstrate compliance with an applicable emissions limit, the owner or operator must conduct an initial performance test within 180 days of the compliance date or within 90 days of receipt of the notification of disapproval of the prior test, whichever is later.

OTHER INFORMATION AND REQUIREMENTS

\$63.10690 What parts of the General Provisions apply to this subpart?

- (a) You must comply with the requirements of the NESHAP General Provisions (40 CFR part 83, subpart A) as provided in Table 1 of this subpart.
- (b) The notification of compliance status required by \$63.9(h) must include each applicable cartification of compliance, signed by a responsible official, in paragraphs (b)(1) through (6) of this section.
- (1) For the pollution prevention plan requirements in §63.10685(a)(1): "This facility has submitted a pollution prevention plan for metallic scrap selec-

- tion and inspection in accordance with §63.10685(a)(1)";
- (2) For the restrictions on metallic scrap in \$63.10686(a)(2); "This facility complies with the requirements for restricted metallic scrap in accordance with \$63.10686(a)(2)";
- (3) For the mercury requirements in §63.10685(b):
- (i) "This facility has prepared a sitespecific plan for mercury switches in accordance with \$63.10685(b)(1)";
- (ii) "This facility participates in and purchases motor vehicle scrap only from scrap providers who participate in a program for removal of mercury switches that has been approved by the EPA Administrator in accordance with §63.10685(b)(2)" and has prepared a plan demonstrating how the facility participates in the EPA-approved program in accordance with §63.10685(b)(2)(iv);
- (iii) "The only materials from motor vehicles in the scrap charged to an electric arc furnace at this facility are materials recovered for their specialty alloy content in accordance with \$63.16885(b)(3) which are not reasonably expected to contain mercury switches"; or
- (iv) "This facility complies with the requirements for scrap that does not contain motor vehicle scrap in accordance with \$63.10685(b)(4)."
- (4) This certification of compliance for the capture system requirements in §63.10686(a), signed by a responsible official: "This facility operates a capture system for each electric arc furnace and argon-oxygen decarburization vessel that conveys the collected emissions to a PM control device in accordance with §63.10686(a)".
- (5) If applicable, this certification of compliance for the performance test requirements in \$63.10686(d)(6): "This facility certifies initial compliance with the applicable emissions limit in \$63.10688(a) or (b) based on the results of a previous performance test in accordance with \$63.10688(d)(6)".
- (5) This certification of compliance for the monitoring requirements in \$63.10686(e), signed by a responsible official: "This facility has developed and submitted proposed monitoring information in accordance with 40 CFR part \$4".

\$63,10691 Who implements and enforces this subpart?

(a) This subpart can be implemented and enforced by the EPA or a delegated authority such as a State, local, or tribal agency. If the EPA Administrator has delegated authority to a State, local, or tribal agency, then that Agency has the authority to implement and enforce this subpart. You should contact your EPA Regional Office to find out if this subpart is delegated to your State, local, or tribal agency.

(b) In delegating implementation and enforcement authority of this subpart to a State, local, or tribal agency under 40 CFR part 63, subpart E, the authorities contained in paragraph (c) of this section are retained by the Administrator and are not transferred to the State, local, or tribal agency.

- (c) The authorities that will not be delegated to State, local, or tribal agencies are listed in paragraphs (c)(1) through (6) of this section.
- (1) Approval of an alternative nonopacity emissions standard under 40 CFR 63.6(g).
- (2) Approval of an alternative opacity emissions standard under §63.8(h)(9).
- (3) Approval of a major change to test methods under \$63.7(e)(2)(11) and (f). A "major change to test method" is defined in 40 CFR 63.90.
- (4) Approval of major change to monitoring under 40 CFR 63.8(f). A "major change to monitoring" is defined in 40 CFR 63.90.
- (5) Approval of a major change to recordkeeping/reporting under 40 CFR 63.10(f). A "major change to recordkeeping/reporting" is defined in 40 CFR 63.90.
- (6) Approval of a program for the removal of mercury switches under \$63,10685(b)(2).

\$63.10692 What definitions apply to this subpart?

Terms used in this subpart are defined in the Clean Air Act, in §63.2, and in this section as follows:

Argon-crygen decorburization (AOD) restel means any closed-bottom, refractory-lined converter vessel with submerged toyers through which gaseous mixtures containing argon and oxygen

or nitrogen may be blown into molten steel for further refining.

Capture system means the equipment (including ducts, hoods, fans, dampers, etc.) used to capture or transport emissions generated by an electric arc furnace or argon-oxygen decarburization vessel to the air pollution control de-

Chlorinated plastics means solid polymeric materials that contain chlorine in the polymer chain, such as polyvinyl chloride (PVO) and PVC copolymers.

Control device means the air pollution control equipment used to remove particulate matter from the effluent gas stream generated by an electric arc furnace or argon-oxygen decarburization vessel.

Deviation means any instance where an affected source subject to this subpart, or an owner or operator of such a source:

- (1) Fails to meet any requirement or obligation established by this subpart; including but not limited to any emissions limitation or work practice standard;
- (2) Fails to meet any term or condition that is adopted to implement an applicable requirement in this subpart and that is included in the operating permit for any affected source required to obtain such a permit; or
- (3) Fails to meet any emissions limitation in this subpart during startup, shutdown, or mailtanction, regardless of whether or not such failure is permitted by this subpart.

Electric are furnace (EAF) means a furnace that produces molten steel and heats the charge materials with electric arcs from carbon electrodes. An electric arc furnace consists of the furnace shell, roof, and the transformer.

Electric are furnace (EAF) steelmaking facility means a steel plant that produces carbon, alloy, or specialty steels using an EAF. This definition excludes EAF steelmaking facilities at steel foundries and EAF facilities used to produce nonferrous metals.

Free organic liquids means material that fails the paint filter test by EPA Method 9095B, (revision 2, dated November 1994) (incorporated by reference—see §63.14) after accounting for water using a moisture determination

test by ASTM Method D2216-05 (incorporated by reference—see §63.14). If, after conducting a moisture determination test, if any portion of the material passes through and drops from the filter within the 5-minute test period, the material contains free organic liquids.

Leaded steel means steel that must meet a minimum specification for lead content (typically 0.25 percent or more) and for which lead is a necessary alloy for that grade of steel.

Mercury switch means each mercurycontaining capsule or switch assembly that is part of a convenience light switch mechanism installed in a vehicle.

Motor vehicle means an automotive vehicle not operated on rails and usually operated with rubber tires for use on highways.

Motor vehicle scrap means vehicle or automobile bodies, including automobile body hulks, that have been processed through a shredder. Motor ve-

hicle scrap does not include automobile manufacturing bundles, or miscellaneous vehicle parts, such as wheels, bumpers or other components that do not contain mercury switches.

Nonferrous metals means any pure metal other than iron or any metal alloy for which an element other than iron is its major constituent by percent in weight.

Scrap provider means the person (including a broker) who contracts directly with a steel mill to provide scrap that contains motor vehicle scrap. Scrap processors such as shredder operators or vehicle dismantlers that do not sell scrap directly to a steel mill are not scrap providers.

Specialty steel means low carbon and high alloy steel other than stainless steel that is processed in an argon-oxygen decarburization vessel.

Stainless steel means low carbon steel that contains at least 10.5 percent chromium.

TABLE 1 TO SUBPART YYYYY OF PART 63—APPLICABILITY OF GENERAL PROVISIONS TO SUBPART YYYYY

As required in § 53,10691(a), you must comply with the requirements of the NESHAP General Provisions (40 OFR part 53, subpart A) shown in the following table.

Chation	Subject	Applies to subpart	Explanation .
\$83.1(a)(1), (a)(2), (a)(3), (a)(4), (a)(6), (a)(10)—(a)(12), (b)(1), (b)(3), (c)(1), (c)(2), (c)(5), (a).	**************************************	Yes	
\$53.1(a)(5), (a)(7)-(a)(9), (b)(2), (c)(3), (c)(4), (d),	Received	₩a.	
363.2	Delinitions	Yes.	
}63.3	Unks and Abbreviations	Yes	!
\$63.4	Prohibited Activities and Circumvention.		
163.5	Preconstruction Review and No- Wication Regultements.		
\$63.6(a). (b)(1)—(b)(5). (b)(7). (c)(1). (c)(2). (c)(6). (b)(1). (e)(3)(0). (e)(3)(0). (b). (b). (b). (b). (b). (b). (b). (b	Compliance with Standards and Maintenance Requirements.	Yea.	
\$83.8(0)(8), (0)(3), (0)(4), (0), 40(0)(0), (0	Reserved	No.	
\$83.7	Applicability and Performance Test Dates,	Yaa	
\$53.8(a)(1), (a)(2), (b), (c), (c), (a), (f)(1)-(5), (b).	Monitoring Requirements	Y==	Requirements apply # a COM8 or CEMS is used.
\$63.8(a)(3)	[Reserved]	No.	
\$ 63.5(a)(4)	Additional Monitoring Require- ments for Control Devices in § 83,11.		
§ 63.8(c)(4)	Continuous Monitoring System Requirements.	Yee	Requirements apply If a COMS or CEMS is peed.
\$ 63.8(1)(8)	RATA Alternative	Y > 3	Requirements apply 8 a CEMS le used,

Citation	Subject	Applies to subpart YYYYY7	Explanation
\$ 83.9(a), (D)(1), (D)(2), (D)(5), (c), (d), (J), (g), (D)(1)-(h)(3), (D)(5), (d), (D), (D), (D), (D), (D), (D), (D), (D	Reserved	Yes. No. No.	
\$63.10(a), (b)(1), (b)(2)(h-(v), (b)(2)(b-(v), (b)(3), (c)(1), (c)(5)-(c)(8), (c)(10)-(c)(15), (d), (a)(1)-(a)(4), (h-	Requirements.	Yes	Additional records for CMS in § 83.10(c) (1)-(8), (9)-(15), and reports in § 83.10(d)(1)-(2) apply if a COMS or CEMS is used.
\$ 63.10(b)(2)(bdll)	CHS Records for RATA Alter-	Y98 ,	Requirements apply # a CEMS is used.
\$63.10(c)(2)-(c)(4), (c)(9)	Reserved	No.	1 2 2 2 2 2
\$83.11 \$63.12			,
55 63.19-63.18			

Subpart ZZZZ—National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants for Iron and Steel Foundries Area Sources

SOURCE: 73 FR 252, Jan. 2, 2008, unless otherwise noted.

APPLICABILITY AND COMPLIANCE DATES

\$63,10880 Am I subject to this subpart?

(a) You are subject to this subpart if you own or operate an iron and steel foundry that is an area source of hazardous air pollutant (HAP) emissions.

(b) This subpart applies to each new or existing affected source. The affected source is each iron and steel foundry.

(1) An affected source is existing if you commenced construction or reconstruction of the affected source before September 17, 2007.

(2) An affected source is new if you commenced construction or reconstruction of the affected source on or after September 17, 2007. If an affected source is not new pursuant to the preceding sentence, it is not new as a result of a change in its compliance obligations pursuant to §63,10881(d).

(c) On and after January 2, 2008, if your iron and steel foundry becomes a major source as defined in §63.2, you must meet the requirements of 40 CFR part 63, subpart EEEEE.

(d) This subpart does not apply to research and development facilities, as

defined in section 112(c)(7) of the Clean Air Act.

(e) You are exempt from the obligation to obtain a permit under 40 CFR part 70 or 40 CFR part 71, provided you are not otherwise required by law to obtain a permit under 40 CFR 70.3(a) or 40 CFR 71.3(a). Notwithstanding the previous sentence, you must continue to comply with the provisions of this subpart.

(f) If you own or operate an existing affected source, you must determine the initial applicability of the requirements of this subpart to a small foundry or a large foundry based on your facility's metal melt production for calendar year 2008; If the metal melt production for calendar year 2008 is 20,000 tons or less, your area source is a small foundry. If your metal melt production for calendar year 2008 is greater than 20,000 tons, your area source is a large foundry. You must submit a written notification to the Administrator that identifies your area source as a small foundry or a large foundry no later than January 2, 2009.

(g) If you own or operate a new affected source, you must determine the initial applicability of the requirements of this subpart to a small foundry or a large foundry based on your facility's annual metal melting capacity at startup. If the annual metal melting capacity is 10,000 tons or less, your area source is a small foundry. If the annual metal melting capacity is greater than 10,000 tons, your area source is a large

Appendix H

Subpart CCCCC—National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants for Source Category: Gasoline Dispensing Facilities

SOURCE: 73 FR 1945, Jan. 10, 2008, unless otherwise noted.

WHAT THIS SUBPART COVERS

163.11110 What is the purpose of this subpart?

This subpart establishes national emission limitations and management practices for hazardons air pollutants (HAP) emitted from the loading of gasoline storage tanks at gasoline dispensing facilities (GDF). This subpart also establishes requirements to demonstrate compliance with the emission limitations and management practices.

163.11111 Am I subject to the requirements in this subpart?

(a) The affected source to which this subpart applies is each GDF that is located at an area source. The affected sonrce includes each gasoline cargo tank during the delivery of product to a GDF and also includes each storage tank.

(b) If your GDF has a monthly throughput of less than 10,000 gallons of gasoline, you must comply with the requirements in 163.11116.

(c) If your GDF has a monthly throughput of 10,000 gallons of gasoline or more, you must comply with the requirements in § 63.11117.

(d) If your GDF has a monthly throughput of 100,000 gallons of gasoline or more, you must comply with the requirements in §63,11118.

(e) An affected source shall, upon request by the Administrator, demonstrate that their average monthly throughput is less than the 10,000-gallon or the 100,000-gallon threshold

lavel, as applicable.

(f) If you are an owner or operator of affected sources, as defined in paragraph (a) of this section, you are not required to obtain a permit under 40 OFR part 70 or 40 OFR part 71 as a result of being subject to this subpart. However, you must still apply for and

of the applicability criteria found in 40 CFR 70.3(a) and (b) or 40 CFR 71.3(a) and (b).

(g) The loading of aviation gasoline storage tanks at airports is not subject to this subpart and the aviation gasoline is not included in the gasoline throughput specified in paragraphs (b) through (e) of this section.

\$63.11112 What parts of my affected source does this subpart cover?

(a) The emission sources to which this subpart applies are gasoline storage tanks and associated equipment components in vapor or liquid gasoline service at new, reconstructed, or existing GDF that meet the criteria specified in \$63.11111. Pressure/Vacuum vents on gasoline storage tanks and the equipment necessary to unload product from cargo tanks into the storage tanks at GDF are covered emission sources. The equipment used for the refaeling of motor vehicles is not covered by this subpart.

(b) An affected source is a new affected source if you commenced construction on the affected source after November 9, 2008, and you meet the applicability oritoria in \$63.11111 at the time you commenced operation.

(c) An affected source is reconstructed if you meet the oriteria for reconstruction as defined in \$63.2.

(d) An affected source is an existing affected source if it is not new or reconstructed.

§63.11113 When do I have to comply with this subpart?

(a) If you have a new or reconstructed affected source, you must comply with this subpart according to paragraphs (a)(1) and (2) of this section, except as specified in paragraph (d) of this section.

(1) If you start up your affected source before January 10, 2008, you must comply with the standards in this subpart no later than January 10, 2008.

(2) If you start up your affected source after January 10, 2008, you must comply with the standards in this subpart upon startup of your affected

source. have an aristing affected Æ

· 5 -

standards in this subpart no later than January 10, 2011.

- (c) If you have an existing affected source that becomes subject to the control requirements in this subpart because of an increase in the average monthly throughput, as specified in §63.1111(c) or §63.1111(d), you must comply with the standards in this subpart no later than 3 years after the affected source becomes subject to the control requirements in this subpart.
- (d) If you have a new or reconstructed affected source and you are complying with Table 1 to this subpart, you must comply according to paragraphs (d)(1) and (2) of this section.

(1) If you start up your affected source from November 9, 2006 to September 23, 2008, you must comply no later than September 23, 2008.

(2) If you start up your affected source after September 23, 2008, you must comply upon startup of your affected source.

[73 FR 1945, Jan. 10, 2008, as amended at 73 FR 35944, June 25, 2008]

EMISSION LIMITATIONS AND MANAGEMENT PRACTICES

§63,11116 Requirements for facilities with monthly throughput of less than 10,000 gallons of gasoline.

(a) You must not allow gasoline to be handled in a manner that would result in vapor releases to the atmosphere for extended periods of time. Measures to be taken include, but are not limited to, the following:

(1) Minimize gasoline spills;

(2) Clean up spills as expeditionaly as practicable;

(3) Cover all open gasoline containers and all gasoline storage tank fill-pipes with a gasketed seal when not in use;

- (4) Minimize gasoline sent to open waste collection systems that collect and transport gasoline to reclamation and recycling devices, such as oil/water separators.
- (b) You are not required to submit notifications or reports, but you must have records available within 24 hours of a request by the Administrator to document your gasoline throughput.
- (c) You must comply with the requirements of this subpart by the applicable dates specified in §63.11113.

§63,11117 Requirements for facilities with monthly throughput of 10,000 gallons of gasoline or more.

(a) You must comply with the requirements in section §63.11116(a).

- (b) Except as specified in paragraph (c), you must only load gasoline into storage tanks at your facility by utilizing submerged filling, as defined in §63.1132, and as specified in paragraph (b)(1) or paragraph (b)(2) of this section.
- (1) Submerged fill pipes installed on or before November 9, 2006, must be no more than 12 inches from the bottom of the storage tank.
- (2) Submerged fill pipes installed after November 9, 2006, must be no more than 6 inches from the bottom of the storage tank.
- (c) Gasoline storage tanks with a capacity of less than 250 gallons are not required to comply with the submerged fill requirements in paragraph (b) of this section, but must comply only with all of the requirements in \$63.1116.
- (d) You must have records available within 24 hours of a request by the Administrator to document your gasoline throughput.
- (e) You must submit the applicable notifications as required under 163.11124(a).
- (f) You must comply with the requirements of this subpart by the applicable dates contained in §63.11113.

[73 FR 1945, Jan. 10, 2008, as amended at 73 FR 12278, Mar. 7, 2008]

§ 83.11118 Requirements for facilities with monthly throughput of 100,000 gallons of gasoline or more.

- (a) You must comply with the requirements in \$563.11116(a) and 63.11117(b).
- (b) Except as provided in paragraph (c) of this section, you must meet the requirements in either paragraph (b)(1) or paragraph (b)(2) of this section.
- (1) Each management practice in Table 1 to this subpart that applies to your GDF.
- (2) If, prior to January 10, 2008, you satisfy the requirements in both paragraphs (b)(2)(i) and (ii) of this section, you will be deemed in compliance with this subsection.

- (i) You operate a vapor balance system at your GDF that meets the requirements of either paragraph (b)(2)(i)(A) or paragraph (b)(2)(i)(B) of this section.
- (A) Achieves emissions reduction of at least 90 percent.
- (B) Operates using management practices at least as stringent as those in Table 1 to this subpart.
- (ii) Your gasoline dispensing facility is in compliance with an enforceable state, local, or tribal rule or permit that contains requirements of either paragraph (b)(2)(i)(A) or paragraph (b)(2)(i)(B) of this section.
- (0) The emission sources listed in paragraphs (0)(1) through (3) of this section are not required to comply with the control requirements in paragraph (b) of this section, but must comply with the requirements in §63.11117.
- (1) Gasoline storage tanks with a capacity of less than 250 gallons that are constructed after January 10, 2008.
- (2) Gasoline storage tanks with a capacity of less than 2,000 gallons that were constructed before January 10, 2008.
- (3) Gasoline storage tanks equipped with floating roofs, or the equivalent.
- (d) Cargo tanks unloading at GDF must comply with the management practices in Table 2 to this subpart.
- (e) You must comply with the applicable testing requirements contained in § 63.11120.
- (f) You must submit the applicable notifications as required under \$63.11124.
- (g) You must keep records and submit reports as specified in §§ 53.11125 and 63.11125.
- (h) You must comply with the requirements of this subpart by the applicable dates contained in §63.11113.
- [73 FR 1945, Jan. 10, 2008, as amended at 73 FR 12276, Mar. 7, 2008]

TESTING AND MONITORING REQUIREMENTS

- \$63,11120 What testing and monitoring requirements must I meet?
- (a) Each owner or operator, at the time of installation of a vapor balance

- comply with the requirements in paragraphs (a)(1) and (2) of this section.
- (1) You must demonstrate compliance with the leak rate and cracking pressure requirements, specified in item 1(g) of Table 1 to this subpart, for pressure-vacuum vent valves installed on your gasoline storage tanks using the test methods identified in paragraph (a)(1)(i) or paragraph (a)(1)(ii) of this section.
- (i) California Air Resources Board Vapor Recovery Test Procedure TP-201,1E,—Leak Rate and Cracking Pressure of Pressure/Vacuum Vent. Valves, adopted October 8, 2003 (incorporated by reference, see §63.14).
- (ii) Use alternative test methods and procedures in accordance with the alternative test method requirements in §63.7(f).
- (2) You must demonstrate compliance with the static pressure performance requirement, specified in item 1(h) of Table 1 to this subpart, for your vapor balance system by conducting a static pressure test on your gasoline storage tanks using the test methods identified in paragraph (a)(2)(i) or paragraph (a)(2)(ii) of this section.
- (1) California Air Resources Board Vapor Recovery Test Procedure TP-201.3,—Determination of 2-Inch WC Static Pressure Performance of Vapor Recovery Systems of Dispensing Facilities, adopted April 12, 1998, and amended March 17, 1999 (incorporated by reference, see § 63.14).
- (ii) Use alternative test methods and procedures in accordance with the alternative test method requirements in \$63.7(f).
- (b) Each owner or operator choosing, under the provisions of §63.6(g), to use a vapor balance system other than that described in Table 1 to this subpart must demonstrate to the Administrator or delegated authority under paragraph §63.11131(a) of this subpart, the equivalency of their vapor balance system to that described in Table 1 to this subpart using the procedures specified in paragraphs (b)(1) through (3) of this section.
- (1) You must demonstrate initial compliance by conducting an initial

balance system achieves 95 percent reduction using the California Air Resources Board Vapor Recovery Test Procedure TP-201.1,—Volumetric Efficiency for Phase I Vapor Recovery Systems, adopted April 12, 1996, and amended February 1, 2001, and October 8, 2003, (incorporated by reference, see §63.14).

- (2) You must, during the initial performance test required under paragraph (b)(1) of this section, determine and document alternative acceptable values for the leak rate and cracking pressure requirements specified in item 1(g) of Table 1 to this subpart and for the static pressure performance requirement in item 1(h) of Table 1 to this subpart.
- (3) You must comply with the testing requirements specified in paragraph (a) of this section.

NOTIFICATIONS, RECORDS, AND REPORTS

§ 63.11124 What notifications must I submit and when?

- (a) Each owner or operator subject to the control requirements in §63.11117 must comply with paragraphs (a)(1) through (3) of this section.
- (1) You must submit an Initial Notification that you are subject to this subpart by May 9, 2008, or at the time you become subject to the control requirements in §63.11117, unless you meet the requirements in paragraph (a)(3) of this section. The Initial Notification must contain the information specified in paragraphs (a)(1)(1) through (111) of this section. The notification must be submitted to the applicable EPA Regional Office and delegated State authority as specified in §63.13.
- (1) The name and address of the owner and the operator.
- (ii) The address (i.e., physical location) of the GDF.
- (iii) A statement that the notification is being submitted in response to this subpart and identifying the requirements in paragraphs (a) through (c) of §63.11117 that apply to you.
- (2) You must submit a Notification of Compliance Status to the applicable EPA Regional Office and the delegated State authority, as specified in §53.13, by the compliance date specified in §63.11113 unless you meet the require-

ments in paragraph (a)(3) of this section. The Notification of Compliance Status must be signed by a responsible official who must certify its accuracy and must indicate whether the source has complied with the requirements of this subpart. If your facility is in compliance with the requirements of this subpart at the time the Initial Notification required under paragraph (a)(1) of this section is due, the Notification of Compliance Status may be submitted in lieu of the Initial Notification provided it contains the information required under paragraph (a)(1) of this section.

- (3) If, prior to January 10, 2008, you are operating in compliance with an enforceable State, local, or tribal rule or permit that requires submerged fill as specified in §63.11117(b), you are not required to submit an Initial Notification or a Notification of Compliance Status under paragraph (a)(1) or paragraph (a)(2) of this section.
- (b) Each owner or operator subject to the control requirements in §63.11118 must comply with paragraphs (b)(1) through (5) of this section.
- (1) You must submit an Initial Notification that you are subject to this subpart by May 9, 2008, or at the time you become subject to the control requirements in §63.11118. The Initial Notification must contain the information specified in paragraphs (b)(1)(i) through (iii) of this section. The notification must be submitted to the applicable EPA Regional Office and the delegated State authority as specified in §63.13.
- (i) The name and address of the owner and the operator.
- (ii) The address (i.e., physical location) of the GDF.
- (iii) A statement that the notification is being submitted in response to this subpart and identifying the requirements in paragraphs (a) through (c) of §63.11118 that apply to you.
- (2) You must submit a Notification of Compliance Status to the applicable EPA Regional Office and the delegated State authority, as specified in §63.13, by the compliance date specified in §63.1113. The Notification of Compliance Status must be signed by a responsible official who must certify its accuracy and must indicate whether

the source has complied with the requirements of this subpart. If your facility is in compliance with the requirements of this subpart at the time the Initial Notification required under paragraph (b)(1) of this section is due, the Notification of Compliance Status may be submitted in lieu of the Initial Notification provided it contains the information required under paragraph (b)(1) of this section.

- (3) If, prior to January 10, 2008, you satisfy the requirements in both paragraphs (b)(3)(i) and (ii) of this section, you are not required to submit an Initial Notification or a Notification of Compliance Status under paragraph (b)(1) or paragraph (b)(2) of this subsection
- (i) You operate a vapor balance system at your gasoline dispensing facility that meets the requirements of either paragraphs (b)(3)(i)(A) or (b)(3)(i)(B) of this section.

(A) Achieves emissions reduction of at least 90 percent.

(B) Operates using management practices at least as stringent as those in Table 1 to this subpart.

(ii) Your gasoline dispensing facility is in compliance with an enforceable State, local, or tribal rule or permit that contains requirements of either paragraphs (b)(3)(i)(A) or (b)(3)(i)(B) of this section.

(4) You must submit a Notification of Performance Test, as specified in §63.9(a), prior to initiating testing required by §63.11120(a) and (b).

(5) You must submit additional notifications specified in §63.9, as applicable.

[73 FR 1945, Jan. 10, 2008, as amended at 73 FR 12278, Mar. 7, 2008]

§63.11125 What are my recordkeeping requirements?

(a) Each owner or operator subject to the management practices in §63.11118must keep records of all tests performed under §63.11120(a) and (b).

(b) Records required under paragraph
(a) of this section shall be kept for a
period of 5 years and shall be made
available for inspection by the Administrator's delegated representatives
during the course of a site visit.

\$63.11126 What are my reporting requirements?

Each owner or operator subject to the management practices in §63.11118 shall report to the Administrator the results of all volumetric efficiency tests required under §63.11120(b). Reports submitted under this paragraph must be submitted within 180 days of the completion of the performance testing.

OTHER REQUIREMENTS AND INFORMATION

163.11130 What parts of the General Provisions apply to me?

Table 3 to this subpart shows which parts of the General Provisions apply to you.

§63.11131 Who implements and enforces this subpart?

(a) This subpart can be implemented and enforced by the U.S. EPA or a delegated authority such as the applicable State, local, or tribal agency. If the U.S. EPA Administrator has delegated authority to a State, local, or tribal agency, then that agency, in addition to the U.S. EPA, has the authority to implement and enforce this subpart Contact the applicable U.S. EPA Regional Office to find out if implementation and enforcement of this subpart is delegated to a State, local, or tribal agency.

(b) In delegating implementation and enforcement authority of this subpart to a State, local, or tribal agency under subpart E of this part, the authorities contained in paragraph (c) of this section are retained by the Administrator of U.S. EPA and cannot be transferred to the State, local, or tribal agency.

(c) The authorities that cannot be delegated to State, local, or tribal agencies are as specified in paragraphs (c)(1) through (3) of this section.

(1) Approval of alternatives to the requirements in \$\$63.11116 through 63.11118 and 63.11120.

(2) Approval of major alternatives to test methods under \$63.7(a)(2)(11) and (1), as defined in \$63.90, and as required in this subpart.

(3) Approval of major alternatives to recordkeeping and reporting under

Environmental Protection Agency

§63.10(f), as defined in §63.90, and as required in this subpart.

\$63.11132 What definitions apply to this subpart?

As used in this subpart, all terms not defined herein shall have the meaning given them in the Clean Air Act (CAA), or in subparts A and BBBBBB of this part. For purposes of this subpart, definitions in this section supersede definitions in other parts or subparts.

Dual-point vapor balance system means a type of vapor balance system in which the storage tank is equipped with an entry port for a gasoline fill pipe and a separate exit port for a vapor connection.

Gasoline cargo tank means a delivery tank truck or railcar which is loading gasoline or which has loaded gasoline on the immediately previous load.

Gasoline dispensing facility (GDF) means any stationary facility which dispenses gasoline into the fuel tank of a motor vehicle.

Monthly throughput means the total volume of gasoline that is loaded into all gasoline storage tanks during a

month, as calculated on a rolling 30-day average.

Submerged filling means, for the purposes of this subpart, the filling of a gasoline storage tank through a submerged fill pipe whose discharge is no more than the applicable distance specified in §63.11117(b) from the bottom of the tank. Bottom filling of gasoline storage tanks is included in this definition.

Vapor balance system means a combination of pipes and hoses that create a closed system between the vapor spaces of an unloading gasoline cargo tank and a receiving storage tank such that vapors displaced from the storage tank are transferred to the gasoline cargo tank being unloaded.

Vapor-tight means equipment that allows no loss of vapors. Compliance with vapor-tight requirements can be determined by checking to ensure that the concentration at a potential leak source is not equal to or greater than 100 percent of the Lower Explosive Limit when measured with a combustible gas detector, calibrated with propane, at a distance of 1 inch from the source.

Table 1 to Subpart CCCCCC of Part 53—Applicability Criteria and Management Practices for Gaboline Dispensing Facilities With Monthly Throughput of 100,000 Gallons of Gaboline or Morb

If you own or operate .	Then you must
1. A new, reconstructed, or adulting GDF subject to \$63.11118.	Install and operate a vapor balance system on your gescline storage tanks that meats the deelgn orients in paragraphs (a) through (n). (a) All vapor connections and lines on the storage tank shall be equipped with closures that seed upon discorpact,
	(b) The vepor line from the pascime storage tank to the pascine cargo tank shall be vepor-tight, as defined in § 83,51132.
	(c) The vapor belience system shell be designed such that the pressure in the lank linck does not exceed 18 inches water pressure or 5.9 inches water viscuum during product transfer,
	(d) The vapor recovery and product adaptors, and the method of connec- tion with the delivery abow, shall be designed so as to prevent the over- lightening or locating of fittings during normal delivery operations.
•	(e) If a gauge well separate iron the III habe is used, it shall be provided with a submerged drop habe that argands the same distance from the bottom of the storage tank as specified in § 83,17117(b).
	(f) Uquid fit connectons for all systems shall be equipped with vepor-light caps.
	(g) Pressure/scusin (PV) vent valves shall be installed on the storage tenk vent place. The pressure specifications for PV vent valves shall be: a positive pressure string of 2.6 to 6.0 inches of vester and a negative pressure setting of 8.0 to 10.0 inches of water. The total leak rate of all PV vent valves at an affected facility, including connections, shall not asceed 0.77 cubit not per hour at a pressure of 2.0 inche of water and 0.63 cubit tool per hour at a vacuum of 4 inches of water. (h) The vispor balance system shall be capable of meeting the static pressure performance regularement of the following equation:
	[

If you own or operate	Then you must
	Where ·
	Pt = Minimum allowable final pressure, inches of water. v = Total ultips affected by the tast, gallons.
ļ	a = Dimensionless constant equal to approximately 2.718.
	2 = The Initial pressure, Inches water.
 For new or reconstructed GDF, or new storage tank(s) at an indexing attacked facility subject to \$63,1118. 	

[73 FR 1945, Jan. 10, 2008, as amended at 73 PR 35944, June 25, 2008]

TABLE 2 TO SUBPART CCCCCC OF PART 63—APPLICABILITY CRITERIA AND MANAGEMENT PRACTICES FOR GASOLINE CARGO TANKS UNLOADING AT GASOLINE DISPENSING FACILITIES WITH MONTHLY THROUGHPUT OF 100,000 GALLONS OF GASOLINE OR MORE

If you own or operate	Then you must
À pasciène cargo tank	Not unload gasotine into a storage tank at a GDF subject to the control requirements in this subpart unless the following conditions are mat:
	(f) All hoses in the vapor balance system are properly connected,
	(fi) The adapters or couplers that stach to the vapor line on the storage tank have closured that seal upon disconnect.
	(iii) All vapor return hosse, couplers, and adepters used in the gasoline delivery are vapor- tions.
	(vi) All tank truck vapor return equipment is compatible in size and torms a vapor-tight connection with the vapor balance equipment on the GDF storage tank, and
	(v) All hatches on the tank truck are closed and securely fastened.
	(vi) The filling of storage tanks at GDF shall be limited to unloading by vapor-tiph paschricingo tanks. Documentation that the cargo tanks has met the specifications of EPA Method 27 shall be carried on the cargo tank.

TABLE 3 TO SUBPART COCCCO OF PART 63—APPLICABILITY OF GENERAL PROVISIONS

Citation	Subject	Brief description	Applies to subpart
5831	Applicability	initial applicability determination applicability after standard satablished; primit requirements; solensions, notifications.	Yee, specific require- ments given in §83.11111.
\$83.1(c)(2)	This V Parmit	Requirements for obtaining a title V permit from the applicable permitting authority.	empts identified area sources from the obs- pation to obtain the V operating permits.
583.2	Detritions	Delinitions for part 63 standards	Yes, additional defini- tions in § 83.11132.
J633	Units and Abbreviations	Units and abbreviations for part 63 standards	YM
1834		Prohibited activities; Circumvantion, severability	Year
183.5	Construction/Recon-	Applicability; applications; approvats	ì
\$63.6(a)	Compliance with Stand- artis/Operation & Maintenance—Appli- cability.	lansion; General Provisions apply to area sources that become major,	
\$63.8(X1)-(4)		Standards apply at effective date; 3 years after effective date; upon startup; 10 years after construction or reconstruction commences to CAA section 112(f).	.}
\$63.8(4)/8.06	Notification	Must notify if commerced construction or reconstruction after proposal.	Yes.
\$83.8(0)(5)	. (Reserved).	1	1
\$63.0(0)(7)		Area sources that become major make comply with major source standards immediately upon becoming major, repartless of whithe regard to comply when they were an area.	

Environmental Protection Agency

Chailon	Subject	Brief description	Applies to subpart CCCCCC
§ 63.6(c)(1)-(2)	Existing Sources.	Comply according to date in this subpart, which must be no later than 3 years after effective date, for CAA section 112(f) standards, comply which 90 days of effective date unless compliance scientists.	No, §83.11113 speci- lies the complence dates.
\$ 63.6(c)(3)-(4) \$ 63.6(c)(5)	Compliance Detector Editing Area Sources That Become Major.	Area sources Thei become major must comply with major source standards by date indicated in this subpart or by equivalent time period (e.g., 3 years).	Na .
\$ 63.8(e)(1) \$ 63.8(e)(1)	Périca.	Operate to minimize emissions at all times; cor- rect malfunctions as soon as practicable; and operation and maintenance requirements independently enforceable; information Ad- ministrator will use to determine it operation and maintenance requirements were met.	Yes.
§ 63.6(a)(3)		Requirement for SSM plan; content of SSM plan; actions during SSM.	No.
\$ 83.8(1)(1)	Compliance Except. During SSM.	You must comply with emission standards at all times except during SSM.	Na
\$ 63.8(1)(2)-(3)	Methods for Deter- mining Compliance.	Compliance based on performance jest, operation and maintenance plans, records, inspec- tion.	Yes
\$63.6(p)(1)(2) \$63.6(n)(1)(1)(1)(1)(1)(1)(1)(1)(1)(1)(1)(1)(1)	Alternetive Standard	Procedures for getting an alternative standard: You must comply with opecityVE standards at all times axcept during SSM.	Yes. No.
\$ 63.6(n)(2)(n)	Delermining Compli- ance with Opecity/VE Standards.	If standard does not Stale test method, use EPA Method 9 for opacity in appendix A of part 60 of this chapter and EPA Method 22 for VE in appendix A of part 60 of this chapter.	
\$63.8(1)(2)(11)	Using Previous Tests To Demonstrate Compliance With OpechyVE Standards	Criteria for when previous opacity/VE testing can be used to show compliance with this subpart.	Na
\$ 63.6(n)(3) \$ 63.6(n)(4)	[Asserved]. Notification of Opecity!		
\$83.8(1)(5)(1), (41)-(1)	VE Observation Date.		}
\$60.6(1)(5)(8)	Observations. Opacity Test Duration	Dates and schedule for conducting opacity/VE observations, Must have at least 3 hours of observation with	1
\$63.66)	and Averaging Times. Precords of Conditions	30 8-minute averages. Must keep records available and allow Adminis-	ł
•	During Opacity/VE Observations.	trains to inspect.	, "M
\$ 83.6(A)(7)(I)	Beport Continuous Opacity Monitoring System (COMS) Monitoring Data From Performance Test.	Must submit COMS data with other performance lest data.	Ho.
\$ 63.6(1)(7)(0)	Using COMS Instead of EPA Method 9.	Can submit COMS data Instead of EPA Method 9 neutra even if rule requires EPA Method 9 in appendix A of part 80 of this chapter, but must notify Admiristrator before performance test.	1
\$83.8(h)(7)(m)	Averaging Time for CONS During Partornance Test.	To determine compliance, must recuce COMS data to 8-minute averages.	No.
\$ 65x 8(n)(77/m)	COMS Requirements	Owner/operator must demonstrate that COMS performance availabone are conducted according to \$80.8(a); COMS are properly maintained and operated according to \$80.8(c) and dela quality as \$80.8(d).	

M. 63, Subpl. CCCCCC, Table 3

40 CFR Ch. 1 (7-1-10 Edition)

Challon	Subject	Briel description	Applies is subpart coccoc
162.80)(D)(M)	Delaminang Compations and and opening Compations of Standards.	COAS Is probable but not condustive evidence of completics with opeinty standard, even if EPA Method 6 observation shows otherwise. Requirements for COAS to be probable evidence-proper maintenance, meeting Performance Scenification. In ancoender B of best in the Scenification I is accounted.	\$
183.60)(8)	Determining Compleance with Operative Standards.	of the chaptes, and deta have not been the hard. Administrator will use all COMRS, EPA Method 9 (on appendix A of part 80 of this chaptes), and EPA Method 22 (in appendix A of part 80 of this chaptes) metals, as well as information	\$
	Adjusted Opacity Stand- art. Compliance Extension	accompliance. The completion. Procedure for Administrator to adjust an opecity standard. Procedure and critical for Administrator to	و و ع واد
	al Compliance lon. ce Test lon 114 Au-	part complexes admission. part complexes admission. ment to comply with this subpart. Date for conducting bitals performance testing. must conduct 190 days after complexes date. Admission of many many and admission admission and admission admission and admission admiss	¥ ¥ ¥
184.76)(1)	Notification of Perform- ince Test, Notification of Re- scheduling.	under Contraction 11 at any sine. Next notify Administrator 60 days before the best. If have no reschedule performance best, must notify Administrator of rescheduled due se notification as everytable and without delay.	Year
163.7(c)	Oually Assurance (OA) Test Plan.	Requirement to submit ille-specific lest plan 60 days before the test or on data Administrator agrees with test plan approprial procedures; performance suddi requirements; bisemal and supplements; bisemal and supplements; bisemal and supplements the restrict.	#
	Conditions for Con- ducting Performance Tests. Conditions for Con- ducting Performance	Beginnens for testing location. Performence, testing must be conducted under representable conducting carried conduct per- representable conditions; carried conduct per- representable conditions; carried conduct according to the subpert and EPA test conduct according to the subpert and EPA test markode unless Administrator approves	11 1
163.7(b)(3)	Test Pun Duration	MARITIMENT TO THE TOTAL OF ALL SHEET 1 NOVEMBER SHEET CONSIDERATE BY EAST OF CONSIDERATION OF THE TOTAL AND CONSIDERATION OF THE TOTAL AND ACCURATIONS OF THE TOTAL SECTIONS OF	* * * *
\$63.7(a)	Parlomance Test Data Analysis. Walver of Tests	change, or alemanshe to a test metrod. Next include rest deta in performance test test test port, must extent performance test date for days after a test of test with the Northeston of Compleiros Status, keep date for 5 years. Compleiros Status, keep date for 5 years. Forcadores for Admisistrator to wake parform-	\$ \$ \$ 784
\$62.8(a)(1) \$62.8(a)(2)	Applicability of Mortharting Bequirementa. Performance Specifica- lione.	ance test. Subject to all monitoring requirements in stand- and. Performance Specifications in apparedix B of 40 CFR part 60 apply.	* * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * *
\$624(a)(4) \$624(a)(4) \$624(a)(2)-(3)	Deserved, Morbofrg of Parse Morbofrg Multiple Ethuens and Multiple Morbing	Moritoring requirements for facus in \$63.15 apply. Must conduct moritoring according to standard unless Administration approves alternable. Specific requirements for hustaling moritoring systems; must have also one substantial on sent about course paints and shared over a share contrained with another shared course prefers it is miseased to the amorphore provided the monitoring is estimated to demonstrate completes.	A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A

Environmental Protection Agency

Citation	Subject	Brief description	Applies to subpart CCCCCC
§ 63.8(c)(1)	Monitoring System Op- eration and Mainte- nance.	Maintain monitoring system in a manner con- sistent with good air poliution control practices.	Na.
\$ 83.8(c)(1)(l)-(lil)	Routine and Predictable SSM.	Follow the SSM plan for routine repairs; keep parts for routine repairs leadily available; reporting requirements for SSM when action is described in SSM plan.	No.
§ 83.8(c)(2)-(8)	Continuous Monitoring System (CMS) Re- quirements.	Must install to get representative emission or parameter measurements; must verify oper- ational status before or at performance test.	No.
§ 83.8(<i>o</i>)	CMS Quality Control	Requirements for CMS quality control, including calibration, etc.; must keep quality control plan on record for 5 years; keep old versions for 5 years after ravisions.	1
§ 63.8(e)	CMS Partormance Eval- uation.	Notification, performance evaluation test plan, reports,	
§ 83.8(I)(1)-(5)	Method.	Procedures for Administrator to approve alter- netive monitoring.	1
\$ 63.8(I)(B)	Alternative to Reletive Accuracy Test.	Procedures for Administrator to approve atter- native relative accuracy tests for continuous emissions monitoring system (CEMS).	No.
§ 83.8(g)	Data Reduction	COMS 6-minute averages calculated over at least 36 evenly spaced data points; CEMS 1 hour averages computed over at least 4 equally spaced data points; data that cannot be used in average.	
\$ 83.9(a)	Notification Require- ments,	Applicability and State delegation	Yes
\$ B3.9(D)(1)-{2}, {4}-{5}	Iridal Holifications	Submit notification within 120 days after after- tive date; notification of intent to constructive- construct, notification of commencement of construction/reconstruction, notification of startuct contents of each.	
\$ 63.9(c)	Request for Compilance Extension	Can request if cannot comply by date or if in- stalled best available control technology or lowest achievable amission rate.	Yes,
\$ 63.9(4)	Notification of Special Compliance Require- ments for New Sources,	For sources that commence construction be- tween proposal and promulgation and want to comply 3 years wher affective data.	Yes
5 63.B(s)	Notification of Performance Test.	Notify Administrator 80 days prior	. Yan
\$ 63.9(a)	 Notification of VE/Opeo by Tast. Additional Hostications 		. No.
3 000 130	when Using CMS.	Notification of performance evaluation; notifica- tion about use of COMS date; notification that societies desired the performance of the methys.	abreste verson on 11
\$ 8.34.9(h)(1)-(8)	Notification of Compliance Status.	Contents due 80 days after and of performance test or other compliance demonstration, so capt for opechyl/E, which are due 30 days after, when to submit to Faderal vs. State authoritie.	no opecity attandends.
\$ 63.9(1)	- Adjustment of Submittal Deadlines.	Procedures for Administrator to approve change when notifications must be submitted.	Уэв.
\$63.90)	Change in Previous in- formation.	Must submit within 15 days after the change	, Y98,
§63,10(a)	Recording/Report- ing.	Applies to all, unless compliance extension when to submit to Federal vs. State authority; procedures for owners of more than one source.	: 1
\$63.70(A)?	Recordkeeping/Report- ing.		Yes
\$ 83.10(b)(2)(1)-(h)	Records Related to SSM,	Occurrance of each for operations (process equipment); occurrance of each mathemation of air pollution control equipment; matrie-nence on air pollution control equipment; solution during SSM.	
\$63.10(b)(2)(v)-pa) \$63.10(b)(2)(pa)	- Records	Alahunctions, inoperative, out-of-control periods Records when under waiver	No.
§ 83.10(b)(2)(dif)	- Records	Records when using alternative to relative accu-	Yea. Yea.

Chation	Subject	Brief description	Applies to subpart CCCCCC
	Records	All documentation supporting Initial Notification and Notification of Compliance Status.	Yes: '
18210(6)(3)	Records	Applicability determinations	Yes
182 10(c)	Records	Additional records for CNS	No.
183 10(0X1)	General Reporting Ra-	Requirement to report	Yes.
182.10(0)(2)	Report of Partormance Test Results	When to submit to Federal or State authority	Yes
	Reporting Opacity or VE Observations.	What to report and when	Na
	Prograss Rapons	Must submit progress seports on schedule it under compliance extension.	YHL
183.10(0)(5)	SSM Reports	Contents and submission	Yes
\$83.10(e)(1)-(2)	Additional CNS Reports	Must report results for each CEMS on a unit; written copy of CMS performance evaluation; two-three copies of COMS performance evaluation.	
18.2.10(e)(3)(3)—(3)(Schedule for reporting excess emissions	Yes, note that § 53.11130(K) speci- les excess emission events for this aub- part.
	Excass Emissions Reports.	Requirement to revert to querierly externation if there is an excess emissions and parameter monitor exceedances (now defined as deviations); provision to request seminarated reporting after compilance for 1 year; submit report by 30th day tollowing and of quester or calendar half, if there has not been an accedance or excess emissions (now defined as deviations), report contents in a shatternarity that there have been no deviations; must submit report containing all of the Information in §§ 53.8(c)(7)-(8) and 83.10(c)(5)-(13).	specifies excess emission events for this subpart.
(#V)-(V)(c)(e)01.284	port and Summary Raport,	Requirements for reporting excess emissions to CMS; requires all of the information is \$8.83.10(c)(5)-(10) and 63.8(c)(7)-(8).	n.
\$83.10(0)(4)		Must submit COMS data with performance ted data.	ł
\$83.10(1)	keaping/Reporting.	Procedures for Administrator to waive	1
\$63.11(0)	. Parse		
583.12	. Delegation		_ {Y=4.
383.13		Addresses where reports, notifications, and it quests are sent.	1
	Incorporations by Ref-	Tast methods incorporated by reference	1
§63.15	Availability of informa- tion.	Public and confidential Information	Узе.

Subpart DDDDDD—National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants for Polyvinyl Chloride- and Copolymers Production Area Sources

SOURCE: 72 FR 2943, Jan. 23, 2007, unless otherwise noted.

APPLICABILITY AND COMPLIANCE DATES

§63.11140 Am I subject to this subpart?

(a) You are subject to this subpart if you own or operate a plant specified in

40 CFR 61.61(o) that produces polyvinyl chloride (PVC) or copolymers and is an area source of hazardous air pollutant (HAP) emissions.

(b) This subpart applies to each new or existing affected source. The affected source is the collection of all equipment and activities in vinyl chloride service necessary to produce PVC and copolymers. An affected source does not include portions of your PVC and copolymers production operations that meet the criteria in 40 CFR 61.60(b) or (o).

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

I, Cynthia Hook, hereby certify that a copy of this permit has been mailed by first class mail to Nucor Corporation (Nucor Steel, Arkansas), P.O. Box 30, Armorel, AR, 72310, on this 30 day of November, 2012.

Cynthia Hook, ASIII, Air Division